
 
 

 
 

UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN ADVISORY 
PANEL  

 

MONDAY 5 JANUARY 2004 
7.30 PM  

 
PANEL AGENDA (ADVISORY) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS 1 & 2, 
HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 

 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Burchell 

 
Councillors: 

 
Idaikkadar 
N Shah 
Anne Whitehead 
 

Marilyn Ashton 
Mrs Bath 
Mrs Kinnear 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Blann 
2. Bluston 
3. Ray 
4. Miles 
 

1. Kara 
2. Versallion 
3. Harriss 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Issued by the Committee Services Section, 

Law and Administration Division 
 
Contact:  Rebecca Arnold, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1269    E-mail:  rebecca.arnold@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 
 IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN ADVISORY PANEL  
 
MONDAY 5 JANUARY 2004 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of interest (if any) from Members of the Committee 

arising from business to be transacted at this meeting. 
 

3. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

4. Minutes:  (Pages 1 - 4) Enc. 
 That the minutes of the Special meeting held on 12 November 2003, having 

been circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

5. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

6. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 13 (Part 4E of the 
Constitution). 
 

7. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure 

Rule 14 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

8. Replacement Harrow Unitary Development Plan - Major Revisions to 
Policies and Reasoned Justifications to be included in Proposed 
Modifications:  (Pages 5 - 50) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Chief Planning Officer. 
 

9. Replacement Harrow Unitary Development Plan - Draft Proposed 
Modifications:  (Pages 51 - 94) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Chief Planning Officer. 
 

Enc. 10. Replacement Harrow Unitary Development Plan - Statement of 
Decisions on the Inspector's Report on the Public Local Inquiry:  (Pages 
95 - 148) 



 

 

  Report of the Chief Planning Officer. 
 

11. Annual Monitoring Report:  (Pages 149 - 176) Enc. 
 Report of the Chief Planning Officer. 

 
  AGENDA - PART II (PRESS AND PUBLIC EXCLUDED-NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

CABINET VOL. 7 CUDPC 28
 
 
 

  
UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN ADVISORY 
PANEL SPECIAL 

12 NOVEMBER 2003 

 
 
Chair: * Councillor Burchell 
   
Councillors: * Marilyn Ashton 

* Mrs Bath 
* Idaikkadar 
 

* Kara (1) 
* N Shah 
* Anne Whitehead 
 

* Denotes Member present 
(1) Denotes category of Reserve Member 
 

58. Attendance by Reserve Members:   
  

RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly appointed 
Reserve Member:- 
 

Ordinary Member  
 

Reserve Member 
 

Councillor Mrs Kinnear Councillor  Kara  
  
59. Declarations of Interest:   
  

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members in 
relation to the business to be transacted at this meeting. 

  
60. Arrangement of Agenda:   
  

RESOLVED:  That all items be considered with the press and public present. 
  
61. Minutes:   
  

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2003, having 
been circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 

  
62. Public Questions:   
  

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no public questions to be received at this 
meeting under the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure 
Rule 15 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 

  
63. Petitions:   
  

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no petitions to be received at this meeting under 
the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 13 (Part 4E 
of the Constitution). 

  
64. Deputations:   
  

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no deputations to be received at this meeting 
under the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 

  
65. References from Council and Other Committees/Panels:   
  

RESOLVED: To note that there were no references to be received from Council or 
other Committees/Panels. 

  
66. Harrow Unitary Development Plan - Consideration of the Inspector's Report on 

the Public Local Inquiry:   
 The Panel received a report of the Chief Planning Officer which considered the 

recommendations of the Inspector on the Public Local Inquiry relating to the 
replacement Harrow Unitary Development Plan (HUDP). The report accordingly 
suggested a response to each of the Inspector’s recommendations and a reason for 
each response. Those recommendations listed at paragraph 6 of the report and 
marked with an asterisk, it was advised, had been identified as requiring more detailed 
consideration and officers therefore proposed that they should be the subject of further 
reports to the Panel in due course.  
  
It was noted that officers were recommending that the overwhelming majority of the 

Agenda Item 4
Pages 1 to 4

1



 
 
 

CUDPC 29 VOL.7    CABINET
 
 
 

Inspector’s recommendations be accepted and that only a small number not be 
accepted, either in full or in part.  
  
The Panel were invited to consider and discuss the officer comments so far. When the 
Panel had agreed a complete response this would be the subject of a recommendation 
to Cabinet and, subject to their input, a statement of decisions would then be published, 
alongside the proposed modifications to the Plan that would consequently be required, 
and would be placed on deposit. 
  
Officers further explained that the HUDP needed to be in general conformity with the 
London Plan, but due to the slippage of the programme for adopting the London Plan, it 
was proving difficult to progress this. Officers had scheduled a meeting with Greater 
London Authority officers to discuss the issue further.  
  
During the discussion which followed, Members raised a number of general questions 
regarding the process of amending the HUDP, including, inter alia, what weight the 
Inspector’s report should be accorded by Members when determining planning 
applications between now and the adoption of the Replacement HUDP. In response, 
officers advised that the report would clearly constitute a material consideration in this 
interim period. 
  
The Panel then turned to discussion of the proposed responses to the Inspector’s 
recommendations. The majority of the responses proposed by officers were approved 
by the general assent of the Panel, but, at the request of a Member, individual votes 
were taken on the responses proposed in relation to the following policies on which 
there was not unanimous support. Following the votes, the officer response to each 
was agreed as set out in the appendix to the officer report: 
  
•  Policy D5 and paragraphs 4.33 and 4.37: New Residential Development – Amenity 

Space and Privacy; Policy D10: Rear Garden Interface 
 [Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 

  
•   Policies D13 and D14: Locally Listed Buildings 

[Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 

  
•  Transport Objectives – paragraph 5.12  

 [Notes: (1) Councillors Burchell, Idaikkadar, N Shah and Anne Whitehead wished 
to be recorded as having voted in favour of the officer response; 
  
(2) Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as having 
voted against the approval of the officer response]. 

  
•  Policy H5: Residential Density 

A Member expressed concern at the Inspector’s recommendation that the 
maximum standard in relation to this policy be deleted. In response it was 
explained that this was in line with Government policy and that it was considered 
that the density of development could be more effectively controlled through design 
factors rather than the relatively crude tool of a maximum density standard. 
  
[Notes: (1) Councillors Burchell, Idaikkadar, N Shah and Anne Whitehead wished 
to be recorded as having voted in favour of the officer response; 
  
(2) Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as having 
voted against the approval of the officer response]. 

  
•  Policy H10 and paragraph 6.57: Conversions of Houses and Other Buildings to 

Flats 
 [Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 
  

•  Policy H13: Houses in Multiple Occupation 
 [Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 
  

•  Policy H16: Hostels 
 [Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 
  

•  Policy EM14: Business Use – Designated Area: BAE Systems site 
 [Notes: (1) Councillors Burchell, Idaikkadar, N Shah and Anne Whitehead wished 

2



 
 
 

CABINET VOL. 7 CUDPC 30
 
 
 

to be recorded as having voted in favour of the officer response; 
  
(2) Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as having 
voted against the approval of the officer response]. 
  

•  Policy EM17: Change of Use of Shops – Primary Shopping Frontages 
 [Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 

  
•  Policies EM 18 and EM19: Change of Use of Shops – Secondary Shopping 

Frontages and Local Centres 
 [Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 
  

•  Policy C11: New Education Facilities 
 [Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 
  

•  PS 17: Former Harrow Hospital, and nurses hostel, Roxeth Hill 
 A Member explained that whilst she did not disagree with the Inspector’s 
recommendation in its entirety, she objected to the inclusion of the words ‘high 
density’ in the amendment. 
  
[Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 

  
•  Site of Nature Conservation Importance: Wood Farm (and PIC33) 

 [Note: Councillors Marilyn Ashton, Mrs Bath and Kara wished to be recorded as 
having voted against the approval of the officer response]. 

  
The following issues, inter alia, were also raised and discussed: 

  
•  Policies T17, T18 and H4 

Some concern was expressed at the Inspector’s recommendation that policies T17, 
T18 and H4 be deleted, however officers explained that the Inspector proposed the 
deletion of these on the basis that they were unnecessary and reassured the Panel 
that the aim of each was still covered by other policies in the Plan. 

  
•  Policy R14 and paragraphs 8.49 and 8.50: Libraries 

 Some disagreement was expressed at the Inspector’s recommendation that policy 
R14 be deleted. Officers explained that as the policy constituted a statement of 
intent it was not suitable for inclusion in the HUDP, but would probably be suitable 
for inclusion in the local development framework which the Authority would be 
required to develop.  

  
•  Policy T15: Making Better Use of Parking Provision 

 It was noted that the Inspector proposed the deletion of policy T15. Several 
Members expressed concern at this and, following discussion, it was agreed that, 
as T15 was closely related to policies T13 and T14, which were to be combined 
and re-drafted and the subject of a further report to the Panel, the response to T15 
would be further considered at this stage. 

  
•  Policy SD1: Quality of Design 

 It was noted that officers were recommending that the Inspector’s recommendation 
in respect of this policy be not accepted in full and proposed an alternative form of 
amended wording. It was agreed that the wording be given further consideration 
and the subject of a further report to the Panel. 
  
RESOLVED: That (1) the officer response to policy SD1 be the subject of a further 
report to be submitted to the Panel; 
  
(2) the Panel reserve its approval of the officer response to policy T15 pending the 
submission of a further report regarding policies T13 and T14 to a future meeting of 
the Panel; and 
  
(3) it be agreed to recommend to the Cabinet the responses to the 
recommendations contained in the Inspector’s report now approved at  this Panel 
meeting, excepting those items which it has been agreed above and in the officer 
report are to be the subject of a further report to the Panel (see note below). 
  
[Note: The Council’s Statement of Decisions on the recommendations contained in 
the Inspector’s report will be the subject of a composite recommendation to Cabinet 

3



 
 
 

CUDPC 31 VOL.7    CABINET
 
 
 

in due course when the Panel have responded to the remainder of the 
recommendations and considered all the modifications to the Plan resulting from 
consideration of the Inspector’s recommendations]. 

  
67. Any Other Business:   
  

•  Cancellation of the Special Meeting scheduled to take place on 18 November 2003 
It was noted the Panel had also made provision for a further Special Meeting to be 
held on 18 November in case further discussion of the recommendations of the 
Inspector  was required. It was now agreed that this meeting would be cancelled as 
it was no longer required. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Special Meeting of the Panel scheduled for 18 November 
2003 be cancelled. 

 
•  The reform of the development plan system 

Further to the previous discussions regarding the reform of the development plan 
system, the Chair requested that officers circulate to Members of the Panel 
publications which had recently been received regarding the reforms. He also 
requested that officers organise a training session for Members regarding the 
changes. 

 
RESOLVED: That the documents referred to above be circulated to all Members of 
the Panel and officers organise training for Members regarding the reform of the 
development plan system. 

 
  

(Note:  The meeting having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 8.59 pm) 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR KEITH BURCHELL 
Chair 

4



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 

Meeting: 
 

Unitary Development Plan Panel 

Date: 
 

5th January 2004 

Subject: 
 

Replacement Harrow Unitary Development Plan –  Major 
Revisions to  Policies and Reasoned Justifications to be 
included in Proposed Modifications. 

Key decision 
 

No 

Responsible Chief 
Officer: 
 

Chief Planning Officer 

Relevant Portfolio 
Holder 
 

Portfolio Holder for Planning, Development, Housing and 
Best Value 

Status: 
 

Public 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

1. Summary 
The Panel considered the suggested Council response to the Inspector’s 
recommendations in a report to its last meeting on 12th November 2003.  The 
latter highlighted certain issues which were to be the subject of a future 
report. This report sets out the revised wording and reasoned justifications on 
these policies and proposals.  In addition, revised  policies and wording are 
also included on other matters  where the Council accepted the Inspector’s 
recommendations, but also involved re-drafting of policies and/or reasoned 
justifications, and other wording.  Following consideration of the wording by 
the Panel and approval by Cabinet, these policies will be included in the 
Proposed Modifications to be placed on deposit  alongside the Statement of 
Decisions. Another report including a schedule of draft Proposed 
Modifications on all other matters, together with an updated Statement of 
Decisions is included elsewhere on the agenda.    
 

  2. Recommendations (for decision by the Cabinet.) 
2.1 To agree the revised wording of Policies and Reasoned Justifications 

set out in this report, and for these to be brought forward as 
Proposed Modifications to the Plan. 
REASON: To expedite adoption of the replacement Harrow UDP after 
completion of all statutory procedures. 
 

 
3.     Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1     None.  A copy of the Inspector’s Report has been sent to all members    

of the Panel, and a copy placed in the Members’ Library. 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 5 to 50

5



 
4.  Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions)  

 
4.1 In addition to publishing a statement of decisions on the 

recommendations in the Inspector’s report, the Council is required to  
prepare Proposed Modifications to the Plan and place them on deposit 
alongside the Statement of Decisions.  The Council will then proceed 
to complete the remaining statutory stages in order to secure the plan’s 
adoption as soon as possible. 

 
5. Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1 This report concerns a key aspect of the Council’s statutory 

development plan, the replacement HUDP, and concerns the Council’s 
stated priority of enhancing the environment of the Borough.  

  
6. Background Information and options considered.  

 
The following issues are covered in this report:- 
1)  SH1:Housing Provision and Housing Need, and Additional Housing 

Provision in next 10 years 
2)  SH2: Housing Types and Mix 
3)  EP46 and Para 3.139: Open Space 
4)  T13 & Schedule 13: Parking Standards & T14 & Para 5.32: New   

Development and On-Street Parking  
5)  H5: Residential Density 
6)  H6: Affordable Housing and H7: Housing for Key Workers, and 

Affordable Housing Target. 
7)  H10: Conversion of Houses and Other Buildings to Flats and 

Schedule 8. 
8)  H19: Mobility and Lifetime Homes  
9)  R5 & Para 8.28: Outdoor Sports Facilities 
10)  R12: Protecting Arts, Culture, Entertainment and Leisure Facilities 
11)  C2: Provision of Social and Community Facilities 
12)  C20: Access to Buildings and Public Spaces  
13) Proposal Site 6: Harrow on the Hill Station and Land in College 

Road and Lowlands Road 
14)  New Proposal Site - BAE Systems, Warren Lane, Stanmore. 

 
Note: All policy and reasoned justification wording highlighted below 
constitutes revisions to that included in the revised deposit draft  
Replacement HUDP (March 2002) and, subject to the decisions made  
by the Panel, will be added to the draft Proposed Modifications 
schedule being considered in another agenda item.  Strikethrough of 
wording denotes deletion where amendments to the existing text is 
proposed. 

1)        POLICY SH1 – HOUSING PROVISION AND HOUSING NEED 
 

 The Inquiry Inspector recommended - (i) that the Council make 
changes in the supporting text to Part 1 Policy SH1 to include 

6



reference to the aim to exceed the relevant housing capacity estimate, 
inter alia, and a reference to Table 13 in the 1999 Housing Capacity 
Study, and its implications for additional development, and (ii) that  the 
Council formulate a new policy on the Council’s overall approach to 
housing provision over ten years from the Plan forecast adoption date, 
together with its reasoned justification text. This reports sets out the 
approach to, and wording of, the suggested changes to the text of 
Policy SHI, and the new policy. 

 
In order to clarify  the Council’s intentions with regard to the 
prospective occupants of future housing and the approach to 
maximising provision, it is suggested that the reasoned justification  
(paragraph 2.81) be amended to reflect the Inspector’s assessment 
and recommendation (see below).  
 
Whilst the changes recommended by the Inspector to the wording of 
the policy are all accepted, the circumstances surrounding the figure of 
potential provision to be included in criterion B) have changed 
significantly since the draft replacement Plan was first prepared.  The 
Inspector has alluded to these in his assessment. The draft London 
Plan contained a figure of 6,620 net additional homes for Harrow for 
the period 1997-2016. This was a minimum figure, and Boroughs are 
also expected to include policies that exceed this figure. This figure 
equates to a minimum annual provision of 330 units. 
 
The figure of 6,620 was included in the draft London Plan as Harrow’s 
contribution to a London total of 457,950.  The equated to an annual 
figure of 23,000 for London as a whole, including a contribution of at 
least 330 from Harrow.  The need for this total London Plan figure had 
been pre-determined by Regional Planning Guidance for the South 
East (RPG9) issued in 2001.  Although Harrow had raised objection to 
the inclusion of this figure in the London Plan (as opposed to the 5,182 
in the draft replacement HUDP), following discussion of the total 
London figure at the examination in public (EIP), the Panel report 
recommended that the London figure should be further increased, to 
30,000.  This will clearly have implications for individual Borough 
targets to be included in UDPs proceeding towards adoption, and draft 
LDFs when they come forward.  

 
Recent informal discussions with GLA and Government Office for 
London (GOL) officers strongly indicate that both bodies would be 
likely to object to the Proposed Modifications if, following the receipt of 
the EIP Panel report,  the figure was now not increased to at least 
6,620 units.  In practice, it is likely that the Mayor and GOL  would have 
objected to the figure of 5,182 included in SH1 B) if there had been any 
amendment to that figure in the Revised Deposit Draft. Legally, 
however, they had no means of recommending the figure be 
increased.  Clearly, in order for the UDP to be in general conformity 
even with the draft London Plan, the figure should be increased to 

7



6,620 units. This figure is virtually the same as that included in Table 
13 of the Housing Capacity Study  (6,610), referred to by the Inspector. 

 
An assessment of housing completion levels and planning approvals 
indicate that the higher figure may be achievable (see Appendix A at 
end of the Section 1)).  Furthermore, a new 2004 London Housing 
Capacity Study is due to be undertaken in the summer. Clearly, any 
figure included in the replacement HUDP will be subject to early re-
scrutiny once this survey has been undertaken.  

 
Under these circumstances, and in the knowledge that an early review  
of the figure will be informed by the results of the 2004 Housing 
Capacity Study, it is therefore recommended that the figure of 6,620 
now be included in Policy SH1 B). As a result of the revised figure in 
SH1B),  revised additional wording after the 3rd sentence in para. 2.83 is 
suggested.  Whilst the Inspector recommended that a new Part 2 policy 
be formulated to indicate the housing provision in the 10 years from the 
adoption date of the Plan, the Council considers that the Council’s 
intentions would more clearly be identified by setting out all of these 
matters in a revised Policy SH1. Having accepted the other changes to 
the wording of Policy SH1 recommended by the Inspector, the policy 
and reasoned justification now reads:- 

 
Housing Provision and Housing Need 
SH1 THE COUNCIL WILL SECURE THE PROVISION OF ADDITIONAL 

HOUSING, INCLUDING AFFORDABLE HOUSING, TO MEET THE 
NEEDS OF THE BOROUGH’S RESIDENTS PROSPECTIVE 
OCCUPANTS THROUGH NEW DEVELOPMENT AND BY 
MAINTAINING THE EXISTING STOCK.  THE COUNCIL IN 
DECIDING APPLICATIONS FOR NEW HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENTS WILL TAKE INTO ACCOUNT:- 

 
A) THE OVERALL HOUSING NEEDS OF LONDON; 
 
B) THE POTENTIAL FOR THE PROVISION OF 6620 

ADDITIONAL HOUSING UNITS IN THE PERIOD 1ST 
JANUARY 1997 TO 31ST DECEMBER 2016 AS INDICATED IN 
THE 1999 HOUSING CAPACITY STUDY; 

 
C) THE NEED FOR EFFECTIVE USE OF PREVIOUSLY-

DEVELOPED LAND AND EMPTY HOMES PROPERTY; 
 
D)  THE NEED FOR THE PROPOSAL TO MEET OTHER   

SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES, INCLUDING ACCESS BY 
NON-CAR MODES TO LOCAL FACILITIES AND 
EMPLOYMENT; 

 
E) THE NEED FOR THE PROVISION OF APPROPRIATE 

LEVELS OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING INCLUDING KEY 

8



WORKER ACCOMMODATION AND SHARED OWNWERSHIP 
ACCOMMODATION; 

 
F) THE NEED TO PROTECT AND SAFEGUARD THE 

CHARACTER AND AMENITY OF SURROUNDING 
RESIDENTIAL AREAS; AND 

 
G) THE DESIRABILITY OF REDUCING THE COST OF THE 

OPERATION OF DWELLINGS THROUGH ENERGY 
EFFICIENCY MEASURES. 

 
THE COUNCIL WILL AIM, THROUGH A VARIETY OF DIFFERENT 
SOURCES, TO SECURE AN ANNUAL AVERAGE OF AT LEAST 
330 ADDITIONAL HOUSING UNITS IN THE 10 YEAR PERIOD 
FROM THE DATE OF ADOPTION OF THE PLAN. 
 

 
2.81 Whilst the Council's overriding responsibilities are to secure 

appropriate housing to meet the needs of Borough residents, due 
regard will need to be paid to the housing situation in London as 
a whole.  For example, opportunities will exist for joint working 
with adjoining authorities to address problems in each authority.  
Additional housing provision is required to meet a wide range of 
housing need and demand.  There is continuing population 
increase and growth in the numbers of households requiring 
housing in both London as a whole, and Harrow in particular.  
Because of its attractiveness, the Borough is faced with on-going 
housing demand from people outside the Borough, as well as 
housing needs and demand from Borough residents. The Council 
recognises that the Borough’s economic welfare and 
maintenance of quality public services is dependent on sufficient 
housing being available for key workers, whilst continued 
provision of affordable housing will help secure sustainable 
communities in the Borough. Such housing will include social 
rented and shared ownership accommodation. 

 
 
2.82 PPG3 requires Local Planning Authorities to derive a housing 

provision figure from a capacity based study.  The 1999 LPAC 
Housing Capacity Study fulfils this requirement.  The results are 
reflected in the Policy (Criterion B).  However, the Mayor's London 
Plan will set out the distribution of provision between Boroughs. 
Therefore the level of provision indicated in the Policy will be kept 
under review.  It is anticipated that all new housing provision in 
the foreseeable future will be built on previously-developed land.   

 
2.83 New housing in the Borough will be secured from a variety of 

sources, as reflected in the Housing Capacity Study.  Increasingly 
development has not only involved recycled urban land, but also 
recycled urban buildings such as vacant units over shops, 

9



disused offices and residential conversions, and this will continue 
to be encouraged in appropriate circumstances.  In order to 
protect greenfield sites and open space in the Borough, new 
building will be concentrated on previously-developed sites, and 
maximised by securing the most efficient and effective use of 
this. Reflecting the approach to maximising additional housing 
provision set down in  RPG3, RPG9 and the draft London Plan, 
the Council will aim to exceed the total capacity estimate of 6,620 
additional units in the period 1st January 1997 – 31st December 
2016 (Table 13 – 1999 Housing Capacity Study). Monitoring of 
development activity will indicate whether a revised figure in 
excess of 6,620 units is achievable. The results of the 2004 
Housing Capacity Study will inform an early revision of the figure 
and indicate whether the figure included in the London Plan is 
appropriate.  Maximising housing provision on sites being 
brought forward for development will go some way to alleviating a 
continued unsatisfied demand in all sectors, whilst also achieving 
full and effective use of land.   This reflects the emphasis placed 
by PPG3 on the importance of the sequential test for new housing 
and favouring the re-use of previously-developed land and 
buildings.  Reduced parking or car free developments can in 
some cases help to increase density.  This approach will be 
pursued in areas which are well served by public transport. 

 
2.84 The Council acknowledges that the provision of additional 

housing should be assessed against the possible requirements 
for additional school facilities, higher educational establishments, 
medical facilities of all types, recreational and leisure facilities 
and shopping facilities.  A balance between housing and other 
complementary land uses needs to be achieved in order to move 
towards a more sustainable land use pattern.  The Council 
accepts that the ability of the Borough to achieve the figures set 
out in the Capacity Study may be influenced by the fact that some 
sites identified for housing purposes may also be suitable for 
other important land uses, such as community facilities, 
institutional facilities and other land uses. 

 
2.85 Whilst a positive approach to housing is being emphasised, the 

Government has asked Boroughs to balance the need for housing 
with the objective of protecting the environment and safeguarding 
amenity.  The Council therefore take the view that new housing 
proposals, including extensions, should take account of 
economic, environmental and social factors.  This would ensure 
the provision of homes which is consistent with the principles of 
sustainable development.  Since the majority of property is in a 
satisfactory or good physical condition it is in keeping with these 
principles to ensure that the stock is maintained in this state. 
Therefore the Council considers it appropriate that, where the 
quality of the residential stock is generally good, there should be 
a presumption in favour of its protection. 

10



 
2.85a The need for energy conservation, waste minimisation and 

sustainability has become an important consideration in 
residential development.  The Council is not only keen to increase 
housing developments but to ensure that the standard of design, 
quality and types of housing assist in achieving the overall 
objective of promoting sustainable communities.  In pursuance of 
this objective the Council will encourage development which 
optimises building design, renewable energy, natural lighting and 
the orientation of buildings.  The energy efficiency and overall 
environmental performance of developments can be optimised 
utilising building design, layout and orientation, to minimise 
energy use, and by incorporating other features, such as 
renewable energy technologies and natural lighting and 
ventilation.  The Council wishes to encourage such development. 

 
New Para  The draft London Plan  requirement for Harrow to provide a 

minimum of 6,620 additional dwellings in the twenty-year period 
1997-2016, equates to an annual average of at least 330 dwellings. 
The 1999 Housing Capacity Study identified a range of potential 
sources of housing provision, and a number of policies 
promoting suitable provision from these sources have been 
included in the Plan. The Council considers that the annual 
average of at least 330 additional housing units can be secured in 
the 10 year period from the date of adoption of the Plan. On-going 
monitoring of housing provision under the ‘plan, monitor and 
manage’ approach has informed, and will continue to inform, the 
Council of the ways in which it is maximising housing provision 
through a variety of sources. Such monitoring also assists the 
Council to identify those sources which might help exceed the 
annual average figure. The range of policies in the Plan meets the 
requirements of RPG3 and PPG3.  With regard to existing 
housing, there are also  policies to resist the loss of residential 
land and buildings, to ensure that there is effective use and 
maintenance of property there are policies on empty homes and 
maintenance and improvement, whilst more effective use of land 
and buildings is to be secured through encouraging higher 
residential densities in appropriate locations.  

 
New para In addition to the sources outlined above, proposal sites 

including residential development have been identified on the 
Proposals Map. The Council is also very mindful of the 
Government’s increased emphasis on the requirement for local 
planning authorities to have an up-to-date review of employment 
land (consultation paper on proposed change to PPG3 – July 
2003). The Council considers that it generally  meets this 
requirement as such an exercise was undertaken in formulating 
the policies in the Plan.  

APPENDIX A 
 

11



Comparing the 1999 Housing Capacity Study Potential and  
Performance. 
 

1. The 1999 Housing Capacity Study (Table 13) identified the following 
information for Harrow by five-year periods:- 
 
TOTAL CAPACITY (CONVENTIONAL AND NON-CONVENTIONAL) 
1997-2001 - 2,138 
2002-2006 - 2,070 
2007-2011 - 1,257 
2012-2016 - 1,145 
Total  - 6,610 (net gain) 
 
(The study identified ‘Conventional’ and ‘Non-Conventional’ Capacity  
as comprising:- 
 
‘Conventional’ – Includes self-contained accommodation such as 
Large identified sites, Large Windfall sites, Large Identified Office 
Sites, Large Office Windfalls, Small sites, Small conversions, Live-
Work Accommodation and Small Conversions. 
 
‘Non-Conventional’ – Admissible Vacant Dwelling Capacity, and Non 
Self-Contained Permanent Accommodation). 

 
2. For the period 1997-2001, conventional capacity completion levels fell 

considerably short of the phased provision indicated in the Housing 
Capacity Study (1056 compared with the capacity study figure of 1775 
units).  In the ten year period 1992-2001, a total of 2,134 additional 
units were provided in Harrow, equating to an annual average of 213 
units, virtually identical to the average indicated by RPG3 (1996). In 
the five year periods, 1992-1996 & 1997-2001, a conventional capacity 
total of 1,078 and 1,056 units respectively were completed, at an 
annual average of 215 & 211 units, again virtually identical to the 
RPG3 average (212 units).  

  
3. Completion levels for conventional capacity in the years 2001-2, 

however, totalled 819 units, an annual average in excess of 400 units.  
Analysis of planning approvals for the period 1997-2001 indicate a total 
of  2,384 units (net gain), or 477 units per annum.  The corresponding 
figures for the last 2 years indicate a total of 1,411 units approved, or 
705 units per annum. This high level of approvals has continued in 
2003.  These figures include some exceptionally large schemes, the 
scale and numbers of which are unlikely to be repeated throughout   
the life of the Plan. There may also be an element of double-counting 
of permissions between years. 
 

4.  Because of the nature of the accommodation involved, non-
conventional capacity in Harrow can be expressed in terms of bed-
spaces. In the period 1997-2001, the non-conventional capacity  total 
approvals were 510,  with a further 4 in 2002. In terms of completions, 

12



a total of 468 bed-spaces  was completed in the period 1997-2001, and 
a further 4 in 2002.  Taking into account this non-conventional capacity 
(vacant and non self-contained accommodation), the overall total of 
completions in the period form 1997 –2001 was 1,524.  The figure in 
the Housing capacity Study was 2,138 units, indicating completion 
levels at approximately 71% of estimated capacity for that period.  
Analysis of permissions for development indicates a considerably 
higher level of approvals than hitherto.  In part this is likely to reflect a 
variety of new policy approaches which have been adopted in the 
Replacement HUDP. If the vast majority of permissions were to be 
implemented,  continued activity at these levels would indicate that the 
draft London Plan figure of 6,620 units would be achieved, and 
possibly exceeded.   

 
4. In attempting to derive a realistic figure for activity over the next 10 

years (2004-2013) as requested by the Inspector, it is firstly, necessary 
to re-visit the figures on phasing contained in the 1999 Study.  A crude 
figure could be arrived at by a pro rata apportionment of phases 2002-
2006 & 2012-2016.  The period 2004-2013 would thus comprise:- 
 
2004-2006 - 1,242 units 
2007-2011 - 1,257 units 
2012-2013 -    458 units 
2004-2013 - 2,957 units 
 

 The recent levels of approvals and completions indicate that the range 
of policies included in the Plan to encourage new housing development 
and maximise the use of urban land are facilitating development at 
rates exceeding those in the draft London Plan i.e. annual average of 
330 units per annum.   

 
5. An examination of performance against the figures included in the 

Housing Capacity Study suggests that it would be inappropriate to 
include a figure in the Part 2 policy for the next 10 years which mirrors 
the first two phases in the Study indicated above (4,208 units).  It 
would be unrealistic at this stage to conclude that all the shortfall in the 
period  1997-2001 will be made up in the next 10 years, together with 
achieving the suggested figure of 1,257 in the period 2007-2011. 
However, it is also recognised that the suggested provision indicated 
for the later phases in the study are probably an under-estimate. 
Accordingly, it is suggested that it would be appropriate to include a 
figure for 2004-2013 that reflects the Council’s intentions to exceed the 
figure of 6,620 units in the period 1997-2016, (assuming that sufficient 
numbers of large schemes continue to be brought forward). 
 
 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
2) SH2: HOUSING TYPES AND MIX 
 

13



The Inspector recommended the following replacement wording for 
Policy SH2 which was accepted by the Panel at its meeting on 12th 
November 2003.:- 
 
THE COUNCIL WILL ENCOURAGE THE PROVISION OF A RANGE 
OF TYPES AND SIZES OF HOUSING TO MEET THE NEEDS OF 
ALL PROSPECTIVE OCCUPANTS, TO ENHANCE SOCIAL 
INCLUSION AND TO PROMOTE MIXED AND BALANCED 
COMMUNITIES. 
 
The Inspector also recommended that the reasoned justification be 
expanded to include an acknowledgement that site specific 
considerations, marketability and viability might well affect the extent to 
which the policy aims could practicably be advanced in the individual 
case.  It is therefore suggested that  an additional paragraph be added, 
as follows:- 
In applying this policy, the Council acknowledges that site 
specific considerations, marketability and viability might well 
affect the extent to which the policy aims could practically be 
advanced in the individual case. 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

3) EP46 AND PARA 3.139: OPEN SPACE 
 
The Inquiry Inspector recommended – (i) that the Council refer to 
Paras 10-14 of PPG 17 to have a suitable policy approach to protecting 
open space and recreation facilities without being too inflexible to 
circumstances where redevelopment might be acceptable, such as 
either because a site can no longer make an appropriate contribution, 
or because compensatory provision is to be made, and (ii) additional 
wording be added at the end of policy EP46.  The Inspector did not, 
however, refer to the need to revise the reasoned justification.  On 
considering the Inspector’s recommendation, the Panel (12 November 
2003) agreed that it would be appropriate to clarify why it is important  
to protect such areas.  Together with the exceptional circumstances 
under which the Council would permit non-recreational uses, the 
following sets out the approach to, and wording of, the suggested 
changes to Policy EP46 and its reasoned justification. 
 
Open Space 
EP46 THE COUNCIL WILL PROTECT AND WHERE APPROPRIATE 
ENHANCE THE BOROUGH’S OPEN SPACES, PARKS, PLAYING 
FIELDS AND RECREATION GROUNDS, REGARDLESS OF 
OWNERSHIP. DEVELOPMENT, APART FROM SMALL SCALE 
ANCILLARY FACILITIES NEEDED TO SUPPORT OR ENHANCE 
THE PROPER FUNCTIONING OF THE OPEN SPACE, WILL NOT 
BE PERMITTED ON OPEN SPACES IDENTIFIED ON THE 
PROPOSALS MAP AND ON OTHER OPEN SPACES WITH 
RECREATIONAL, NATURE CONSERVATION OR AMENITY VALUE 
OR LOCATED IN AREAS LACKING SUCH SITES UNLESS THE 

14



SITE IS SURPLUS TO REQUIREMENTS OR SUITABLE 
ALTERNATIVE PROVISION IS MADE AVAILABLE.  
 

3.137 Protecting open space as a resource is important because once 
an open space is lost to built development it is difficult unlikely to 
be replaced. In protecting open spaces, due regard will be given 
to enhancing both the quality and quantity of open spaces and 
their distribution across the Borough. There will be a presumption 
against loss of open space regardless of quality and, with the 
exception of ancillary facilities, built development will not be 
permitted unless an overriding community need has been 
demonstrated. Planning permission will only be granted for non-
recreational development of open spaces and playing fields 
where it has been demonstrated that the open space is surplus to 
requirements and consideration to all alternative open space and 
recreational functions have been explored in accordance with 
PPG17 para10. 
 
Bring forward para 141 as new para 138  

 
New para 3.138  The quality and function of open space can be 

adversely affected by insensitive development.  In assessing 
proposals for the use of open space consideration will be given to 
the appropriateness of the use. To maintain the character and 
openness of the Borough’s green spaces, ancillary buildings will 
be permitted only if necessary to the functioning of the open 
space. These should be small in scale, sensitively sited and 
should not compromise the open character of the space. Built 
development will be assessed in terms of bulk, size, design and 
location to ensure that it is sensitive to its surroundings. Re-use 
of buildings for community or leisure use, where appropriate, will 
be encouraged. Appropriate landscaping around new ancillary 
buildings will be required. Landscaping which is attractive to 
wildlife will be encouraged. 
 

New para 138a  
 
3.138a  Alternative open space functions will also be considered 
for unused sites to prevent their unnecessary loss to 
inappropriate development. The Council will seek the views of 
communities as to how opportunities for recreation and open 
spaces can be delivered and apply the proposals stated in Policy 
SR1 and para 2.100 to development pressures likely to endanger 
the loss of open space and recreational facilities in the Borough. 
In the event that replacement open space or other open 
recreational facilities are brought forward, they should be at least 
as accessible to current and potential new users, and at least 
equivalent in terms of size, usefulness, attractiveness and quality. 

2) T13 & SCHEDULE 13: PARKING STANDARDS & T14 & PARA 5.32: 
NEW DEVELOPMENT AND ON-STREET PARKING  

15



 
Whilst accepting this recommendation some of the Inspectors views 
and comments are not entirely supported.  The notion that parking 
provision should be at the discretion of the developer is a generous 
interpretation of PPG13.  The PPG advises local authorities to include 
in the UDPs policies which indicates maximum levels of parking for 
broad classes of development.  Paragraph 53 of PPG13 also gives 
local authorities the latitude to use their discretion in setting the levels 
of parking appropriate for small developments so as to reflect local 
circumstances. 
 
It is clear from PPG13, paragraph 49 and 51 that the Government 
wishes to see good quality cycle and motorcycle parking in 
development.  The Inspector’s criticism of the in paragraph 5.62 is at 
odds with government advice. For this reason the Council does not 
consider its approach to be over-prescriptive and considers the 
inclusion of parking standards for cycle and motorcycle to be 
legitimate and appropriate. 
 
The principle of reducing parking provision in area of high public 
transport accessibility is well established in Harrow.  The need to 
consider Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) is underscored 
by PPG13 paragraph 17 which says that parking standards should be 
revised to allow for significantly lower levels of off-street parking 
provision, particularly for development in locations, such as town 
centres, where services are readily accessible by walking, cycling or 
public transport.  The Council does not therefore agree that its 
approach and the application of PTAL is at odds with the philosophy of 
PPG13. 
 
Having considered the inspector’s suggestion on the preferability of 
using gross floor space instead of net site area, it is felt that such a 
fundamental shift in the approach to car parking may not be a 
practicable solution at this stage of the UDP process.  Any 
consideration of alternative method of calculating car-parking 
requirement could form part of the LDF preparation.  

  
 
 Replacement Policy T13 
 

THE NUMBER OF OFF-STREET PARKING SPACES FOR A 
DEVELOPMENT SHOULD COMPLY WITH THE RELEVANT 
STANDARD SET OUT IN SCHEDULE 6 TO THIS PLAN. THE 
NUMBER OF SPACES REQUIRED FOR A DEVELOPMENT MAY 
BE REDUCED IN AND AROUND TOWN CENTRES OR AT OTHER 
LOCATIONS WHERE THERE IS GOOD ACCESSIBILITY BY 
PUBLIC TRANSPORT.  “CAR-FREE” RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENTS, OR THOSE WITH VERY LOW PARKING 
PROVISION, MAY ALSO BE ALLOWED IN THESE AREAS, WHICH 
WILL NORMALLY BE COVERED BY A CONTROLLED PARKING 

16



ZONE. IN THESE CASES, RESIDENTS OF THE NEW 
DEVELOPMENT WILL NOT BE ALLOWED A RESIDENTS 
PARKING PERMIT. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEED TO 
PROMOTE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSPORT 
CHOICE, THE COUNCIL WILL EXPECT NEW DEVELOPMENTS TO 
MAKE APPROPRIATE PROVISION FOR CAR PARKING, BUT THIS 
SHOULD BE NO GREATER THAN THE MAXIMUM LEVELS SET 
OUT IN SCHEDULE 6.  IN DECIDING THE APPROPRIATE LEVEL 
OF CAR PARKING IN ANY PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT, 
DEVELOPERS WOULD NEED TO TAKE INTO CONSIDERATION 
THE FOLLOWING FACTORS: 
 
A THE NATURE AND LOCATION OF THE PROPOSED 

SCHEME; 
B THE AMOUNT OF ALTERNATIVE PARKING SPACES IN 

THE LOCALITY; 
C PROXIMITY OR ACCESS TO OTHER MODE OF 

TRANSPORT;  
D ANY MEASURES PROPOSED TO PROMOTE 

SUSTAINABLE TRAVEL CHOICES AND REDUCE 
RELIANCE ON PRIVATE CAR FOR WORK AND OTHER 
JOURNEYS; 

E WHETHER THE PROPOSAL IS LIKELY TO CREATE 
SIGNIFICANT ON-STREET PARKING PROBLEMS; AND 

F THE POTENTIAL HIGHWAY AND TRAFFIC PROBLEMS 
LIKELY TO ARISE. 

 
5.31 In line with Government guidance the Council has adopted 

maximum parking standards. They are in line with the London 
standards set out in accordance with PPG13 and RPG3 as 
amended by RPG9, and the Council’s commitment to sustainable 
development principles, the level of car parking associated with 
any development should not exceed the maximum set out in 
Schedule 6.  These will ensure that new parking provision is 
limited, and again will assist in promoting a switch to public 
transport.  As a general rule parking provision below the 
maximum will be encouraged so long as this will not result in 
adverse environmental and traffic problems.  Such a restraint 
based approach should assist in promoting a switch to other 
modes of transport such as public transport.  In general terms, 
Tthe parking standards are set to complement those in 
neighbouring local authority areas, including those outside 
London.  The Council considers that any If there is a significant 
disparity between neighbouring Boroughs, then one is likely to 
gain an advantage in attracting new development would give 
unfair advantage to one Borough over the other.  Parking 
provision some way below the maximum may be desirable 
particularly allowed in locations where the Public Transport 
Accessibility Level (see Map 10) of the location is good, and the 
quality of the services within easy walking distance to other 

17



services of the development is also good.  The standards in 
Schedule 6 include provision for disabled people. However, 
operational parking (parking for essential service or maintenance 
staff, or those working unsociable hours), is not included in the 
standard, and the onus is on the developer to demonstrate to the 
Council that additional parking over and above the maximum 
standard is really necessary.  Car parks visited by members of 
the public (e.g. for retail developments) may be suitable locations 
for alternative fuel refilling or recharging facilities, particularly 
the latter (see Policy EP8 D) and E)).  Suitable sites for low or 
zero parking developments, where public transport provision and 
accessibility is good, often coincides with town centre or edge of 
centre locations, although there may be other locations along 
major corridors. 

 
5.32 Car parking involves considerable land take, and in a Borough 

such as Harrow land for development is scarce.  The Council 
considers car parking facilities that are only used at certain times 
represents a waste of a resource.  The availability of alternative 
parking facilities in an area would be an important factor in 
assessing new developments, particularly in the town centres.  
Developers will be encouraged to seek shared use of existing car 
parks as a means of reducing the number of new spaces to be 
provided as part of a scheme.  The reduction in the number of 
parking spaces is a strong incentive to promoting and seeking 
alternative modes other than the car.  Any reduction in the 
number of private non-residential off-street spaces is generally to 
be welcomed. However, when considering proposals that involve 
the loss of off-street spaces, particularly in the town centres, 
possible effects on congestion and on-street parking will need to 
be carefully assessed. 

 
5.32a The Council acknowledges the need for a significant reduction in 

road traffic and will take into account any traffic restraint 
measures in considering the appropriate levels of parking needed 
in a scheme.  The location and the nature of schemes and the 
traffic management measures taken can influence the trip 
generation and the mode of transport adopted.  The Council will 
support low or zero parking developments in suitable sites for 
particularly where public transport provision and accessibility is 
good including often coincides with town centre, or edge of 
centre locations, or although there may be other locations along 
major corridors. 

 
5.34 Aa significant reduction in parking provision for some types of 

development may be appropriate where the public transport 
accessibility level is good or where there are alternative public 
car parking facilities.  tThe quality of the services within easy 
walking distance of the development is also a valid reason for car 
parking reduction. The council will seek effective management by 

18



encouraging the shared use of available car parking spaces 
provided for individual developments, particularly in the town 
centres and where this would allow a reduction of the amount of 
land allocated parking spaces overall.  the reduction loss of 
private non-residential off-street car parking may be desirable for 
an individual use, where this is currently provided in excess of 
the maximum parking standards set out in schedule ---, providing 
this does not result in will be encouraged so that provision is in 
line with the standards, unless unacceptable on-street parking 
problems. are likely to occur. 

 
5.33a All retail store Available parking spaces in town centres should be 

accessible to available for use by other users. (subject to a 
change in line with the tariff in force elsewhere in the town 
centre).  Iin line with PPG6, public/private partnerships covering 
both provision and management of shared use of car parks. will 
be sought.  Provision in addition to the maximum may be allowed 
for retail or leisure developments in, or on the edge of, town 
centres which will serve the town centre as a whole.  The Council 
will take into account the town centre parking strategy set out in 
Policy T18 and any quantified need for additional public parking 
in the town centre when considering planning applications. 

 
5.33(14) Even If a proposal provides parking in line with the standards 

(see Policy T13), it will not be acceptable if would lead to 
significant additional environmental, traffic and road safety or on-
street parking problems the Council may require the developer to 
make a commuted payments or finance these is likely to be 
created (see also Policy T6). This may be satisfactorily resolved 
by the developer financing a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ), or an 
extension to an existing one if this is merited by the development.  
Where the effect is small, part funding or extension of an existing 
of a Controlled Parking Zone may be acceptable.  Certain 
developments may not generate on-street parking problems 
immediately but may do so at a later date. and Therefore funds 
secured from a developer would be retained for a specified period 
in order to implement such measures at a future date if required.  
It is normal to set an overall time limit after which any funds not 
used are returned to the developer.  If the sum secured is not 
used within the time specified in a Planning Obligation or 
Agreement, this will be returned to the developer, on demand. 

 
 In response to the Inspector’s recommendation, Schedule 6 to the Plan 

has also been amended, as follows:-  
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE 6 – CAR PARKING STANDARDS 
 

19



Vehicle parking standards 
The maximum levels of car-parking are set out below and detailed 
standards set out below apply equally these should be used in 
conjunction with Policies in the plan with in respect of to 
development proposals involving new-build, alterations and 
changes of use. 
 
Car-parking standards for non-residential development: 
The level of non-residential parking provided has a major 
influence on peak hour traffic volumes.  Car-parking provision for 
new non-residential development should therefore not exceed the 
maximum as set out in the table below: 

 
Use Class Group No. of space 
A1 Shops Separately designated parking to a maximum 

of: 
-for employees: 1 space per 300 – 600 m2 net 
site area  
-for customers: 1 space per 75 – 150 m2 net 
site area 

A2 Financial & 
professional services 

Separately designated parking to a maximum 
of: 
-for employees: 1 space per 200 – 300 m2 
net site area 
-for clients: 1 space per 75 – 150 m2 net site 
area 

A3 Food and drink Each development proposal to be assessed on 
its own merits, but: 
•  within a context of securing road traffic 
restraint; 
•  ensuring consistency with A1, where 
relevant; and 
•  with separately designated parking for 
customers & employees. 
Provision would be based on a provision of no 
greater than 1 space per 15 employees where 
such data or an estimate is available. 

B1 Business & Light 
Industry, B2 General 
Industry & B8 
Warehousing 

 
Maximum of 1 space per 200 - 300 m2 net site 
area 

B2 General Industry (as for B1) 
B8 Warehousing (as for B1 
C1 Hotels Each development designated Parking up to a 

maximum of 1 space per 5 bedrooms proposal 
to be assessed on its own merits, with 
separately designated parking for employees, 
visitors & customers.  – subject to a normal 
maximum of: 
-for residential customers: 1 space per 5 

20



bedrooms. 
C2Residential   
Institutions 

Each development proposal to be assessed on 
its own merits provided a restraint-based 
approach is demonstrated 

C2 Hospitals Maximum of 1 space per 10 bedrooms Each 
development proposal to be assessed on its 
own merits, with separately designated 
parking for employees, visitors & customers – 
subject to a normal maximum of: 
-for visitors:  1 space per 10 beds 

C3 (see below) 
•  D1Non-

residential 
institutions 

Maximum of 1 space per 300 – 600 m2 net site 
area.  Each development proposal to be 
assessed on its own merits, with separately 
designated parking for employees *, visitors & 
customers but no provision for students – 
subject to a maximum of: 
-for employees: 1 space per 300 – 600 m2 net 
site area, with separately designated parking 
for employees , visitors & customers. 

D2 Assembly and 
Leisure 

Each development proposal to be assessed on 
its own merits within the context of restraint 
based standards and the national advice 
maxima in PPG13. 

Other non-residential 
buildings 

Each case to be treated on its merits within the 
context of restraint based standards and the 
national advice maxima in PPG13. 

 
Notes: 
•  Provision would be based on a provision of no greater than 
1 space per 15 employees where such data or an estimate is 
available. 
•  These standards will be reviewed in the context of any 

Mayoral guidance and/or publication of a replacement for 
RPG3 (London)the London Plan. 

•  Net Site Area - is the simple site area, within the curtilage, 
without accounting for any surrounding public highways, 
(as is the case with gross site area). 

 
Adherence to the standards 
Reducing or Exceeding the Parking Requirements for Non-
Residential uses (Class A1, A2, B1, B2, & B8 etc) 
Class A1 standards 
In respect of land use class A1, car-parking provision will 
normally be permitted at the “restrained” end of the quoted range. 
For development in town centres and in line with PPG13 the 
developer may negotiate with the Council to provide 
Consideration may be given, however, to some additional car 
parking provision, within outside the quoted range to take 
account of circumstances where existing developments, and 

21



development sites, may be deemed both to be competing and to 
offer a less restrained level of car-parking provision. , as a 
consequence of inconsistent national and regional guidance. In 
assessing such additional permitted car-parking provision, 
consideration should will also be given to: 
•  the existence, or absence, of on-street parking controls (but 

see Planning Obligations below); 
•  the availability (and proximity) of public off-street car-

parking (for the use of visitors, clients and customers., 
etc.); and 

•  the opportunity for dual-use of proposed/existing car-
parking spaces (i.e. the extent to which spaces, provided as 
part of a proposed development, will be made available for 
use by non-occupants at different times of the day / days of 
the week or to which spaces, not provided as part of a 
development, will be made available for use by occupants 
of a proposed development). 

 
Classes A2, B1, B2, and B8 Uses 
The overall objective for parking is the presumption in favour of 
other modes of transport instead of car.  The standards, which are 
maximum standards, will normally be applied as set out.  In 
respect of land use classes A2 and B1-8, car-parking provision 
will normally be permitted at the “restrained” end of the quoted 
range. Consideration may be given, however, to some additional 
provision, the quoted range, to take account of circumstances 
where, and to what extent, accessibility of a site by public 
transport may reasonably be anticipated to be less than that 
which will exist following completion of the “core” public 
transport network. Consideration will also be given to: 

•  the existence, or absence, of on-street parking controls (but see 
Planning Obligations below) 

•  the availability (and proximity) of public off-street car-parking (for 
the use of visitors, clients, customers, etc.) 

•  the opportunity for dual-use of proposed/existing car-parking 
spaces (i.e. the extent to which spaces, provided as part of a 
proposed development, will be made available for use by non-
occupants at different times of the day / days of the week or to 
which spaces, not provided as part of a development, will be 
made available for use by occupants of a proposed development). 
 
Exceptional operational requirements 
There is a presumption that a development will normally 
accommodate all its needs for operational car parking within the 
level of provision permitted by these standards as set out above. 
(Provision for commercial vehicles to load, unload or wait within a 
development, and for servicing arrangements, is separately 
addressed below.) 
 

22



Where a developer seeks a greater than maximum level normally 
permitted provision of car-parking, the Council will require the 
need for such additional car-parking spaces to be fully justified in 
by a transport assessment statement included with the planning 
application. for planning permission. 
 
In considering whether to grant permission for such exceptional 
additional provision of car-parking spaces above that normally 
permitted by the standards, the Council will require to be satisfied 
that: 

•  there is a proven need for the additional car-parking spaces; such 
as parking for: 

! cars required for use in connection with the essential business of 
occupier(s) of the premises and for which there is no public 
transport alternative, or 

! cars of workers or visitors whose journeys to/from the premises 
essentially require the use of a car (i.e. disabled persons, workers 
subject to unsocial hours’ working or workers subject to 
emergency call-out) 
•  the need cannot be met by effective management of the 

normally permitted provision (for example, by the more 
efficient management of the use, or multi-use, of the 
permitted spaces); and 

•  the Council’s overall strategy will not be compromised. 
 
Any additional car-parking spaces, permitted as a result of such 
consideration will be: kept to an absolute minimum – and 
planning permission for each variation will normally be: 
•  made personal to a particular occupant (or occupants) of 

the premises, 
•  granted on a temporary basis; or and 
•  made subject to a the conclusion of a Planning Obligation 
agreed under the terms of Section 106 agreement. of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by the Planning and 
Compensation Act 1991, which may also incorporate additional 
provisions, as identified below. 
 
The Council will also restrict car parking to below the standard in 
exceptional circumstances where the density of development is 
low, such as garden centres. 
 
Consideration of additional provisions within a through a 
Planning Obligation 
Where a proposal restrained levels of parking would give rise to 
additional on-street parking demand, contributions towards the 
implementation of controlled parking zones (CPZs) on adjacent 
streets will normally be sought as part of a Planning Obligation or 
section 106 Agreement (see Policy T13 and T14). 
With respect to A1 developments in town centres, contributions 
towards the provision of off-street public car-parking spaces 

23



within the centre may also be required within a through a 
Planning Obligation or Agreement. 
See Policy T16 with regard to additional public parking in town 
centres. 
 
Location of car-parking spaces 
In respect of land use class A1, car-parking spaces will normally 
be provided off-street and all spaces (other than those for 
employees’ cars) will only be available for the use of the public 
and of shop customers during shop opening hours.  For 
developments in town centres, car-parking spaces for the use of 
customers will normally be provided as part of the centre’s public 
car-parking provision and may be dual-use, available for evening 
leisure activities and avoiding the need for additional parking 
exclusively for these purposes (see Policy T15). 

 
Where the size of a particular A1 development would result in 
more than 50 car-parking spaces for the use of customers, such 
spaces will normally be provided either within the development 
site or as public car-parking adjacent to the development.  In all 
cases, such spaces will normally be subject to a Planning 
Obligation identifying agreed opening hours and charging 
regimes which accord with those operating in neighbouring 
public car-parks.  For development In respect of an A1 
development requiring less than 50 car-parking spaces, in the 
town centres, for the use of customers, the Council will normally 
encourage a developer to enter into a Planning Obligation 
whereby the Council is obliged to secure the provision of such 
spaces as part of the public car-parking spaces within the centre.  
However, the Council will be mindful of ensuring that the overall 
parking availability for public use of does not increase out of 
proportion to increases in commercial floor space in the centre. 
 
In respect of land use classes A2, B1, B2 and B8, car-parking 
spaces will normally be provided within the development site. 

 
Disabled people 
The Council will require fully developers to provide adequate 
parking dedicated provision for the use of access by disabled 
persons. , as a condition of planning permission for development. 
A statement, accompanying an application for planning 
permission, must specify the proposed provision being made for 
access by disabled people and such provision will be a condition 
of planning permission for development.  
In respect of car-parking spaces for disabled people, tThe Council 
will require the provision of car-parking spaces equivalent to 4% 
of the predicted number of employees, customers and visitors, as 
appropriate, generated by a development, with such spaces: 
•  separately designated, by each user category; , for use by, 
and 

24



•  reserved for the sole use of persons with a disability in 
each specific user category, subject to the provision of a 
minimum of 1 space in each development with 5 or more 
car-parking spaces.  

(This standard will be automatically revised to adopt any new 
more rigorous standard promoted in national and/or regional 
guidance). 
 

In respect of car-parking spaces for disabled people, the Council 
will require that: 
•  spaces are reserved for the sole use of disabled persons, 
separately designated for use by employees, customers or visitors, 
as appropriate; 
•  spaces are provided as close as possible to the principal “no-
step” entrance to the building; and 
•  each space has a minimum bay width of 3.2m. and is clearly 
marked “reserved for the use of employees / customers / visitors 
with a disability ( as appropriate). 
•  the access path between the car-parking spaces and the 
principal “no-step” entrance are obstruction-free and lit at night. 
The Council may also require that car-parking spaces for disabled 
people are located in a manner that facilitates their inspection for 
enforcement purposes. 
 
Parking layout 
The design and location of car-parking areas must have regard to 
the convenience and personal safety of users and to the security of 
vehicles.  Developers will be required to identify the provision 
being made for travel by people with a disability, and by people 
with impaired mobility and/or vision. 
Car-parking spaces will normally be required to be located so that 
the walking route between car-parking spaces and the 
development being served is never shorter nor more direct than: 
the walking routes between the development and: 
•  the nearest access points to public transport services; 
•  pedal-cycle and motorcycle parking spaces; and 
•  the principal point of pedestrian access to the development site 
except in the case of car-parking spaces reserved for disabled 
people. 
In respect of car-parking spaces for disabled people, the Council 
will require that: 
•  spaces are reserved for the sole use of disabled persons, 
separately designated for use by employees, customers or visitors, 
as appropriate 
•  spaces are provided as close as possible to the principal “no-
step” entrance to the building 

•  each space has a minimum bay width of 3.2m. and is clearly 
marked “reserved for the use of employees* / customers* / 
visitors* with a disability” (* as appropriate) 

25



•  the access path between the car-parking spaces and the 
principal “no-step” entrance are obstruction-free and lit at night. 
The Council may also require that car-parking spaces for disabled 
people are located in a manner that facilitates their inspection for 
enforcement purposes. 
 
The minimum size of a car-parking space will be 2.4m. × 4.8m., but 
these dimensions may need to be increased to take account of 
building columns, landscaping and available circulation and 
manoeuvring space. The width of circulation aisles will not 
normally be less than 6m for 90 degree parking. 
 
Pedal-cycle and motor=cycle parking provision non-residential 
development 
The Council will seek to ensure the provision of adequate, secure 
and weather-protected pedal-cycle parking spaces in new 
developments particularly those likely to attract significant cycle 
use.  The Council will require specific pedal-cycle parking 
facilities to be provided on the basis of 10% of the maximum 
number of visitors and employees likely to be on the site at any 
one time being provided with 1 space each.  Where it is not 
possible to estimate this figure, the Council will seek to secure 
the provision of cycle facilities on the basis of a minimum of 1 
pedal-cycle parking space for each 200 sq.m. of gross floor area 
(gfa). Ideally any route between buildings and visitor cycle 
parking should be weather-protected, and the distance should be 
less than to the nearest car parking.  The provision of cycle 
parking is an essential component of the Council’s policies of 
encouraging cycling and sustainable transport.  Every effort 
should be made to provide spaces in a secure, attractive position.  
The location and form of provision shall be such as to satisfy the 
Council that all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure both 
that its security in use and its attractiveness to potential cyclists.   
 
Such parking spaces will be provided in all cases with weather 
protection and, normally, with a weather-protected route between 
the spaces and the development being served. These routes will 
always be shorter and more direct than the route to the nearest 
car parking spaces, other than spaces reserved for disabled 
people. 
 
Motor-cycle Parking 
Depending on the nature of the development, motorcycle parking 
spaces should be provided for staff and visitors.  As a guideline, 1 
motorcycle parking space should be provided per 20 car parking 
spaces, subject to all developments with more than 10 car spaces 
having a minimum of 1 space.  A minimum area of 2m x 1m 
should be provided, and, as with pedal cycle parking every effort 
should be made to provide spaces in a secure, attractive position.  
The provision of cycle parking is an essential component of the 

26



Council’s policies of encouraging cycling and sustainable 
transport.  Every effort should be made to provide spaces in a 
secure, attractive position.  They should be located closer to the 
building they serve than car parking spaces, and should be 
provided with adequate protection from the weather. 
 
These standards will be reviewed in the context of London-wide 
guidance.  See also Policy T11. 
 
Provision for servicing for non-residential development 
The Council will normally require off-street servicing for all new 
developments and will resist its loss in existing developments. 
 
The Council will require the provision, within the development 
site, of adequate space for loading, unloading and waiting of 
goods vehicles, on the basis of one lorry space for each 500 m2 of 
gross floor area (gfa) maximum. A lesser provision will be 
acceptable if the Council can be satisfied that the full predicted 
servicing demand can be met off-highway.  No queuing or 
manoeuvring of vehicles should take place on the public highway 
such that road safety and the free flow of vehicles are likely to be 
detrimentally affected.  The Council will also require to be 
satisfied that, where necessary, proper provision has been made 
for garaging commercial vehicles on the premises – in a manner 
which prevents the use of such areas for the parking of cars. 

 
The Council will require that areas set aside for servicing needs 
are designed / arranged in such a manner as to discourage their 
use for car-parking and may require the incorporation of specific 
measures to prevent the parking of cars in such areas. not 
designated for that purpose. The Council may also require 
servicing arrangements to be located in a manner which 
facilitates their inspection for enforcement purposes.  The 
Council would also ensure that no queuing or manoeuvring of 
vehicles take place on the public highway such that road safety 
and the free flow of vehicles are likely to be detrimentally affected. 
 
The Council will require that areas set aside for servicing needs 
are designed / arranged in such a manner as to discourage their 
use for car-parking and may require the incorporation of specific 
measures to prevent the parking of cars in areas not designated 
for that purpose. The Council may also require servicing 
arrangements to be located in a manner which facilitates their 
inspection for enforcement purposes.  
 
Depending on the nature of the development, motorcycle parking 
spaces should be provided for staff and visitors.  As a guideline, 1 
motorcycle parking space should be provided per 20 car parking 
spaces, subject to all developments with more than 10 car spaces 
having a minimum of 1 space.  A minimum area of 2m x 1m 

27



should be provided, and, as with pedal cycle parking every effort 
should be made to provide spaces in a secure, attractive position.  
They should be located closer to the building they serve than car 
parking spaces, and should be provided with adequate protection 
from the weather.  
 
These standards will be reviewed in the context of London-wide 
guidance.  See also Policy T11. 
 
The Council will require that areas set aside for servicing needs 
are designed / arranged in such a manner as to discourage their 
use for car-parking and may require the incorporation of specific 
measures to prevent the parking of cars in areas not designated 
for that purpose. The Council may also require servicing 
arrangements to be located in a manner which facilitates their 
inspection for enforcement purposes. 
 
 

MAXIMUM RESIDENTIAL OFF-STREET PARKING 
Car-parking standards for residential development (Class C3: 
Dwelling Houses) 

 
         Land Use 
 

 Car-Parking Provision 

C3 Dwelling Houses The maximum Car-parking spaces should not 
will normally be provided as per exceed the 
following: 

habitable 
rooms 

resident 
spaces 

visitor 
spaces 

per dwelling unit 
1 or 2 1.0 0.2 

3 1.2 0.2 
4 1.4 0.2 

5 or more 1.6 0.2 

  
 
 
 
i) private dwellings 
 
  

but where lesser demand will be generated 
because of the criteria set out in the 
following section on “Adherence to the 
standards”, levels will normally be reduced 
accordingly. 

 
 ii) housing association 

dwellings 
As in (i) above 

  
iii) local authority 
dwellings 
 

 
As in (i) above 

  
iv) old persons’ 
dwellings 

 
As in (i) above 

28



  
ii v) sheltered housing 
dwellings 

 
One car-parking space per 4 units, subject to 
a minimum of 2 car-parking spaces, + 1 
space for a warden 

  
vi) dwellings for 
persons with a physical 
disability 

 
As in (i) above but not subject to the 
reductions set out in “Adherence to the 
standards” 

Notes: 
The standards for dwelling houses reflect government advice are 
based on the policies in PPG3. and work undertaken as part of 
LPAC’s “Sustainable Residential Quality” project; and will be 
reviewed in the context of developing regional guidance. 

 
Adherence to the standards 
The standards will normally be applied as set out. However, where 
the Council is satisfied that lesser demand will be generated the 
normally permitted level of parking will be reduced, firstly 
according to the extent to which the development reaches the 
highest standards of: 

•  accessibility to/by public transport, and 
•  accessibility to local facilities, including shops, post office, health 

centres, etc. 
and secondly according to the proportion of affordable housing in 
the overall mix. 
In proportion to the degree to which it can be demonstrated to the 
Council’s satisfaction, that a proportionately lesser car-parking 
demand will be generated, consideration will be given: 
•  to increasing the density of residential development, and/or 
•  to reducing the level of car-parking provision. 
 
In all circumstances, any permitted variation in car-parking 
provision below the normal level will be dependent upon the 
Council being satisfied that there will be no additional car-parking 
demand generated on local streets (if necessary by ensuring the 
provision of a local CPZ, and making it a condition of granting 
planning permission that an appropriate contribution be made 
towards its implementation). Developments with lower than 
normal levels of car-parking will be designated as ‘Resident 
Permit Restricted’ – i.e. future occupiers will not be eligible for a 
resident parking permit to park on-street within any local CPZ. 
 
Conversions will not normally be allowed if the generated car-
parking/traffic demand cannot be safely accommodated on-site, 
or on local roads in a manner which leaves 5% residual available 
kerbside capacity (see Policy H10). 

 
Reducing Residential Parking 
The number of car parking spaces to be provided may be reduced 
in a scheme involving The standards for residential dwelling 

29



houses may be relaxed for small terrace in-fill housing or in area 
where it can be demonstrated that lesser car-parking will not 
result in significant road safety and traffic problems.  Also The 
Council will also consider developers may offer to provide  lower 
levels of car parking in developments that include provision for 
car clubs, car pools or car sharing schemes, subject to the details 
of the individual scheme.  In appropriate cases the Council may 
introduce on-street parking control to minimise the potential 
displacement of parking where on-street parking is being limited. 
 
Conversions will not normally be allowed if the generated car-
parking/traffic demand cannot be safely accommodated on-site, 
or on local roads in a manner which leaves 5% residual available 
kerbside capacity (see Policy H10). 

 
Disabled people 
In developments with parking in communal areas, one disabled 
person’s parking space shall be provided per 10 dwellings, 
subject to a minimum of one disabled person’s parking space.  
Applications for planning permission must specifically identify 
the proposed provision being made for access by disabled 
people. 
 
Layout of residential car-parking spaces 
Internal layouts for residential development should take account 
of the need for safe, secure and direct routes for pedestrians and 
cyclists - before land for car-parking spaces is allocated. 
Particular attention will be paid to avoiding any interruption of 
pedestrian routes and related elements, such as traffic free 
“spines”. 
 
The Council will require that all road space within a development 
site is laid out in such a way to prevent its use for car-parking 
while maintaining its continuous availability for access by 
emergency, waste collection and other essential service vehicles. 
 
The Council is currently preparing Supplementary Planning 
Guidance on Design that will address these issues in more detail. 
 

Pedal-cycle parking for residential development 
The Council will require that fully secure and weather-protected 
pedal-cycle parking spaces be provided on-site, on the basis of 
1.5 resident spaces, and 0.5 visitor spaces, per dwelling. Any 
route between buildings and visitor cycle parking will normally be 
weather-protected, and the distance will always be less than to 
the nearest car parking. 
 
These standards will be reviewed in the context of London-wide 
guidance. 
 

30



 
3) H5: RESIDENTIAL DENSITY 

 
 The Inspector recommended the following re-worded policy:- 
 

The Council will expect that residential densities in new development 
should be not less than 125 habitable rooms per hectare. 
 
In his assessment, and reflected in his recommendation, the Inspector  
gave greater weight to PPG3, rather than the draft London Plan figure 
of 150 hrph.   The intention of the policy is to secure a more efficient 
use of land. However, it would be more appropriate to include that 
regional figure applied to the particular circumstances in London, rather 
than the national policy guidance (PPG3). This is further emphasised 
by the need for the HUDP to be in general conformity with the London 
Plan.  Table 4B.1 in the draft London Plan set out how a maximum 
contribution towards housing provision could be achieved, and 
indicated 150hrph as the appropriate minimum figure for suburban 
locations. Importantly, the EIP Panel report recommended inclusion of 
Table 4B.1, but advised that Policy 4B.3 in the Plan be amended to 
give Boroughs greater flexibility in applying the density criteria in the 
Table. Assuming that the figure of 150 hrph is maintained in the 
adopted London Plan and the Policy is amended in line with the 
Panel’s recommendation, because of the flexibility expressed in the 
policy (i.e. its is not a rigid requirement), it is therefore recommended 
that this figure is now used. This figure would still satisfy the 
requirements of PPG3. It is suggested that the following replacement 
Residential Density policy (H5) and reasoned justification should read:- 

  
 THE COUNCIL WILL EXPECT THAT RESIDENTIAL DENSITIES IN 
NEW DEVELOPMENT SHOULD BE NOT LESS THAN 150 
HABITABLE ROOMS PER HECTARE. 

 
 In order to secure the effective use of land, PPG3 prescribes a 
minimum density figure of 30 dwellings per hectare.  It is 
appropriate to include a density minimum which satisfies this 
requirement.  Furthermore, the policy should also reflect the 
approach adopted in the regional spatial strategy, the London 
Plan, as well as national guidance.  Accordingly a minimum figure 
of 150 habitable rooms per hectare is included in the policy.  The 
Council does acknowledge, however, that there may be 
exceptional circumstances when this minimum may not be 
achievable. 

 
 Whilst the primary intention of the policy is to secure the 
effective use of land by setting a minimum figure, the Council 
wishes also to ensure that the maximum contribution is made by 
each site to overall housing provision.  Maximum housing 
provision will be thus be sought on each site consistent with 
design and amenity considerations and other policies in the Plan.  

31



With the emphasis in the Plan being placed on a design-led 
approach to development, it is considered that it is inappropriate 
to include a maximum density figure.   

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

4) H6: AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND H7: HOUSING FOR KEY 
WORKERS, AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING TARGET. 

 
Context 
 
The drafting of the combined policy for affordable housing and key 
workers for inclusion in the Proposed Modifications has taken into 
account a variety of material, including the Inspector’s recommendation 
(and associated references), the draft London Plan and the EIP Panel 
report, government  advice and statements including the consultation 
paper ‘Influencing the Size, Type and Affordability of Housing’, the 
West London Housing Strategy, Sustainable Communities in London, 
on the Council’s Housing Strategy Statement 2002-7 and 2003/4 
update. It has also taken account of informal officer discussions with 
officers of GLA and GOL. Consideration should be given to any 
affordable housing target, its justification, & where it should be 
included. 
  
The Inspector’s Recommendation on H6 and H7.  
 
The Inspector recommended ‘that Policies H6 and H7, and supporting 
text, be deleted, to be replaced by a comprehensive single Policy 
setting out aims and procedures based on utilising the potential of all 
forms of affordable housing provision, to contribute to a Plan housing 
strategy over the Plan life, and in accordance with the advice of 
Circular 6/98’. 
 
In arriving at this recommendation the Inspector had concluded that the 
replacement policy should more comprehensively, and on a better 
researched and more articulated base, indicate how affordable 
provision can contribute to housing strategy in the Borough, with the 
reasonable assistance of developers (Inspector’s Report (IR) para 
6.72).  He also stated that necessary attention should be given as part 
of the task of producing a new lead housing policy setting out the 
Council’s overall strategy and intentions over the Plan period (IR para 
6.73). 
 
The Inspector acknowledged the complication that would be caused in 
re-drafting the policy by the existence of the Government’s consultation 
paper ‘Influencing the Size, Type and Affordability of Housing’ (IR para 
6.74), together with the issue of conformity with the London Plan (IR 
para 6.75). 
 

32



Before a new policy can be formulated which appropriately reflects the 
Inspector’s assessment, conclusions and recommendation, but also 
properly considers other circumstances which have changed both 
since the Plan was drafted and the round table session at the Inquiry, 
the Council’s position in relation to these matters need to be set down 
and justified.  
 
Government’s consultation paper ‘Influencing the Size, Type & 
Affordability of Housing’ 
 
The Government in July 2003 initiated a consultation on proposed 
changes to PPG3 Housing. The key general issue is that if the 
Government’s proposals are brought forward, Circular 6/98 would be 
cancelled.  Given that the Inspector has recommended that a 
replacement policy should be ‘in accordance with the advice of Circular 
6/98’, there is a fundamental dilemma for the Council in redrafting a 
replacement policy.  Does the Council proceed to agree a policy in 
accordance with the Inspector’s recommendation, or does it place 
significant emphasis on changed circumstances since the Revised 
Deposit Draft HUDP was published? On balance, the Council 
considers that it would clearly be sensible to approach the re-drafting 
to take into account the latest government position on the subject.  
 
Conformity with the London Plan and informal GOL advice on the 
approach to re-drafting the policy. 
 
At this stage the Council does not know the detailed wording of 
contextual information and policies relating to affordable housing  in the 
published London Plan. Because of this, in developing the approach to 
the form and content of the replacement policy, officers held informal 
meeting with officers from both the GLA and GOL.   
 
In summary, the GLA officers advised that the Mayor would be likely to 
support a policy approach that sought 50% of all new housing in 
Harrow being affordable.  This was because of the shortfall in 
affordable housing provision at the London-wide, sub-regional and 
local level, having taken into account the interaction of needs and 
supply.  There was also a need for a reference to the split between 
social housing, intermediate housing (and acknowledgement that low 
cost market housing could contribute).  The policy on affordable 
housing needed to clearly set down the Council’s approach to 
negotiation.   
 
The advice from GOL officers emphasised the need to refer to the 
government’s latest thinking on affordable housing policy, the fact that 
it is a priority, and that appropriate regard needed to be paid to the 
London Plan because of the issue of general conformity.  
Affordable Housing Targets and recent performance 

33



In developing a target which is both challenging and realistic, it is 
essential to assess current progress against the draft London Plan 
affordable housing target for Harrow.  This can be summarised as 
follows:- 

 

 
 

The trend for both completions and funding approvals is definitely 
upwards, whilst it is acknowledged that completions lag behind.  The  
annual monitoring targets contained in the Council’s Housing Strategy 
Statement are a reasonable starting point, given that the HUDP should 
encourage an increase in the amount of affordable housing brought 
forward. Detailed information is contained in Housing Strategy 
Statistical Appendices for recent years, together with Housing 
Corporation allocation schedules.   In addition, there are a number of 
schemes in the pipeline, including where an affordable housing 
contribution will be negotiated. The implementation of a lower threshold 
than has been applied for development control purposes in recent  
years should also contribute to increased levels of provision.  
 
Affordable Housing Policy and Mixed-Use Development 
 
The Draft Replacement HUDP includes Policy SD3-Mixed-Use 
Development, promoting mixed use schemes in appropriate locations.  
Clearly, where mixed use developments including 15 or more units are 
proposed, the replacement affordable housing policy will also apply.  
Although there was no recommendation or comment relating to this 
issue from the Inspector, to rectify the omission of an explicit reference 
to mixed use schemes in the replacement policy in the deposit draft 
HUDP, it is considered that the wording of the policy be such that 

Affordable Housing Targets

Draft London Plan 1997 - 2016

Total Harrow Annual Overall Total Harrow Annual
target Monitoring Affordable Affordable Affordable

Target target target Monitoring
Target

6620 330 50% 3310 165

Affordable Housing completions over past 4 years

Planned Average +/- Annual
2000/2001 2001/2002 2002/2003 2003/2004 2004/2005 Monitoring target

97 96 145 136 92 113 -52

Affordable Housing Funding Approvals over past 4 years

Average +/- Annual
2000/2001 2001/2002 2002/2003 2003/2004 Monitoring target

100 183 111 133 132 -33

34



mixed use schemes are covered, and the reasoned justification 
confirms this, a reference now be added. 
 
Having outlined above the reasons for the general approach to be 
adopted by the Council, the following replacement wording is 
suggested for inclusion in the Proposed Modifications. 
 
Preamble 
 
The Mayor of London’s Housing Commission assessment of 
housing need in London, adjusted for new household formation 
figures, identified total need for affordable housing in London at 
25,700 units per annum (draft London Plan). The West London 
Housing Strategy provides the context of need for affordable 
housing in West London.  In Harrow, the 2003 update of the 2000 
Housing Needs Survey confirmed that  levels of housing need 
remained high and were increasing. The importance of 
addressing the needs of key workers is recognised as being a key 
challenge. With a continuing shortfall in provision it is essential 
that higher levels of affordable housing provision than hitherto 
are achieved.  
 
The Council will aim to maximise provision of additional 
affordable housing from a variety of sources, including Housing 
Association developments, any further local authority estate 
renewal initiatives, negotiations on qualifying private sector 
residential or mixed use schemes, bringing empty property back 
into use, conversion of dwellings into smaller units, non self-
contained accommodation, and the purchase of properties on the 
open market.  Policies in the Plan promote such initiatives. In 
addition, Proposal Sites identified in the Plan will also deliver 
additional affordable housing units.  Maximising the use of 
previously-developed land and buildings throughout the life of the 
Plan will continue to contribute to maximising provision.  The  
2004 Housing Capacity Study will inform the early review of the 
total housing provison figure, including affordable housing.   
 
Against this context, which will be kept under regular review, it is 
necessary to develop a realistic and pragmatic affordable housing 
policy which appropriately reflects the economic realities of both 
providers and occupants of future affordable housing, and 
ensures that housing provision seeks to meet the full range of 
affordable housing need.  
 
Replacement Affordable Housing Policy H6  
 
THE COUNCIL WILL SEEK THE MAXIMUM REASONABLE 
PROPORTION OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING ON SUITABLE SITES 
OF 0.5 HECTARES OR MORE, OR ON DEVELOPMENTS OF 15 OR 
MORE DWELLINGS.  PROVISION SHOULD NORMALLY BE ON-

35



SITE.  IN AGREEING THE LEVEL AND FORM OF AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING PROVISION ON ANY INDIVIDUAL SITE, THE COUNCIL 
WILL HAVE REGARD TO:- 
A) BOROUGH-LEVEL, SUB-REGIONAL AND REGIONAL 

TARGETS (SEE POLICY SH1) 
B) INDIVIDUAL SITE COSTS AND ECONOMIC VIABILITY, 
INCLUDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PUBLIC SUBSIDY AND 
OTHER PLANNING OBJECTIVES. 
THE COUNCIL CONSIDERS THAT THE LIKELY MINIMUM 
PERCENTAGE OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING TO BE NEGOTIATED 
ON SUITABLE SITES SHOULD BE 30%. 
THE AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROVIDED SHOULD BE 
AVAILABLE TO PROSPECTIVE OCCUPANTS (TO BOTH INITIAL 
AND SUBSEQUENT OCCUPIERS).   
 

Reasoned Justification 
 

The Government’s commitment to changing the approach to 
sustainable communities in order to create and maintain places 
where people want to live and stay was set out in ‘Sustainable 
Communities:Building for the Future’ (2003). The Government’s 
plans to de-centralise power and strengthen regional policy was 
further set out in ‘Sustainable Communities in London:Building 
for the Future’ (2003). This document also set out a regional 
programme of action for achieving sustainable communities in 
London.  It further also recognised that in London there is an 
urgent need for more affordable homes all over the capital to 
accommodate London growing population, reduce homelessness 
and ensure that workers who are key to delivery of the capital’s 
essential services are able to afford to live and work in its 
communities.  

 
Reflecting both Housing Needs Surveys in Harrow and other West 
London Boroughs, continued provision of affordable housing, 
both in terms of the numbers and types of accommodation 
provided, is central to the aim to create more mixed & inclusive 
communities, meeting regional housing requirements, and 
providing housing choice.  It is however, important, to 
acknowledge that in Harrow low cost market housing is unlikely  
to address any housing needs in the Borough, whilst shared 
ownership is only affordable to a decreasing number of those in 
need, as a result of rising land and property prices. The draft 
London Plan provides the strategic framework  for developing the 
appropriate policy to ensure necessary provision in Harrow. It 
further sets down the policy direction for the sub-regions within 
London, including the West London sub-region in which Harrow 
is located. 

 
The Council defines affordable housing as ‘Housing that meets 
the needs of households whose incomes are not sufficient to 

36



allow them to access decent and appropriate housing, and 
comprises social housing, intermediate housing and may include 
low  cost market housing. The definition also includes key 
workers. In identifying the needs of households in unsuitable 
accommodation this will be defined as the smallest number of 
rooms required to address their requirements.   With regard to 
income levels, households in need of affordable housing are 
defined as those who cannot pay the equivalent of a periodic 
outgoing for the household on rent, lease or mortgage equivalent 
to that for accommodation of similar size and quality to meet their 
needs provided by a registered social landlord in the Borough.   
Reflecting the above definition, an appropriate proportion of key 
worker accommodation may be acceptable as part of the 
affordable housing requirement where there is a recognised local 
need for such provision.* 

 
Reflecting the government’s latest thinking, and particularly as 
expressed in the  consultation paper ‘Influencing the Size, Type 
and Affordability of Housing’, the Council considers that the 
appropriate site size threshold for negotiating an element of 
affordable housing should be set at developments of  15 or more 
dwellings, or sites or 0.5 hectare and above. This is also generally 
in line with the approach taken in those Boroughs who are signed 
up to the West London Housing Strategy.  Setting the threshold at 
this level also reflects the urgent need to address the continuing 
shortfall of affordable housing accommodation to meet the 
identified levels of need. The draft London Plan sets down the 
total housing demand and need for affordable housing in London, 
whilst the West London Housing Strategy identifies the sub 
regional situation. Locally, the 2003 update of the 2000 Harrow 
Housing Needs Survey, supplemented by a variety of other local 
sources of information, confirms the scale of on-going need 
within Harrow.  In addition to purely residential schemes, the 
Council will also negotiate an element of affordable housing in 
mixed use schemes incorporating 15 or more dwellings.  
 
The Council promotes the efficient use of sites, and also wishes 
to avoid sub-division of sites to avoid the need to comply with the 
policy requirements.  Where part of a site, which is large enough 
for the purpose of this policy, is developed through a phasing of 
development or where the site is split into different ownerships, 
the Council will still expect the provision of  the same proportion 
of affordable housing over the site as a whole as if it had been a 
single development.   

 
 For suitable sites, the element of affordable housing should be 
provided on-site wherever possible.  In assessing whether a site 
is suitable for affordable housing the Council will take into 
account:- the quality of the site; size of the site; the number of 
units proposed; the location of the site; other relevant land use 

37



criteria; Government guidelines; economic viability of the scheme 
and market conditions, and proximity to local services and 
facilities and to public transport.   With the aim of creating 
more mixed and sustainable communities, on-site provision, by 
definition, is more likely to secure this objective than off-site 
provision.  Where design solutions can be devised which secures 
the on-site provision of affordable housing, appropriate 
integration of such housing should be achieved.   Off-site 
provision, either by development on another site or  receipt of 
cash-in-lieu, is likely to be more complex and result in the delay of 
the provision of  the affordable housing.  Whilst the presumption 
in favour of on-site provision of affordable housing is set down in 
PPG3, the preference in Harrow for also for such provision, 
reflecting the shortage of sites, and lack of vacant or under-used 
sites in the Borough.  

 
  There may be exceptional circumstances, however, where the 

Council and prospective developer agree that on-site provision is 
impracticable.   In such circumstances the Council may be 
prepared, through negotiation, to accept proposals for the 
affordable housing to be provided elsewhere in the Borough. The 
onus, however, is on the developer to justify the exceptional 
circumstances. Should the Council agree with the developer that 
such circumstances exist, it is for the developer to ensure that an 
alternative site is available which can be developed in a manner 
that will guarantee the construction of the affordable housing 
units, or the agreed element of affordable housing provided in 
another manner acceptable to the Council.  If the affordable 
housing element of a scheme cannot be provided on the 
application site, or an alternative site, the Council may accept 
cash-in-lieu provision.  The Council will prepare Supplementary 
Planning Guidance setting out how it will calculate cash in lieu 
contributions. 

 
 The Council expects the delivery of affordable housing in a 

reasonable time and would therefore ensure the completion of a 
Planning Obligation or agreement before any planning permission 
is granted for any scheme, or the provision of another site. It must 
be recognised that it may not always be possible to attract public 
subsidy on every site involving affordable housing, and the 
developer may be required to demonstrate the scheme could 
deliver the affordable housing without this.   

 
 In determining the mix of accommodation on any individual site, 

due regard will be paid to Policy H8 – Dwelling Mix. On qualifying 
sites the Council will normally seek a mix of family and non-family 
accommodation, and a split of 35%:15% of social rented to 
intermediate housing, consistent with the scale of identified 
housing need.  This split also reflects the guidance set down in 
the draft London Plan.  In agreeing the amount and form of 

38



affordable housing to be provided, due regard will be paid to the 
particular circumstances and characteristics applicable to each 
individual site in determining the financial viability to 
accommodate an agreed element of affordable housing.    

 
(Prospective occupiers – it is suggested that paras 6.36-6.37 in the 
Draft Replacement Plan be included, subject to amendment to 
acknowledge situations where the RSL tenants may exercise their right 
to buy).    

   
Reflecting the re-written and updated Policy H6, additional and revised 
terms are suggested for inclusion in Schedule 1 – Glossary of Terms, 
as follows:- 

 
Intermediate Housing – Sub-market housing substantially above 
Housing Corporation target rents, but substantially below open market 
levels.  This category includes low cost home ownership schemes and 
key worker housing.  It may include some low cost market housing 
where its price is close to other forms of intermediate housing.  
 
Key Worker Housing – Regarded as housing for people in jobs that 
provide services deemed to be vital to the local and wider London 
economy and the maintenance of essential services, where there is 
evidence of recruitment and retention problems. A key worker is on a 
low to moderate income that is insufficient to allow them to access 
open market housing either for rent or sale and includes those 
employed in the public sector. 
 
Social Housing – Housing usually provided by a Registered Social 
Landlord or Housing Authority, using public subsidy, at levels no higher 
than Housing Corporation rents. 

 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING TARGET  

 
Following consideration of a number of factors, including the trend in 
performance and levels of public subsidy available, the following policy 
and reasoned justification has been developed:- 
 
THE COUNCIL WILL AIM TO SECURE AN AVERAGE ANNUAL 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROVISION OF AT LEAST 165  NET 
ADDITIONAL UNITS IN THE 10 YEAR PERIOD FROM THE 
ADOPTION OF THE PLAN. 
 
Reasoned justification 
In recent years Circular 6/98 has provided the raison d’etre for 
local planning authorities to include a target for affordable 
housing in their development plans.  Paragraph 9b) states that 
local authorities should indicate how many affordable homes 
need to be provided throughout the Plan period and/or set 

39



indicative targets for suitable specific sites (expressed either as a 
number of homes or a percentage of the homes on the site). 
 
In 2000 the Harrow Housing Needs Survey estimated that there 
would be 1,847 households in need per year up to 2005. The 2003 
update shows a slight increase in projected housing need of 1,923 
households per annum over the next 5 years. The table below 
summarises the need for affordable housing over the next 5 
years. 
 
The London Plan will require boroughs to have regard to regional 
and sub-regional housing needs as well as borough specific 
needs in undertaking housing needs assessments, and will 
require boroughs in setting affordable housing targets, to have 
regard to the London-wide targets set out in the London Plan.  
The increasing scale of housing need in London suggests that 
current levels of affordable housing provision are inadequate.  
Even accepting that it would be impracticable to suggest that all 
needs will be met, there is a need to increase  provision.   
 
Within Harrow, the trend for both affordable housing completions 
and funding approvals is upwards.  The annual monitoring targets 
contained in the Council’s 2002-7 Housing Strategy Statement are 
a reasonable starting point for determining the precise target, 
given that the HUDP should encourage an increase in the amount 
of affordable housing brought forward.  In addition, there 
continue to be a number of schemes in the pipeline where an 
affordable housing contribution will be negotiated, as well as 
housing association schemes which will deliver 100% affordable 
housing. The implementation of a lower threshold than has been 
applied for development control purposes in recent years should 
also contribute to increased levels of provision.  The Council 
considers that it would be realistic to aim for a provision of at  
least 50% of total provision as being affordable. Taking the figure 
of 6,620 contained in SH1 B), this would equate to an annual 
figure of at least 165 units. In suggesting this figure, the Council 
acknowledges that housing need and demand are not borough-
specific, and that there is a geographical mismatch between 
housing need and demand and development opportunities in 
London, including in the West London sub-region.. This has also 
been recognised by the 2003 London Housing Strategy and by the 
new arrangements for a regional and sub-regional framework for 
Housing Corporation investment decisions in  London.  The latter 
will continue to dictate the levels of public subsidy/investment 
which will available in West London. In determining the 
appropriate target for affordable housing, due regard has to be 
paid to the wide range of need and demand, the aim of giving 
everybody a decent home, the need to avoid reinforcement of 
social distinctions, create mixed and balanced communities, and 
the requirement to provide choice. 

40



Importantly, the EIP Panel report concluded that in the context of 
an overall target of 30,000 additional homes per year for London, 
a target for providing 50% of affordable housing could be justified 
on the basis of the scale of housing need in London as a whole.  
The Council fully acknowledges that, in order to achieve a target 
of 50% in Harrow, affordable housing will need to be provided 
from a variety of sources, including Section 106 proposals. On 
qualifying/suitable sites where an element of affordable housing 
is to be provided, the Council will sensitively negotiate the 
amount and form of affordable housing provided, taking into 
account site costs, economic viability, including the availability of 
public subsidy.  Where appropriate, regard will also be paid to 
other planning obligations being sought as part of the scheme. 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

5) H10: CONVERSION OF HOUSES AND OTHER BUILDINGS TO 
FLATS, AND SCHEDULE 8. 

 
Following acceptance of the Inspector’s recommendation to delete 
Criterion A) from policy H10, necessary amendments were required to 
the reasoned justification and Schedule 8.  The following changes to 
paragraph 6.53 in the Plan are suggested in response to this 
recommendation:- 
 
Conversions will help to achieve a better balance in the housing 
types as well as sizes of units created.  Converted flats also 
provide accommodation for smaller households, and can be a 
valuable source of less expensive accommodation, relative to the 
overall housing stock.  The Council, however, whilst accepting 
the need for more conversions, will carefully consider the scale 
and concentration of conversions in any locality. The need to limit 
the number of conversions in any area will help to ensure a mixed 
and balanced community.  The Council acknowledges that there 
are some areas in which the level of conversions historically is 
already high and it is therefore the Council's intention to continue 
to encourage a good spread of conversions on individual roads 
and throughout the Borough rather than a concentration of these 
on any particular area.  (See also Schedule 8 – Working 
Interpretations in respect of Policy H10). 
 
 
The Inspector recommended consequential amendments are also 
required to Schedule 8.  On reviewing the Schedule, it is now 
considered that it would be more appropriate to add the remaining 
suggested text to the end of paragraph 6.53, and to delete Schedule 8. 
The suggested revised wording is:- 

 

41



SCHEDULE 8 - WORKING INTERPRETATIONS IN RESPECT OF 
POLICY H10 CONVERSIONS OF HOUSES AND OTHER 
BUILDINGS INTO FLATS 

 
In addition to the reasoned justifications for the policy (paras 
6.52-6.60), The following working interpretations have been is set 
down to assist applicants:- 
 
(i) For the purpose of applying criterion A) of the policy, a 
road will normally include the full length and both sides of an 
individually named road.  However, it may be necessary for this 
purpose to subdivide a very long road into segments having 
regard to the following factors:- 
 a) Clear differences in the size and type of property fronting 
the road (changes in character). 
 b) Physical barriers and extensive breaks in the residential 
frontages (including other land uses and road junctions).  In the 
case of secondary roads, each side of the road will be treated 
individually for the purpose of the percentage calculation and 
split in length, where appropriate, on the basis of the factors 
above. 
 
(ii) In the first line of Policy H10, the term “conversion” is 
taken to mean the sub-division of a building into two or more 
residential units, whether this involves any physical alteration or 
otherwise, or other building works.  (Generally there is no 
planning control over the internal alterations and building work 
involved in a residential conversion, only the subsequent use of 
the property). 
 
(iii) For the purposes of calculating the level of conversions in 
a road (see A), any existing and valid permission for the 
redevelopment of existing buildings or the creation of new 
residential buildings should be taken into account. 
 
(iv) For the purpose of the application of Policy H10 A) the 
information sources for identifying existing conversions will 
include:- 
a) existing valid planning permissions; 
b) established use certificates; 
c) building control records; and 
d) other Council records. 
NOTE:  It is impracticable to identify the actual pattern of 
occupation of every residential building in a road because 
anomalies will occur if the assessment is based on a limited site 
appraisal or local knowledge.  For administrative expediency and 
to ensure a consistent approach the information base should be 
restricted to the above three public records.  The figure of 25% 
was selected following consideration of information prepared on 
this basis but it should, however, be recognised that the actual 

42



proportion of conversions in some roads may already be in 
excess of this figure. 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

6) H19: MOBILITY AND LIFETIME HOMES 
 

The Panel was advised at its last meeting that the deletion of both 
Policies H19 and C20 as recommended by the Inspector would result 
in the Plan not reflecting advice contained in ‘Planning and Access for 
Disabled People : A Good Practice Guide’ (referred to by the Inspector 
in his assessment on C20).  Whilst it is considered that it is not 
essential to develop a new Part 1 policy, as suggested by the Guide, it 
is necessary to still include a Part 2 policy relating to accessibility 
which will reflect the inclusion of accessibility matters in the draft 
London Plan. The EIP Panel Report expressed positive support for the 
inclusion of such policies, stating that Lifetime homes are an important 
aspect of choice at all stages of life, and of creating mixed communities 
(para 4.39).  Accordingly, the wording of Policy H19 has been revised 
to take on board matters referred to by the Inspector in his 
assessment. .  It is further considered necessary to completely re-write 
the reasoned justification, and to revise the heading to read ‘Accessible 
Homes’ to reflect a more inclusive approach. The revised wording is as 
follows:- 

 
Accessible Mobility and Lifetime Homes 
H19 THE COUNCIL WILL ENCOURAGE THE PROVISION OF NEW 

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT, INCLUDING CHANGES OF USE AND 
CONVERSIONS OF BUILDINGS INTO FLATS, WHICH ARE 
CAPABLE OF MEETING MOBILITY STANDARDS TO BE 
ACCESSIBLE TO ALL.  IN LARGER RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENTS OF 15 OR MORE UNITS, SCHEMES, THE 
COUNCIL WILL REQUIRE SEEK TO ENSURE THAT A 
PROPORTION OF THESE  TO BE  ARE BUILT AS LIFETIME 
HOMES STANDARDS AND OR CAPABLE OF ADAPTATION TO 
WHEELCHAIR STANDARDS HOUSING.  ALL WHEELCHAIR 
HOUSING, PROVIDED AS PART OF A NEW RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT, SHOULD BE IN A SUITABLE LOCATION IN 
ORDER TO MEET THE NEEDS OF THE OCCUPANTS. 

 
6.82a Due to the growth in the size of elderly population and people 

with long-term illness the demand for accessible housing is likely 
to rise.  Older persons and disabled people require housing 
designed as lifetime, accessible or wheelchair housing in order to 
help them retain their maximum independence.  These kind of 
housing are in short supply in the Borough.  According to the 
2001 census the number of people with long-term illness in the 
Borough is about (30,800) 15%.  Thus the potential number of 
people who would benefit from these types of housing is 
substantial.  The Council’s strategy is to promote the opportunity 

43



of choice and increase flexibility in the housing stock.  Lifetime 
homes are houses designed to meet the needs of their occupiers 
to cope with life events such as physical disabilities, throughout 
their life.  Provision of housing that accommodates various 
stages of the human life cycle and different circumstances can 
contribute to a stable and sustainable community. 

 
6.82 Although Part M of the Building Regulations requires improved 

access to buildings, its scope is limited to specific issues such as 
means of access into the dwelling, circulation within the entrance 
storey, accessible switches, lifts and downstairs toilet.  Such 
requirements only allow disabled persons to gain access into 
dwellings, but do not guarantee their ability to live there.  
Accessible and Lifetime homes are houses designed to meet the 
needs of their occupiers to cope with events such as physical 
disabilities, throughout their life.  Provision of housing that 
accommodates various stages of the human life cycle and 
different circumstances can contribute to a stable and 
sustainable community.  The Council’s intention is to enable 
disabled people , whether temporary or permanent to be able to 
live in their homes with minimum adaptations, if their 
circumstances change.  Therefore, accessible and mobility 
lifetime homes housing represents a sustainable and flexible 
approach to meeting the vast majority of general housing needs 
and could reduce the cost of adaptations and enable people to 
remain in their homes because of their the accommodation is 
adaptable and flexible.  Such property will offer greater choice to 
those whose mobility needs may change and can be more readily 
and cheaply converted if disability becomes more severe.  It is 
important that all new residential developments are designed to 
enable disabled people and wheelchair users to gain access to 
homes except where this is made impossible by reason of the 
terrain or other location factors. 

 
6.83 In order to increase the stock of housing available for occupation 

by disabled people, the Council will seek to ensure that at least 
10% of all social housing are designed as wheelchair housing.  
The needs of wheelchair users are often better catered for by 
housing purposely designed to 'Lifetime Homes' standards and 
mobility standards meet their needs.  In addition Tthe Council will 
therefore negotiate with developers to ensure that a proportion of 
new housing in the Borough is designed to meet the needs of 
disabled people. such standards.  Such housing will offer greater 
choice to those whose mobility needs may change, to remain in 
their homes.   

 
6.84 In addition, improving access to existing buildings to 

accommodate the needs of disabled people will complement Part 
M (Access and Facilities for Disabled People), Building 
Regulations 1991, which requires all new housing to be designed 

44



to enable a disabled person to gain access into dwellings.  
Disabilities, whether temporary or permanent, have the potential 
to affect a large number of people at some stage in their lives.  
The Council will, wherever possible, require all new housing 
developments in the Borough to comply with Part M, which will in 
effect make it easier to adapt such property to the requirements of 
a large number of people who would prefer to stay in their homes 
should their circumstances change. 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

7) R5 & PARAS 8.28 and 8.29: OUTDOOR SPORTS FACILITIES 
 

The Panel was previously advised that, in accepting the Inspector’s 
recommendation to delete Policy R5 and its reasoned justification, 
there was still a need for the Plan to state the Council’s stance on 
neglected or under-used outdoor sports facilities.  It is therefore 
suggested that this would most appropriately be addressed by 
including a reference in the reasoned justification to Policy SR1, as 
follows:- 
 

2.100 Parks and open spaces are an important part of community life, 
providing opportunities for people to enjoy organised recreation, 
informal leisure pursuits and contact with nature.  They contribute 
to the attractive, open character of the Borough. The Council 
attaches considerable importance to the retention of adequate 
recreational open space and considers that neither neglect nor 
lack of use are acceptable grounds for change from open 
recreational use since a fall in demand for a certain open space or 
leisure activity at one time does not preclude a rise in demand in 
future.  In view of the current rise in residential development and 
the population increase in the borough, the Council will 
endeavour to protect all valuable open space to allow for future 
community needs, as once it is lost  it is difficult to replace.  
 
Reflecting the implications of up- to-date information, it is suggested 
that an appropriate reference should be included in the reasoned 
justification to Policy SR1 to cross-boundary protection of open-air 
leisure and sporting facilities, and accessibility to sites, as follows;-   
 

2.101 Compared with some London Boroughs, Harrow is well provided 
for in terms of open space and outdoor recreational facilities. 
Nevertheless, provision of outdoor recreational space falls below 
the National Playing Fields Association's recommended minimum 
of 2.4 hectares (6 acres) per thousand population. The Council 
has identified areas lacking in public open space and will identify 
sites for additional provision of open space.  The Council 
recognises that some open space fulfils a strategic role, in that it 
is used by people living outside the Borough. In accordance with 
the Mayor’s Draft Open Spaces Strategy, consideration will be 

45



given to open spaces within 1km of the borough boundary when 
assessing availability  to facilitate cross boundary planning 
protection of such sites.  

 
2.102 The Council is committed to improving access to open space 

with amenity, recreational or nature conservation value, while at 
the same time ensuring that such space is protected from damage 
that might arise from increased use. Any increase in public 
access to sites will be monitored carefully, and where necessary 
measures taken to minimise conflict. It may not be appropriate to 
increase public access to all sites and in some instances partial 
or restricted access, for example, at a particular time or by 
arrangement, may be sought. Accessibility for disabled persons 
will be examined to ensure compliance with the Disability 
Discrimination Act (DDA).  
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

8) R12: PROTECTING ARTS, CULTURE, ENTERTAINMENT AND 
LEISURE FACILITIES  
The Inspector recommended that (i) the plan be modified by the 
deletion of Policy R12 and its supporting text, however, a deletion of 
the policy would mean that there is no protection in the Plan under any 
circumstances for such uses. It is therefore felt that a less restrictive 
policy for protecting facilities in sustainable locations would be more 
appropriate.  The following wording is suggested:- 

 
 Protecting Arts, Culture, Entertainment and Leisure Facilities  
 THE COUNCIL WILL RESIST THE LOSS OF ARTS, CULTURAL, 

ENTERTAINMENT OR LEISURE FACILITIES THROUGH 
REDEVELOPMENT OR CHANGE OF USE IN SUSTAINABLE 
LOCATIONS OR AREAS IDENTIFIED TO BE DEFICIENT UNLESS 
AN APPROPRIATE REPLACEMENT FACILITY IS OFFERED.  

 
8.23  Identifying new sites for arts, culture, entertainment and leisure 

facilities to cater for community needs in the future may lead to 
development pressures on open land for sufficient land and 
recreational open space. These pressures may be in out-of-town 
locations which are inaccessible, inconvenient and 
unsustainable. For this reason, the Council will require any 
existing redundant sites to be retained for replacement with other 
similar recreational functions.  

  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
12) C2: PROVISION OF SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
 

The Panel was advised at its last meeting that although the majority of 
the Inspector’s recommended policy rewording was acceptable, he did 
not recognise the need to protect existing facilities in the Borough.  

46



Making provision for new facilities without any protection for existing 
ones through appropriate policies runs counter to the principle of 
sustainability.  Existing facilities which are of particular value and of 
good quality should be recognised and given protection.  The Council 
considers that this is important in a Borough with land shortages to 
accommodate new facilities, and suggest that the following revised 
wording accommodates this need, together with the Inspector’s 
requirement for the reasoned justification to be amended to read:-. 

 
THE COUNCIL WILL ENCOURAGE THE RETENTION OF EXISTING 
PROVISION OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND SEEK THE 
PROVISION OF NEW ONES, PARTICULARLY IN AREAS 
IDENTIFIED TO BE IN NEED OF SUCH FACILITIES OR FACILITIES 
REQUIRED TO MEET THE NEEDS OF PARTICULAR 
COMMUNITIES. 
 

9.13 There is a general shortage of suitable land and buildings for 
health, social and community uses in the Borough. In view of this 
the Council encourages their retention and only allow change of 
use in exceptional circumstances the provision of new facilities in 
order to meet identified needs.  Proposals involving the loss of 
existing facilities or change of use will not be allowed in areas 
identified as deficient, unless there is suitable replacement as 
part of the development or in other suitable locations.  The 
Council’s preference is that existing facilities should be retained 
is in line with the Council’s sustainability principles. 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

9) C20: ACCESS TO BUILDINGS AND PUBLIC SPACES  
 

The Panel was advised at its last meeting that the deletion of both 
Policies H19 and C20 as recommended by the Inspector would result 
in the Plan not reflecting advice contained in ‘Planning and Access for 
Disabled People : A Good Practice Guide’ (referred to by the Inspector 
in his assessment on C20).  Whilst it is considered that it is not 
essential to develop a new Part 1 policy, as suggested by the Guide, it 
is necessary to still include a Part 2 policy relating to accessibility 
which will reflect the inclusion of accessibility matters  included in the 
draft London Plan, which received positive support in the EIP Panel 
Report.  In view of this, the Council considers it appropriate to retain 
the policy in a revised form, whilst taking on board matters most of the 
matters referred to by the Inspector in his assessment, the modified 
policy to read as follows :- 
 
THE COUNCIL WILL SEEK TO ENSURE THAT BUILDINGS AS 
WELL AS PUBLIC SPACES ARE READILY ACCESSIBLE TO ALL, 
PARTICULARLY ELDERLY PEOPLE AND DISABLED PEOPLE, 
INCLUDING WHEELCHAIR USERS.  DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS 

47



SHOULD BE ADEQUATELY DESIGNED TO ACCOMMODATE THE 
NEEDS OF ALL USERS. 

 
(9.63 –9.65 to remain unmodified)  
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

10) PROPOSAL SITE 6: HARROW ON THE HILL STATION AND LAND 
IN COLLEGE ROAD AND LOWLANDS ROAD 

 
Following consideration at the last meeting the following additional 
wording is suggested for inclusion as a new second paragraph in the 
Development Objectives, as  follows:-  
 
‘Harrow Baptist Church occupies an important position within the 
Proposal Site boundary and represents a significant community 
asset in the town centre. The retention of the church and the 
opportunity to integrate it with other proposed facilities, as part of 
the development framework, should be carefully considered. 
However, if a suitable scheme cannot be designed to respect the 
church's presence, relocation to a more appropriate part of the 
site, or elsewhere within the town centre, will be encouraged.’ 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

11) NEW PROPOSAL SITE - BAE SYSTEMS, WARREN LANE, 
STANMORE.   
 
In response to the Inspector’s recommendation, the following 
information in relation the Proposal for the site and Development 
Objectives and Constraints is suggested:- 

 
 Site Reference: New Proposal Site   

Site Address: BAE Systems site,  Warren Lane, Stanmore. 
Proposal: Housing 
Development Objectives and Constraints: The site has been 
identified as a Major Developed Site’ in the Green Belt.  It is 
intensively developed, containing xxxx sq.m (xxxx sq.ft.) of B1 
accommodation.  PPG2 recognises that redevelopment of Major 
Developed Sites offers the opportunity for environmental 
improvements without adding to their impact on the openness of 
the Green Belt.  Affordable housing policy would apply.  In view of 
the site’s isolated location, public transport services and other 
measures to improve the site’s accessibility for housing will be 
sought. 

 
 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 Following the receipt of the Inspector’s Report, the primary 

consideration has been to develop Proposed Modifications as quickly 

48



as possible.  As part of this process, and in view of the status of the 
London Plan, it was felt to be essential to consult both GLA and GOL 
officers in developing the precise wording of revised policies. Meetings 
have been held with officers of both bodies.  When the Council’s    
Statement of Decisions, together with the Proposed Modifications to 
the Plan, are be placed on deposit, both the Mayor and GOL will be 
afforded the opportunity to comment, along with all other interested 
parties and organisations. 

 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 Assuming that there is no need to re-open the Inquiry, the costs 

associated with the procedures for adopting the replacement HUDP 
can be met from existing budgets.  No other financial comments. 

 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 No comments. 
 
10. Conclusions 
 
10.1 Consideration of the recommendations in the  Inspector’s Report  and 

the preparation of Proposed Modifications are an important stage in 
the process for adopting the new HUDP.  In preparing the Proposed 
Modifications, the Council has been very mindful of the pending 
publication of the London Plan, and the need for the Replacement 
HUDP to be in general conformity with it.  Importantly, Counsel’s 
opinion has been sought on the development of appropriate revised 
policies and reasoned justifications, and the precise wording.       

 
11.  Background Papers  
 
11.1 UDPAP 12 November 2003 (Agenda Item 9) – HUDP – Consideration 

of the Inspector’s Report on the Public Local Inquiry. 
Inspector’s Report on Replacement Harrow UDP, the Planning 
Inspectorate, 13 August 2003. 
Revised Deposit Replacement Harrow Unitary Development Plan – 
March 2002 
PPG3 Housing – Influencing the size, type and affordability of housing 
– Government consultation - July 2003 
Draft London Plan – June 2002 
London Plan EIP Panel Report – July 2003 

 
12. Author 
 
12.1 Dennis Varcoe ext 2460, dennis.varcoe@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Unitary Development Plan Panel 

Date: 
 

Monday 5th January 2004 

Subject: 
 

Replacement Harrow Unitary Development Plan – Draft Proposed 
Modifications 

Key decision 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Chief Planning Officer 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder 
 

Portfolio Holder for Planning, Development, Housing and Best Value 

Status: 
 

Public 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix A - Draft Schedule of the Council’s Proposed Modifications to the 
Replacement HUDP  

 
1.       Summary 
 
1.1 Following consideration of the Inspector’s report, the Council is required to publish 

Proposed Modifications setting down the changes it has agreed.  The schedule attached 
to this report outlines all the suggested changes to be made, with the exception of those 
covered by other reports on the agenda.  Additional wording changes on less substantive 
matters are included in response to the Inspector’s recommendations for the Panel’s 
consideration, together with a few relatively minor changes reflecting changed 
circumstances .  The schedule will be amended to reflect decisions made by the Panel 
on the more substantive policy changes considered elsewhere on the agenda, and then 
placed on deposit with the Statement of Decisions. 

 
2. Recommendations (for decision by Cabinet.) 
 
2.1 To agree the draft schedule of the Council’s Proposed Modifications to the 

Replacement HUDP, subject to including all other changes arising from 
consideration of other items on the agenda, and for these to be placed on deposit 
alongside the Statement of Decisions. 

 
REASON: To expedite adoption of the replacement Harrow UDP after completion of 
all statutory procedures. 
 

 
 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 

None.  A copy of the Inspector’s Report was sent to all members of the Panel, and a 
copy placed in the Members’ Library. 
 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 51 to 94

51



4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
  

The Council is required to place on deposit all the Proposed Modifications agreed 
following consideration of the Inspector’s report.   
 

5. Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 

This report concerns a key aspect of the Council’s statutory development plan, the 
replacement HUDP, and as such fundamentally concerns the Council’s stated priority of 
enhancing the environment of the Borough. 

 
6. Background Information and options considered.  
 
6.1 The Inspector in his report made a number of recommendations which involved 

modification of the revised deposit draft HUDP.  Where he specified changes and /or 
replacement wording which was acceptable to the Council, the precise changes have 
now been included in the attached schedule. Where minor additional changes to wording 
have also been required, these are set out in the schedule, as are some minor changes 
reflecting changed circumstances. A report dealing with more substantive changes is 
included elsewhere on the agenda.  Cross-references to policies in the latter report have 
been included in the schedule. When all the wording of these policies and reasoned 
justifications has been agreed, they will be added to the schedule. 

 
6.2 Since the Revised Deposit Draft was placed on deposit in March 2002, new information, 

such as revised PPGs or consultation drafts, government statements have been 
produced.  The Examination In Public (EIP) on the draft London Plan has taken place 
and the Panel report published.  The London Plan will be published soon.  Some detailed 
factual updating of  the HUDP to reflect these has taken place, together with other 
essential updating, such as the references from the 2001 Census, to be included in the 
Proposed Modifications.   

  
6.3 Additional Detailed Wording Changes 

 
Various wording changes, primarily referring to updating of material or amplifying on 
matters previously recommended  by the Inspector and reported to the Panel, have been 
included under the following headingsion:- 
- Introduction – General – definition of ‘sustainable’ (Page 1 of Schedule) 
- Population Context (Page 2 of Schedule) 
- SD1: Quality of Design (Page 5 of Schedule) 
- ST1: Land Uses and the Transport Network & Paras 2.64-2.65 (Page 5 of 

Schedule) 
- EP7 and Paras 3.17-3.19 (Page 8 of Schedule) 
- EP10 and Para 3.31 (Page 8 of Schedule) 
- Paragraph 4.20 (Page 15 of Schedule) 
- D5 and Paras 4.35 and 4.37 (Page 15 of Schedule) 
- D25 – additional wording to be added to reasoned justification (Page 17 of 

Schedule) 
- Para 7.18 (Page 24 of Schedule) 
- EM4 and Para 7.26 (Page 24 of Schedule) 
- EM5 and Paras 7.27-7-32 (Page 26 of Schedule) 

 
7. Consultation 
 

52



7.1 The Council’s Proposed Modifications, together with the Statement of Decisions, will be 
placed on deposit in the near future.  In preparing these, the GLA and GOL have been 
consulted, and Counsel has commented on the major proposed changes. 

 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 Costs associated with the procedures for adopting the replacement HUDP can be met 

from existing budgets.  No other financial comments. 
 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 No comments. 
 
10. Conclusions and next stages 
 
10.1 Deposit of the Proposed Modifications should represent the last major deposit stage in 

the process towards adopting the Replacement HUDP. Again the opportunity is afforded 
for organisations and individuals to make objections to, or statements of support for, any 
of the changes put forward by the Council.  The Council will consider any representations 
received, and decide whether there is a need to re-open the Inquiry. 

 
11.  Background Papers  
 
11.1 UDPAP Report – 12 November 2003 – Consideration of Inspector’s Report on the Public 

Local Inquiry 
 
12. Authors 
 
12.1 Sukhpreet Seyan extension 2456, sukhi.seyan@harrow.gov.uk 

Dennis Varcoe ext 2460, dennis.varcoe@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 
 

53



54

This page is intentionally left blank



 
1

A
G

EN
D

A
 IT

EM
 9

- A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 
  

• 
Th

e 
w

or
di

ng
 s

tr
uc

k-
th

ro
ug

h 
in

 th
e 

re
po

rt
 s

ho
w

s 
po

lic
y 

an
d/

or
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 d
el

et
io

ns
 a

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 th

e 
In

qu
iry

 In
sp

ec
to

r i
n 

hi
s 

re
po

rt
. 

• 
Th

e 
un

de
rli

ne
d 

w
or

di
ng

 s
ho

w
s 

ne
w

 w
or

di
ng

 o
r r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t w

or
di

ng
 a

s 
ei

th
er

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 th
e 

In
qu

iry
 In

sp
ec

to
r o

r a
dd

iti
on

s 
m

ad
e 

to
 re

fle
ct

 
ne

w
 p

ol
ic

y 
w

or
di

ng
 

• 
W

he
re

 a
 c

rit
er

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
tr

uc
k-

th
ro

ug
h 

in
 P

ol
ic

y,
 c

on
se

qu
en

tia
l a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

le
tte

r o
r n

um
be

r o
f r

em
ai

ni
ng

 c
rit

er
ia

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e.

  
 IN

TR
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

 
 U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
Pa

ra
 

N
o.

 

I R
 

R
ef

. 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

In
tro

du
ct

io
n 

G
en

er
al

 –
 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f 

“s
us

ta
in

ab
le

” 
or

 
“s

us
ta

in
ab

ilit
y”

 

15
 

D
ef

in
iti

on
: 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

is
 a

 c
on

ce
pt

 th
at

 a
im

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 la
nd

 u
se

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
 c

re
at

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n:

-  
 

1.
 

ec
on

om
ic

 w
el

l b
ei

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 e

co
no

m
ic

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
es

,  
2.

 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 a
 c

oh
es

iv
e 

so
ci

et
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
, h

el
pi

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 
he

lp
 th

em
se

lv
es

, t
hu

s 
be

co
m

in
g 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
m

ai
ns

tre
am

 o
f s

oc
ie

ty
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ci
ng

 th
ei

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ith

ou
t c

om
pr

om
is

in
g 

th
e 

na
tu

ra
l w

or
ld

. 
3.

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t a

nd
 n

at
ur

al
 s

ys
te

m
s.

  
4.

 
pr

ud
en

t u
se

 o
f t

he
 g

iv
en

 s
to

ck
 o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
  s

uc
h 

as
 e

ne
rg

y,
 w

at
er

, t
re

es
, s

oi
l q

ua
lit

y 
et

c.
 a

nd
 a

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

w
ar

ds
 g

lo
ba

l w
ar

m
in

g.
 

 
Th

e 
lin

k 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

es
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 im
po

rta
nt

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
ll 

ov
er

la
p,

 a
nd

 th
us

 m
ix

ed
 u

se
 s

ch
em

es
, m

ix
ed

 
te

nu
re

, s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

t n
et

w
or

ks
, r

en
ew

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

in
st

al
la

tio
ns

 e
tc

 a
re

 a
ll 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

be
 p

ro
m

ot
ed

 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ilit

y 
is

 b
ei

ng
 s

ec
ur

ed
. 

 Th
es

e 
fo

ur
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
at

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
tim

e 
if 

w
e 

ar
e 

to
 ‘m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 
of

 th
e 

pr
es

en
t w

ith
ou

t c
om

pr
om

is
in

g 
th

e 
ab

ilit
y 

of
 fu

tu
re

 g
en

er
at

io
ns

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
ir 

ow
n 

ne
ed

s’
. 

(T
he

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 is

 to
 g

o 
af

te
r t

he
 4

th
 s

en
te

nc
e 

in
 p

ar
a 

2.
1 

in
 th

e 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
ch

ap
te

r o
f t

he
 P

la
n)

. 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
   

          

55



 
2

   PA
R

T 
1 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 2

 –
 S

TR
A

TE
G

IC
 C

O
N

TE
XT

 A
N

D
 P

A
R

T 
1 

PO
LI

C
IE

S 
 U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
Pa

ra
 

N
o.

 

I R
 

R
ef

. 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

Ke
y 

D
ia

gr
am

  
(P

ag
e 

10
) 

17
 

  

KE
Y 

D
IA

G
R

AM
-In

cl
ud

e 
Si

te
s 

of
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 Im

po
rta

nc
e 

fo
r N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
Ke

y 
D

ia
gr

am
.  

 
Ac

ce
pt

 In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
co

nt
ex

t p
ar

as
 

2.
18

-2
.2

1 
 Pa

ra
 2

.1
8 

        Pa
ra

 2
.1

9 
         Pa

ra
 2

.2
0 

     Pa
ra

 2
.2

1 
  

11
 

PO
PU

LA
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
TE

XT
 

2.
18

 S
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 a

re
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

in
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

co
m

po
si

tio
n 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

  
W

ith
 a

 r
es

id
en

t 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
21

3,
10

0,
 t

he
 T

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 H
ar

ro
w

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
st

ea
di

ly
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 in
 t

he
 la

st
 t

en
 y

ea
rs

. 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

19
91

 C
en

su
s .

 T
he

 2
00

1 
C

en
su

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

 r
es

id
en

t 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 2

06
,8

00
, 

bu
t 

th
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 2

00
2 

M
id

-Y
ea

r E
st

im
at

e 
fo

r H
ar

ro
w

 re
co

rd
s 

a 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ne
ar

ly
 5

,0
00

 h
ig

he
r, 

at
 2

11
,6

00
.  

Th
is

 la
tte

r f
ig

ur
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 fo
r 

un
de

r 
en

um
er

at
io

n 
in

 t
he

 2
00

1 
C

en
su

s.
  

Pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 (

cu
rre

nt
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
20

01
 C

en
su

s 
fig

ur
es

) 
sh

ow
 t

ha
t 

H
ar

ro
w

’s
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
co

ul
d 

fu
rth

er
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
as

 m
uc

h 
as

 1
4  

 5
%

 in
 th

e 
15

 1
4 

ye
ar

s 
up

 to
 2

01
6.

  
W

hi
ls

t t
he

 T
he

 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
of

 re
tir

em
en

t a
ge

 is
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

m
uc

h 
fa

ll 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d,

. t
he

 
m

os
t  

O
th

er
 n

ot
ew

or
th

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
in

 th
e 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

ag
ed

 1
5-

29
 a

nd
 4

5-
64

.  
A 

co
rre

sp
on

di
ng

 in
cr

ea
se

 ri
se

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
is

 a
ls

o 
ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
.  

In
 1

99
1,

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
75

,5
00

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

in
 H

ar
ro

w
, i

n 
20

01
 it

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
st

im
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

ar
ou

nd
 8

4,
00

0 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

, r
is

in
g 

pe
rh

ap
s 

to
 

10
3,

00
0 

by
 2

01
6 

ris
in

g 
to

 o
ve

r 7
9,

10
0 

by
 2

00
1.

 
 2.

19
 D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 c

ha
ng

es
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
so

 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 is

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

  
In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, t

he
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 
w

ith
 a

n 
on

-g
oi

ng
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 s
in

gl
e 

pe
rs

on
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 m
ul

ti-
pe

rs
on

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 h
ou

si
ng

 
po

lic
ie

s.
  I

t i
s 

lik
el

y 
th

at
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

, t
yp

e 
an

d 
si

ze
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ec
ia

bl
y 

di
ffe

re
nt

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

itu
at

io
n,

 i
f 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

re
 t

o 
be

 m
or

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

  R
es

ul
ts

 fr
om

 re
ce

nt
 H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 a
nd

 H
ou

si
ng

 C
on

di
tio

n 
Su

rv
ey

s 
ha

ve
 in

fo
rm

ed
 th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 th

e  
fu

rth
er

 r
es

ul
ts

 o
f f

ro
m

 th
e 

20
01

 C
en

su
s 

an
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 a
nd

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
, 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

20
02

 M
id

-Y
ea

r E
st

im
at

es
 w

ill 
su

pp
le

m
en

t t
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 d
ue

 c
ou

rs
e.

 
 2.

20
 T

he
 m

ul
ti-

cu
ltu

ra
l s

oc
ie

ty
 in

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
liv

e 
is

 w
el

l r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
.  

H
ar

ro
w

 is
 c

ul
tu

ra
lly

 d
iv

er
se

, 
w

ith
 

O
ov

er
 2

6 
41

%
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 w

er
e 

of
 n

on
-w

hi
te

 e
th

ni
c 

or
ig

in
 in

 1
99

1 
20

01
.  

In
 fo

ur
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

’s
 2

1 
w

ar
ds

 o
ve

r 5
0%

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
fro

m
 n

on
-w

hi
te

 m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

gr
ou

ps
. 

an
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

 (
LR

C
, 

19
99

) 
sh

ow
 t

ha
t 

th
is

 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

is
 n

ow
 li

ke
ly

 to
 h

av
e 

ris
en

 to
 3

8%
, a

nd
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 r
is

e 
ov

er
 th

e 
Pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
 C

om
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
po

lic
ie

s,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, n

ee
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
di

ve
rs

e 
cu

ltu
ra

l b
ac

kg
ro

un
ds

 a
nd

 a
sp

ira
tio

ns
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

’s
 re

si
de

nt
s.

 
 2.

21
 In

 1
99

1 
20

01
 6

5.
8 

68
.5

%
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
ge

d 
16

-7
4 

in
 H

ar
ro

w
 w

er
e 

ec
on

om
ic

al
ly

 a
ct

iv
e 

(in
 w

or
k 

or
 s

ee
ki

ng
 w

or
k)

 –
 n

ea
rly

 1
07

,0
00

 1
03

,0
00

 p
eo

pl
e.

 a
nd

 W
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 to
 ju

st
 u

nd
er

 
67

%
 b

y 
20

16
, i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l p
op

ul
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
. t

he
 n

um
be

r o
f e

co
no

m
ic

al
ly

 a
ct

iv
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
m

ay
 ri

se
 

U
pd

at
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 re

fle
ct

 2
00

1 
C

en
su

s 
re

su
lts

 
ad

de
d 

56



 
3

       

by
 1

8,
00

0.
  W

ith
 a

ro
un

d 
55

,0
00

 o
ve

r 6
5,

00
0 

jo
bs

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 m
or

e 
th

an
 7

,0
00

 7
,5

00
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 (A
nn

ua
l 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

Su
rv

ey
, 

19
97

 B
us

in
es

s 
In

qu
iry

, 
20

01
), 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ro
po

rti
on

s 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

lre
ad

y 
w

or
k 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h.

  
An

 i
nc

re
as

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

al
ly

 a
ct

iv
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 c

ou
ld

 l
ea

d 
to

 h
ig

he
r 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
ou

t-c
om

m
ut

in
g,

 w
hi

ch
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

tra
ns

po
rt 

po
lic

ie
s 

w
ill 

se
ek

 t
o 

ad
dr

es
s.

  
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
le

ve
ls

 i
n 

H
ar

ro
w

 a
re

 
tra

di
tio

na
lly

 lo
w

er
 t

ha
n 

in
 m

an
y 

ot
he

r 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

s,
 w

ith
 a

 c
ur

re
nt

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

2.
4  

3.
1%

 (
O

N
S,

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
0  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3)
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

.  
Th

is
 c

om
pa

re
s 

to
 ra

te
s 

of
 5

.5
 6

.7
%

 in
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

Br
en

t, 
3.

7 
4.

2%
 in

 
Ea

lin
g 

an
d 

3.
1  

4.
1%

 in
 B

ar
ne

t. 
Pa

ra
 2

.3
5 

 
                 

25
 

2.
35

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

th
e 

id
ea

 o
f e

ns
ur

in
g 

a 
be

tte
r q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

 fo
r e

ve
ry

on
e,

 n
ow

 a
nd

 fo
r g

en
er

at
io

ns
 

to
 c

om
e.

  
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
is

 m
us

t 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
ca

rry
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 
gl

ob
al

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
ec

o-
sy

st
em

s.
  

Ke
y 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
is

 w
ill 

be
 fi

nd
in

g 
w

ay
s 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

an
d 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 n

at
ur

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
em

. 
 I

n 
or

de
r 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
m

ak
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n,
 i

t 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t's
 'e

co
lo

gi
ca

l f
oo

tp
rin

t',
 th

at
 is

 it
s 

w
id

er
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

In
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

bu
ilt

 fo
rm

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
se

cu
re

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
se

 o
f 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

lif
es

ty
le

s 
an

d 
co

m
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e,
 s

oc
ia

lly
 in

cl
us

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. W
hi

le
 it

 is
 c

le
ar

ly
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 s

om
e 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ai
r, 

la
nd

 a
nd

 w
at

er
, a

nd
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

an
 im

pr
ov

ed
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

 fo
r r

es
id

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
re

qu
ire

s 
th

at
 th

is
 is

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

at
 e

ve
ry

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

, 
th

e 
be

st
 t

ha
t 

ca
n 

be
 h

op
ed

 f
or

 o
f 

no
n 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 c
oa

l 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

m
in

er
al

s 
is

 th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 c
on

se
rv

ed
 o

r 
th

ei
r 

ra
te

 o
f d

ep
le

tio
n 

is
 r

ed
uc

ed
. T

he
 p

at
te

rn
 a

nd
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 u
se

s 
in

flu
en

ce
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 tr

av
el

, a
nd

 th
e 

m
od

e 
of

 tr
an

sp
or

t u
se

d,
 a

nd
 h

as
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pa
ct

s.
  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

th
er

ef
or

e 
se

ek
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

th
at

 s
ec

ur
es

 a
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 u
se

s 
th

at
 r

ed
uc

es
 t

he
 

ne
ed

 to
 tr

av
el

, t
he

re
by

 s
av

in
g 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 ti

m
e,

 re
du

ci
ng

 p
ol

lu
tio

n 
an

d 
he

lp
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 g
oo

d 
ai

r q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 

ta
ke

s 
du

e 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

tre
nd

s.
 W

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 l
oc

al
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, 

so
m

e 
si

te
s 

w
ill 

al
so

 b
e 

‘n
on

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

’ o
r 

in
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t. 
Fu

rth
er

m
or

e,
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

m
en

t 
w

ill 
be

 g
iv

en
 t

o 
m

od
es

 o
f 

tra
ve

l, 
su

ch
 a

s 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g,
 w

hi
ch

 re
du

ce
 re

lia
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
m

ot
or

 c
ar

.  
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
               

Pa
ra

 2
.3

7 
  

25
 

2.
37

 T
he

 l
oc

at
io

n,
 d

es
ig

n 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
ilt

 f
or

m
) 

an
d 

la
yo

ut
 o

f 
bu

ild
in

gs
 s

ho
ul

d 
m

in
im

is
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
en

er
gy

 a
nd

 w
at

er
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, a
nd

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f w
as

te
 a

nd
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

.  
N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

an
 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 n
at

ur
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 lo
ca

l b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

. U
se

 o
f s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 te

ch
ni

qu
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 u

se
 o

f l
oc

al
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
di

sp
os

al
 o

f w
as

te
 in

 
lin

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 p

rin
ci

pl
e,

 w
ill 

al
so

 s
ec

ur
e 

th
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

.  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

is
he

s 
to

 s
ee

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
in

 a
ll 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
lo

w
 e

ne
rg

y 
sc

he
m

es
, 

an
d 

w
ill 

se
ek

 
de

m
on

st
ra

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 e
xe

m
pl

ify
in

g 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 o
f s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

es
ig

n,
 u

se
 a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

  D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
w

ar
ds

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ilit

y 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 p
ro

vi
de

 lo
ca

l e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 u
se

 lo
ca

l l
ab

ou
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

.  
M

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 la
nd

 a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
fle

xi
bl

e 
fo

rm
s 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

ha
t c

an
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

du
al

 o
r m

ul
ti-

us
e 

or
 fu

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 o
f u

se
, n

ew
 te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 o

r o
th

er
 c

ha
ng

ed
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.  
 

     

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

57



 
4

 
SE

P5
: 

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 

Fe
at

ur
es

  

27
 

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 F

ea
tu

re
s 

SE
P5

 
TH

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

W
IL

L 
SE

EK
 

TH
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 
EN

H
A

N
C

EM
EN

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
FO

LL
O

W
IN

G
 

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

A
L 

FE
A

TU
R

ES
:- 

 
A

) 
A

R
EA

S 
O

F 
SP

EC
IA

L 
C

H
A

R
A

C
TE

R
; 

B
) 

G
R

EE
N

 B
EL

T;
 

C
) 

M
ET

R
O

PO
LI

TA
N

 O
PE

N
 L

A
N

D
; 

D
) 

G
R

EE
N

 C
H

A
IN

S;
 

E)
 

PU
B

LI
C

 O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E,
 H

IS
TO

R
IC

 P
A

R
K

S 
A

N
D

 G
A

R
D

EN
S;

 
F)

 
PR

IV
A

TE
 O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E;

 
G

) 
ED

U
C

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E;
 

H
) 

A
LL

O
TM

EN
TS

; 
I) 

C
EM

ET
ER

IE
S;

 
J)

 
IN

FO
R

M
A

L 
O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E;

 
K

) 
TR

EE
 M

A
SS

ES
 A

N
D

 S
PI

N
ES

; 
L)

 
R

EA
R

 G
A

R
D

EN
 IN

TE
R

FA
C

ES
; 

M
) 

A
R

EA
S 

EX
H

IB
IT

IN
G

 A
 H

IG
H

 Q
U

A
LI

TY
 O

F 
ST

R
EE

TS
ID

E 
G

R
EE

N
N

ES
S 

A
N

D
 F

O
R

EC
O

U
R

T 
G

R
EE

N
ER

Y;
 A

N
D

 
N

) 
W

A
TE

R
C

O
U

R
SE

S,
 R

IV
ER

 C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
S,

 W
ET

LA
N

D
S 

A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 W
A

TE
R

 F
EA

TU
R

ES
; A

N
D

 
O

)  
   

   
 S

IT
ES

 O
F 

N
A

TU
R

E 
C

O
N

SE
R

VA
TI

O
N

 IM
PO

R
TA

N
C

E.
 

O
) 

  
 S

SS
I’S

 A
N

D
 O

TH
ER

 S
IT

ES
 O

F 
N

A
TU

R
E 

C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 I

M
PO

R
TA

N
C

E,
 N

A
M

EL
Y 

TH
E 

C
O

U
N

TR
YS

ID
E 

C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 

A
R

EA
, 

SI
TE

S 
O

F 
LO

C
A

L 
A

N
D

 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 

IM
PO

R
TA

N
C

E 
A

N
D

 S
IT

ES
 P

EN
D

IN
G

 S
U

C
H

 D
ES

IG
N

A
TI

O
N

.  
 

IN
 C

O
N

SI
D

ER
IN

G
 P

R
O

PO
SA

LS
 W

H
IC

H
 A

FF
EC

T 
A

 S
TR

U
C

TU
R

A
L 

FE
A

TU
R

E,
 A

N
 A

SS
ES

SM
EN

T 
W

IL
L 

B
E 

U
N

D
ER

TA
K

EN
 O

F 
TH

E 
C

O
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 T
H

E 
SI

TE
 M

A
K

ES
 T

O
 T

H
E 

D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 O
F 

LA
N

D
 U

SE
S 

A
N

D
 

PH
YS

IC
A

L 
C

H
A

R
A

C
TE

R
 O

F 
TH

E 
LO

C
A

LI
TY

 A
N

D
 T

O
 T

H
E 

C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 V

A
LU

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
C

A
TE

G
O

R
Y 

O
F 

TH
E 

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

A
L 

FE
A

TU
R

E 
IN

 W
H

IC
H

 IT
 F

A
LL

S.
 

      

  

58



 
5

 
SD

1:
 Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
D

es
ig

n 
 

28
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 D

es
ig

n 
SD

1 
 T

H
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
SE

EK
 R

EQ
U

IR
E 

A
 H

IG
H

 A
N

 A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

 O
F 

D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
 

LA
YO

U
T 

IN
 A

LL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

R
EQ

U
IR

IN
G

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
R

EQ
U

IR
E 

TH
A

T 
A

LL
 

SU
C

H
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

M
A

K
ES

 A
 P

O
SI

TI
VE

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 T

O
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
A

IM
 O

F 
IM

PR
O

VI
N

G
 T

H
E 

Q
U

A
LI

TY
 

O
F 

TH
E 

B
U

IL
T 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T,

 
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
FA

C
IL

IT
A

TI
N

G
 

A
C

C
ES

S,
 

ES
PE

C
IA

LL
Y 

B
Y 

SU
ST

A
IN

A
B

LE
 M

O
D

ES
, A

N
D

 E
N

H
A

N
C

IN
G

 T
H

E 
C

H
A

R
A

C
TE

R
 A

N
D

 A
PP

EA
R

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
in

 
pa

rt.
 A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
w

or
di

ng
 re

fe
rri

ng
 to

 
se

ek
in

g 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
de

si
gn

 in
 a

ll 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ou
ld

 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

or
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

or
di

ng
 

w
ith

 P
PG

1 
an

d 
PP

G
12

. 
ST

1:
 L

an
d 

U
se

s 
an

d 
th

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

N
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
pa

ra
s 

2.
64

 a
nd

 
2.

65
 

            Pa
ra

 2
.6

4 
            

30
 

La
nd

 U
se

s 
an

d 
th

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
t N

et
w

or
k 

ST
1 

PR
O

PO
SA

LS
 F

O
R

 T
H

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

ED
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
LA

N
D

 A
N

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S 

IN
 

TH
E 

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 M

U
ST

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

PO
LI

C
IE

S 
W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

H
A

R
R

O
W

 L
O

C
A

L 
TR

A
N

SP
O

R
T 

ST
R

A
TE

G
Y 

A
N

D
 IN

 P
A

R
TI

C
U

LA
R

, W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 C
R

IT
ER

IA
:- 

 
A

) 
M

A
JO

R
 T

R
IP

-G
EN

ER
A

TI
N

G
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
TS

 S
H

O
U

LD
 B

E 
LO

C
A

TE
D

 W
H

ER
E 

TH
ER

E 
IS

 
G

O
O

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T,

 C
YC

LE
 A

N
D

 P
ED

ES
TR

IA
N

 A
C

C
ES

S;
 

 B
) 

N
EW

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

TS
 W

H
IC

H
 E

XP
A

N
D

 T
H

E 
R

A
N

G
E 

O
F 

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S,

 I
N

C
LU

D
IN

G
 L

O
C

A
L 

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S,

 T
H

A
T 

C
A

N
 B

E 
VI

SI
TE

D
 IN

 O
N

E 
TR

IP
 W

IL
L 

B
E 

EN
C

O
U

R
A

G
ED

 T
O

 L
O

C
A

TE
 IN

 
TO

W
N

 C
EN

TR
ES

; 
 

C
) 

M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 A

N
D

 H
IG

H
ER

 D
EN

SI
TY

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
W

IL
L 

B
E 

EN
C

O
U

R
A

G
ED

 T
O

 L
O

C
A

TE
 

W
H

ER
E 

PU
B

LI
C

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T 

A
C

C
ES

S 
IS

 G
O

O
D

. 
 

D
)  

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 T

O
 T

H
E 

PU
B

LI
C

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T 

N
ET

W
O

R
K

 W
O

U
LD

 B
E 

FA
C

IL
IT

A
TE

D
 T

O
 

M
EE

T 
TH

E 
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 T

R
A

VE
L 

D
EM

A
N

D
. 

 2.
64

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il's

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ai
m

 is
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

m
od

es
 o

f t
ra

ns
po

rt 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

ca
r a

nd
 th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f j

ou
rn

ey
s 

m
ad

e.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 p

ol
ic

y 
w

hi
ch

 
se

ek
s 

to
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
 m

aj
or

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 a
re

as
 o

f g
oo

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt 

St
ra

te
gy

 w
ill 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 
se

t 
ou

t 
co

m
pl

em
en

ts
 i

ts
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r 
ta

ck
lin

g 
th

e 
gr

ow
in

g 
co

ng
es

tio
n,

 p
ol

lu
tio

n 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

da
m

ag
e 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
m

ot
or

is
ed

 t
ra

ffi
c.

  
,s

et
 o

ut
 in

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

St
ra

te
gy

. 
Th

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 f

or
m

s 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

on
 

w
hi

ch
 b

id
s 

fo
r t

ra
ns

po
rt 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
an

nu
al

ly
 to

 c
en

tra
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
Th

es
e 

bi
ds

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 a

nn
ua

l L
oc

al
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 (
LI

P)
. D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
tim

e 
pe

rio
d 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 th

e 
H

U
D

P,
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

su
bm

itt
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

LI
P 

bi
d 

fo
r f

un
di

ng
 w

ill 
va

ry
, a

s 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

ar
is

e.
 It

 is
 w

ill 
be

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 

th
e 

la
nd

 u
se

 e
ffe

ct
s  

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f m

aj
or

  
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

fu
lly

 a
ss

es
se

d 
an

d 
in

 a
cc

or
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

H
U

D
P’

s 
po

lic
ie

s,
 a

nd
 c

on
ve

rs
el

y,
 t

ha
t 

an
y 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
do

 n
ot

 p
re

ju
di

ce
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 t

he
 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 in

 th
e 

LI
P,

 p
la

nn
ed

 o
r u

nd
er

w
ay

. T
he

 p
ol

ic
y 

al
so

 s
up

po
rts

 th
e 

w
id

er
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

ai
m

s 
of

 tr
af

fic
 

re
du

ct
io

n,
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
en

su
rin

g 
th

e 
vi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ilit

y 
of

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s.
  

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

  

59



 
6

 Pa
ra

 2
.6

5 
 2.

65
 T

he
 g

ui
di

ng
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 fo
r t

he
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
ar

e 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

is
 th

e 
po

lic
y.

 T
he

y 
ar

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e  

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
en

tra
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t g
ui

da
nc

e.
 It

 s
ho

ul
d 

en
ab

le
 M

m
aj

or
 tr

ip
-g

en
er

at
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

ar
e 

th
os

e 
w

he
re

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 w
ill 

vi
si

t 
th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
to

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 a

 m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
w

ay
 a

nd
 

w
ith

ou
t d

et
rim

en
ta

l e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
ca

us
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 in

 e
ith

er
 tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

s,
 o

n 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ig

hw
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
or

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t n
et

w
or

k.
 a

ro
un

d 
it.

 T
he

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 m
ig

ht
 in

cl
ud

e 
la

rg
e 

re
ta

il,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

le
is

ur
e 

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
  T

he
 lo

ca
tio

n 
gr

ou
pi

ng
 to

ge
th

er
 o

f c
om

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

- 
w

he
th

er
 i

n 
H

ar
ro

w
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 C

en
tre

, 
or

 i
n 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 C

en
tre

s 
- 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 s

ev
er

al
 j

ou
rn

ey
 

pu
rp

os
es

 t
o 

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t 
in

 o
ne

 t
rip

. 
G

oo
d 

lo
ca

l 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ca
n 

he
lp

 t
o 

sh
or

te
n 

di
st

an
ce

s 
tra

ve
lle

d,
 a

nd
 s

ho
rt 

di
st

an
ce

s 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

w
al

ke
d 

or
 c

yc
le

d.
 T

he
 c

ar
ef

ul
 s

iti
ng

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

tra
ns

po
rt 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
is

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 l

an
d 

us
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
an

 m
ak

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 
m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h,

 w
he

re
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f e

ve
ry

da
y 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t i

s 
m

in
im

is
ed

.   
 

SH
1 

H
ou

si
ng

 
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

d 

36
 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
  

 

SH
2 

: H
ou

si
ng

 
Ty

pe
s 

an
d 

M
ix

 
37

 
Su

bj
ec

t t
o 

de
ta

ile
d 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
in

 a
no

th
er

 re
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l o
n 

5 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

04
. I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

in
 th

is
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

w
ill 

be
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l’s

 D
ec

is
io

ns
. 

 

 

SE
M

1:
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
St

ra
te

gy
  

 

38
 

Ad
d 

to
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

1:
 G

lo
ss

ar
y 

of
 T

er
m

s:
 ‘

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n:
 A

n 
ho

lis
tic

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 a
re

as
 

w
hi

ch
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 h

ig
h 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
po

or
 h

ou
si

ng
, s

oc
ia

l e
xc

lu
si

on
, e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

de
cl

in
e,

 h
ig

h 
in

ci
de

nc
e 

of
 il

l h
ea

lth
, c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 a

re
as

. P
ro

bl
em

s 
ar

e 
ta

ck
le

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
in

te
r-d

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

an
d 

in
te

r-a
ge

nc
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

.’ 
 

 
  

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

60



 
7

Pa
ra

 2
.9

0 
39

 
2.

90
 T

he
 te

rm
 “T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
s”

 d
en

ot
es

, c
ol

le
ct

iv
el

y,
 H

ar
ro

w
  M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 C

en
tre

, t
he

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
en

tre
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
C

en
tre

s.
 T

he
 h

ie
ra

rc
hy

 is
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
th

e 
on

e 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 R
PG

3,
 a

nd
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

th
e 

dr
af

t 
Lo

nd
on

 P
la

n  
LP

AC
 1

99
6 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 A

dv
ic

e 
on

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
s.

 H
ar

ro
w

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 C
en

tre
, 

D
is

tri
ct

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 C

en
tre

s 
an

d 
lo

ca
l p

ar
ad

es
/s

ho
ps

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

m
aj

or
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r s
ho

pp
in

g 
an

d 
of

fic
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h.
  T

he
 h

ie
ra

rc
hy

 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 th

e 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

M
ap

.  
Th

e 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 h

ie
ra

rc
hy

 is
 n

ot
 a

 r
ig

id
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 d

iff
er

in
g 

si
ze

s 
an

d 
st

re
ng

th
s 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 c
en

tre
s.

 It
 is

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
po

si
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

en
tre

 in
 th

e 
hi

er
ar

ch
y 

m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 ti

m
e,

 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
he

al
th

 o
f i

ts
 re

ta
il 

an
d 

ot
he

r t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 fu
nc

tio
ns

, o
r a

s 
th

ey
 a

da
pt

 to
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 tr
en

ds
 a

nd
 

ro
le

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
re

gu
la

rly
 m

on
ito

rs
 t

he
 h

ea
lth

 o
f 

al
l 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s,
 i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 g

ai
n 

ea
rly

 w
ar

ni
ng

 o
f 

an
y 

pr
ob

le
m

s,
 a

nd
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

em
. H

ow
ev

er
, a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 c
en

tre
 c

ou
ld

 s
til

l o
cc

ur
, a

fte
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
co

ns
id

er
 r

ec
la

ss
ify

in
g 

a 
ce

nt
re

 if
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l t
o 

its
 v

ita
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ilit

y.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l u
se

 to
 ta

ke
 th

e 
pl

ac
e 

of
 s

om
e 

re
ta

il 
un

its
 o

nc
e 

a 
pe

rm
an

en
t a

nd
 s

tru
ct

ur
al

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

re
ta

il 
el

em
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

os
es

 to
 

ke
ep

 th
e 

hi
er

ar
ch

y 
un

de
r r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 m

od
ify

 it
 if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
.  

       

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

ch
an

ge
 

w
ill 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

po
lic

y 
bu

t t
he

 u
se

 o
f  

th
e 

w
or

d 
‘lo

ca
l’ 

m
ay

 
gi

ve
 th

e 
im

pr
es

si
on

 
th

at
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ill 
be

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

 
ce

rta
in

 c
at

eg
or

y.
 A

 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 
em

br
ac

e 
w

id
er

 
pu

bl
ic

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

in
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pr
oc

es
s.

 It
 is

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

w
or

d 
‘, 

in
cl

ud
in

g…
’ 

be
 a

dd
ed

 in
 th

e 
in

sp
ec

to
r’s

 w
or

di
ng

 
af

te
r t

he
 w

or
d 

‘c
on

su
lta

tio
n’

. 

Pa
ra

 2
.1

00
 

15
5 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

un
de

r t
he

 In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fo

r P
ol

ic
y 

R
5 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l 

on
 5

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

4.
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

 

             

61



 
8

PA
R

T 
2 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 3

 –
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E 

 U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
 N

o.
 

I R
 

R
ef

. 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Pa

ra
 3

.4
   

          Pa
ra

 3
.4

a 

45
 

3.
4 

Li
nk

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y,
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
ha

ve
 lo

ng
 b

ee
n 

re
co

gn
is

ed
. P

la
nn

in
g 

ha
s 

an
 im

po
rta

nt
 ro

le
 to

 p
la

y 
in

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
w

at
er

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
by

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
th

at
 e

ns
ur

es
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

do
es

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
ad

ve
rs

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 w
at

er
co

ur
se

s,
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

or
 le

ad
 to

 fl
oo

di
ng

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
es

 a
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y,

 q
ua

lit
y,

 u
se

 a
nd

 d
ra

in
ag

e.
  F

lo
od

in
g 

ca
n 

en
da

ng
er

 li
ve

s 
an

d 
ca

us
e 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 p

ro
pe

rty
.  

PP
G

25
: D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 F

lo
od

 R
is

k 
(C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
dr

af
t -

 2
00

1)
 e

m
ph

as
is

es
 th

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ro

le
 o

f l
an

d 
us

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 in

 re
du

ci
ng

 fl
oo

d 
ris

k,
 b

y 
gu

id
in

g,
 re

gu
la

tin
g 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
llin

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
o 

th
at

 it
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
re

as
e 

flo
od

 ri
sk

. A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

ad
vi

se
d 

to
 a

pp
ly

 th
e 

pr
ec

au
tio

na
ry

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
to

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
an

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r h
ow

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 fl

oo
d 

ris
k 

ov
er

 th
e 

lif
et

im
e 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. I
t i

s 
al

so
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
ed

 th
at

 w
at

er
co

ur
se

s 
pe

rfo
rm

 im
po

rta
nt

 ro
le

s 
in

 n
at

ur
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ac

tin
g 

as
 G

re
en

 C
ha

in
s 

an
d 

G
re

en
 C

or
rid

or
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

be
in

g 
w

ild
lif

e 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 in

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
rig

ht
. 

 3.
4a

 W
at

er
co

ur
se

s,
 r

iv
er

 c
or

rid
or

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 f

lo
od

pl
ai

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
 i

m
po

rta
nt

 l
in

ki
ng

 h
ab

ita
ts

 t
o 

bo
th

 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 w
ild

lif
e 

al
ik

e.
  A

s 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 th
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
n 

es
se

nt
ia

l f
un

ct
io

n 
in

 b
ot

h 
co

nv
ey

in
g 

w
at

er
 d

ur
in

g 
no

rm
al

 fl
ow

s 
an

d 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
in

g 
an

d 
at

te
nu

at
in

g 
flo

od
 w

at
er

s.
  

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

 

EP
7 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 
3.

17
 

                      

46
 

R
en

ew
ab

le
 E

ne
rg

y  
EP

7 
TH

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 W

IL
L 

EN
C

O
U

R
A

G
E 

R
EN

EW
A

B
LE

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
SC

H
EM

ES
, 

SU
C

H
 A

S 
PA

SS
IV

E 
A

N
D

 
A

C
TI

VE
 S

O
LA

R
 S

C
H

EM
ES

, A
N

D
 S

M
A

LL
-S

C
A

LE
 W

IN
D

PO
W

ER
 A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

 R
EN

EW
A

B
LE

 
TE

C
H

N
O

LO
G

IE
S 

B
Y:

- 
 A

) R
EQ

U
IR

IN
G

 N
EW

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

TS
 T

O
 B

E 
D

ES
IG

N
ED

 IN
 S

U
C

H
 A

 W
A

Y 
A

S 
TO

 M
A

XI
M

IS
E 

TH
E 

PO
TE

N
TI

A
L 

FO
R

 P
A

SS
IV

E 
SO

LA
R

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
A

N
D

 N
A

TU
R

A
L 

VE
N

TI
LA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

, W
H

ER
E 

PR
A

C
TI

C
A

B
LE

, 
TO

 A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
TE

 F
U

TU
R

E 
IN

ST
A

LL
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
SO

LA
R

 P
A

N
EL

S 
 T

O
 IN

C
O

R
PO

R
A

TE
 P

H
O

TO
VO

LT
A

IC
S 

O
R

 A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
TE

 T
H

EI
R

 F
U

TU
R

E 
IN

ST
A

LL
A

TI
O

N
; 

 
B

) S
U

PP
O

R
TI

N
G

 IN
N

O
VA

TI
VE

 P
R

O
PO

SA
LS

 A
N

D
 D

EM
O

N
ST

R
A

TI
O

N
 S

C
H

EM
ES

;  
 C

) P
R

O
VI

D
IN

G
 A

D
VI

C
E,

 IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 S
U

PP
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 G

U
ID

A
N

C
E 

A
N

D
 A

D
VI

C
E 

O
N

 G
R

A
N

TS
,

 

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 T
H

ER
E 

IS
 N

O
 U

N
A

C
C

EP
TA

B
LE

 IM
PA

C
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
O

R
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

A
M

EN
IT

Y.
 

 TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
R

EQ
U

IR
E 

N
EW

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

TS
 T

O
 B

E 
SO

 D
ES

IG
N

ED
 A

S 
TO

 M
A

XI
M

IS
E 

TH
E 

PO
TE

N
TI

A
L,

 T
O

 T
H

E 
EX

TE
N

T 
TH

A
T 

TH
IS

 IS
 P

R
A

C
TI

C
A

B
LE

, V
IA

B
LE

 A
N

D
 C

A
U

SE
 N

O
 U

N
D

U
E 

H
A

R
M

 T
O

 
TH

E 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
O

R
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

A
M

EN
IT

IE
S,

 O
F 

R
EN

EW
A

B
LE

 E
N

ER
G

Y 
SC

H
EM

ES
 S

U
C

H
 A

S 
M

A
K

E 
U

SE
 O

F 
SO

LA
R

 E
N

ER
G

Y,
 P

H
O

TO
VO

LT
A

IC
S 

A
N

D
 N

A
TU

R
A

L 
VE

N
TI

LA
TI

O
N

.  
   

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
      

62



 
9

Pa
ra

 3
.1

7 
3.

17
 T

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 fo

cu
s 

on
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d,
 a

nd
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
En

er
gy

 W
hi

te
 

Pa
pe

r (
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
3)

, a
nd

 th
e 

M
ay

or
’s

 d
ra

ft 
En

er
gy

 S
tra

te
gy

 (J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

3)
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

st
ra

te
gi

es
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 a
nd

 e
m

ph
as

is
es

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r m

uc
h 

gr
ea

te
r e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

a 
gr

ow
in

g 
re

lia
nc

e/
pr

og
re

ss
io

n 
on

 re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
so

ur
ce

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
so

la
r e

ne
rg

y,
 w

in
d 

po
w

er
 a

nd
 b

io
 e

ne
rg

y 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 
U

K 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r c

ar
bo

n 
re

du
ct

io
n.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
en

er
gy

 in
st

al
la

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
to

: 
A)

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
en

er
gy

 fr
om

 th
es

e 
be

ac
on

 in
st

al
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
B)

 ra
is

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
br

oa
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
.  

 
EP

8 
an

d 
Pa

ra
 

3.
25

: E
ne

rg
y 

Su
pp

ly
 a

nd
 

G
en

er
at

io
n 

 

47
 

En
er

gy
 S

up
pl

y 
an

d 
G

en
er

at
io

n 
Po

lic
y 

EP
8 

an
d 

its
 re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d.

 
   

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

EP
10

 a
nd

 p
ar

a 
3.

31
 

       Pa
ra

 3
.3

1 
     N

ew
 P

ar
a 

  

48
 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y,
 S

up
pl

y 
an

d 
D

is
po

sa
l 

TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
N

O
T 

PE
R

M
IT

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
W

H
IC

H
 IT

 C
O

N
SI

D
ER

S 
LI

K
EL

Y 
TO

 H
A

VE
 A

N
 A

D
VE

R
SE

 
EF

FE
C

T 
O

N
 

A
)  

R
IV

ER
 C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

S,
 O

R
 

B
) 

TH
E 

W
A

TE
R

 O
R

 E
C

O
LO

G
IC

A
L 

Q
U

A
LI

TY
 O

F 
R

IV
ER

S,
 L

A
K

ES
, 

G
R

O
U

N
D

W
A

TE
R

 O
R

 O
TH

ER
 W

A
TE

R
 

A
R

EA
S,

 
W

H
ET

H
ER

 B
Y 

SU
R

FA
C

E 
O

R
 W

A
ST

E 
W

A
TE

R
 D

IS
C

H
A

R
G

E,
 D

IS
TU

R
B

A
N

C
E 

O
F 

C
O

N
TA

M
IN

A
TE

D
 L

A
N

D
, 

O
R

 O
TH

ER
 A

C
TI

VI
TY

 (I
N

C
LU

D
IN

G
 A

B
ST

R
A

C
TI

O
N

)  
 3.

31
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
th

at
 e

nh
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
w

at
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t f

or
 th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n,
 re

cr
ea

tio
n 

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

D
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ill 

be
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ei
r p

ro
po

sa
ls

 d
o 

no
t 

ha
rm

 th
e 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 ri
ve

rs
, l

ak
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 w

at
er

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 to

 ta
ke

 a
ny

 s
te

ps
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

is
. T

he
 

riv
er

 c
or

rid
or

 m
us

t b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

re
st

or
ed

 s
uc

h 
th

at
 n

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill 

be
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
m

et
re

s 
of

 to
p 

of
 b

an
k 

of
 m

ai
n 

riv
er

s,
 o

r w
ith

in
 5

 m
et

re
s 

of
 o

rd
in

ar
y 

w
at

er
co

ur
se

s.
  

 W
at

er
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ts
 a

re
 im

po
rta

nt
 w

ild
lif

e 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 a

nd
 m

ak
e 

a 
va

lu
ab

le
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 p

ro
po

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill 
no

t h
ar

m
 th

e 
aq

ua
tic

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t b

ef
or

e 
gr

an
tin

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 a
nd

 m
ay

, b
y 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
r a

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
re

qu
ire

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 o
r i

m
pr

ov
e 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
be

tte
r m

an
ag

em
en

t o
r s

en
si

tiv
e 

pl
an

tin
g,

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

. T
he

 
C

ou
nc

il,
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y,
 w

ill 
se

ek
 to

 re
st

ric
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ha
t w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

de
tri

m
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 u

po
n 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y  
ha

bi
ta

t v
al

ue
 a

nd
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, b

ot
h 

of
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
go

od
 w

at
er

 
qu

al
ity

. E
ve

ry
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 w

ill 
be

 ta
ke

n 
to

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

lly
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
riv

er
 c

or
rid

or
s 

w
he

th
er

 in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
r t

hr
ou

gh
 o

th
er

 B
or

ou
gh

 in
iti

at
iv

es
.  

      

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
  

63



 
10

EP
11

 a
nd

 
Pa

ra
 3

.3
4:

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
U

rb
an

 
D

ra
in

ag
e 

 
 Pa

ra
 3

.3
4 

49
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

U
rb

an
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

EP
11

 
N

EW
 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A

N
D

 
R

ED
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

TS
 

W
IL

L 
B

E 
EX

PE
C

TE
D

 
TO

 
IN

C
O

R
PO

R
A

TE
 

SU
ST

A
IN

A
B

LE
 U

R
B

A
N

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E 
SY

ST
EM

S 
W

H
ER

E 
PR

A
C

TI
C

A
B

LE
.  

 3.
34

 R
PG

3 
po

in
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
be

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
o 

th
at

 it
 d

oe
s 

no
t r

un
 a

he
ad

 o
f t

he
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

an
d 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  S

U
D

S 
co

nt
ro

l t
he

 v
ol

um
e,

 s
pe

ed
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 ru
n-

of
f a

t s
ou

rc
e 

or
 

be
fo

re
 it

 re
ac

he
s 

w
at

er
co

ur
se

s,
 a

re
 c

lo
se

r t
o 

na
tu

ra
l d

ra
in

ag
e 

pa
tte

rn
s 

an
d 

ca
n 

in
cl

ud
e 

ra
in

w
at

er
 h

ar
ve

st
in

g 
an

d 
gr

ey
 w

at
er

 re
cy

cl
in

g,
 w

hi
ch

 re
du

ce
s 

w
at

er
 d

em
an

d.
  S

U
D

S 
ca

n 
he

lp
 re

ch
ar

ge
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
, w

hi
ch

 in
 tu

rn
 h

el
ps

 
su

st
ai

n 
riv

er
 fl

ow
s.

 W
he

re
 e

xi
st

in
g 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 fo

r s
ew

er
ag

e,
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

an
d 

w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y,
 is

 c
lo

se
 to

 c
ap

ac
ity

, 
SU

D
S 

m
ay

 e
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
be

 b
ui

lt 
to

 a
 h

ig
he

r d
en

si
ty

 th
an

 w
ou

ld
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
be

 th
e 

ca
se

. S
U

D
S 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 th

e 
fir

st
 in

st
an

ce
 fo

r a
ll 

si
te

s 
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

bo
ve

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
 p

ip
ed

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  T

he
re

 a
re

 m
an

y 
ty

pe
s 

of
 

SU
D

S 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 w

ill 
de

pe
nd

 o
n 

fa
ct

or
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

si
te

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s 

an
d 

th
e 

na
tu

re
, s

ca
le

, a
nd

 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
se

d.
  H

ow
ev

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

co
gn

is
es

 th
at

 th
er

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
oc

ca
si

on
s 

w
he

n 
SU

D
S 

is
 

no
t a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ys

te
m

 fo
r t

he
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

of
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 fr
om

 th
e 

si
te

.  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
co

ns
ul

t w
ith

 th
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y,
 s

ew
er

ag
e 

un
de

rta
ke

rs
 a

nd
 w

at
er

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

ek
in

g 
ec

ol
og

ic
al

 a
dv

ic
e,

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 S

U
D

S.
  

   

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

Pa
ra

 3
.4

6 
 

50
 

3.
46

 N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
or

m
al

ly
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

su
rfa

ce
 w

at
er

 ru
n-

of
f, 

w
he

re
 p

er
m

ea
bl

e 
su

rfa
ce

s 
ar

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 b

y 
im

pe
rm

ea
bl

e 
su

rfa
ce

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
ro

of
s 

an
d 

pa
vi

ng
, a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
pa

ct
io

n 
fro

m
 v

eh
ic

ul
ar

 m
ov

em
en

t. 
 In

cr
ea

si
ng

 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 fl
oo

di
ng

, p
ol

lu
tio

n 
an

d 
si

lt 
de

po
si

tio
n,

 u
nt

re
at

ed
 ru

n-
of

f d
am

ag
es

 h
ab

ita
ts

 a
nd

 le
ad

s 
to

 ri
ve

r i
ns

ta
bi

lit
y.

 
Ef

fe
ct

s 
ca

n 
oc

cu
r a

t a
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

re
m

ot
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 F
lo

od
 ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 ri
ve

r c
at

ch
m

en
t a

nd
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

to
 fl

oo
dp

la
in

s.
  D

ev
el

op
er

s 
ar

e 
ad

vi
se

d 
to

 g
iv

e 
ca

re
fu

l c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
to

 
th

e 
ro

le
 th

at
 tr

ee
s,

 o
pe

n 
la

nd
,  

in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, r
ou

gh
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

 a
nd

 s
cr

ub
, a

nd
 v

eg
et

at
io

n 
pl

ay
 in

 
sl

ow
in

g 
do

w
n 

th
e 

flo
w

 o
f r

ai
nw

at
er

 in
to

 th
e 

dr
ai

na
ge

 s
ys

te
m

, o
ffs

et
tin

g 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
ad

ve
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 s
ur

fa
ce

 
w

at
er

 ru
n 

of
f. 

 In
 a

re
as

 s
us

ce
pt

ib
le

 to
 fl

oo
di

ng
 o

r w
he

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t s
ur

fa
ce

 w
at

er
 ru

n 
of

f c
an

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 re

su
lt 

fro
m

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 tr
ee

s 
to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

, a
dd

iti
on

al
 tr

ee
s 

to
 b

e 
pl

an
te

d,
 a

nd
 s

of
t 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g/

op
en

 la
nd

 to
 b

e 
re

ta
in

ed
 fo

r t
he

se
 p

ur
po

se
s.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il,

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y,
 w

ill 
as

se
ss

 th
e 

su
rfa

ce
 ru

n-
of

f i
m

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

nd
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

f s
uc

h 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill 
on

ly
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 w

he
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 s

at
is

fie
d 

th
at

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
ad

ve
rs

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 ru
n-

of
f i

nt
o 

no
n-

m
ai

n 
riv

er
s 

an
d 

w
at

er
co

ur
se

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
an

 in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 W
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

se
 m

ea
su

re
s.

  C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 

SU
D

S,
 re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 v

eg
et

at
io

n 
an

d 
ro

le
 o

f t
re

e 
pl

an
tin

g 
in

 re
du

ci
ng

 s
ur

fa
ce

 w
at

er
 ru

n 
of

f a
nd

 h
en

ce
 re

du
ci

ng
 fl

oo
d 

ris
k.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

se
ek

s 
to

 s
us

ta
in

 th
e 

na
tu

ra
l d

ra
in

ag
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
w

ith
in

 c
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 w
ill 

no
rm

al
ly

 re
qu

ire
 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ur
ba

n 
dr

ai
na

ge
 s

ys
te

m
s 

su
ch

 th
at

 th
e 

1 
in

 1
00

 
ye

ar
 c

rit
ic

al
 s

to
rm

 is
 a

tte
nu

at
ed

 o
n 

si
te

.  
Po

lic
y 

EP
11

 g
iv

es
 fu

rth
er

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
on

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
sy

st
em

s.
 

     

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

64



 
11

Pa
ra

 3
.5

4:
 

W
as

te
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
is

po
sa

l a
nd

 
R

ec
yc

lin
g 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

52
 

3.
54

 E
ac

h 
ye

ar
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

lle
ct

s 
ar

ou
nd

 7
5,

00
0 

to
nn

es
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 a

nd
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 w

as
te

; a
 fu

rth
er

 3
0,

00
0 

to
nn

es
 is

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 to

 th
e 

C
iv

ic
 A

m
en

ity
 S

ite
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

ac
co

un
ts

 fo
r l

es
s 

th
an

 h
al

f t
he

 w
as

te
 a

ris
in

g 
in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h.

 M
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
w

as
te

 is
 n

on
-h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
, a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 d
em

ol
iti

on
, i

nd
us

tri
al

 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 w

as
te

s 
w

ho
se

 d
is

po
sa

l i
s 

m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
.  

 H
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 to
 g

ro
w

 
2-

3%
 a

 y
ea

r. 
D

ur
in

g 
19

98
/9

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 g
re

w
 b

y 
6%

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

W
es

t L
on

do
n 

W
as

te
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ca
tc

hm
en

t 
ar

ea
. I

f w
as

te
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 g

ro
w

 a
t 3

%
 a

 y
ea

r t
he

 v
ol

um
e 

of
 w

as
te

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
w

ou
ld

 d
ou

bl
e 

in
 tw

en
ty

 y
ea

rs
 ti

m
e;

 a
t 

6 
pe

rc
en

t g
ro

w
th

 w
as

te
 w

ou
ld

 d
ou

bl
e 

in
 le

ss
 th

an
 tw

el
ve

 y
ea

rs
 a

bo
ut

 1
2 

ye
ar

s.
  

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 P
ar

a 
3.

87
 

56
 

3.
87

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
is

he
s 

to
 e

xt
en

d 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 e
nj

oy
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t t

o 
al

l t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

's
 r

es
id

en
ts

 
an

d 
w

ill 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 lo

ca
lly

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 n
ew

 h
ab

ita
ts

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 U
nd

er
 th

e 
Eu

ro
pe

an
 H

ab
ita

ts
 

D
ire

ct
iv

e,
 m

em
be

r 
st

at
es

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f f

ea
tu

re
s 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 o

f 
m

aj
or

 im
po

rta
nc

e 
fo

r 
w

ild
 fl

or
a 

an
d 

fa
un

a.
 P

la
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 n
ot

 o
nl

y 
w

ith
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
s,

 b
ut

 a
ls

o 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 la
nd

 o
f c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

va
lu

e 
an

d 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f n

ew
 h

ab
ita

ts
.  

Am
on

g 
th

e 
va

rie
ty

 o
f h

ab
ita

ts
 

th
at

 e
xi

st
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h,

 a
re

 h
ea

th
la

nd
, a

 n
at

io
na

l p
rio

rit
y 

ha
bi

ta
t, 

w
oo

dl
an

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
 a

nc
ie

nt
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

at
 B

en
tle

y 
Pr

io
ry

 a
nd

 w
et

la
nd

. 
 A

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 e
xi

st
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 N
at

io
na

l 
Pr

io
rit

y 
H

ab
ita

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 L

ow
la

nd
 H

ea
th

la
nd

, 
An

ci
en

t/S
pe

ci
es

-ri
ch

 H
ed

ge
ro

w
 a

nd
 W

et
 W

oo
dl

an
d.

  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 w
oo

dl
an

d 
ty

pe
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

ci
en

t w
oo

dl
an

d,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
w

et
la

nd
 a

nd
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

. W
hi

ls
t h

ab
ita

ts
 

ca
n 

de
cl

in
e 

as
 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 

na
tu

ra
l 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
(s

uc
ce

ss
io

n)
 

or
 

ne
gl

ec
t, 

th
ro

ug
h 

po
si

tiv
e 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t t

he
y 

ca
n 

be
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

, e
nh

an
ce

d 
an

d 
in

 s
om

e 
in

st
an

ce
s 

cr
ea

te
d.

   
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

 P
ar

a 
3.

90
  

57
 

3.
90

 C
er

ta
in

 s
pe

ci
es

 o
f f

lo
ra

 a
nd

 fa
un

a 
ar

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

by
 n

at
io

na
l a

nd
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
l l

eg
is

la
tio

n 
an

d 
Lo

ca
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Au
th

or
iti

es
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 h
av

e 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

es
e 

w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 'p

ro
te

ct
ed

 
sp

ec
ie

s'
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

sp
ec

ie
s 

in
 n

at
io

na
l, 

Lo
nd

on
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s.

  P
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 w
ill 

no
t b

e 
gr

an
te

d 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r l

an
d 

us
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
an

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ba

dg
er

s 
or

 s
pe

ci
es

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 b

y 
Sc

he
du

le
s 

1,
 5

 o
r 8

 o
f t

he
 W

ild
lif

e 
an

d 
C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 A

ct
 1

98
1,

 a
s 

am
en

de
d,

 o
r 

pr
io

rit
y 

sp
ec

ie
s 

or
 h

ab
ita

ts
 in

 n
at

io
na

l, 
Lo

nd
on

 o
r l

oc
al

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 p
la

ns
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
pe

ci
es

 in
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

bo
ro

ug
hs

' p
la

ns
 w

he
re

 h
ab

ita
ts

 o
ve

rla
p)

.  
 W

he
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 a
ffe

ct
 b

ad
ge

rs
 o

r h
ab

ita
ts

 o
f s

pe
ci

es
 

lis
te

d 
in

 th
e 

 W
ild

lif
e 

an
d 

C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 A
ct

, E
ng

lis
h 

N
at

ur
e 

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
ta

ct
ed

. O
th

er
 a

ni
m

al
s 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Ac
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

e 
ba

ts
, w

at
er

 v
ol

es
, g

re
at

 c
re

st
ed

 n
ew

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
pe

ci
es

 o
f n

ew
t, 

liz
ar

ds
, 

sl
ow

 w
or

m
s 

an
d 

ne
st

in
g 

bi
rd

s.
  S

om
e 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f a

ni
m

al
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

un
de

r t
he

 A
ct

 in
cl

ud
e 

ne
st

in
g 

be
ds

, a
ll 

ba
t s

pe
ci

es
 a

nd
 th

ei
r r

oo
st

s:
 k

in
gf

is
he

r, 
fie

ld
fa

re
, r

ed
w

in
g,

 h
ob

by
: w

at
er

 v
ol

e 
an

d 
gr

ea
t c

re
st

ed
 n

ew
t. 

M
ea

su
re

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 h
ab

ita
ts

 b
ef

or
e,

 d
ur

in
g 

an
d 

af
te

r a
ny

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ha

t m
ay

 h
av

e 
an

 a
dv

er
se

 
im

pa
ct

.  
Ba

dg
er

s 
ar

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

un
de

r t
he

 1
99

2 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 B

ad
ge

rs
 A

ct
 a

nd
 a

 li
ce

nc
e 

fro
m

 E
ng

lis
h 

N
at

ur
e 

is
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 p

er
m

it 
in

te
rfe

re
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

 s
et

t. 
 A

 li
st

 o
f p

ro
te

ct
ed

 s
pe

ci
es

 in
 L

on
do

n 
is

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 E
co

lo
gy

 
U

ni
t b

oo
kl

et
 ‘P

ro
te

ct
ed

 S
pe

ci
es

 in
 L

on
do

n’
 a

nd
 in

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 A

ud
it 

(2
00

0)
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

65



 
12

EP
28

 a
nd

 
Pa

ra
s 

3.
92

, 
3.

96
 a

nd
 3

.9
7:

 
C

on
se

rv
in

g 
an

d 
En

ha
nc

in
g 

Bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

  
                           Pa

ra
 3

.9
2 

         

59
 

C
on

se
rv

in
g 

an
d 

En
ha

nc
in

g 
B

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 

EP
28

 T
H

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 W

IL
L 

C
O

N
SE

R
VE

 A
N

D
 E

N
H

A
N

C
E 

B
IO

D
IV

ER
SI

TY
 B

Y:
- 

 A
) R

ES
IS

TI
N

G
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

TH
A

T 
W

O
U

LD
 H

A
VE

 A
N

 D
IR

EC
T 

O
R

 IN
D

IR
EC

T 
A

D
VE

R
SE

 IM
PA

C
T 

O
N

 
SI

TE
S 

O
F 

SP
EC

IA
L 

SC
IE

N
TI

FI
C

 IN
TE

R
ES

T,
 S

TA
TU

TO
R

Y 
LO

C
A

L 
N

A
TU

R
E 

R
ES

ER
VE

S,
  O

TH
ER

 S
IT

ES
 O

F 
IM

PO
R

TA
N

C
E 

FO
R

 N
A

TU
R

E 
C

O
N

SE
R

VA
TI

O
N

, C
O

U
N

TR
YS

ID
E 

C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 A

R
EA

 A
N

D
 G

R
EE

N
 

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
S;

 
 B

) E
N

SU
R

IN
G

 T
H

A
T 

A
LL

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PR

O
PO

SA
LS

 T
A

K
E 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
O

F 
N

A
TU

R
E 

C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 

W
H

ER
E 

R
EL

EV
A

N
T 

A
N

D
 E

N
SU

R
IN

G
 T

H
A

T 
A

LL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PR
O

PO
SA

LS
 C

O
N

SI
D

ER
ED

 L
IK

EL
Y 

TO
 

M
A

TE
R

IA
LL

Y 
A

FF
EC

T 
O

N
 S

IT
ES

 O
F 

N
A

TU
R

E 
C

O
N

SE
R

VA
TI

O
N

 IM
PO

R
TA

N
C

E 
TA

K
E 

IN
TO

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
TH

EI
R

 IM
PA

C
T 

O
N

 W
IL

D
LI

FE
 A

N
D

 T
H

E 
EC

O
LO

G
Y 

O
F 

TH
E 

SI
TE

; 
 C

) E
N

C
O

U
R

A
G

IN
G

 D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

S 
TO

 R
ET

A
IN

 H
A

B
IT

A
TS

 A
N

D
 F

EA
TU

R
ES

 O
F 

VA
LU

E 
TO

 E
N

H
A

N
C

E 
TH

E 
N

A
TU

R
E 

C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 I

N
TE

R
ES

T 
O

F 
SI

TE
S 

A
N

D
 M

A
K

E 
PR

O
VI

SI
O

N
, 

W
H

ER
E 

A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
, 

FO
R

 
PE

O
PL

E 
TO

 E
N

JO
Y 

TH
ES

E 
FE

A
TU

R
ES

; 
 D

) I
D

EN
TI

FY
IN

G
 S

IT
ES

 F
O

R
 S

TA
TU

TO
R

IL
Y 

A
N

D
 L

O
C

A
LL

Y 
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 N
A

TU
R

E 
R

ES
ER

VE
S 

IN
 

C
O

N
SU

LT
A

TI
O

N
 W

IT
H

 E
N

G
LI

SH
 N

A
TU

R
E 

A
N

D
 R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

L 
N

A
TU

R
E 

C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 

G
R

O
U

PS
; 

 E)
 W

H
ER

E 
TH

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 C

O
N

SI
D

ER
S 

IT
 A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

, R
EQ

U
IR

IN
G

 D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

S 
TO

 D
EM

O
N

ST
R

A
TE

 
H

O
W

 T
H

EI
R

 P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

W
IL

L 
IM

PA
C

T 
U

PO
N

 W
IL

D
LI

FE
 A

N
D

 N
A

TU
R

A
L 

FE
A

TU
R

ES
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TE
 

TO
 C

O
N

SE
R

VI
N

G
 A

N
D

 E
N

H
A

N
C

IN
G

 B
IO

D
IV

ER
SI

TY
 IN

 T
H

E 
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 ; 
A

N
D

   
 F )

 E
N

SU
R

IN
G

 T
H

A
T 

A
N

Y 
LO

SS
 O

F 
H

A
B

IT
A

T 
(E

G
 W

O
O

D
LA

N
D

, 
W

ET
LA

N
D

) 
IS

 C
O

M
PE

N
SA

TE
D

 B
Y 

PR
O

VI
SI

O
N

 O
F 

A
T 

LE
A

ST
 A

N
 E

Q
U

IV
A

LE
N

T 
A

R
EA

 O
F 

H
A

B
IT

A
T 

U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
TE

R
M

S 
O

F 
A

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
O

B
LI

G
A

TI
O

N
. 

 F)
 E

N
SU

R
IN

G
 T

H
A

T 
A

N
Y 

LO
SS

 O
F 

H
A

B
IT

A
T 

E.
G

. W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
, W

ET
LA

N
D

 E
TC

., 
IS

 C
O

M
PE

N
SA

TE
D

 F
O

R
 

B
Y 

PR
O

VI
SI

O
N

 O
F 

A
T 

LE
A

ST
 A

N
 E

Q
U

IV
A

LE
N

T 
A

R
EA

 O
F 

LA
N

D
 O

F 
EQ

U
IV

A
LE

N
T 

H
A

B
IT

A
T 

Q
U

A
LI

TY
 

U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
TE

R
M

S 
O

F 
A

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 O
B

LI
G

A
TI

O
N

.  
 3.

92
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t s

up
po

rts
 a

 w
id

e 
di

ve
rs

ity
 o

f w
ild

 p
la

nt
s,

 b
ird

s 
an

d 
an

im
al

s.
 In

 re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

 c
er

ta
in

 
sp

ec
ie

s 
ha

ve
 d

ec
lin

ed
 o

r c
om

e 
un

de
r t

hr
ea

t a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 h

um
an

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

is
he

s 
to

 re
ta

in
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

is
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 in
 re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 m

an
y 

be
ne

fit
s 

th
is

 b
rin

gs
 - 

so
ci

al
, e

du
ca

tio
na

l, 
ec

on
om

ic
 - 

to
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h'
s 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
w

ill 
pr

om
ot

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

en
jo

ym
en

t o
f t

he
 n

at
ur

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
Ke

y 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 is

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n,
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t o
f h

ab
ita

ts
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h.

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 n
at

ur
e 

re
se

rv
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 S

ite
s 

of
 S

pe
ci

al
 S

ci
en

tif
ic

 In
te

re
st

 (S
SS

Is
) i

s 
an

 
im

po
rta

nt
 e

le
m

en
t, 

bu
t i

t i
s 

al
so

 im
po

rta
nt

 to
 c

on
si

de
r e

xi
st

in
g 

or
 p

ot
en

tia
l h

ab
ita

ts
 w

ith
in

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

, h
ou

si
ng

 
ar

ea
s,

 g
ar

de
ns

, p
la

yi
ng

 fi
el

ds
, i

nd
us

try
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 u
til

iti
es

 (s
pa

ce
 a

ro
un

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
, v

ac
an

t l
an

d)
, a

lo
ng

 ro
ad

 
ve

rg
es

 a
nd

 ra
ilw

ay
 la

nd
.  

Su
ch

 s
ite

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
w

or
th

y 
of

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
ly

 a
nd

 m
ay

 b
e 

en
ha

nc
ed

 b
y 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

66



 
13

Pa
ra

 3
.9

6 
           Pa

ra
 3

.9
7 

3.
96

 In
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

w
ei

gh
t t

o 
be

 a
tta

ch
ed

 to
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

 a
 p

ro
po

sa
l t

ha
t i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

an
 a

dv
er

se
 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 im

pa
ct

, c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill 
be

 g
iv

en
 a

s 
to

 w
he

th
er

 th
e 

si
te

 o
r 

pr
op

os
al

 is
 o

f l
oc

al
, B

or
ou

gh
 o

r 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

be
ne

fit
. P

er
m

is
si

on
 w

ill 
on

ly
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d 
w

he
re

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
sh

ow
n 

th
at

 th
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 b
en

ef
it(

s)
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 o

ut
w

ei
gh

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
si

te
. I

t i
s 

no
t e

nv
is

ag
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
so

 fo
r 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 s

ite
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

SS
SI

s,
 S

ite
s 

of
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Im
po

rta
nc

e 
or

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 L

oc
al

 N
at

ur
e 

R
es

er
ve

s.
  

  
 In

 s
uc

h 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 
an

y 
lo

ss
 o

f h
ab

ita
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
om

pe
ns

at
ed

 b
y 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
t l

ea
st

 a
n 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 a

re
a 

of
 h

ab
ita

t  l
an

d.
 O

n 
th

is
 la

nd
 

a 
ha

bi
ta

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

re
at

ed
 w

hi
ch

 is
 o

f e
qu

al
 o

r g
re

at
er

 n
at

ur
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

va
lu

e 
th

an
 th

at
 lo

st
. T

he
 re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
tre

e 
co

ve
r, 

sh
ru

bs
, h

ed
ge

ro
w

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r n

at
ur

al
 h

ab
ita

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 la

ke
s,

 is
 a

n 
es

se
nt

ia
l e

le
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
St

ra
te

gy
.  

N
ew

 p
la

nt
in

g 
w

ill 
be

 d
es

ira
bl

e 
an

d 
no

rm
al

ly
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 n

at
iv

e 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 

pr
ef

er
ab

ly
 f

ro
m

 n
at

iv
e 

st
oc

k,
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
la

nt
ed

. 
O

nl
y 

in
 m

or
e 

fo
rm

al
 s

et
tin

gs
 w

ill 
fo

re
ig

n 
or

 e
xo

tic
 s

pe
ci

es
 b

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d.

 A
dv

ic
e 

on
 w

ild
lif

e 
fri

en
dl

y 
pl

an
tin

g 
is

 to
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

s 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ui
da

nc
e.

  
 3.

97
 B

en
tle

y 
Pr

io
ry

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

(a
 L

oc
al

 N
at

ur
e 

R
es

er
ve

) a
nd

 la
nd

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

H
ar

ro
w

 W
ea

ld
 C

om
m

on
 c

on
ta

in
 

im
po

rta
nt

 h
ab

ita
ts

 a
nd

 g
eo

lo
gi

ca
l f

ea
tu

re
s 

re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 T
he

se
 a

re
 n

at
io

na
lly

 im
po

rta
nt

 s
ite

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 b

y 
En

gl
is

h 
N

at
ur

e 
as

 S
SS

Is
. V

is
ito

rs
 c

an
, b

y 
th

ei
r n

um
be

rs
, h

av
e 

an
 a

dv
er

se
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
es

e 
ar

ea
s.

 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
co

nt
ro

l a
cc

es
s 

by
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 fo

ot
pa

th
s,

 h
ed

ge
s,

 fe
nc

es
 a

nd
 s

ig
np

os
ts

 w
hi

ch
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 v

is
it 

le
ss

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 a

nd
 a

vo
id

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 h
um

an
 a

cc
es

s 
w

ou
ld

 c
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 n
at

ur
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ai
m

s.
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

se
ek

 th
e 

op
in

io
n 

of
 E

ng
lis

h 
N

at
ur

e 
an

d 
H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 b

ef
or

e 
de

si
gn

at
in

g 
ne

w
 n

at
ur

e 
re

se
rv

es
. 

 (R
ea

so
ne

d 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
pa

ra
s 

w
he

re
 n

o 
ch

an
ge

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
ar

e 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

sc
he

du
le

). 
 

EP
30

 P
ar

a 
3.

10
7 

61
 

EP
30

 T
re

e 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
O

rd
er

s 
an

d 
N

ew
 P

la
nt

in
g 

3.
10

7 
Tr

ee
s 

di
e 

fro
m

 n
at

ur
al

 c
au

se
s,

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
e 

an
d 

tre
e 

lo
ss

 is
 e

xa
ce

rb
at

ed
 b

y 
he

av
y 

st
or

m
s.

 T
re

es
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 to

 p
ol

lu
tio

n.
 T

he
re

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

an
 o

n-
go

in
g 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 e

xi
st

in
g 

tre
es

 a
nd

 p
la

nt
 n

ew
 o

ne
s 

(s
ee

 a
ls

o 
po

lic
y 

D
11

). 
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
po

lic
y 

fo
r t

he
 p

la
nt

in
g 

of
 n

ew
 tr

ee
s,

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f t
re

es
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 lo

st
.  

Tr
ee

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
of

 v
al

ue
 a

s 
in

di
vi

du
al

 tr
ee

s 
or

 a
s 

a 
gr

ou
p,

 
fo

r t
he

ir 
in

tri
ns

ic
 in

te
re

st
, a

m
en

ity
 v

al
ue

, o
r v

al
ue

 to
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 o

f t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

, a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
is

he
s 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 e

xi
st

in
g 

tre
es

 fo
r t

hi
s 

re
as

on
.  

Si
m

ila
rly

, n
ew

 tr
ee

s 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

fu
lfi

l a
ny

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
se

 fu
nc

tio
ns

.  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
se

ek
 th

e 
pl

an
tin

g 
of

 n
ew

 tr
ee

s 
by

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
s,

 in
 o

rd
er

 th
at

 th
e 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

, 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l q
ua

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d/
or

 e
nh

an
ce

d.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
un

de
rta

ke
 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
re

e 
pl

an
tin

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

of
 s

tre
et

 tr
ee

s,
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
Pl

an
 p

er
io

d,
 a

s 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

pe
rm

it.
  T

re
e 

pl
an

tin
g 

w
ill 

no
t b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 in
 p

la
ce

s 
w

he
re

 it
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
tri

m
en

ta
l t

o 
th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 o
r p

ot
en

tia
l n

at
ur

e 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
va

lu
e 

of
 

op
en

 h
ab

ita
ts

, s
uc

h 
as

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
, h

ea
th

la
nd

 o
r w

et
la

nd
s.

 It
 m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 c

on
tro

l n
at

ur
al

 c
ol

on
is

at
io

n 
of

 
tre

es
 in

 th
es

e 
ha

bi
ta

ts
.  

In
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
riv

at
e 

ga
rd

en
s,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
ow

ne
rs

 to
 re

pl
ac

e 
tre

es
 lo

st
, o

r 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t l

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 s

ch
em

es
 in

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 a
nd

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t o
f a

 lo
ca

lit
y.

 
     

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

67



 
14

Pa
ra

 3
.1

17
 

 
70

 
3.

11
7 

PP
G

2 
(A

nn
ex

 C
) r

ec
og

ni
se

s 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f s
om

e 
m

aj
or

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 s

ite
s 

in
 th

e 
G

re
en

 B
el

t w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 u
se

 o
r r

ed
un

da
nt

.  
In

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 s
uc

h 
si

te
s,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
an

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t b
rie

f f
or

 th
e 

si
te

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, a
ny

 fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

on
fo

rm
 to

 
th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 C
3 

an
d 

C
4 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
pa

ra
gr

ap
hs

 C
15

-C
17

 o
f P

PG
2 

An
ne

x 
C

, i
n 

as
so

ci
at

io
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
of

 th
is

 P
la

n.
 T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t e

nv
el

op
e 

fo
r H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

ge
 (W

ea
ld

 C
am

pu
s)

, i
nd

ic
at

in
g 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ex

te
nt

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

is
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e 

Pr
op

os
al

s 
M

ap
.  

  

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

EP
41

A:
 W

at
lin

g 
C

ha
se

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
Fo

re
st

  
Pa

ra
 3

.1
26

a 
 

72
 

EP
41

A
 W

at
lin

g 
C

ha
se

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

or
es

t 
3.

12
6a

 T
he

 W
at

lin
g 

C
ha

se
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
or

es
t c

ov
er

s 
an

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 a

re
a 

in
 H

er
tfo

rd
sh

ire
 s

tre
tc

hi
ng

 d
ow

n 
to

 th
e 

no
rth

er
n 

ed
ge

 o
f L

on
do

n.
  T

he
 in

te
nt

io
n 

is
 to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
la

rg
e 

w
el

l -w
oo

de
d 

‘fo
re

st
’ l

an
ds

ca
pe

 fo
r w

ild
lif

e,
 w

or
k,

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n.
  A

lth
ou

gh
 o

nl
y 

a 
sm

al
l p

ar
t o

f t
he

 F
or

es
t l

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
(s

ee
 T

ex
t M

ap
 3

B)
, t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
is

he
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 b
eh

in
d 

its
 c

re
at

io
n 

as
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

or
es

t P
la

n,
 a

nd
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 it

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 W

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

su
pp

or
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 
w

hi
ch

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e 

co
un

try
si

de
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 o

ut
do

or
 le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
  A

ll 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Fo

re
st

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 th
ei

r 
lo

ca
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 th
is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 F

or
es

t. 
 T

hi
s 

w
ill 

us
ua

lly
 in

vo
lv

e 
tre

e 
pl

an
tin

g 
an

d/
or

 la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

th
at

 e
nh

an
ce

s 
th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 la
nd

sc
ap

e.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
w

he
re

 th
is

 
w

ill 
as

si
st

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 F
or

es
t.  

  

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

EP
46

 a
nd

 
Pa

ra
s 

3.
13

7 
an

d 
3.

14
1 

an
d 

a 
ne

w
 p

ar
a:

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

 

78
 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 

 

  

EP
49

 In
fo

rm
al

 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e 
 

Pa
ra

 3
.1

53
 

 
3.

15
3 

Sm
al

l o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

 h
av

e 
a 

vi
ta

l r
ol

e 
to

 p
la

y 
in

 c
re

at
in

g 
an

 a
ttr

ac
tiv

e 
ur

ba
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t a

nd
 c

an
 s

up
po

rt 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f p
la

nt
s 

an
d 

w
ild

lif
e,

 th
er

eb
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 to
 e

nj
oy

 n
at

ur
e 

cl
os

e 
to

 w
he

re
 th

ey
 li

ve
. 

In
fo

rm
al

 
an

d 
in

ci
de

nt
al

 
op

en
 

sp
ac

es
 

ca
n 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 
Bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 o

th
er

s.
 T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

gr
ee

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

ns
 w

ill 
en

ab
le

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 to

 p
la

y 
an

 a
ct

iv
e 

ro
le

 in
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
ly

 s
ou

nd
 

na
tu

re
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
ite

s 
on

 in
fo

rm
al

 a
nd

 in
ci

de
nt

al
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
. A

 n
et

w
or

k 
of

 in
te

r-
lin

ke
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

w
ill 

cr
ea

te
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 f
or

 a
 w

id
er

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
sp

ec
ie

s 
to

 t
hr

iv
e 

th
an

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 w

ith
 

is
ol

at
ed

 s
pa

ce
s.

  
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

w
ill 

al
so

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
, 

cr
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

sm
al

le
r 

op
en

 
sp

ac
es

 
an

d 
la

rg
er

 
op

en
 

sp
ac

es
 

or
 

ar
ea

s 
of

 
na

tu
re

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
in

te
  

re
st

, w
he

re
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 p
er

m
it.

  
O

nl
y 

in
 e

xc
ep

tio
na

l c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
de

vo
id

 o
f n

at
ur

e 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d 
am

en
ity

 v
al

ue
 (

ex
is

tin
g 

or
 p

ot
en

tia
l) 

an
d 

se
rv

e 
no

 o
th

er
 u

se
fu

l p
ur

po
se

 (
su

ch
 a

s 
br

ea
ks

 in
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

fa
br

ic
, 

pl
ay

 a
re

as
), 

w
ill 

th
ei

r u
se

 fo
r o

ff-
st

re
et

 p
ar

ki
ng

 o
r e

xt
en

si
on

s 
to

 g
ar

de
ns

 o
r h

ou
se

s 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
. 

  

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

 

68



 
15

C
H

A
PT

ER
 4

 –
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 T
H

E 
B

U
IL

T 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
 U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
Pa

ra
 

N
o.

 

IR
 

R
ef

 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

Pa
ra

 4
.1

0:
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Bu
ilt

  E
nv

. 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

  
 

81
 

D
ES

IG
N

 A
N

D
 B

U
IL

T 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
S 

4.
10

 i)
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

se
cu

re
s 

th
e 

m
os

t 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

of
 la

nd
 t

hr
ou

gh
 g

oo
d 

de
si

gn
, 

th
er

eb
y 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
th

e 
bu

ilt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t; 

ii)
 T

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ty
pe

s 
an

d 
la

yo
ut

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
ix

ed
 u

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t; 

an
d 

 
iii)

  T
o 

se
ek

 th
e 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n  

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f t

he
 h

is
to

ric
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 

 
iv

)  
To

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tra
ve

l 
pa

tte
rn

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
la

yo
ut

s 
an

d 
de

si
gn

, 
gi

vi
ng

 g
re

at
er

 p
rio

rit
y 

to
 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
, c

yc
lis

ts
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t u
se

rs
 in

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
as

es
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
  

 P
ar

a 
4.

20
 

 
84

 
 

4.
20

 P
ar

ki
ng

 s
pa

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 lo

ca
te

d 
as

 c
lo

se
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 th
ey

 s
er

ve
, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 in

 t
he

 c
as

e 
of

 r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

If 
th

is
 is

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 t

he
n 

sm
al

l g
ro

up
s 

of
 o

ff-
st

re
et

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
sp

ac
es

 w
ith

 g
oo

d 
lin

ka
ge

s 
to

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
. C

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t 

of
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l d
es

ig
n 

of
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
an

d 
sp

ac
es

 lo
ca

te
d 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
ly

 to
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 th

ey
 s

er
ve

s.
  

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

at
 th

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
of

 s
ec

ur
e 

an
d 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
 a

cc
es

s 
by

 o
th

er
 tr

an
sp

or
t m

od
es

.  
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

af
e 

an
d 

di
re

ct
 ro

ut
es

 fo
r p

ed
es

tri
an

s 
an

d 
cy

cl
is

ts
, a

nd
 li

nk
s 

to
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t, 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
la

nd
 fo

r c
ar

 
pa

rk
in

g 
is

 a
llo

ca
te

d,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 in
 r

es
id

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 P

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

 w
ith

in
 r

es
id

en
tia

l c
ur

til
ag

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
si

te
d 

to
 m

in
im

is
e 

its
 v

is
ua

l 
in

tru
si

on
 a

nd
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

an
d 

bo
un

da
ry

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

pa
rk

ed
 c

ar
s 

do
 n

ot
 d

om
in

at
e 

th
e 

st
re

et
sc

en
e.

  
W

he
re

 o
ff-

st
re

et
 o

r 
co

ur
ty

ar
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 b
ay

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 s

m
al

l 
gr

ou
ps

, 
ov

er
lo

ok
ed

 b
y 

ad
jo

in
in

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 p

as
si

ng
 p

ed
es

tri
an

s,
 w

ith
 g

oo
d 

lin
ka

ge
s 

to
 t

he
 

ho
us

in
g.

  R
oa

d 
de

si
gn

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 is

 d
is

co
ur

ag
ed

 s
o 

th
at

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

ot
he

r e
ss

en
tia

l v
eh

ic
le

s 
is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d.

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

 

D
5:

 N
ew

 
R

es
id

en
tia

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t -

 
Am

en
ity

 
Sp

ac
e 

an
d 

Pr
iv

ac
y 

        

85
 

N
ew

 R
es

id
en

tia
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t -

 A
m

en
ity

 S
pa

ce
 a

nd
 P

riv
ac

y 
D

5 
N

EW
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
SH

O
U

LD
:- 

 A
) 

PR
O

VI
D

E 
A

M
EN

IT
Y 

SP
A

C
E 

W
H

IC
H

 IS
 S

U
FF

IC
IE

N
T:

- 
 

1)
 

TO
 P

R
O

TE
C

T 
TH

E 
PR

IV
A

C
Y 

A
N

D
 A

M
EN

IT
Y 

O
F 

O
C

C
U

PI
ER

S 
O

F 
SU

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S;

 
2)

 
A

S 
A

 U
SA

B
LE

 A
M

EN
IT

Y 
A

R
EA

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

O
C

C
U

PI
ER

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T;

 A
N

D
 

3)
 

A
S 

A
 V

IS
U

A
L 

A
M

EN
IT

Y.
 

 
 F

A
M

IL
Y 

A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
TI

O
N

 S
H

O
U

LD
 B

E 
LO

C
A

TE
D

 A
T 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 W
H

ER
EV

ER
 

PO
SS

IB
LE

, W
IT

H
 A

C
C

ES
S 

TO
 P

R
IV

A
TE

 G
A

R
D

EN
 S

PA
C

E;
 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

  

69



 
16

              Pa
ra

 4
.3

1 
        Pa

ra
 4

.3
3 

            

B
) 

M
A

IN
TA

IN
 A

D
EQ

U
A

TE
 S

EP
A

R
A

TI
O

N
 B

ET
W

EE
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
A

N
D

 D
IS

TA
N

C
E 

TO
 S

IT
E 

B
O

U
N

D
A

R
IE

S 
IN

 O
R

D
ER

 T
O

 P
R

O
TE

C
T 

TH
E 

PR
IV

A
C

Y 
A

N
D

 A
M

EN
IT

Y 
O

F 
O

C
C

U
PI

ER
S 

O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
PO

SE
D

 N
EW

 A
D

JO
IN

IN
G

 D
W

EL
LI

N
G

S.
 P

R
O

PO
SA

LS
 S

H
O

U
LD

 P
R

O
VI

D
E 

SP
A

C
E 

A
R

O
U

N
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
TO

 R
EF

LE
C

T 
TH

E 
SE

TT
IN

G
 O

F 
N

EI
G

H
B

O
U

R
IN

G
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S;

 
A

N
D

 
 

C
)  

H
A

VE
 R

EA
R

 G
A

R
D

EN
S 

TH
A

T 
R

ES
PE

C
T 

TH
E 

C
H

A
R

A
C

TE
R

 O
F 

TH
E 

SU
R

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 A

R
EA

 
A

N
D

 E
N

SU
R

E 
TH

A
T 

TH
E 

A
M

EN
IT

Y 
A

N
D

 P
R

IV
A

C
Y 

O
F 

O
C

C
U

PI
ER

S 
O

F 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 A
N

D
 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
S 

IS
 S

A
FE

G
U

A
R

D
ED

.  
 

IN
 O

R
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T 
TO

 T
O

W
N

 C
EN

TR
ES

, 
IT

 M
A

Y 
B

E 
A

C
C

EP
TA

B
LE

 T
O

 P
R

O
VI

D
E 

FL
A

TS
 W

IT
H

 O
N

LY
 

LI
M

IT
ED

 E
XT

ER
N

A
L 

A
M

EN
IT

Y 
SP

A
C

E.
 I

N
 S

U
C

H
 I

N
ST

A
N

C
ES

 A
LT

ER
N

A
TI

VE
 P

R
O

VI
SI

O
N

 S
U

C
H

 A
S 

B
A

LC
O

N
IE

S,
 R

O
O

F 
G

A
R

D
EN

S 
O

R
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
C

O
M

M
U

N
A

L 
A

R
EA

S 
W

IL
L 

B
E 

SO
U

G
H

T.
 

 
4.

31
 A

m
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

 c
an

 fo
rm

 a
 ‘v

is
ua

l’ 
am

en
ity

 s
et

tin
g 

fo
r b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r f

or
m

 a
 ‘u

sa
bl

e’
 a

m
en

ity
 a

re
a 

in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 

of
 g

ar
de

ns
 o

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
co

m
m

un
al

 a
re

as
. 

 N
ew

 r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 u
sa

bl
e 

am
en

ity
 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

  
Th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

cl
ea

r 
de

fin
iti

on
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pr
iv

at
e 

am
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 s

pa
ce

.  
W

he
re

ve
r p

os
si

bl
e,

 p
riv

at
e 

am
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 lo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

re
ar

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
pe

rty
.  

Bl
oc

ks
 o

f f
la

ts
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 

in
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 lo

ca
tio

ns
, r

eq
ui

re
 ‘v

is
ua

l’ 
am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 in

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f a

 la
nd

sc
ap

ed
 s

et
tin

g.
  

Pr
iv

at
e 

ba
lc

on
ie

s,
 r

oo
f g

ar
de

ns
 a

nd
 in

te
rn

al
 c

om
m

un
al

 a
re

as
 c

an
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

fo
rm

 o
f p

riv
at

e 
am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 in
 f

la
ts

. 
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

si
tin

g 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 o
f 

ba
lc

on
ie

s 
sh

ou
ld

 m
in

im
is

e 
an

y 
ov

er
lo

ok
in

g 
of

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

 
 4.

33
 T

he
 s

iz
e 

an
d 

le
ng

th
 o

f r
ea

r 
ga

rd
en

s  
fo

rm
 a

nd
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f u
se

ab
le

 a
m

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill 
de

pe
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r o
f t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 a

re
a 

an
d 

th
e 

co
nf

ig
ur

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

si
te

.  
G

en
er

al
 

le
ve

ls
 o

f p
riv

ac
y 

in
 th

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 a
re

a 
w

ill 
be

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
.  

Fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

w
he

th
er

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ba
ck

in
g 

on
to

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 o
r s

ur
ro

un
de

d 
by

 ti
gh

tly
 c

on
st

ra
in

ed
 h

ou
se

s 
w

ith
 s

m
al

l 
re

ar
 g

ar
de

ns
. 

 I
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

re
ar

 g
ar

de
n 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
le

ng
th

s  
th

e 
fo

rm
 a

nd
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
us

ab
le

 a
m

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

no
t 

be
 s

ee
ki

ng
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

ey
 m

ee
t 

an
y 

m
in

im
um

 o
r 

m
ax

im
um

 s
ta

nd
ar

d.
  

Ea
ch

 c
as

e 
w

ill 
be

 
as

se
ss

ed
, 

ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l s
ta

nd
ar

d 
of

 a
m

en
ity

 in
 t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 a

re
a.

  
In

 s
om

e 
in

st
an

ce
s,

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
ay

 o
ffe

r 
th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n

pr
iv

ac
y 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 th
e 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 a

re
a.

  
Th

e 
de

si
gn

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

pr
ox

im
ity

, o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
af

fe
ct

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 g

ar
de

ns
.  

Fu
rth

er
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 w
ill 

be
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ui
da

nc
e.

 
 

D
10

: R
ea

r 
G

ar
de

n 
In

te
rfa

ce
 

88
 

D
10

 R
ea

r G
ar

de
n 

In
te

rf
ac

e 
 

Po
lic

y 
D

10
 a

nd
 it

s 
re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d.

 
     

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

70



 
17

D
13

: L
oc

al
ly

 
Li

st
ed

 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 

       

89
 

Lo
ca

lly
 L

is
te

d 
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
 D

13
 

TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
EN

C
O

U
R

A
G

E 
TH

E 
R

ET
EN

TI
O

N
, 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E,
 

A
N

D
 

R
ES

TO
R

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

LO
C

A
LL

Y 
LI

ST
ED

 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S 

A
N

D
 

SE
EK

 
TH

E 
PR

ES
ER

VA
TI

O
N

 
O

F 
TH

EI
R

 
LO

C
A

L 
H

IS
TO

R
IC

 
O

R
 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

A
L 

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
B

Y 
R

ES
IS

TI
N

G
 A

PP
LI

C
A

TI
O

N
S 

FO
R

 I
N

A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 A

LT
ER

A
TI

O
N

S 
O

R
 

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

S.
 

 
W

H
ER

E 
D

EM
O

LI
TI

O
N

 
IS

 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

, 
IT

 
SH

O
U

LD
 

B
E 

D
EM

O
N

ST
R

A
TE

D
 

TH
A

T 
A

LL
 

R
EA

SO
N

A
B

LE
 M

EA
N

S 
O

F 
PR

ES
ER

VI
N

G
 T

H
E 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
A

VE
 B

EE
N

 T
H

O
R

O
U

G
H

LY
 IN

VE
ST

IG
A

TE
D

 A
N

D
 

SH
O

W
N

 T
O

 B
E 

U
N

R
EA

LI
ST

IC
. 

         

Th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 

po
lic

y 
D

14
 a

nd
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ch

an
ge

 to
 D

13
 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 
st

at
ut

or
y 

po
w

er
s 

to
 

re
qu

ire
 th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
lly

 li
st

ed
 

bu
ild

in
gs

. I
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, t

ha
t p

ar
a.

 
4.

52
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 P
PG

15
 

gu
id

an
ce

 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
th

ei
r 

re
te

nt
io

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
re

m
ai

n 
un

ch
an

ge
d.

 
  

D
14

 L
oc

al
ly

 
Li

st
ed

 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 

89
 

D
14

 L
oc

al
ly

 L
is

te
d 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

Po
lic

y 
D

14
 a

nd
 it

s 
re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d.

  
  

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

D
15

: T
he

 U
se

 
of

 S
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

an
d 

Lo
ca

lly
 

Li
st

ed
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
 

90
 

Th
e 

U
se

 o
f S

ta
tu

to
ril

y 
an

d 
Lo

ca
lly

 L
is

te
d 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

 D
15

 W
H

ER
E 

IT
 C

A
N

 B
E 

C
LE

A
R

LY
 D

EM
O

N
ST

R
A

TE
D

 T
O

 T
H

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
'S

 S
A

TI
SF

A
C

TI
O

N
 T

H
A

T 
A

 C
H

A
N

G
E 

O
F 

U
SE

 O
F 

A
 S

TA
TU

TO
R

IL
Y 

O
R

 L
O

C
A

LL
Y  

LI
ST

ED
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 I

S 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 P
R

ES
ER

VE
 T

H
A

T 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
, 

A
N

D
 

W
H

ER
E 

A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 

FO
R

 
TH

E 
N

EW
 

U
SE

 
D

O
 

N
O

T 
D

IM
IN

IS
H

 
TH

E 
A

R
C

H
IT

EC
TU

R
A

L 
O

R
 H

IS
TO

R
IC

 V
A

LU
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 O
R

 IT
S 

SE
TT

IN
G

, S
U

C
H

 A
 P

R
O

PO
SA

L 
M

A
Y 

B
E 

C
O

N
SI

D
ER

ED
 

TO
 

O
VE

R
R

ID
E 

O
TH

ER
 

PL
A

N
 

PO
LI

C
IE

S 
A

N
D

 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
S 

IN
 

A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 C

A
SE

S.
  

   

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

  

D
25

: L
ig

ht
in

g,
 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Fl

oo
dl

ig
ht

in
g 

93
 

D
25

 L
ig

ht
in

g,
 In

cl
ud

in
g 

Fl
oo

dl
ig

ht
in

g 
Ad

d 
ne

w
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 a
fte

r 4
.7

8 
In

 g
en

er
al

, p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 w
ill 

be
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

a 
lig

ht
in

g 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
if 

it 
co

ns
tit

ut
es

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
so

m
e 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
ph

ys
ic

al
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 l
an

d,
 o

r 
ha

s 
a 

m
at

er
ia

l 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 a

 
bu

ild
in

g.
 M

os
t f

or
m

s 
of

 li
gh

tin
g 

on
 c

ol
um

ns
 fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e,
 fo

r l
ig

ht
in

g 
ou

td
oo

r s
po

rts
 e

ve
nt

s 
or

 fo
r s

ec
ur

ity
 p

ur
po

se
s,

 
w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 p
er

m
is

si
on

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 li
gh

tin
g 

in
st

al
la

tio
ns

 o
n 

Li
st

ed
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 m
at

er
ia

lly
 a

ffe
ct

 th
ei

r c
ha

ra
ct

er
, o

r 
illu

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 s
om

e 
ty

pe
s 

of
 o

ut
do

or
 a

dv
er

tis
em

en
ts

, w
ill 

al
so

 re
qu

ire
 c

on
se

nt
 u

nd
er

 re
la

te
d 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
rs

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
  

71



 
18

D
26

: 
Te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

a
tio

ns
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

94
 

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
 

D
26

 P
R

O
PO

SA
LS

 F
O

R
 T

EL
EC

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

W
IL

L 
B

E 
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
ED

 F
A

VO
U

R
A

B
LY

 
PR

O
VI

D
ED

:- 
 A

)  
N

O
 S

A
TI

SF
A

C
TO

R
Y 

A
LT

ER
N

A
TI

VE
 M

EA
N

S 
FO

R
 T

EL
EC

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S 
A

R
E 

A
VA

IL
A

B
LE

;  

A
) 

B
)  

N
O

 S
A

TI
SF

A
C

TO
R

Y 
A

LT
ER

N
A

TI
VE

, 
A

N
D

 L
ES

S 
H

A
R

M
FU

L,
 M

EA
N

S 
O

F 
M

EE
TI

N
G

 T
H

E 
N

ET
W

O
R

K
 

C
O

VE
R

A
G

E 
D

EF
IC

IE
N

C
Y 

ID
EN

TI
FI

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E 
PR

O
SP

EC
TI

VE
 O

PE
R

A
TO

R
 IS

 A
VA

IL
A

B
LE

. 
 B

) 
C

)  
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TI
O

N
 H

A
S 

B
EE

N
 G

IV
EN

 T
O

 S
IT

IN
G

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
O

N
 A

N
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 O
R

 
ST

R
U

C
TU

R
E 

O
R

 
TO

 
SH

A
R

IN
G

 
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
(E

IT
H

ER
 

U
SI

N
G

 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
O

R
 

R
EP

LA
C

IN
G

 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
W

IT
H

 S
H

A
R

ED
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S)

; 
 C

) 
D

)  
TH

ER
E 

W
O

U
LD

 B
E 

N
O

 D
ET

R
IM

EN
TA

L 
IM

PA
C

T 
O

N
 C

O
N

SE
R

VA
TI

O
N

 A
R

EA
S,

 L
IS

TE
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S,
 

IM
PO

R
TA

N
T 

LO
C

A
L 

VI
EW

S 
A

N
D

 L
A

N
D

M
A

R
K

S 
O

R
 O

TH
ER

 S
TR

U
C

TU
R

A
L 

FE
A

TU
R

ES
 I

D
EN

TI
FI

ED
 I

N
 

PO
LI

C
Y 

SE
P5

, A
N

D
, H

A
VI

N
G

 R
EG

A
R

D
 T

O
 O

PE
R

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

N
EE

D
, T

H
ER

E 
W

O
U

LD
 B

E 
N

O
 S

ER
IO

U
S 

R
IS

K
 

TO
 A

M
EN

IT
Y 

IN
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

A
R

EA
S;

 
 D

) 
E)

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 IN
ST

A
LL

A
TI

O
N

 W
O

U
LD

 B
E 

SI
TE

D
 A

N
D

 D
ES

IG
N

ED
 T

O
 M

IN
IM

IS
E 

VI
SU

A
L 

IM
PA

C
T,

 
A

N
D

, 
W

H
ER

E 
PR

A
C

TI
C

A
B

LE
, 

TO
 A

C
C

O
M

M
O

D
A

TE
 F

U
TU

R
E 

SH
A

R
ED

 U
SE

. 
C

A
R

EF
U

L 
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
A

TI
O

N
 

SH
O

U
LD

 B
E 

G
IV

EN
 T

O
 S

C
R

EE
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 P

LA
N

TI
N

G
; A

N
D

  
 E)

 
F)

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 S
IT

E 
A

N
D

 A
N

Y 
EM

IS
SI

O
N

S 
A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
D

 W
IT

H
 IT

 D
O

 N
O

T 
PR

ES
EN

T 
A

N
Y 

H
EA

LT
H

 
H

A
ZA

R
D

S.
 

  

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n,
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
m

in
or

 
co

rre
ct

io
n 

by
 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
w

or
ds

 ‘T
O

 H
IM

’ a
t 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 c

rit
er

io
n 

A)
 

   

D
32

: P
ub

lic
 A

rt 
an

d 
D

es
ig

n 
95

 
D

32
 P

ub
lic

 A
rt

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n 

 TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
EN

C
O

U
R

A
G

E 
TH

E 
PR

O
VI

SI
O

N
 O

F 
PU

B
LI

C
 W

O
R

K
S 

O
F 

A
R

T 
IN

 A
LL

 M
A

JO
R

 
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

A
N

D
 A

D
JA

C
EN

T 
PU

B
LI

C
 S

PA
C

ES
.  

 IN
 C

O
N

SI
D

ER
IN

G
 A

PP
LI

C
A

TI
O

N
S 

FO
R

 M
A

JO
R

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
SI

G
N

IF
IC

A
N

T 
PU

B
LI

C
 V

IS
IB

IL
IT

Y,
 T

H
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
EN

C
O

U
R

A
G

E,
 W

H
ER

E 
TH

E 
SI

TE
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 IS
 F

A
VO

U
R

A
B

LE
, T

H
E 

PR
O

VI
SI

O
N

 O
F 

W
O

R
K

S 
O

F 
A

R
T.

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
  

       

72



 
19

C
H

A
PT

ER
 5

 –
 T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

T 
 U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
Pa

ra
 

N
o.

 

I R
 

R
ef

. 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

Pa
ra

 5
.1

2:
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

   
 

98
 

TR
A

N
SP

O
R

T 
O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
S 

5.
12

 
i) 

 
To

 h
el

p 
br

in
g 

ab
ou

t a
 la

nd
 u

se
 p

at
te

rn
 w

he
re

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ity

 to
 tr

av
el

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 b

y 
ca

r, 
is

 m
in

im
is

ed
, 

an
d 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 re
al

is
tic

 c
ho

ic
e 

of
 m

od
e 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t; 

 
i) 

   
To

 h
el

p 
br

in
g 

ab
ou

t a
 la

nd
 u

se
 p

at
te

rn
 w

he
re

 tr
av

el
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 b

y 
ca

r, 
is

 m
in

im
is

ed
, a

nd
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 re

al
is

tic
 c

ho
ic

e 
of

 m
od

e 
of

 tr
an

sp
or

t. 
 ii)

   
To

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tra

ve
l p

at
te

rn
s 

by
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

by
 b

et
te

r m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 m

ad
e 

fo
r t

he
se

 m
od

es
, a

nd
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
sa

fe
 

an
d 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
di

ffe
re

nt
 m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt;

 
 

 
iii)

   
To

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l q
ua

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
fro

m
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c;
 a

nd
 

 
v)

 
To

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
fo

r 
al

l u
se

rs
 w

ith
ou

t 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 it
s 

ov
er

al
l c

ap
ac

ity
 f

or
 

pr
iv

at
e 

m
ot

or
is

ed
 v

eh
ic

le
s,

 a
nd

 c
re

at
in

g 
fu

rth
er

 c
ap

ac
ity

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 f

or
 p

rio
rit

y 
us

e 
by

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tra

ns
po

rt 
m

od
es

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

T7
: D

es
ig

ni
ng

 
N

ew
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ith
 G

oo
d 

Ac
ce

ss
 in

 M
in

d
 

99
 

T7
 D

es
ig

ni
ng

 N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ith

 G
oo

d 
A

cc
es

s 
in

 M
in

d 
Po

lic
y 

T7
 a

nd
 it

s 
re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d.

  
  

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

Pa
ra

 5
.2

1b
: 

R
ai

l F
re

ig
ht

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t  

10
2 

5.
21

b 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

 r
ai

l c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 to
 in

du
st

ria
l o

r 
w

ar
eh

ou
si

ng
 p

re
m

is
es

 in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
ar

e,
 h

ow
ev

er
, 

ve
ry

 l
im

ite
d.

  
Th

es
e 

w
ill 

la
rg

el
y 

be
 a

lo
ng

 t
he

 W
es

t 
C

oa
st

 M
ai

n 
Li

ne
, 

w
he

re
 t

he
re

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 i

nd
us

tri
al

 a
nd

 
w

ar
eh

ou
si

ng
 p

re
m

is
es

. 
 I

f 
th

es
e 

ar
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ill 

be
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ilit

y 
of

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ra
il 

si
di

ng
s 

an
d 

lo
ad

in
g/

un
lo

ad
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  
Th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
se

 w
ill,

 o
f c

ou
rs

e,
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
by

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 b
us

in
es

s 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 p
re

m
is

es
.  

Tr
an

sh
ip

m
en

t d
ep

ot
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
, b

ut
 

m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

ro
ad

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

 a
re

 n
ot

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 h

ea
vy

 g
oo

ds
 v

eh
ic

le
 m

ov
em

en
ts

.  
At

 tr
an

sh
ip

m
en

t d
ep

ot
s 

go
od

s 
ar

e 
tra

ns
fe

rre
d 

fro
m

 ra
il 

to
 lo

rry
 o

r v
ic

e-
ve

rs
a.

  F
ac

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 e

ith
er

 to
 b

re
ak

 
a 

tra
in

-lo
ad

 in
to

 s
m

al
le

r 
co

ns
ig

nm
en

ts
 fo

r 
on

w
ar

d 
tra

ns
po

rt 
by

 lo
rry

, o
r 

fo
r 

se
ve

ra
l l

or
ry

-lo
ad

s 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 
in

to
 o

ne
 tr

ai
n-

lo
ad

. T
he

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
R

ai
l A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 N
et

w
or

k 
R

ai
l a

nd
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 T

ra
in

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
C

om
pa

ni
es

 w
ill 

be
 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 a
ny

 p
ro

po
sa

l. 
     

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n,
 

an
d 

am
en

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 

ch
an

ge
d 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s.
 

73



 
20

T1
3 

& 
Sc

he
du

le
 6

: 
Pa

rk
in

g 
St

an
da

rd
s 

11
0 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

T1
4 

an
d 

pa
ra

 
5.

32
: N

ew
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
O

n-
St

re
et

 
Pa

rk
in

g 

11
2 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

T1
5:

 M
ak

in
g 

Be
tte

r U
se

 o
f 

Pa
rk

in
g 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
 

11
3 

T1
5 

M
ak

in
g 

B
et

te
r U

se
 o

f P
ar

ki
ng

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 

Po
lic

y 
T1

5 
an

d 
its

 re
as

on
ed

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d.
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

T1
7 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 
5.

37
: S

ta
tio

n 
C

ar
 P

ar
ks

 

11
4 

T1
7 

St
at

io
n 

C
ar

 P
ar

ks
 

Po
lic

y 
T1

7 
an

d 
its

 re
as

on
ed

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d.
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

T1
8 

Se
rv

ic
in

g 
of

 N
ew

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 

11
5 

Se
rv

ic
in

g 
of

 N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

T1
8 

FO
R

 A
LL

 A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

 O
FF

-H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

SE
R

VI
C

E 
A

R
EA

S 
A

N
D

 A
C

C
ES

S 
R

O
A

D
S 

SH
O

U
LD

 B
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
.  

TO
 T

H
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

’S
 A

D
O

PT
A

B
LE

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S 

SO
 A

S 
TO

 P
R

O
VI

D
E 

A
 S

A
FE

 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
A

N
D

 E
N

A
B

LE
 V

EH
IC

LE
S 

TO
 L

EA
VE

, A
N

D
 R

EJ
O

IN
, T

H
E 

PU
B

LI
C

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

IN
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 
G

EA
R

. 
TH

EY
 S

H
O

U
LD

 B
E 

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 S

O
 T

H
A

T 
TH

ER
E 

IS
 N

O
 U

N
A

C
C

EP
TA

B
LE

 L
O

SS
 O

F 
A

M
EN

IT
Y 

TO
 

SU
R

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 O

C
C

U
PI

ER
S.

 D
IR

EC
T 

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
C

C
ES

S 
R

O
A

D
S 

O
R

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

R
EA

S 
TO

 
LO

N
D

O
N

 
D

IS
TR

IB
U

TO
R

 
O

R
 

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 

D
IS

TR
IB

U
TO

R
 

R
O

A
D

S 
W

IL
L 

B
E 

D
IS

C
O

U
R

A
G

ED
, 

U
N

LE
SS

 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 T

O
 A

 L
O

C
A

L 
A

C
C

ES
S 

R
O

A
D

 I
S 

U
N

D
ES

IR
A

B
LE

 D
U

E 
TO

 R
O

A
D

 S
A

FE
TY

 O
R

 A
M

EN
IT

Y 
R

EA
SO

N
S.

 IF
 C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 T

O
 A

 D
IS

TR
IB

U
TO

R
 R

O
A

D
 IS

 N
EC

ES
SA

R
Y,

 A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y 
W

O
R

K
S 

FI
N

A
N

C
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

 W
IL

L 
B

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 M
IN

IM
IS

E 
TH

E 
D

IS
R

U
PT

IO
N

 T
O

 T
R

A
FF

IC
, A

N
D

 
TO

 E
N

SU
R

E 
R

O
A

D
 S

A
FE

TY
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
  

T1
9:

 S
er

vi
ci

ng
 

of
 N

ew
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

11
6 

Se
rv

ic
in

g 
of

 N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

 T1
9 

TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
R

EQ
U

IR
E 

TH
E 

PR
O

VI
SI

O
N

 O
R

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
O

F 
SE

R
VI

C
E 

R
O

A
D

S 
TO

 C
U

R
R

EN
T 

A
D

O
PT

A
B

LE
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S 
IN

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
TS

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PO

SA
LS

 
M

A
P 

A
N

D
 O

N
 P

LA
N

S 
IN

 S
C

H
ED

U
LE

 7
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
SE

EK
 O

TH
ER

S 
W

H
ER

E 
A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

      

74



 
21

C
H

A
PT

ER
 6

 –
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 

 U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

Pa
ra

 
N

o.
 

I R
 

R
ef

: 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

11
8 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

Pa
ra

 6
.7

  
 

SU
PP

LY
 O

F 
N

EW
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
- C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

S 
(J

AN
 1

99
2 

TO
 D

EC
 2

00
02

) 
 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

S/
C

H
. U

SE
 

   
   

 N
EW

 B
U

IL
D

 
   

   
   

   
TO

TA
L 

 
G

R
O

SS
  

N
ET

 
G

R
O

SS
  

   
 N

ET
 

G
R

O
SS

  
   

   
N

ET
 

19
92

 
25

 
16

 
34

0 
 

28
9 

36
5 

30
5 

19
93

 
9 

1 
23

0 
 

21
1 

23
9 

21
2 

19
94

 
34

 
-5

 
29

2 
 

27
2 

32
6 

26
7 

19
95

 
57

 
13

 
15

5 
 

14
6 

21
2 

15
9 

19
96

 
39

 
25

 
14

1 
 

11
0 

18
0 

13
5 

19
97

 
23

 
-2

 
18

5 
 

17
2 

20
8 

17
0 

19
98

 
10

2 
69

 
23

9 
 

21
2 

34
1 

28
1 

19
99

 
64

 
43

 
83

 
 

57
 

14
7 

10
0 

20
00

 
31

 
17

 
60

 
22

 
91

 
39

 
20

01
 

13
6 

11
2 

36
5 

35
4 

50
1 

46
6 

20
02

 
61

 
37

 
34

6 
31

6 
40

7 
35

3 
TO

TA
L 

38
4 

58
1 

17
7 

  
32

6 
17

25
 

24
36

 
14

91
 

21
61

 

21
09

 
30

17
 

16
68

 
24

87
 

 6.
7 

Th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

ra
te

s 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 v
ar

ia
bl

e 
(s

ee
 ta

bl
e 

on
 p

ag
e 

13
5)

.  
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 

av
er

ag
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

ra
te

 o
f 4

61
 b

et
w

ee
n 

19
86

-1
99

0,
 th

e 
ra

te
 d

ec
lin

ed
 to

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 2

64
 3

06
 (g

ro
ss

) b
et

w
ee

n 
19

91
-1

99
5.

  I
n 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
19

96
-2

00
0 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

fe
ll 

to
 1

93
 (g

ro
ss

). 
 T

hi
s,

 a
m

on
g 

ot
he

r t
hi

ng
s,

 is
 a

n 
in

di
ca

tio
n 

th
at

 th
e 

sc
op

e 
fo

r i
nc

re
as

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

su
pp

ly
 w

as
 v

er
y 

lim
ite

d 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
th

en
 in

 fo
rc

e.
  

In
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

19
97

-2
00

1,
 a

 to
ta

l o
f 1

28
8 

(g
ro

ss
) o

r 1
05

6 
(n

et
) a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
, a

n 
an

nu
al

 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 2
57

 (g
ro

ss
) (

21
0 

ne
t).

 H
ow

ev
er

, i
n 

th
e 

la
st

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
 h

av
e 

av
er

ag
ed

 4
54

 (g
ro

ss
) p

er
 

an
nu

m
. T

he
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 h

as
 c

om
e 

la
rg

el
y 

fro
m

 n
ew

 b
ui

ld
, w

hi
ch

 h
as

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r n
ea

rly
 9

0%
 

ov
er

 8
0%

 o
f t

ot
al

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
19

89
 a

nd
 2

00
0.

 , 
bu

t 7
8%

 in
 2

00
1-

2.
Th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 h
ou

se
s 

in
to

 fl
at

s 
an

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
of

 u
se

 o
f b

ui
ld

in
gs

. 
 

U
pd

at
in

g 
of

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 

75



 
22

Pa
ra

 6
.1

7:
 

N
at

io
na

l P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 

12
0 

 6
.1

7 
C

irc
ul

ar
 6

/9
8 

an
d 

PP
G

3 
st

at
e 

th
at

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

’s
 n

ee
d 

fo
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 p

ro
pe

rly
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 in
 fo

rm
ul

at
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
de

ci
di

ng
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

.  
W

hi
ls

t t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
is

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 la
nd

 fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 to

 m
ee

t 
ag

re
ed

 n
ee

d 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 n
um

be
rs

, t
he

 C
irc

ul
ar

 re
ite

ra
te

s 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
m

ix
 o

f 
dw

el
lin

gs
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 m
ix

ed
 a

nd
 b

al
an

ce
d 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 to
 a

vo
id

 s
oc

ia
l e

xc
lu

si
on

.  
Th

e 
C

irc
ul

ar
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

s 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f p

ol
ic

ie
s 

th
at

 s
ee

k 
an

 e
le

m
en

t o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
 n

ew
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 in

di
ca

te
 h

ow
 m

an
y 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 w
ill 

be
 n

ee
de

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
  G

re
at

 e
m

ph
as

is
 is

 p
la

ce
d 

on
 

se
cu

rin
g 

on
-s

ite
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 s
ch

em
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 h
av

e 
an

 e
le

m
en

t o
f 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

H
4 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 
6.

27
: H

ou
si

ng
 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
on

 
Pr

ev
io

us
ly

-
D

ev
el

op
ed

 
La

nd
 

12
3 

H
4 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

n 
Pr

ev
io

us
ly

-D
ev

el
op

ed
 L

an
d 

Po
lic

y 
H

4 
an

d 
its

 re
as

on
ed

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d.
 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

H
5:

 
R

es
id

en
tia

l 
D

en
si

ty
 

12
5 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

 

H
6:

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 
H

7:
 H

ou
si

ng
 

fo
r K

ey
 

W
or

ke
rs

 

13
1 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

 

Pa
ra

 6
.4

7:
 

D
w

el
lin

g 
M

ix
 

 

13
2 

6.
47

 P
PG

3 
re

co
gn

is
es

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 b
et

te
r b

al
an

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 a

nd
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 ty
pe

s.
  

Th
os

e 
liv

in
g 

in
 H

ar
ro

w
 h

av
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 w
hi

ch
 c

an
 o

nl
y 

be
 m

et
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s.
  I

t i
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
im

po
rta

nt
 th

at
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f d

w
el

lin
gs

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 o
n 

la
rg

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ite
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill 
en

su
re

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
an

d 
m

ix
ed

 c
om

m
un

ity
.  

A 
m

ix
 o

f u
ni

t 
si

ze
s 

is
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 n

ee
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

to
 h

el
p 

to
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

 c
om

po
si

tio
n 

an
d 

en
su

re
 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
m

ov
em

en
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k,
 b

ot
h 

at
 p

re
se

nt
 a

nd
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

W
hi

ls
t t

he
 p

re
ci

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 m

ix
 

re
qu

ire
d 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 a

lte
r d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
Pl

an
 p

er
io

d,
 d

ue
 to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

co
m

po
si

tio
n,

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

sh
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
re

sp
on

ds
 to

 th
e 

m
os

t u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

si
tu

at
io

n.
  W

he
re

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
a 

si
te

 o
f o

ne
 h

ec
ta

re
 o

r a
bo

ve
, a

 re
as

on
ab

le
 m

ix
 

an
d 

ba
la

nc
e 

of
 h

ou
se

 ty
pe

s 
an

d 
si

ze
s 

w
ill 

be
 re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

H
10

: 
C

on
ve

rs
io

ns
 o

f 
H

ou
se

s 
an

d 
O

th
er

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

to
 F

la
ts

 

13
4 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
       

 

76



 
23

H
13

: H
ou

se
s 

in
 M

ul
tip

le
 

O
cc

up
at

io
n 

13
5 

H
ou

se
s 

in
 M

ul
tip

le
 O

cc
up

at
io

n 
 

 H
13

 
TH

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

W
IL

L 
EN

C
O

U
R

A
G

E 
TH

E 
R

ET
EN

TI
O

N
 

O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 

H
O

U
SE

S 
IN

 
M

U
LT

IP
LE

 
O

C
C

U
PA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 F
A

VO
U

R
A

B
LY

 C
O

N
SI

D
ER

 A
PP

LI
C

A
TI

O
N

S 
FO

R
 T

H
E 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 O
F 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
TO

 
H

O
U

SE
S 

IN
 M

U
LT

IP
LE

 O
C

C
U

PA
TI

O
N

, P
R

O
VI

D
IN

G
 T

H
A

T:
- 

 A
) 

TH
ER

E 
IS

 N
O

 A
D

VE
R

SE
 IM

PA
C

T 
O

N
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
O

R
 O

N
 T

H
E 

A
M

EN
IT

Y 
O

F 
TH

E 
SU

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 A
R

EA
; 

 B
) 

TH
ER

E 
IS

 N
O

 A
D

VE
R

SE
 IM

PA
C

T 
O

N
 T

R
A

FF
IC

, H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

SA
FE

TY
 A

N
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

; 
 C

) 
TH

E 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
TI

O
N

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 IS
 S

U
IT

A
B

LE
 IN

 T
ER

M
S 

O
F 

SI
ZE

, L
A

YO
U

T 
A

N
D

 
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
.; 

A
N

D
 

 D
)  

 T
H

E 
LE

VE
L 

O
F 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

S 
IN

 T
H

E 
R

O
A

D
 H

A
S 

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
ED

 2
5%

. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

H
16

: H
os

te
ls

 
13

5 
H

os
te

ls
 

H
16

 T
H

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 W

IL
L 

FA
VO

U
R

A
B

LY
 C

O
N

SI
D

ER
 P

R
O

PO
SA

LS
 F

O
R

 P
U

R
PO

SE
-B

U
IL

T 
H

O
ST

EL
S 

O
R

 T
H

E 
C

O
N

VE
R

SI
O

N
 O

F 
A

N
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 T
O

 A
 H

O
ST

EL
 U

SE
 P

R
O

VI
D

IN
G

:- 
 A

) 
TH

E 
PR

O
PO

SA
L 

IS
 L

O
C

A
TE

D
 I

N
 O

R
 N

EA
R

 T
O

 T
H

E 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 O

R
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

C
EN

TR
ES

 O
R

 
A

R
EA

S 
O

F 
G

O
O

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T 

A
C

C
ES

SI
B

IL
IT

Y;
  A

N
D

 
 B

) 
TH

ER
E 

W
IL

L 
B

E 
N

O
 H

A
R

M
FU

L 
C

O
N

C
EN

TR
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
SU

C
H

 U
SE

S 
O

R
 U

N
A

C
C

EP
TA

B
LY

 A
D

VE
R

SE
 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
O

R
 A

M
EN

IT
Y 

PR
O

B
LE

M
S 

IN
 T

H
E 

SU
R

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 A

R
EA

S.
; A

N
D

 
 C

)  
TH

ER
E 

IS
 A

D
EQ

U
A

TE
 O

FF
-S

TR
EE

T 
PA

R
K

IN
G

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
 in

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

H
19

: M
ob

ilit
y 

an
d 

Li
fe

tim
e 

H
om

es
 

 

13
6 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

 

          

77



 
24

C
H

A
PT

ER
 7

 –
 E

M
PL

O
YM

EN
T,

 S
H

O
PP

IN
G

 A
N

D
 T

O
W

N
 C

EN
TR

ES
 

 U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

Pa
ra

 
N

o.
 

I R
 

R
ef

: 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

N
at

io
na

l P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 - 
pa

ra
 

7.
18

 

13
9 

7.
18

  
PP

G
3 

ad
vi

se
s 

th
at

, w
he

re
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 o
f l

an
d 

fo
r e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t u

se
s 

ca
nn

ot
 re

al
is

tic
al

ly
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

up
 in

 th
e 

qu
an

tit
ie

s 
en

vi
sa

ge
d 

ov
er

 t
he

 l
ife

tim
e 

of
 t

he
 P

la
n,

 t
he

n 
th

es
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
, 

an
d 

po
ss

ib
ly

 
re

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
or

 m
ix

ed
-u

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

Th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t r

es
ol

ve
 o

n 
th

is
 is

su
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 g
iv

en
 a

 n
ew

 
im

pe
tu

s 
by

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 p

ro
po

sa
l t

o 
m

ak
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 P

PG
3 

to
 m

ak
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r r
el

ea
si

ng
 u

nu
se

d 
an

d 
un

de
r-u

se
d 

in
du

st
ria

l 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 f

or
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
Th

e 
pr

es
um

pt
io

n 
in

 f
av

ou
r 

of
 u

si
ng

 i
nd

us
tri

al
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 la
nd

 fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 is

 a
im

ed
 a

t r
em

ov
in

g 
ba

rri
er

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

ed
 in

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 i

s 
no

t 
a 

br
ak

e 
on

 a
n 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 s
ite

s 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. T

he
 g

re
at

es
t c

ha
lle

ng
e 

fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 h
ow

 to
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 p
ol

ic
y 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
th

at
 w

ill 
se

cu
re

 
m

or
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 t
he

 t
im

el
y 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

gr
ee

d 
ho

us
in

g 
nu

m
be

rs
 w

ith
ou

t 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

ag
en

da
 in

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

m
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 la
nd

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

us
es

. 
W

hi
ls

t 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

sy
m

pa
th

et
ic

 t
o 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 f

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

r 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

la
nd

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
fo

r i
nd

us
tri

al
 o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

 u
se

, i
t i

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 th

at
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

ro
ug

h 
an

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

th
at

 t
he

 la
nd

 o
r 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
re

 s
ur

pl
us

 t
o 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ac

ce
pt

s 
th

at
 r

ed
un

da
nt

 
in

du
st

ria
l 

or
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
no

 l
on

ge
r 

ne
ed

ed
 f

or
 s

uc
h 

us
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

ho
us

in
g 

or
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

ix
ed

 u
se

.  
R

eg
ul

ar
 a

nd
 u

p-
to

-d
at

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r l
an

d 
to

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fro

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
us

es
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d 

w
ill 

be
 r

eq
ui

re
d.

 A
 d

et
ai

le
d 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ilit

y 
of

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ite
s 

fo
r 

ho
us

in
g 

or
 

ot
he

r 
us

es
 w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 t
hr

ou
gh

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 b

rie
fs

. 
H

av
in

g 
re

vi
ew

ed
 t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
’s

 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 s
ite

s 
in

 1
99

6,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
be

lie
ve

s 
th

at
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 la
nd

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
up

 is
 v

er
y 

sm
al

l i
nd

ee
d,

 
(s

ee
 p

ar
a 

7.
4,

 a
bo

ve
) 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
th

e 
ad

vi
ce

 i
n 

PP
G

3 
do

es
 n

ot
 a

pp
ly

 i
n 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
. 

Fu
rth

er
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f i
nd

us
tri

al
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

Pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

EM
4:

 N
ew

 
O

ffi
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

      Pa
ra

 7
.2

3 
 

      

14
1 

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

EM
4 

M
A

JO
R

 N
EW

 O
FF

IC
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A

N
D

 R
ED

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SH
O

U
LD

 B
E 

LO
C

A
TE

D
 IN

 H
A

R
R

O
W

 
M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 

C
EN

TR
E 

A
N

D
 

N
O

R
TH

O
LT

 
R

O
A

D
, 

SO
U

TH
 

H
A

R
R

O
W

. 
A

LL
 

O
TH

ER
 

N
EW

 
O

FF
IC

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

ED
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
SH

O
U

LD
 B

E 
LO

C
A

TE
D

 IN
 T

H
E 

M
ET

R
O

PO
LI

TA
N

, D
IS

TR
IC

T 
A

N
D

 
LO

C
A

L 
C

EN
TR

ES
 O

R
 I

N
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

S 
W

H
IC

H
 A

R
E 

H
IG

H
LY

 A
C

C
ES

SI
B

LE
 B

Y 
PU

B
LI

C
 T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

T.
 I

N
 

M
A

JO
R

 O
FF

IC
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

TS
 A

 S
U

B
SI

D
IA

R
Y 

EL
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

O
TH

ER
 A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

 U
SE

S 
W

IL
L 

B
E 

A
C

C
EP

TA
B

LE
. 

 I
N

 M
IX

ED
 U

SE
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
TS

 I
N

 T
O

W
N

 C
EN

TR
E 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

S 
A

N
 O

FF
IC

E 
EL

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L 

B
E 

EN
C

O
U

R
A

G
ED

.  
 7.

23
 

he
al

th
y 

an
d 

vi
br

an
t 

to
w

n 
ce

n t
re

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

a 
m

ix
 o

f 
us

es
, 

bu
t 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 
ce

nt
re

s,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 i
n 

H
ar

ro
w

, 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
be

 o
ffi

ce
 b

as
ed

. 
Th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
H

ar
ro

w
’s

 e
co

no
m

ic
al

ly
 a

ct
iv

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ha
s 

jo
bs

 o
r 

sk
ills

 th
at

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
ly

 h
av

e 
be

en
 o

ffi
ce

-b
as

ed
. H

ar
ro

w
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 C

en
tre

 w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 

be
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h.
 H

ow
ev

er
, a

 h
ea

lth
y 

an
d 

vi
br

an
t t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 d

ep
en

ds
 o

n 
a 

m
ix

 
of

 u
se

s.
 E

ve
n 

w
ith

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

, t
he

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r o

ffi
ce

sp
ac

e 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
an

d 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 t

yp
ify

 H
ar

ro
w

’s
 o

ffi
ce

 m
ar

ke
t, 

is
 n

ot
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

be
 s

o 
se

ve
re

ly
 c

ur
ta

ile
d 

as
 t

ha
t 

to
 

ju
st

ify
 n

o 
fu

rth
er

 p
la

nn
ed

 g
ro

w
th

 fo
r o

ffi
ce

 s
pa

ce
. s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
la

nn
ed

. F
ur

ni
sh

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r H

ar
ro

w
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

78



 
25

    Pa
ra

 7
.2

4 
        Pa

ra
 7

.2
6 

           

w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

as
si

st
s 

in
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
ai

m
 o

f r
ed

uc
in

g 
di

st
an

ce
s 

tra
ve

lle
d 

to
 w

or
k.

 T
hi

s 
ai

m
 is

 
m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e,

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

of
 s

oc
ia

l i
nc

lu
si

on
, i

f t
he

 lo
ca

l w
or

k 
jo

ur
ne

y 
is

 m
ad

e,
 a

nd
 it

 c
an

 c
on

ve
ni

en
tly

 
be

 m
ad

e,
 b

y 
a 

no
n-

ca
r m

od
e 

of
 tr

av
el

, s
uc

h 
as

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t, 

w
al

ki
ng

 o
r c

yc
lin

g.
 

 
7.

24
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 u
se

s 
in

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

 w
hi

ls
t 

re
co

gn
is

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
sh

op
pi

ng
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

sh
op

pi
ng

 a
re

a.
  D

iv
er

si
ty

 o
f u

se
s 

in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
to

 p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
 m

ak
e 

an
 i

m
po

rta
nt

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 t

he
ir 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

vi
ab

ilit
y.

  
A 

re
as

on
ab

le
 r

an
ge

 o
f a

va
ila

bl
e 

of
fic

e 
pr

em
is

es
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e.

 In
 o

rd
er

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
en

te
rp

ris
e,

 a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

of
fic

e 
pr

em
is

es
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill 

he
lp

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

ne
w

 
en

te
rp

ris
e,

 w
hi

ch
 t

yp
ic

al
ly

 w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 s

m
al

l 
lo

w
 c

os
t 

su
ite

s,
 r

ig
ht

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
o 

th
os

e 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 e
xp

an
di

ng
 t

he
ir 

op
er

at
io

ns
, 

an
d 

w
an

tin
g 

ra
th

er
 la

rg
er

, p
er

ha
ps

 p
ur

po
se

 b
ui

lt,
 s

in
gl

e 
us

er
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.  A
 w

id
er

 m
ix

 o
f 

us
es

 t
ha

t 
fit

s 
be

tte
r w

ith
 th

e 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

ta
il 

pa
tte

rn
s 

of
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

w
ill 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
. 

 7.
26

 M
ix

ed
-u

se
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 o
ffi

ce
s,

 re
ta

il,
 le

is
ur

e 
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

or
 e

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

bu
ild

in
g,

 
ar

e 
im

po
rta

nt
 in

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s,
 b

ec
au

se
 th

e 
oc

cu
pi

er
s 

ca
n 

m
ut

ua
lly

 s
up

po
rt 

ea
ch

 o
th

er
. I

n 
pa

rti
cu

la
r, 

se
cu

rit
y 

fo
r 

of
fic

e 
pr

em
is

es
 c

an
 b

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 if

 t
he

re
 a

re
 o

th
er

 o
cc

up
ie

rs
 in

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

ns
 o

ut
si

de
 o

ffi
ce

 h
ou

rs
. 

En
co

ur
ag

in
g 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

us
es

 a
ls

o 
he

lp
s 

to
 c

re
at

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

a 
di

ve
rs

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 n

ew
 j

ob
s.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r 

su
ffi

ci
en

t o
ffi

ce
 fl

oo
rs

pa
ce

 to
 m

ee
t f

or
ec

as
t d

em
an

ds
, i

t i
s 

im
po

rta
nt

 th
at

 in
 m

aj
or

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 n

on
-o

ffi
ce

 u
se

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
al

lo
w

ed
 t

o 
pr

ed
om

in
at

e.
  

A 
m

aj
or

 n
ew

 o
ffi

ce
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s 
on

e 
be

in
g 

20
00

m
2 

 o
r 

m
or

e 
to

ta
l g

ro
ss

 f
lo

or
 a

re
a.

 T
he

re
fo

re
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
C

en
tre

, a
nd

 N
or

th
ol

t R
oa

d,
 S

ou
th

 H
ar

ro
w

, t
he

 n
on

-o
ffi

ce
 e

le
m

en
t o

f a
ny

 s
ch

em
e 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
as

 a
 g

ui
de

lin
e,

 
ar

ou
nd

 1
0%

 o
f g

ro
ss

 fl
oo

rs
pa

ce
 o

f t
he

 s
ch

em
e.

 O
th

er
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
ha

ve
 tr

ad
iti

on
al

ly
 c

at
er

ed
 fo

r 
sm

al
l o

ffi
ce

 s
ui

te
s,

 a
nd

 t
he

se
 c

an
 m

or
e 

fle
xi

bl
y 

be
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
ed

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 c
on

ta
in

in
g 

ot
he

r 
us

es
, 

w
ith

 
th

es
e 

ot
he

r u
se

s 
po

ss
ib

ly
 p

re
do

m
in

at
in

g.
 

R
ea

so
ne

d 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

7.
25

 re
m

ai
ns

 u
nc

ha
ng

ed
.  

 

          

79



 
26

EM
5:

 N
ew

 
La

rg
e 

Sc
al

e 
R

et
ai

l a
nd

 
Le

is
ur

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

                                      

14
4 

N
ew

 L
ar

ge
 S

ca
le

 R
et

ai
l, 

Le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

EM
5 

PR
O

PO
SA

LS
 F

O
R

 N
EW

 R
ET

A
IL

, 
LE

IS
U

R
E  

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 I

N
VO

LV
IN

G
 L

A
R

G
E 

SC
A

LE
 U

SE
S 

A
TT

R
A

C
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
SI

D
ER

A
B

LE
 N

U
M

B
ER

S 
O

F 
PE

O
PL

E,
 O

R
 M

A
JO

R
 E

XT
EN

SI
O

N
S 

TO
 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
TS

, 
SH

O
U

LD
 B

E 
LO

C
A

TE
D

 W
IL

L 
B

E 
PR

EF
ER

R
ED

 I
N

 M
ET

R
O

PO
LI

TA
N

 A
N

D
 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
C

EN
TR

ES
. 

A
PP

LI
C

A
TI

O
N

S 
FO

R
 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 
PE

R
M

IS
SI

O
N

 
W

IL
L 

B
E 

C
O

N
SI

D
ER

ED
 

IN
 

A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 A

 S
EQ

U
EN

TI
A

L 
A

PP
R

O
A

C
H

. 
IF

 A
 S

U
IT

A
B

LE
 S

IT
E 

IS
 N

O
T 

A
VA

IL
A

B
LE

 I
N

 T
H

ES
E 

C
EN

TR
ES

, T
H

EN
 A

N
 E

D
G

E-
O

F-
C

EN
TR

E 
O

R
 L

O
C

A
L 

C
EN

TR
E 

SI
TE

 M
A

Y 
B

E 
A

C
C

EP
TA

B
LE

. O
N

LY
 IF

 T
H

ER
E 

A
R

E 
N

O
 

SU
IT

A
B

LE
 

SI
TE

S 
A

VA
IL

A
B

LE
 

IN
 

TH
ES

E 
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
S 

M
A

Y 
O

U
T-

O
F-

C
EN

TR
E 

SI
TE

S 
B

E 
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
ED

. 
A

LL
 E

D
G

E-
O

F-
C

EN
TR

E 
O

R
 O

U
T-

O
F-

C
EN

TR
E 

PR
O

PO
SA

LS
 O

F 
50

0 
SQ

U
A

R
E 

M
ET

R
ES

 
G

R
O

SS
 F

LO
O

R
SP

A
C

E 
O

R
 O

VE
R

 W
IL

L 
A

LS
O

 B
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

ED
 T

O
 M

EE
T 

TH
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 T
ES

TS
: 

TH
E 

O
R

D
ER

 O
F 

PR
EF

ER
EN

C
E 

FO
R

 T
H

E 
LO

C
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SH
O

U
LD

 B
E 

A
S 

FO
LL

O
W

S:
 

 

A
)  

PR
O

PO
SA

LS
 F

O
R

 F
U

TU
R

E 
IN

VE
ST

M
EN

T 
A

N
D

 R
EG

E N
ER

A
TI

O
N

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E 
TO

W
N

 C
EN

TR
E 

 
W

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E 

SE
R

IO
U

SL
Y 

PR
EJ

U
D

IC
ED

; 

B
)  

TH
ER

E 
W

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E 

A
N

Y 
SE

R
IO

U
S 

EF
FE

C
T 

O
N

: 
TH

E 
VI

TA
LI

TY
 A

N
D

 V
IA

B
IL

IT
Y 

O
F 

A
 

TO
W

N
 C

EN
TR

E;
 I

TS
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

 A
N

D
 A

TT
R

A
C

TI
VE

N
ES

S;
 I

TS
 R

O
LE

 I
N

 T
H

E 
EC

O
N

O
M

IC
 A

N
D

 
SO

C
IA

L 
LI

FE
 O

F 
TH

E 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y;
 T

H
E 

R
A

N
G

E 
O

F 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

; 
TH

E 
PH

YS
IC

A
L 

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 O

F 
TH

E 
TO

W
N

 C
EN

TR
E,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
LI

K
EL

Y 
IN

C
R

EA
SE

 IN
 T

H
E 

N
U

M
B

ER
 O

F 
VA

C
A

N
T 

U
N

IT
S 

IN
 T

H
E 

PR
IM

A
R

Y 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E;
 

C
) 

TH
E 

PR
O

PO
SA

L 
W

O
U

LD
 B

E 
LO

C
A

TE
D

 A
N

D
 D

ES
IG

N
ED

 S
O

 A
S 

TO
 R

ED
U

C
E 

TH
E 

N
EE

D
 T

O
 

A
C

C
ES

S 
IT

 B
Y 

C
A

R
; W

O
U

LD
 B

E 
EA

SI
LY

 A
C

C
ES

SI
B

LE
 B

Y 
C

YC
LI

ST
S,

 P
ED

ES
TR

IA
N

S 
A

N
D

 T
H

O
SE

 
U

SI
N

G
 P

U
B

LI
C

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T;

 A
N

D
 W

O
U

LD
 M

A
XI

M
IS

E 
O

PP
O

R
TU

N
IT

IE
S 

FO
R

 M
A

K
IN

G
 V

IS
IT

S 
TO

 
O

TH
ER

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
IN

 T
H

E 
SA

M
E 

TR
IP

. 
  

FO
R

 S
C

H
EM

ES
 W

H
IC

H
 C

O
N

TA
IN

 5
00

M
2  O

R
 M

O
R

E 
G

R
O

SS
 F

LO
O

R
SP

A
C

E 
O

R
 A

TT
R

A
C

T 
LA

R
G

E 
N

U
M

B
ER

S 
O

F 
PE

O
PL

E,
 D

EV
EL

O
PE

R
S 

W
IL

L 
B

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 S
U

B
M

IT
 A

N
 IM

PA
C

T 
A

N
A

LY
SI

S.
 

FO
R

 S
C

H
EM

ES
 O

U
TS

ID
E 

TO
W

N
 C

EN
TR

ES
 O

R
 T

H
O

SE
 N

O
T 

A
LL

O
C

A
TE

D
 A

S 
A

 P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

SI
TE

 
IN

 T
H

IS
 P

LA
N

 D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

S 
W

IL
L 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
LL

Y 
B

E 
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 T
O

 S
U

B
M

IT
 A

N
 A

SS
ES

SM
EN

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
N

EE
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A

N
D

 A
 S

EQ
U

EN
TI

A
L 

A
N

A
LY

SI
S 

O
F 

A
LT

ER
N

A
TI

VE
 

SI
TE

S.
 

 
A

) 
SI

TE
S 

IN
 M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 A

N
D

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
C

EN
TR

ES
 

B
) 

A
N

 E
D

G
E-

O
F-

C
EN

TR
E 

O
R

 L
O

C
A

L 
C

EN
TR

E 
SI

TE
 

 
IN

 
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
IN

G
 

PR
O

PO
SA

LS
 

TO
 

D
EV

EL
O

P 
ED

G
E 

O
F 

C
EN

TR
E 

O
R

 
O

U
T 

O
F 

C
EN

TR
E 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

S,
 T

H
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PE
R

 M
U

ST
 D

EM
O

N
ST

R
A

TE
 T

H
A

T:
 

 
A

) 
TH

ER
E 

IS
 A

 N
EE

D
 F

O
R

 T
H

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

A
N

D
 A

LL
 O

TH
ER

 S
EQ

U
EN

TI
A

L 
PR

EF
ER

A
B

LE
 

O
PT

IO
N

S 
A

R
E 

IN
A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

; 
B

) 
TH

E 
VI

TA
LI

TY
 A

N
D

 V
IA

B
IL

IT
Y 

O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

EN
TR

ES
 W

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E 

C
O

M
PR

O
M

IS
ED

: 
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

80



 
27

Pa
ra

 7
.2

7 
       Pa

ra
 7

.2
7A

 
        Pa

ra
 7

.2
8 

          Pa
ra

 7
.2

9 
      Pa

ra
 7

.3
0 

       

7.
27

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 p
rim

ar
y 

co
nc

er
n 

is
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

vi
ab

ilit
y 

ex
is

tin
g 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
by

 fo
cu

ss
in

g 
on

 
re

ta
il 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ke

y 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 u

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

ttr
ac

t a
 lo

t o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
in

 th
os

e 
ce

nt
re

s.
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
gu

id
an

ce
 s

tre
ss

es
 t

he
 i

m
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 e
xi

st
in

g 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

an
d 

av
oi

di
ng

 m
aj

or
 o

ut
 o

f 
ce

nt
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t c
ou

ld
 th

re
at

en
 th

ei
r 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

vi
ab

ilit
y.

 a
s 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
fo

ci
 fo

r 
in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
Sh

op
pi

ng
, o

ffi
ce

, r
et

ai
l 

an
d 

a 
w

id
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
ot

he
r 

us
es

 c
an

 a
ll 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 a

 lo
ca

tio
n 

w
el

l s
er

ve
d 

by
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt.
 P

ol
ic

y 
SE

M
2 

re
ite

ra
te

s 
th

is
 v

ie
w

. T
w

o 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 g
oa

ls
 a

re
: t

he
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

m
en

t o
f c

om
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 u
se

s 
of

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

si
ze

 a
nd

 la
yo

ut
 in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s;
 a

nd
 re

si
st

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

re
ju

di
ci

al
 to

 th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f t
he

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s .
 

 7.
27

A 
Th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

of
 a

 s
eq

ue
nt

ia
l a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ap
pl

ie
s 

to
 b

ot
h 

re
ta

il 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

m
aj

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

uc
h 

as
 le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
co

ns
id

er
s 

it 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 fu

lly
 e

xp
lo

re
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ot

en
tia

l o
f t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

fo
r t

he
se

 u
se

s.
  

W
he

re
 a

 n
ee

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 w
ill 

be
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 t

ha
t 

al
l 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

op
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 th
or

ou
gh

ly
 a

cc
es

se
d 

be
fo

re
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
ot

he
r l

oc
at

io
ns

.  
D

ev
el

op
er

s 
sh

ou
ld

 fi
rs

t c
on

si
de

r t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 s
ite

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
ed

ge
 o

f c
en

tre
 a

nd
 o

nl
y 

th
en

 o
ut

 o
f c

en
tre

 s
ite

s 
in

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

by
 a

 c
ho

ic
e 

of
 m

ea
ns

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt.

  I
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 P
PG

6 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
fa

vo
ur

s 
an

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
in

 w
hi

ch
 a

 d
ev

el
op

er
, i

n 
se

ar
ch

 fo
r a

 s
ite

, 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

m
en

ce
 b

y 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 H
ar

ro
w

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 C
en

tre
 a

nd
 a

ll 
ot

he
r 

ce
nt

re
s 

be
fo

re
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
le

ss
 c

en
tra

l 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

 7.
28

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

at
 e

ac
h 

to
w

n 
c e

nt
re

 is
 u

ni
qu

e,
 w

ith
 d

iff
er

en
t s

tre
ng

th
s,

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

an
d 

fu
nc

tio
ns

. 
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

fo
rm

ul
at

e 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 S

tra
te

gi
es

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
ce

nt
re

s 
w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
 c

le
ar

 s
ta

te
m

en
t o

f 
ho

w
 c

om
pe

tit
iv

en
es

s 
ca

n 
be

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d,

 o
r 

in
 s

om
e 

ca
se

s,
 h

ow
 th

e 
ce

nt
re

 c
an

 b
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

te
d.

  
Bu

ild
in

g 
on

 th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

 a
nd

 W
ea

ld
st

on
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 
m

ay
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 jo

in
tly

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
, w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e.
  S

uc
h 

Th
es

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

se
tti

ng
 o

ut
 a

im
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
, m

ay
 a

ls
o 

co
nt

ai
n 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pr
op

os
al

s,
 a

ll 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

is
 P

la
n.

 M
an

y 
of

 th
es

e 
w

ill 
be

 to
o 

de
ta

ile
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

 th
e 

U
D

P 
(s

uc
h 

as
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t m
ea

su
re

s)
 b

ut
 s

om
e 

w
ill 

in
vo

lv
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

si
te

s,
 a

nd
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

em
 w

ith
in

 a
 la

nd
 u

se
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

th
es

e 
ar

e 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f P

ro
po

sa
l S

ite
s 

in
 

C
ha

pt
er

 1
0.

 
 7.

29
 T

he
 s

tra
te

gi
es

 w
ill 

be
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

jo
in

tly
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

, 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 t
he

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 i

n 
H

ar
ro

w
 a

nd
 W

ea
ld

st
on

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s,

 t
he

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 
M

an
ag

er
, a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

Th
ei

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ill 
be

 m
on

ito
re

d 
re

gu
la

rly
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

ed
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.  
Th

e 
th

ru
st

 o
f 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 w

ill 
be

 t
o 

al
lo

w
 f

or
 t

he
 c

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 c

en
tre

s.
 T

he
 s

tra
te

gi
es

 w
ill 

as
si

st
 t

he
m

 t
o 

re
m

ai
n 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

ag
ai

ns
t n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

ce
nt

re
s 

by
 m

ea
ns

 o
f q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f o
ut

w
or

n 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

an
d 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 a

nd
, i

n 
so

m
e 

ca
se

s,
 m

od
es

t g
ro

w
th

 in
 th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 r
et

ai
l p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 
us

es
. 

 7.
30

 P
PG

6 
se

ts
 o

ut
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f t
es

ts
 fo

r n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ne

ar
by

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s,
 if

 
th

ey
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
ou

t o
f c

en
tre

. D
is

tri
ct

 C
en

tre
s,

 L
oc

al
 C

en
tre

s 
an

d 
lo

ca
l p

ar
ad

es
 a

re
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e.
 T

he
 

lik
el

y  
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

n 
a 

w
ho

le
 ra

ng
e 

of
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f t

he
 v

ita
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ilit

y 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

. ,
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 te

st
s 

A)
 a

nd
 B

) 
of

 th
is

 P
ol

ic
y.

  
Fo

r 
m

aj
or

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
, t

he
 o

nu
s 

w
ill 

be
 o

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r s

ho
ul

d 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
ee

d 
an

d 
th

at
 n

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 h
ar

m
 w

ill 
no

t b
e 

su
ffe

re
d 

by
 n

ea
rb

y 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

w
ith

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 th
e 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 a

bo
ve

.  S
m

al
le

r 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ill 

be
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 lo
ca

te
 in

 D
is

tri
ct

 o
r 

Lo
ca

l 
C

en
tre

s 
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

es
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

sh
op

pi
ng

 h
ie

ra
rc

hy
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t 
be

 u
nb

al
an

ce
d 

by
 

pe
rm

itt
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f i

na
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

r w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 a
ttr

ac
t c

us
to

m
 fr

om
 to

o 
w

id
e 

ca
tc

hm
en

ts
 o

f o
th

er
 

81



 
28

   Pa
ra

 7
.3

1 
          Pa

ra
 7

.3
2 

      

ce
nt

re
s.

  
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 f

or
 m

aj
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
cc

om
pa

ni
ed

 b
y 

tra
ns

po
rt,

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 
ec

on
om

ic
 im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t s

tu
di

es
. 

 7.
31

 T
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
be

st
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r e
ns

ur
in

g 
go

od
 a

cc
es

s 
by

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t, 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 w

or
ki

ng
 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 fo
r 

cy
cl

is
ts

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tri

an
s,

 to
o.

 N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 m

us
t h

av
e 

go
od

 a
cc

es
s 

by
 m

od
es

 o
th

er
 

th
an

 th
e 

ca
r. 

 In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t g
ui

da
nc

e,
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 h

ig
hw

ay
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ill 
be

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 if

 t
he

 t
ra

ffi
c 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
by

 t
he

 s
ch

em
e 

w
ar

ra
nt

s 
th

es
e.

  
Fo

r 
la

rg
e 

sc
he

m
es

, 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
ex

pe
ct

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r t
o 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
e 

m
ea

ns
 b

y 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

tra
ve

llin
g 

by
 fo

ot
, c

yc
le

 
or

 p
ub

lic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt 

to
 a

nd
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l 
ca

n 
be

 m
ax

im
is

ed
. 

Th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

bo
th

 b
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
de

si
gn

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 fr

om
 th

e 
ou

ts
et

 (
e.

g.
 p

ar
ki

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

; a
cc

es
s 

by
 

fo
ot

, c
yc

le
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t d
el

ib
er

at
el

y 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
co

nv
en

ie
nt

 th
an

 th
at

 b
y 

ca
r; 

en
ha

nc
ed

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 i
f 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 e

tc
.) 

an
d 

by
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
m

ea
ns

 (
su

ch
 a

s 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
a 

Tr
av

el
 P

la
n,

 e
tc

.) 
(s

ee
 a

ls
o 

Po
lic

ie
s 

T5
, T

6,
 T

8,
 T

9,
 in

 C
ha

pt
er

 5
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
EP

25
 in

 C
ha

pt
er

 3
). 

 7.
32

 T
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t (

Pa
rli

am
en

ta
ry

 M
in

is
te

ria
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
) 

ha
ve

 m
ad

e 
it 

cl
ea

r t
ha

t f
or

 re
ta

il 
or

 le
is

ur
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

, 
or

 w
he

re
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

ty
pe

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 n

ot
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 th

e 
Pl

an
, d

ev
el

op
er

s 
m

us
t d

em
on

st
ra

te
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
on

 th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f c

en
tre

, o
r 

ou
ts

id
e,

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 in
di

ca
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
se

qu
en

tia
l a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

lie
d.

  
Th

is
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

ap
pl

ie
s 

to
 e

xt
en

si
on

s 
to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

s 
w

el
l. 

 W
hi

ls
t m

in
or

 e
xt

en
si

on
s 

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

vi
ab

ilit
y 

an
d 

vi
ta

lit
y 

of
 n

ea
rb

y 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s,

 a
ll 

th
os

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 

50
0m

2  g
ro

ss
 fl

oo
rs

pa
ce

 a
re

a 
or

 w
ou

ld
 a

ttr
ac

t l
ar

ge
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f p
eo

pl
e,

 m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 a
 d

em
on

st
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

if 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 is

 o
ut

si
de

 a
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
, 

on
 t

he
 e

dg
e 

of
 o

r 
on

 s
ite

s 
is

 n
ot

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
as

 a
 

pr
op

os
al

 s
ite

 in
 th

e 
Pl

an
.  

N
ee

d 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 ju
st

 b
e 

de
fin

ed
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 c
ap

ac
ity

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l, 

or
 th

e 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r i
t (

of
te

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 w

ith
in

 a
 p

ro
po

sa
l's

 c
at

ch
m

en
t a

re
a)

.  
O

th
er

 ty
pe

s 
of

 n
ee

d 
th

at
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

re
le

va
nt

 in
cl

ud
e:

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

 la
nd

 u
se

s 
in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h;

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
vi

ta
lit

y,
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s;

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 b

rin
g 

ab
ou

t r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
in

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 W

ea
ld

st
on

e 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 in

ve
st

m
en

t b
y 

ex
is

tin
g 

tra
de

rs
 in

 th
os

e 
ce

nt
re

s.
  

Th
is

 l
is

t 
is

 n
ot

 e
xh

au
st

iv
e 

- 
ot

he
r 

ty
pe

s 
of

 n
ee

d 
co

ul
d 

be
 m

at
er

ia
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
. 

 A
n 

ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 h

ow
 t

he
 

se
qu

en
tia

l t
es

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

pp
lie

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

si
te

s 
an

d 
ce

nt
re

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

, 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 
pr

op
os

al
, 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
vi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ilit

y 
of

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 c
en

tre
s.

 I
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
PP

G
6,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r s
om

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

et
ai

l a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

flo
or

sp
ac

e 
in

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

 e
dg

e-
of

-c
en

tre
 s

ite
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 S
ite

s.
 

EM
13

: N
ew

 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
In

du
st

rie
s 

14
4 

EM
13

 N
ew

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

In
du

st
rie

s 
 

 
Po

lic
y 

EM
13

 a
nd

 it
s 

re
as

on
ed

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d.
 

         

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

82



 
29

EM
14

: 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 U

se
 - 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Ar
ea

: B
AE

 
Sy

st
em

s 
si

te
  

14
9 

EM
14

 T
H

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 W

IL
L 

R
ES

IS
T 

TH
E 

LO
SS

 O
F 

LA
N

D
 A

N
D

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 
B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
U

SE
 

A
R

EA
S,

 
A

S 
D

EF
IN

ED
 

O
N

 
TH

E 
PR

O
PO

SA
LS

 
M

A
P,

 
FR

O
M

 
B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
A

N
D

 
LI

G
H

T 
IN

D
U

ST
R

IA
L 

(B
1)

 U
SE

S:
- 

 A
R

C
H

ES
 9

-1
7 

A
N

D
 6

2-
73

, R
A

IL
W

A
Y 

A
R

C
H

ES
, S

O
U

TH
 H

A
R

R
O

W
; 

 B
R

IT
IS

H
 R

A
IL

 G
O

O
D

S 
YA

R
D

, C
EC

IL
 R

O
A

D
, W

EA
LD

ST
O

N
E;

* 
 B

A
E 

SY
ST

EM
S,

 W
A

R
R

EN
 L

A
N

E,
 S

TA
N

M
O

R
E;

 
B

A
LL

A
R

D
S 

M
EW

S,
 H

IG
H

 S
TR

EE
T,

 E
D

G
W

A
R

E;
 

 SP
R

IN
G

 V
IL

LA
 P

A
R

K
, O

FF
 H

IG
H

 S
TR

EE
T,

 E
D

G
W

A
R

E;
 

 18
-3

0,
 4

7-
61

, M
A

SO
N

S 
A

VE
N

U
E 

A
N

D
 2

-2
2,

 H
ER

G
A

 R
O

A
D

, W
EA

LD
ST

O
N

E;
* 

 N
O

R
TH

O
LT

 R
O

A
D

, S
O

U
TH

 H
A

R
R

O
W

 (N
O

R
TH

 O
F 

SO
U

TH
 H

A
R

R
O

W
 S

TA
TI

O
N

). 
  W

H
ER

E 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S 

A
R

E 
N

O
T 

C
U

R
R

EN
TL

Y 
IN

 
B

1 
U

SE
, 

TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 
W

IL
L 

EN
C

O
U

R
A

G
E 

R
ED

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

FO
R

 T
H

A
T 

PU
R

PO
SE

. 
  TH

O
SE

 S
IT

ES
 M

A
R

K
ED

 A
B

O
VE

 W
IT

H
 A

N
 A

ST
ER

IS
K

 (
*)

 A
R

E 
PA

R
T 

O
F 

TH
E 

W
EA

LD
ST

O
N

E 
PR

EF
ER

R
ED

 
IN

D
U

ST
R

IA
L 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 A
S 

D
EF

IN
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E 

LO
N

D
O

N
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 A

D
VI

SO
R

Y 
C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E/

G
R

EA
TE

R
 

LO
N

D
O

N
 

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y.
 

TH
O

SE
 

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
A

R
EA

S 
LI

ST
ED

 
A

B
O

VE
 

O
U

TS
ID

E 
TH

ES
E 

ST
R

A
TE

G
IC

 
D

ES
IG

N
A

TI
O

N
S 

A
R

E 
O

F 
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
C

E,
 A

N
D

 W
IL

L 
B

E 
PR

O
TE

C
TE

D
 E

Q
U

A
LL

Y 
FR

O
M

 L
O

SS
 

TO
 O

TH
ER

 U
SE

S.
 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

EM
17

: C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 o

f S
ho

ps
 

– 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sh

op
pi

ng
 

Fr
on

ta
ge

s 
  

15
0 

C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 o

f S
ho

ps
 –

 P
rim

ar
y 

Sh
op

pi
ng

 F
ro

nt
ag

es
 

EM
17

 I
N

 T
H

E 
PR

IM
A

R
Y 

SH
O

PP
IN

G
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E 

O
F 

H
A

R
R

O
W

 M
ET

R
O

PO
LI

TA
N

 C
EN

TR
E 

A
N

D
 O

F 
TH

E 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

C
EN

TR
ES

, T
H

E 
C

H
A

N
G

E 
O

F 
U

SE
 O

F 
SH

O
PS

 (C
LA

SS
 A

1)
 T

O
 (P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

A
N

D
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
)  (

C
LA

SS
 A

2)
 O

R
 (F

O
O

D
 A

N
D

 D
R

IN
K

) (
C

LA
SS

 A
3)

 W
IL

L 
N

O
R

M
A

LL
Y 

B
E 

PE
R

M
IT

TE
D

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 
TH

A
T:

- 
 

A
) 

TH
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

SE
 P

R
O

VI
D

ES
 A

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
TH

A
T 

IS
 D

IR
EC

TL
Y 

R
EL

A
TE

D
 T

O
 A

 S
H

O
PP

IN
G

 
TR

IP
 A

N
D

 S
U

PP
O

R
TS

 T
H

E 
R

ET
A

IL
 F

U
N

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

C
EN

TR
E;

 
 B
) 

TH
E 

LE
N

G
TH

 O
F 

TH
E 

PR
IM

A
R

Y 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E 
IN

 N
O

N
-R

ET
A

IL
 U

SE
 A

T 
ST

R
EE

T 
LE

VE
L 

IN
 T

H
E 

C
EN

TR
E 

(IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 A
N

Y 
O

U
TS

TA
N

D
IN

G
 P

ER
M

IS
SI

O
N

S)
 W

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

EX
C

EE
D

 1
5%

 O
F 

TH
E 

TO
TA

L 
IN

 H
A

R
R

O
W

 M
ET

R
O

PO
LI

TA
N

 C
EN

TR
E 

A
N

D
 2

5%
 O

F 
TH

E 
TO

TA
L 

IN
 T

H
E 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
C

EN
TR

ES
; 

 
C

) 
A

 H
A

R
M

FU
L 

C
O

N
C

EN
TR

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

N
O

N
-R

ET
A

IL
 U

SE
S 

IS
 N

O
T 

C
R

EA
TE

D
 O

R
 A

D
D

ED
 T

O
; 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

83



 
30

D
) 

PA
R

K
IN

G
 IS

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
’S

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S;

 
 D
) 

E)
 T

H
E 

PR
EM

IS
ES

 C
A

N
 B

E 
A

D
EQ

U
A

TE
LY

 S
ER

VI
C

ED
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
C

A
U

SI
N

G
 H

A
R

M
 T

O
 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

SA
FE

TY
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
VE

N
IE

N
C

E;
 A

N
D

 
 

E)
 

F)
 A

 W
IN

D
O

W
 D

IS
PL

A
Y 

O
R

 O
TH

ER
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E 

A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 T

O
 T

H
E 

SH
O

PP
IN

G
 A

R
EA

 
IS

 M
A

IN
TA

IN
ED

.  
 

 
 

 N
O

N
 C

LA
SS

 A
 U

SE
S 

W
IL

L 
N

O
T 

B
E 

PE
R

M
IT

TE
D

 IN
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y 
FR

O
N

TA
G

ES
. 

  
EM

18
: C

ha
ng

e 
of

 U
se

 o
f 

Sh
op

s-
 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
Sh

op
pi

ng
 

Fr
on

ta
ge

s 
an

d 
Lo

ca
l C

en
tre

s 
 

15
1 

C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 o

f S
ho

ps
 –

 S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ho
pp

in
g 

Fr
on

ta
ge

s 
EM

18
 IN

 T
H

E 
SE

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y 
SH

O
PP

IN
G

 F
R

O
N

TA
G

ES
 O

F 
H

A
R

R
O

W
 M

ET
R

O
PO

LI
TA

N
 C

EN
TR

E 
A

N
D

 O
F 

TH
E 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
C

EN
TR

ES
, T

H
E 

C
H

A
N

G
E 

O
F 

U
SE

 O
F 

R
ET

A
IL

 S
H

O
PS

 (C
LA

SS
 A

1)
 T

O
 N

O
N

-R
ET

A
IL

 U
SE

S 
W

IL
L 

N
O

R
M

A
LL

Y 
B

E 
PE

R
M

IT
TE

D
 P

R
O

VI
D

ED
 T

H
A

T:
- 

 
A

) 
TH

E 
U

SE
 IS

 A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 T

O
 A

 T
O

W
N

 C
EN

TR
E;

 
 B

) 
TH

E 
U

SE
 IS

 P
R

IM
A

R
IL

Y 
FO

R
 V

IS
IT

IN
G

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
PU

B
LI

C
; 

 
C

) 
TH

E 
U

SE
 R

EQ
U

IR
ES

 A
N

 A
C

C
ES

SI
B

LE
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

; 
 

D
) 

TH
E 

LE
N

G
TH

 O
F 

TH
E 

SE
C

O
N

D
A

R
Y 

FR
O

N
TA

G
E 

IN
 N

O
N

-R
ET

A
IL

 U
SE

 A
T 

ST
R

EE
T 

LE
VE

L 
IN

 
TH

E 
C

EN
TR

E 
(IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 A

N
Y 

O
U

TS
TA

N
D

IN
G

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
S)

 W
O

U
LD

 N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 5

0%
 

O
F 

TH
E 

TO
TA

L;
 

 
E)

 
PA

R
K

IN
G

 IS
 P

R
O

VI
D

ED
 IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

’S
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S;
 

 
E)

 
F)

 
TH

E 
PR

EM
IS

ES
 

C
A

N
 

B
E 

A
D

EQ
U

A
TE

LY
 

SE
R

VI
C

ED
 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

C
A

U
SI

N
G

 
H

A
R

M
 

TO
 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

SA
FE

TY
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
VE

N
IE

N
C

E;
 

 
F)

 
G

)  A
 W

IN
D

O
W

 D
IS

PL
A

Y 
O

R
 O

TH
ER

 F
R

O
N

TA
G

E 
A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

 T
O

 T
H

E 
SH

O
PP

IN
G

 A
R

EA
 IS

 
M

A
IN

TA
IN

ED
; A

N
D

 
 G

) 
H

)  A
 H

A
R

M
FU

L 
C

O
N

C
EN

TR
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
N

O
N

-R
ET

A
IL

 U
SE

S 
IS

 N
O

T 
C

R
EA

TE
D

 O
R

 A
D

D
ED

 T
O

. 
  IN

 I
N

ST
A

N
C

ES
 W

H
ER

E 
TH

E 
LO

N
G

 T
ER

M
 V

A
C

A
N

C
Y 

R
A

TE
 O

F 
TH

E 
SE

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
C

EN
TR

E 
EX

C
EE

D
S 

10
%

, T
H

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 W

IL
L 

N
O

R
M

A
LL

Y 
A

LL
O

W
 A

N
Y 

TO
W

N
 C

EN
TR

E 
U

SE
, S

U
B

JE
C

T 
TO

 
C

R
IT

ER
IA

 D
) –

 G
)  A

B
O

VE
. 

   

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
 

84



 
31

EM
19

: C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 o

f 
Sh

op
s-

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Sh
op

pi
ng

 
Fr

on
ta

ge
s 

of
 

Lo
ca

l C
en

tre
s 

15
1 

C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 o

f S
ho

ps
 –

 D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Sh
op

pi
ng

 F
ro

nt
ag

es
 o

f L
oc

al
 C

en
tr

es
 

EM
19

   
IN

 T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 F
R

O
N

TA
G

E 
O

F 
LO

C
A

L 
C

EN
TR

ES
, T

H
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
N

O
R

M
A

LL
Y 

PE
R

M
IT

 
O

N
LY

 R
ET

A
IL

 S
H

O
PS

 (C
LA

SS
 A

1)
 A

T 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 F

LO
O

R
 L

EV
EL

. E
XC

EP
TI

O
N

S 
M

A
Y 

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

IF
 T

H
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 C
R

IT
ER

IA
 A

R
E 

M
ET

:- 
 

A
) 

TH
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

SE
 IS

 A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 T

O
 T

H
E 

C
EN

TR
E 

A
N

D
 W

IL
L 

IM
PR

O
VE

 T
H

E 
R

A
N

G
E 

O
F 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 A

VA
IL

A
B

LE
 T

O
 L

O
C

A
L 

R
ES

ID
EN

TS
 A

N
D

 V
IS

IT
IN

G
 M

EM
B

ER
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

PU
B

LI
C

 
TO

 H
EL

P 
M

EE
T 

TH
EI

R
 D

A
Y 

TO
 D

A
Y 

N
EE

D
S;

  
 

B
) 

TH
E 

LE
N

G
TH

 O
F 

FR
O

N
TA

G
E 

IN
 N

O
N

-R
ET

A
IL

 U
SE

 A
T 

ST
R

EE
T 

LE
VE

L 
IN

 T
H

E 
C

EN
TR

E 
(IN

C
LU

D
IN

G
 A

N
Y 

O
U

TS
TA

N
D

IN
G

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
S)

 W
O

U
LD

 N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
 3

0%
 O

F 
TH

E 
TO

TA
L 

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E 

O
F 

TH
A

T 
C

EN
TR

E;
 

 C
)  

PA
R

K
IN

G
 IS

 P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 IN
 A

C
C

O
R

D
A

N
C

E 
W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
C

O
U

N
C

IL
’S

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
S;

 
 

C
) 

D
)  

TH
E 

PR
EM

IS
ES

 
C

A
N

 
B

E 
A

D
EQ

U
A

TE
LY

 
SE

R
VI

C
ED

 
W

IT
H

O
U

T 
C

A
U

SI
N

G
 

H
A

R
M

 
TO

 
H

IG
H

W
A

Y 
SA

FE
TY

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

VE
N

IE
N

C
E;

 A
N

D
 

 D
) 

E)
  A

 W
IN

D
O

W
 D

IS
PL

A
Y 

O
R

 O
TH

ER
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E 

A
PP

R
O

PR
IA

TE
 T

O
 T

H
E 

SH
O

PP
IN

G
 A

R
EA

 IS
 

M
A

IN
TA

IN
ED

; A
N

D
 

 
E)

 
F)

 A
 H

A
R

M
FU

L 
C

O
N

C
EN

TR
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
N

O
N

-R
ET

A
IL

 U
SE

S 
IS

 N
O

T 
C

R
EA

TE
D

 O
R

 A
D

D
ED

 T
O

. 
 IN

 IN
ST

A
N

C
ES

 W
H

ER
E 

TH
E 

LO
N

G
 T

ER
M

 V
A

C
A

N
C

Y 
R

A
TE

 O
F 

TH
E 

LO
C

A
L 

C
EN

TR
E 

FR
O

N
TA

G
E 

EX
C

EE
D

S 
10

%
, 

TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
N

O
R

M
A

LL
Y 

A
LL

O
W

 A
N

Y 
TO

W
N

 C
EN

TR
E 

U
SE

, 
PR

O
VI

D
ED

 T
H

A
T 

TH
E 

TO
TA

L 
PR

O
PO

R
TI

O
N

 O
F 

N
O

N
-R

ET
A

IL
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E 

D
O

ES
 N

O
T 

EX
C

EE
D

 5
0%

, A
N

D
 S

U
B

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
R

IT
ER

IA
 C

) –
 E

)  
A

B
O

VE
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

EM
20

: C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 o

f S
ho

ps
 

in
 N

on
-

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Pa
ra

de
s 

15
2 

C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 o

f S
ho

ps
 in

 N
on

 - 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Pa

ra
de

s 
EM

20
 

TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
N

O
R

M
A

LL
Y 

PE
R

M
IT

 C
H

A
N

G
ES

 O
F 

U
SE

 F
R

O
M

 R
ET

A
IL

 S
H

O
PS

 (A
1)

 IN
 N

O
N

-
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 P
A

R
A

D
ES

 O
F 

H
A

R
R

O
W

 M
ET

R
O

PO
LI

TA
N

 C
EN

TR
E,

 T
H

E 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

C
EN

TR
ES

 A
N

D
 

LO
C

A
L 

C
EN

TR
ES

, P
R

O
VI

D
ED

 T
H

A
T:

- 
 

A
) 

TH
E 

U
SE

 IS
 A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

 T
O

 A
 T

O
W

N
 C

EN
TR

E;
 A

N
D

 
 B

) 
PA

R
K

IN
G

 IS
 P

R
O

VI
D

ED
 IN

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

’S
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

S;
 

  
B

)  
TH

E 
PR

EM
IS

ES
 C

A
N

 B
E 

A
D

EQ
U

A
TE

LY
 S

ER
VI

C
ED

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

C
A

U
SI

N
G

 H
A

R
M

 T
O

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

SA
FE

TY
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
VE

N
IE

N
C

E.
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

   

85



 
32

C
H

A
PT

ER
 8

 –
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

, L
EI

SU
R

E 
A

N
D

 T
O

U
R

IS
M

 
 U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
Pa

ra
 

N
o.

 

I R
 

R
ef

: 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

R
5 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 
8.

28
: O

ut
do

or
 

Sp
or

ts
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

15
5 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 

 

 

R
12

: P
ro

te
ct

in
g 

Ar
ts

, C
ul

tu
re

, 
En

te
rta

in
m

en
t 

an
d 

Le
is

ur
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

15
7 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

 

R
14

 a
nd

 p
ar

as
 

8.
49

 a
nd

 8
.5

0:
 

Li
br

ar
ie

s 

15
8 

R
14

 L
ib

ra
rie

s 
Po

lic
y 

R
14

 a
nd

 re
as

on
ed

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d.
 

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

Pa
ra

 8
.6

0 
15

9 
8.

60
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f h

ot
el

s 
m

ay
 a

ris
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
r c

ha
ng

e 
of

 u
se

. 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

nv
ol

vi
ng

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 u
se

 a
nd

/o
r r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f d

w
el

lin
gs

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 h

ot
el

s 
an

d 
gu

es
t h

ou
se

s 
ca

n 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 a

lte
r t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f a

n 
ar

ea
, t

hr
ou

gh
 in

tro
du

ci
ng

 a
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 u

se
 in

to
 a

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a:

 v
is

ua
lly

, 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

si
tin

g 
of

 n
am

eb
oa

rd
s 

an
d 

la
rg

e 
ha

rd
su

rfa
ce

d 
ar

ea
s;

 s
oc

ia
lly

, b
y 

at
tra

ct
in

g 
a 

tra
ns

ie
nt

 
po

pu
la

tio
n;

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

lly
, t

hr
ou

gh
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

tra
ffi

c.
  O

ut
si

de
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s,

 o
nl

y 
si

te
s 

al
on

gs
id

e 
Lo

nd
on

 
D

is
tri

bu
to

r R
oa

ds
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

su
ita

bl
e.

 T
he

re
 m

ay
 b

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

 to
 th

is
 in

 n
on

-re
si

de
nt

ia
l l

oc
at

io
ns

 w
el

l 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

Fu
rth

er
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
or

 re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f d

w
el

lin
gs

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 C
ha

pt
er

 
6 

H
ou

si
ng

. 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

               

86



 
33

C
H

A
PT

ER
 9

 –
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 A
N

D
 A

C
C

ES
SI

B
IL

IT
Y 

 U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

Pa
ra

 
N

o.
 

I R
 

R
ef

: 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

C
2 

(C
18

 in
 

FD
D

): 
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

So
ci

al
 a

nd
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
 

16
1 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 
up

da
te

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l’s

 D
ec

is
io

ns
. 

 

 

C
7 

(C
6 

in
 

FD
D

): 
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

Te
rti

ar
y 

C
ol

le
ge

s 

16
4 

C
7 

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
Te

rt
ia

ry
 C

ol
le

ge
s 

Po
lic

y 
C

7 
an

d 
its

 re
as

on
ed

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d.
 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

C
8 

(C
7 

in
 

FD
D

): 
H

ar
ro

w
 

C
ol

le
ge

 

16
5 

C
8 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

 
Po

lic
y 

C
8 

an
d 

its
 re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d.

 
Ac

ce
pt

 In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

C
9 

(C
8 

in
 F

D
D

): 
D

ua
l U

se
 o

f 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

ds
 

 

16
5 

C
9 

D
ua

l U
se

 o
f S

ch
oo

l F
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
Pl

ay
in

g 
Fi

el
ds

 
Po

lic
y 

C
9 

an
d 

its
 re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d.

 

   

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

C
10

 (C
9 

in
 

FD
D

): 
Ex

te
ns

io
ns

 to
 

Sc
ho

ol
 

Pr
em

is
es

 
 

16
6 

C
10

 E
xt

en
si

on
s 

to
 S

ch
oo

l P
re

m
is

es
 

Po
lic

y 
C

10
 a

nd
 it

s 
re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d.

 
          

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

87



 
34

C
11

 (C
10

 in
 

FD
D

): 
N

ew
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

16
7 

C
11

 N
ew

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

TH
E 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 W
IL

L 
SE

EK
 T

O
 E

N
SU

R
E 

TH
A

T 
A

PP
R

O
PR

IA
TE

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
A

R
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
.  

IN
 

C
O

N
SI

D
ER

IN
G

 
PR

O
PO

SA
LS

 
FO

R
 

N
EW

 
SC

H
O

O
LS

 
O

R
 

TH
E 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

 
O

F 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 
O

N
ES

, 
TH

E 
FO

LL
O

W
IN

G
 C

R
IT

ER
IA

 W
IL

L 
B

E 
TA

K
EN

 IN
TO

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T:
 

 
 

A
) 

TH
E 

LO
C

A
L 

PO
PU

LA
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 T

H
E 

N
EE

D
 F

O
R

 N
EW

 E
D

U
C

A
TI

O
N

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 
IN

 T
H

E 
A

R
EA

; 
  

B )
 

A
D

EQ
U

A
TE

 P
R

O
VI

SI
O

N
 F

O
R

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
; 

  
B

C
) A

C
C

ES
SI

B
IL

IT
Y 

O
F 

TH
E 

SI
TE

 W
IT

H
 R

EG
A

R
D

 T
O

 I
TS

 C
A

TC
H

M
EN

T 
A

R
EA

 A
N

D
 T

O
 P

U
B

LI
C

 
TR

A
N

SP
O

R
T,

 P
A

YI
N

G
 P

A
R

TI
C

U
LA

R
 R

EG
A

R
D

 T
O

 E
N

SU
R

IN
G

 T
H

A
T 

TH
E 

SI
TE

 I
S 

R
EA

D
IL

Y 
A

C
C

ES
SI

B
LE

 B
Y 

N
O

N
-C

A
R

 M
O

D
ES

 A
N

D
 IN

TE
G

R
A

TE
D

 IN
TO

 T
H

E 
SU

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 A
R

EA
; A

N
D

 
  

C
D

) T
H

E 
A

VA
IL

A
B

IL
IT

Y 
O

F 
SA

FE
 S

ET
TI

N
G

-D
O

W
N

 A
N

D
 P

IC
K

IN
G

-U
P 

PO
IN

TS
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

SC
H

O
O

L 
SI

TE
. 

  

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

C
20

 (C
19

 in
 

FD
D

): 
Ac

ce
ss

 
to

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

an
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Sp
ac

es
 

16
9 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 
up

da
te

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l’s

 D
ec

is
io

ns
. 

 

 

                  

88



 
35

C
H

A
PT

ER
 1

0 
– 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

, R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 
 U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
Pa

ra
 

N
o.

 

I R
 

R
ef

: 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

I4
: P

la
nn

in
g 

O
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 –
 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n
. 

17
5 

I4
 P

la
nn

in
g 

O
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 –
 R

es
id

en
tia

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 S
ch

oo
l A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
Po

lic
y 

I4
 a

nd
 it

s 
re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d.

 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

                              

89



 
36

PR
O

PO
SA

L 
SI

TE
S 

 U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

Pa
ra

 
N

o.
 

I R
 

R
ef

. 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

PS
 6

: H
ar

ro
w

-
on

-th
e-

H
ill 

St
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

la
nd

  

18
4 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

 

N
ew

 P
ro

po
sa

l 
Si

te
-B

AE
 

Sy
st

em
s,

 
W

ar
re

n 
La

ne
, 

St
an

m
or

e 

14
9 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 

 

 

PS
7:

 L
an

d 
no

rth
 o

f 
Ju

nc
tio

n 
R

oa
d 

 

18
4 

Th
is

 is
 a

 v
er

y 
pr

om
in

en
t s

ite
 o

n 
th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 e

dg
e 

of
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 b

ut
 is

 c
on

st
ra

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ad
jo

in
in

g 
el

ev
at

ed
 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
R

ox
bo

ro
ug

h 
Br

id
ge

 fl
yo

ve
r. 

 A
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l b
ui

ld
in

g,
 to

 a
 v

er
y 

hi
gh

 d
es

ig
n 

st
an

da
rd

, w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
t t

hi
s 

ga
te

w
ay

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 re
fle

ct
in

g 
th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 a

dj
ac

en
t b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 it
s 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

to
 th

e 
fly

ov
er

. T
he

 
si

te
 h

as
 g

oo
d 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

re
st

ra
in

t b
as

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
 w

ou
ld

 a
pp

ly
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 I

ns
pe

ct
or

’s
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

PS
15

: R
oc

h 
Av

en
ue

 
Al

lo
tm

en
m

ts
, 

R
oc

h 
Av

en
ue

, 
Te

nb
y 

R
oa

d,
 

Ed
gw

ar
e 

18
6 

PS
15

: R
oc

h 
A

ve
nu

e,
 A

llo
tm

en
ts

, R
oc

h 
A

ve
nu

e,
 T

en
by

 R
oa

d,
 E

dg
w

ar
e 

D
el

et
e 

si
te

 fr
om

 p
ro

po
sa

l s
ite

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

m
ap

. 
Ac

ce
pt

 I
ns

pe
ct

or
’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

PS
17

: F
or

m
er

 
H

ar
ro

w
 

H
os

pi
ta

l, 
an

d 
nu

rs
es

 h
os

te
l, 

R
ox

et
h 

H
ill 

18
7 

Th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 H
os

pi
ta

l s
ite

 li
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
R

ox
et

h 
H

ill 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

 a
nd

 A
re

a 
of

 S
pe

ci
al

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
, a

nd
 is

 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 fr

om
 R

ox
et

h 
H

ill,
 a

 b
or

ou
gh

 d
is

tri
bu

to
r r

oa
d.

  T
he

 m
ai

n 
ho

sp
ita

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
is

 G
ra

de
 II

 li
st

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
si

te
 is

 
ad

jo
in

ed
 to

 th
e 

w
es

t b
y 

th
e 

G
ra

de
 II

 li
st

ed
 C

hr
is

t C
hu

rc
h 

an
d 

to
 th

e 
ea

st
 b

y 
Si

dd
on

s 
H

ou
se

, a
 lo

ca
lly

 li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
g.

 
Th

e 
m

ai
n 

ho
sp

ita
l b

ui
ld

in
g 

is
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

En
gl

is
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 R
eg

is
te

r o
f B

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
t R

is
k 

in
 G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n.
 

Th
e 

fo
rm

er
 n

ur
se

s 
ho

st
el

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
so

m
e 

55
m

 w
es

t o
f t

he
 h

os
pi

ta
l s

ite
.  

 Th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
st

ro
ng

 p
re

su
m

pt
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 d
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 m
ai

n 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

ho
sp

ita
l, 

an
d 

an
y 

ot
he

r b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

th
at

 m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

. 
C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 t

o 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
se

 o
r 

si
m

ila
r c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
.  

R
es

id
en

tia
l i

nf
ill 

ov
er

 th
e 

re
m

ai
nd

er
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 m
ay

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 b

ut
 

w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 c

ar
ef

ul
 d

es
ig

n 
to

 t
ak

e 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 t
he

 a
m

en
iti

es
 o

f 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

pr
op

er
tie

s,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 t
o 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
ea

st
, a

nd
 th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 o
n 

th
e 

lo
w

er
 s

lo
pe

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 o

n 
th

e 
H

ill.
  V

eh
ic

ul
ar

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 R

ox
et

h 
H

ill 
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

co
ns

tra
in

t. 
 T

hi
s 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 a
ffe

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
pe

ak
-ti

m
e 

tra
ffi

c 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n.

 T
he

 a
im

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 fo

r a
n 

im
ag

in
at

iv
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
hi

gh
 d

en
si

ty
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
hi

ls
t s

ui
ta

bl
y 

re
co

gn
is

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ev

ai
lin

g 
co

ns
tra

in
ts

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f a

ll 
th

es
e 

fa
ct

or
s.

 
 

Th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ch

an
ge

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
gr

ea
te

r 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 

PP
G

3 
an

d 
th

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

rie
f 

en
do

rs
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 T
he

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
“d

es
ig

n 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
”, 

ho
w

ev
er

, c
ou

ld
 fa

il 
to

 p
ro

pe
rly

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 

90



 
37

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

en
do

rs
ed

 a
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Br
ie

f f
or

 th
e 

si
te

 p
re

pa
re

d 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 a
nd

 H
illi

ng
do

n 
H

ea
lth

ca
re

 
N

H
S 

Tr
us

t. 
 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

. T
he

 
in

cl
us

io
n,

 in
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 o
f 

“…
pr

ev
ai

lin
g 

co
ns

tra
in

ts
…

” 
w

ou
ld

 o
ve

rc
om

e 
th

is
 o

m
is

si
on

, a
nd

 
m

or
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 
PS

18
: F

or
m

er
 

Ki
ng

s 
H

ea
d 

H
ot

el
, H

ig
h 

St
re

et
, H

ar
ro

w
 

on
 th

e 
H

ill 

18
8 

Th
e 

Ki
ng

s 
H

ea
d 

H
ot

el
 is

 a
 G

ra
de

 II
 li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 a

nd
 a

n 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
ly

 a
nd

 h
is

to
ric

al
ly

 im
po

rta
nt

 s
ite

 a
t H

ar
ro

w
 o

n 
th

e 
H

ill.
  

Th
e 

Ki
ng

s 
H

ea
d 

is
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

En
gl

is
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

t R
is

k 
in

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n.

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill 
be

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 a

 s
et

 o
f p

rin
ci

pl
es

 fo
r t

he
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 r
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t o

f t
he

 s
ite

, a
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

99
7 

by
 th

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
.  

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 fi
rs

t p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

fo
r t

he
 s

ite
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

fo
r a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 v
ia

bl
e 

ho
te

l. 
Sh

ou
ld

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
n 

ho
te

l n
ot

 b
e 

vi
ab

le
, t

he
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

co
ns

id
er

 a
s 

an
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
sc

he
m

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
: 

a)
 

Th
e 

co
nv

er
si

on
 o

f 
th

e 
m

os
t 

hi
st

or
ic

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
an

d 
A3

 u
se

 (
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 
vi

ab
ilit

y/
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

is
su

es
 b

ei
ng

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
). 

b)
 

Th
e 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 o

f A
ss

em
bl

y 
R

oo
m

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

ch
em

e.
 

c)
 

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 p
ur

po
se

 b
ui

lt 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

 a
nd

 h
is

to
ric

 i
nt

er
es

t 
of

 t
he

 l
is

te
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

is
 p

re
se

rv
ed

; 
th

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
is

 n
ot

 m
at

er
ia

lly
 h

ar
m

ed
; 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
re

as
 a

re
 s

et
 a

si
de

 f
or

 
am

en
ity

 p
ur

po
se

s 
an

d 
ac

co
un

t i
s 

ta
ke

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
tre

es
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
TP

O
’s

. 
 

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

os
t h

is
to

ric
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

fo
r r

es
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 A
3 

us
e,

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f t
he

 
As

se
m

bl
y 

R
oo

m
s,

 g
ar

ag
e 

bl
oc

k 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

pa
rts

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 o

f n
o 

sp
ec

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

ith
 p

ur
po

se
-b

ui
lt 

ho
us

in
g 

co
ul

d 
al

so
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

, 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 r
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t 

an
d 

re
pa

ir 
of

 t
he

 l
is

te
d 

bu
ild

in
g.

  
Th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 h
ot

el
 g

ar
de

ns
 in

 th
e 

no
rth

 e
as

t p
ar

t o
f t

he
 s

ite
 w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
de

qu
at

e 
am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 

fo
r 

an
y 

ne
w

 r
es

id
en

tia
l u

ni
ts

.  
R

es
id

en
tia

l p
ar

ki
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 s

ite
 a

nd
 m

et
ho

ds
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

de
qu

at
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r a

ny
 A

3 
us

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

.  
An

y 
ne

w
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

or
 h

ar
d 

su
rfa

ci
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

tre
es

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

Tr
ee

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

s.
 

 Th
is

 is
 a

 k
ey

 s
ite

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f H

ar
ro

w
 o

n 
th

e 
H

ill.
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
sp

ec
ia

l h
is

to
ric

 in
te

re
st

 o
f t

he
 fo

rm
er

 h
ot

el
, a

nd
 a

ll 
la

nd
 w

ith
in

 it
s 

cu
rti

la
ge

, i
s 

pr
es

er
ve

d.
 If

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
co

ns
id

er
 u

si
ng

 it
s 

co
m

pu
ls

or
y 

pu
rc

ha
se

 p
ow

er
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

is
 is

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 B

ef
or

e 
an

y 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
th

or
ou

gh
 s

ite
 e

va
lu

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
de

ta
ile

d 
hi

st
or

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 s
ur

ve
y.

 
 

Th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ch

an
ge

 re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 p

la
nn

in
g 

po
si

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 m

or
e 

pr
ec

is
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 fu

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s.

  
Am

en
di

ng
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 

as
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, w

ou
ld

 
cr

ea
te

 a
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

co
nf

lic
t w

ith
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
gu

id
el

in
es

 re
fe

rre
d 

to
 in

 p
ar

a.
 1

 o
f t

he
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 
C

on
st

ra
in

ts
 

co
lu

m
n.

 T
he

se
 

se
rv

e 
no

 u
se

fu
l 

pu
rp

os
e 

ha
vi

ng
 

be
en

 s
up

er
se

de
d 

by
 th

e 
re

ce
nt

 
ap

pe
al

 d
ec

is
io

n 
to

 
al

lo
w

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

91



 
38

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 
si

te
, a

nd
 c

an
 n

ow
 

be
 d

el
et

ed
 fr

om
 

th
e 

pl
an

. T
he

 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

1 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 

th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r i
s 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 
PS

23
: R

ay
ne

rs
 

La
ne

  
18

9 
PS

23
: R

ay
ne

rs
 L

an
e 

R
em

ov
al

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
m

ap
 th

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 d
es

ig
na

tio
ns

 fo
r l

an
d 

at
 D

rin
kw

at
er

 R
oa

d/
Sw

ift
s 

C
lo

se
 a

nd
 a

t 
Th

ac
kn

ey
 C

lo
se

.  
 

Ac
ce

pt
 I

ns
pe

ct
or

’s
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

PS
 2

9:
 L

an
d 

at
 

St
an

m
or

e 
St

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 la

nd
, 

Lo
nd

on
 R

oa
d 

19
0 

Th
is

 n
ar

ro
w

 s
ite

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

st
at

io
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

, c
ar

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
th

e 
ai

rs
pa

ce
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
. H

ou
si

ng
 a

dj
oi

ns
 to

 th
e 

ea
st

, a
lth

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t d
iff

er
en

ce
 in

 s
ite

 le
ve

ls
, a

nd
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 s
ite

 is
 o

f n
at

ur
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

in
te

re
st

. A
ny

 
pr

op
os

al
 m

us
t p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
m

en
ity

 o
f n

ea
rb

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 c
yc

lis
ts

.  
Th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 
st

at
io

n 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

 a
t 

its
 p

re
se

nt
 c

ap
ac

ity
 i

n 
an

y 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

A 
fo

ot
pa

th
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
si

te
 b

et
w

ee
n 

its
 fr

on
ta

ge
s 

to
 L

on
do

n 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

D
al

ke
ith

 G
ro

ve
, a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
 li

nk
 to

 C
an

on
s 

Pa
rk

 
an

d 
St

an
m

or
e 

C
ou

nt
ry

 P
ar

k.
 

 

Ac
ce

pt
 I

ns
pe

ct
or

’s
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

                   

92



 
39

SC
H

ED
U

LE
S 

 U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

Pa
ra

 
N

o.
 

I R
 

R
ef

. 
Pr

op
os

ed
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 

Sc
he

du
le

 1
 

19
4 

Ad
d 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f ‘

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n’
  

D
el

et
e 

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f ‘
Af

fo
rd

ab
le

 H
ou

si
ng

’, 
bu

t i
nc

lu
de

 c
ro

ss
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 in

 th
e 

re
as

on
ed

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

 to
 

ne
w

 P
ol

ic
y 

H
6.

 

Ac
ce

pt
 In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

Sc
he

du
le

 6
 

11
0 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

 

Sc
he

du
le

 8
 

13
4 

Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

ta
ile

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 a

no
th

er
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Pa

ne
l o

n 
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
in

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

Pa
ne

l’s
 D

ec
is

io
ns

. 
 

 

    

93



94

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Unitary Development Plan Panel 

Date: 
 

Monday 5th January 2004 

Subject: 
 

Replacement Harrow Unitary Development Plan – Statement of Decisions 
on the Inspector’s Report on the Public Local Inquiry 

Key decision 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Chief Planning Officer 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder 
 

Portfolio Holder for Planning, Development, Housing and Best Value 

Status: 
 

Public 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix A - Schedule of Council Decisions on the Inspector's 
Recommendations  

 
1.       Summary 
1.1 The Panel at its meeting on 12th November 2003 considered a report on the proposed 

Council response to each of the Inspector’s recommendations.  Reflecting the decisions 
reached by the Panel at that meeting, and the preparation of Proposed Modifications to 
the Plan (see report elsewhere on the agenda), various amendments have been made to 
the draft Statement of Decisions.  In addition, a suggested response is now  included in 
response to the Inspector’s recommendations on Policies C10 and C15.  If the Panel 
agree the suggested responses now contained within this report, the Council will later 
publish them as a Statement of Decisions, alongside the proposed modifications to the 
Plan that will be required. 

 
2. Recommendations (for decision by Cabinet.)  
2.1 To agree the Council’s Statement of Decisions on the Recommendations contained       

in the Inspector’s Report, and for the Statement to be placed on deposit alongside the 
Proposed Modifications to the Replacement HUDP. 

 
REASON: To expedite adoption of the replacement Harrow UDP after completion of 
all statutory procedures. 
 

 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 

None.  A copy of the Inspector’s Report was sent to all members of the Panel, and a 
copy placed in the Members’ Library. 

4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
  

The Council is required to publish a Statement of Decisions on the recommendations in 
the Inspector’s report, following the holding of the Public Local Inquiry into the 
replacement HUDP.   

Agenda Item 10
Pages 95 to 148

95



 
5. Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 

This report concerns a key aspect of the Council’s statutory development plan, the 
replacement HUDP, and as such fundamentally concerns the Council’s stated priority of 
enhancing the environment of the Borough. 

 
6. Background Information and options considered.  
 
6.1 Following the Panel’s decisions on the draft Statement of Decisions considered at its 

meeting on 12th November 2003, and following the preparation of revised policies and 
reasoned justifications in response to various recommendations made by the Inspector, 
further changes have been made to the following Council responses:- 

 
1) SD1: Quality of Design (Page 4 of Appendix A) 
2) SH1 & Paras2.82-2.83: Housing Provision and Need (Page 6 of Appendix A) 
3) T15: Making Better Use of Parking Provision (Page 26 of Appendix A) 
4) H5: Residential Density (Page 28 of Appendix A) 
5) H6: Affordable Housing and H7: Housing for Key Workers (Page 28 in Appendix A) 
6) H19: Mobility and Lifetime Homes (Page 30 of Appendix A) 
7) C2 (C18 in First Deposit Draft): Provision of Social and Community Facilities (Page 36 

of Appendix A ) 
8) C20 (C19 in First Deposit Draft): Access to Buildings and Public Spaces (Page 38 of 

Appendix A ) 
9) PS7: Land North of Junction Road (Page 42 of Appendix A) 
10) PS17: Former Harrow Hospital, & nurses hostel, Roxeth Hill (Page 43 of Appendix A) 
11) PS18: Former Kings Head Hotel, High Street, Harrow on the Hill (Page 43 of 

Appendix A) 
 
In addition to the above, a suggested response to the Inspector’s recommendations in 
respect of Polices C10 (Page 38 of Appendix A) and C15 (Page 39 of Appendix A) were 
erroneously omitted from the last report.  These are now also included for the Panel’s 
consideration. 
 

6.2 The Panel is now invited to agree the Council’s response to all the Inspector’s 
recommendations to form the Statement of Decisions that the Council must prepare on 
the Inspector’s Report. 

 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 The Council’s Statement of Decisions, together with the Proposed Modifications to the 

Plan, will need to be placed on deposit after approval by Cabinet. 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 Costs associated with the procedures for adopting the replacement HUDP can be met 

from existing budgets.  No other financial comments. 
 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 No comments. 
 
10. Conclusions 

96



 
10.1 Consideration of the recommendations in the  Inspector’s Report is an important stage in 

the process for adopting the new HUDP.  In preparing a considered response to the 
Inspector’s recommendations, the Council is also very mindful of the pending publication 
of the London Plan.  In developing revised policies in response to the Inspector’s 
recommendations due regard has been paid to the need for the Replacement HUDP to 
be in general conformity with the London Plan, and the suggested responses in  
Appendix A reflect these considerations.  Accordingly, Counsel’s opinion has been 
sought on the precise wording of appropriate revised policies and reasoned justifications, 
and where appropriate, has informed revised wording in this Statement.       

 
11.  Background Papers  
 
11.1 UDPAP Report – 12 November 2003 – Consideration of Inspector’s Report on the Public 

Local Inquiry 
 
12. Author 
 
12.1 Dennis Varcoe ext 2460, dennis.varcoe@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
 

97



98

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

H
A

PT
ER

 1
 –

 W
H

O
LE

 P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 IN
TR

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
. 

O
bj

ec
to

r R
ef

er
en

ce
 

N
o.

 &
 N

am
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

R
ep

or
t 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 

(P
ag

e 
N

o)
 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

W
ho

le
 P

la
n 

 
00

6/
03

39
 M

r P
 J

ef
fre

y 
13

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

  
G

en
er

al
 - 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
ct

iv
ity

 
09

0/
11

21
 T

es
co

 S
to

re
s 

Lt
d 

09
0/

11
22

 T
es

co
 S

to
re

s 
Lt

d 
14

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 
G

en
er

al
 - 

de
fin

e 
“s

us
ta

in
ab

le
” o

r 
‘s

us
ta

in
ab

ilit
y’

 

13
0/

13
82

 N
 W

at
er

ho
us

e 
 

13
0/

13
83

 N
 W

at
er

ho
us

e 
15

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

in
 th

e 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f ‘

su
st

ai
na

bl
e’

 o
r ‘

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y’
, 

as
 in

di
ca

te
d 

ab
ov

e.
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
A 

cl
ea

re
r d

ef
in

iti
on

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

fo
r 

co
nf

us
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 P

la
n’

s 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

te
rm

. 

Pa
ra

 1
.9

 - 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
(S

PG
) 

 

07
8/

10
95

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 

   
   

   
   

   
 (H

ar
ro

w
 F

O
E)

 
15

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

99



2 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 2

 –
 S

TR
A

TE
G

IC
 C

O
N

TE
XT

 A
N

D
 P

A
R

T 
1 

PO
LI

C
IE

S 
  

U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
. 

O
bj

ec
to

r R
ef

er
en

ce
 

N
o.

 &
 N

am
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

R
ep

or
t 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 

(P
ag

e 
N

o)
 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

In
tro

du
ct

io
n 

12
2/

12
93

&1
29

6 
H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
 

16
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
at

io
na

l P
PG

 N
ot

es
 

-T
he

 S
E 

& 
Lo

nd
on

 
Pa

ra
 2

.1
0:

 R
eg

io
na

l 
C

on
te

xt
 

 

04
3/

08
63

 P
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
(P

O
P)

, A
ge

 C
on

ce
rn

 H
ar

ro
w

 
17

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

 2
.1

6:
 V

is
io

n 
fo

r 
H

ar
ro

w
 

06
5/

05
85

 P
et

er
 D

 K
yt

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 
17

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

 2
.1

7 
an

d 
Ke

y 
D

ia
gr

am
 (a

nd
 P

IC
01

) 
 

05
7/

01
78

R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
  

17
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

 0
1.

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

 2
.1

8:
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
C

on
te

xt
 

07
8/

10
75

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 

12
2/

12
99

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

 

18
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Pa
ra

s 
2.

23
 –

 2
.3

3:
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
00

6/
03

23
 M

r P
 J

ef
fre

y 
00

6/
03

25
 M

r P
 J

ef
fre

y 
06

5/
05

86
 P

et
er

 D
 K

yt
e 

As
so

ci
at

es
 

09
0/

11
22

 T
es

co
 S

to
re

s 
Lt

d 
12

2/
13

00
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
 

19
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

 2
.3

4:
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
an

d 
Ta

rg
et

s 
      

00
6/

03
26

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

01
3/

03
52

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
02

2/
04

27
 M

r J
 C

ob
b 

02
3/

04
30

 P
au

lin
e 

Sc
ho

fie
ld

 
00

7/
07

25
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 (H

N
C

F)
 

03
2/

07
75

-0
77

6 
E 

D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
03

5/
07

89
 T

he
 E

m
pt

y 
H

om
es

 A
gc

y.
 

22
        

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
       

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
       

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
       

100



3 

Pa
ra

 2
.3

4:
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
an

d 
Ta

rg
et

s 
(C

on
t) 

    

11
4/

12
10

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

ll.
) L

td
 &

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

12
2/

13
01

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

00
7/

00
15

R
-0

01
6R

 H
.N

.C
.F

. 
03

5/
01

68
R

 T
he

 E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 A

gy
.  

05
7/

01
79

R
-0

18
0R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

 

22
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
  

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
  

S1
 a

nd
 P

ar
as

 2
.3

5-
2.

38
 : 

Th
e 

Fo
rm

 o
f 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
Pa

tte
rn

 o
f L

an
d 

U
se

  
(a

nd
 P

IC
02

, P
IC

03
 

an
d 

PI
C

04
) 

00
7/

07
26

 H
.N

.C
.F

. 
01

6/
07

43
 N

H
S 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
(N

or
th

 
Th

am
es

 R
eg

io
na

l O
ffi

ce
) 

02
8/

07
59

 M
r G

 G
itt

er
 

07
8/

10
77

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 

FO
E)

 
00

7/
00

20
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 (H
N

C
F)

 
00

7/
00

22
R

-0
02

3R
 H

N
C

F 
00

7/
00

25
R

-0
02

6R
 H

N
C

F 
01

6/
01

59
R

 N
H

S 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

(N
or

th
 

Th
am

es
 R

eg
io

na
l O

ffi
ce

) 
12

2/
02

13
R

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

 

25
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
n,

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f p
ar

a 
2.

35
, o

f t
he

 
w

or
ds

 “a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 ta

ke
s 

du
e 

ac
co

un
t o

f 
cu

rr
en

t p
op

ul
at

io
n 

tr
en

ds
”,

 a
nd

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
es

 0
2,

 
03

 a
nd

 0
4”

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
Pr

e-
In

qu
iry

 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
ad

ds
 a

 
m

in
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f 
w

or
di

ng
. 

SE
P2

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
2.

42
 : 

W
at

er
 

00
6/

03
24

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

01
3/

03
53

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
05

3/
09

94
 W

at
lin

g 
C

h.
 C

om
. F

or
es

t 
 

25
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

SE
P3

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 2

.4
6 

an
d 

2.
49

: W
as

te
 –

 
G

en
er

al
 P

rin
ci

pl
es

 

00
6/

03
27

-0
32

8 
M

r P
 J

ef
fre

y 
01

3/
03

54
 M

r P
 H

 P
oo

le
 

07
7/

06
60

 R
ox

bo
ro

ug
h 

R
oa

d 
R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

04
4/

08
75

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 
 

26
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

SE
P4

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
2.

52
: 

Bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 &
 N

at
ur

al
 

H
er

ita
ge

 
 

00
6/

03
29

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

26
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

101



4 

 SE
P5

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
2.

55
: 

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 F

ea
tu

re
s 

(a
nd

 P
IC

05
) 

       

00
7/

07
27

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
00

7/
00

31
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 

27
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

fo
r P

ol
ic

y 
SE

P5
, p

ar
a 

O
 o

f t
he

 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

- 
 

“O
) S

SS
I’s

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

ite
s 

of
 n

at
ur

e 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
im

po
rt

an
ce

, n
am

el
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a,

 s
ite

s 
of

 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 m

et
ro

po
lit

an
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 a
nd

 
si

te
s 

pe
nd

in
g 

su
ch

 d
es

ig
na

tio
n”

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

w
or

di
ng

 
co

ve
rs

 S
SS

I’s
 a

nd
 g

iv
es

 
m

or
e 

re
co

gn
iti

on
/im

po
rta

nc
e 

to
 

si
te

s 
w

hi
ch

 o
ug

ht
 to

 b
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
an

d 
th

os
e 

w
hi

ch
 

m
ay

 b
ec

om
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 

si
te

s 
de

se
rv

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n.
  

 

SD
1:

 Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

D
es

ig
n 

 

06
5/

05
87

 P
et

er
 D

 K
yt

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 
02

8/
07

60
 G

 G
itt

er
 

12
1/

12
89

 B
T 

pl
c 

 

28
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

in
 P

ol
ic

y 
SD

1 
of

 “
an

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ta

nd
ar

d”
 fo

r “
a 

hi
gh

 
st

an
da

rd
”, 

of
 “

a 
su

ita
bl

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n”
 fo

r 
“a

 p
os

iti
ve

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n”

, o
f “

fa
ci

lit
at

es
 

ac
ce

ss
” 

fo
r “

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ac

ce
ss

”, 
an

d 
“d

oe
s 

no
t h

ar
m

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r o
r a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 
its

 s
et

tin
g”

 fo
r “

en
ha

nc
es

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
”. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
in

 p
ar

t 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

is
 in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 
st

at
ed

 a
im

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

hi
gh

er
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f u

rb
an

 
de

si
gn

.  
It 

w
ou

ld
 d

o 
lit

tle
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

r p
ro

vi
de

 
ad

eq
ua

te
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

fo
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tro
l. 

It 
is

 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 th

at
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

ll 
th

e 
te

st
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

w
ou

ld
 im

po
se

 to
o 

rig
or

ou
s 

a 
de

si
gn

 s
ta

nd
ar

d.
 

An
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e,
 s

ee
ki

ng
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 d

es
ig

n 
in

 a
ll 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
or

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 P
PG

1 
an

d 
PP

G
12

. 
  

SD
3 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 2
.6

3:
 

M
ix

ed
-U

se
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

07
2/

06
09

 W
m

. M
or

ris
on

 
Su

pe
rm

ar
ke

ts
 

04
4/

08
78

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

Au
th

. 
12

2/
13

05
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
  

29
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

102



5 

ST
1:

 L
an

d 
U

se
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

t N
et

w
or

k 
     

06
2/

10
32

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 
07

2/
02

04
R

 W
m

. M
or

ris
on

- 
Su

pe
rm

ar
ke

ts
 

30
       

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

de
le

tin
g,

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
ST

1,
 th

e 
w

or
ds

 “t
he

 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, w
ith

” a
nd

 s
ub

-
pa

ra
 D

.  
C

on
se

qu
en

tia
l a

lte
ra

tio
n 

of
 te

xt
 p

ar
as

 2
.6

4 
an

d 
2.

65
 s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 e

xp
la

in
 

th
at

 th
e 

Po
lic

y 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 

up
 in

 th
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
tra

te
gy

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
      

Th
e 

su
gg

es
te

d 
am

en
dm

en
t 

to
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

w
ill 

re
m

ov
e 

an
y 

un
ce

rta
in

ty
 a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
e 

its
 c

la
rit

y.
 

 

ST
2:

 T
ra

ffi
c 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

03
2/

07
74

 E
 D

 C
ha

m
be

rs
 

07
8/

10
78

 M
rJ

C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
Fo

E)
 

11
6/

12
56

 T
he

 P
in

ne
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

31
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

ST
3 

Lo
nd

on
-W

id
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 N
et

w
or

k 
                        

01
8/

04
16

 L
au

re
nc

e 
C

ox
 

02
0/

04
22

 R
us

se
ll 

Ka
ne

 
03

3/
05

18
 S

 E
 S

pe
lls

 
03

4/
05

22
 H

 J
 S

pe
lls

 
04

6/
05

36
 P

am
el

a 
Le

a 
04

7/
05

40
 D

eb
or

ah
 M

al
le

tt 
04

8/
05

44
 M

is
s 

D
 H

 H
ol

bu
rn

 
04

9/
05

48
S 

Pa
ck

 
07

0/
06

05
 B

 M
oo

rh
ou

se
 

05
2/

09
87

 C
 J

 W
ay

m
an

 
05

2/
09

88
 C

 J
 W

ay
m

an
 

08
5/

11
07

 J
 M

 K
er

r 
09

2/
11

36
 R

os
 S

ha
w

 
09

3/
11

40
 M

rs
 R

am
ba

i K
am

i 
09

4/
11

44
 B

ar
ry

 G
ilb

er
t 

09
5/

11
48

 M
r J

 R
aw

al
 

09
6/

11
52

 C
hr

is
tin

e 
Al

la
in

 
09

7/
11

56
 M

r &
 M

rs
 M

en
ah

em
 

09
8/

11
60

 M
rs

 P
 R

os
en

be
rg

 
09

9/
11

64
 J

 F
er

na
nd

es
 

10
0/

11
68

 Z
 W

ad
oo

d 
10

1/
11

72
 G

uy
s 

N
ew

sa
ge

nt
s 

10
2/

11
76

 M
r T

 S
el

va
ra

ja
h 

10
3/

11
80

 M
r, 

M
rs

 &
 M

st
r 

M
ar

ca
m

pi
lla

i 
10

4/
11

84
 M

 C
 C

la
pi

ns
on

 

33
                          

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
                         

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
                         

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

                         

103



6 

ST
3 

Lo
nd

on
-W

id
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 N
et

w
or

k 
(C

on
t) 

    

10
5/

11
88

 P
 P

in
do

ria
 

10
6/

11
92

 D
 V

 P
at

el
 

10
7/

11
96

 P
 S

im
m

on
ds

 
10

8/
12

00
 J

oh
n 

an
d 

Ka
th

le
en

 M
ur

ph
y 

10
9/

12
04

 A
 B

ar
re

tto
 

12
6/

13
66

 D
av

id
 L

eb
of

f 
12

8/
13

76
 E

 C
op

pi
n 

13
1/

13
85

 V
 &

 K
 H

ira
ni

 
13

7/
14

50
 M

an
su

kh
 V

ek
ar

ia
 

06
0/

14
67

 M
rs

 A
ss

an
i 

33
     

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
    

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

    

ST
4:

 L
on

do
n-

W
id

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
t I

nv
es

tm
en

t 
08

1/
06

66
 M

r P
 S

co
tt 

05
3/

10
00

 W
at

lin
g 

C
h.

 C
om

. F
or

es
t 

34
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

ST
5:

 L
on

do
n-

W
id

e 
Tr

af
fic

 R
es

tr.
 P

ro
ps

. 
00

5/
06

85
 M

rs
 M

 S
ta

pl
et

on
 

34
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

SH
1 

an
d 

Pa
ra

s 
2.

82
 

an
d 

2.
83

:  
H

ou
si

ng
 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 

N
ee

d 

02
6/

04
37

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
07

4/
06

18
 C

PR
E 

Lo
nd

on
 

03
5/

07
91

 T
he

 E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 A

ge
nc

y 
06

2/
10

51
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

11
4/

12
11

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

12
2/

13
03

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

03
5/

01
69

R
 T

he
 E

m
pt

y 
H

om
es

 
Ag

en
cy

 
14

5/
02

23
R

 L
ai

ng
 H

om
es

 
14

5/
02

24
R

 L
ai

ng
 H

om
es

 
 

36
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n,

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
SH

1,
 fo

r “
th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

re
si

de
nt

s”
 o

f “
pr

os
pe

ct
iv

e 
oc

cu
pa

nt
s”

, b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

in
 P

ol
ic

y 
C

rit
er

io
n 

C
 o

f “
em

pt
y 

pr
op

er
ty

” 
fo

r “
em

pt
y 

ho
m

es
” a

nd
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

n 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 

C
rit

er
io

n 
E 

of
 “

sh
ar

ed
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n”
. 

 
Th

e 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

vi
se

d 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 o

n 
th

e 
lin

es
 I 

ha
ve

 in
di

ca
te

d 
an

d 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 d
et

ai
lin

g 
an

 a
im

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 c

ap
ac

ity
 e

st
im

at
e 

if 
po

ss
ib

le
, i

n 
th

e 
in

te
re

st
s 

of
 m

ak
in

g 
m

ax
im

um
 h

ou
si

ng
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
to

 a
lle

vi
at

e 
a 

lik
el

y 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 
un

sa
tis

fie
d 

de
m

an
d 

in
 a

ll 
se

ct
or

s,
 m

or
e 

pr
ec

is
e 

de
ta

ils
 a

s 
to

 w
hi

ch
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 g
iv

en
.  

Fu
rth

er
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 T

ab
le

 1
3 

of
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 C

ap
ac

ity
 S

tu
dy

, a
nd

 it
s 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 

w
ill 

as
si

st
 in

 c
la

rif
yi

ng
 th

e 
po

lic
y.

  I
n 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n,
 h

ow
ev

er
, 

it 
w

ill 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 
am

en
d 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fig

ur
e 

in
 S

H
1B

), 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r  
di

d 
no

t 
am

en
d.

  

104



7 

 SH
2 

: H
ou

si
ng

 T
yp

es
 

an
d 

M
ix

 
11

4/
12

12
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
 a

nd
 B

ry
an

t L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
11

5/
12

47
 M

ar
tin

 G
ra

nt
 H

om
es

 (U
K)

 
Lt

d 
12

2/
13

04
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
14

5/
02

25
R

 L
ai

ng
 H

om
es

 
 

   
   

  3
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

fo
r P

ol
ic

y 
SH

2 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
- 

‘T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 ty
pe

s 
an

d 
si

ze
s 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f a
ll 

pr
os

pe
ct

iv
e 

oc
cu

pa
nt

s,
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 
so

ci
al

 in
cl

us
io

n 
an

d 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
m

ix
ed

 
an

d 
ba

la
nc

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
.’ 

Th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
an

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

em
en

t t
ha

t s
ite

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

, m
ar

ke
ta

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ilit

y 
m

ig
ht

 w
el

l a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 to
 w

hi
ch

 
Po

lic
y 

ai
m

s 
co

ul
d 

pr
ac

tic
al

ly
 b

e 
ad

va
nc

ed
 

in
 th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 c
as

e.
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
w

ill 
as

si
st

 in
 c

la
rif

yi
ng

 th
e 

po
lic

y.
 

SE
M

1 
an

d 
Pa

ra
 

2.
88

:D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 

(a
nd

 P
IC

07
) 

  

06
5/

05
88

 P
et

er
 D

 K
yt

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 
07

2/
06

10
 W

m
. M

or
ris

on
 

Su
pe

rm
ar

ke
ts

 
06

2/
10

37
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

, P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

12
2/

13
06

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

00
7/

00
37

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
. C

o.
 F

or
um

 

38
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

07
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

SE
M

2 
an

d 
Pa

ra
 2

.9
0:

 
H

ie
ra

rc
hy

 o
f T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
s 

11
6/

12
57

 T
he

 P
in

ne
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
11

6/
12

58
 T

he
 P

in
ne

r A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

39
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 “
af

te
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

”,
 b

ef
or

e 
“th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
co

ns
id

er
 re

cl
as

si
fy

in
g 

a 
ce

nt
re

…
”, 

in
 th

e 
ei

gh
th

 s
en

te
nc

e 
of

 p
ar

a 
2.

90
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
in

 p
ar

t 
Th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

ch
an

ge
 w

ill 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

bu
t t

he
 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
w

or
d 

‘lo
ca

l’ 
m

ay
 

gi
ve

 th
e 

im
pr

es
si

on
 th

at
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ill 

be
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
 c

er
ta

in
 c

at
eg

or
y.

  A
 

fu
rth

er
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
is

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 
em

br
ac

e 
w

id
er

 p
ub

lic
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pr
oc

es
s.

 It
 is

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 

th
at

 th
e 

w
or

d 
‘, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
..’

 
be

 a
dd

ed
 in

 th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

w
or

di
ng

 a
fte

r t
he

 w
or

d 
‘c

on
su

lta
tio

n’
.  

105



8 

 SE
M

3:
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

N
ew

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t-
G

en
er

at
in

g 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 

00
6/

03
30

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

02
5/

04
36

 N
or

th
 W

es
t L

on
do

n 
C

ha
m

be
r o

f C
om

m
er

ce
 

 

39
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

SR
2:

 A
rts

, C
ul

tu
ra

l, 
En

te
rta

in
m

en
t, 

To
ur

is
t 

an
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
na

l 
Ac

tiv
iti

es
 

00
6/

03
31

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

01
3/

03
56

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
40

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d 

SI
1 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 2
.1

07
: 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 

02
8/

07
68

 G
 G

itt
er

 
07

8/
10

80
 M

r J
 C

ar
pe

nt
er

 (H
ar

ro
w

 
Fo

E)
 

 

40
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

 

106



9 

 C
H

A
PT

ER
 3

 –
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 A
N

D
 O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E 

  
U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
 

Pa
ra

. 
O

bj
ec

to
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
N

o.
 &

 N
am

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
R

ep
or

t 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 
(P

ag
e 

N
o)

 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

  
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
01

3/
03

57
 M

r P
 H

 P
oo

le
 

41
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
00

4/
03

93
-0

39
5 

Ja
ck

ie
 L

in
do

p 
 

41
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
02

7/
04

90
 E

ng
lis

h 
N

at
ur

e 
(E

ss
ex

, 
H

er
tfo

rd
sh

ire
 a

nd
 L

on
do

n 
Te

am
) 

42
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
05

3/
09

96
 W

at
lin

g 
C

ha
se

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

or
es

t 
42

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
05

3/
09

97
-0

99
9,

 &
 1

00
5 

 W
at

lin
g 

C
ha

se
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

or
es

t 
 

43
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
05

7/
05

77
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
43

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
06

2/
10

72
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r L
on

do
n,

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 D

iv
is

io
n 

06
4/

12
08

-1
20

9 
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

(H
SE

) 
 

43
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
13

2/
14

00
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

44
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

N
at

io
na

l &
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
C

on
te

xt
, 

Pa
ra

s 
3.

2 
- 3

.1
2 

O
44

/0
89

4 
G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

00
7/

00
42

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

 

44
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

s 
3.

4 
an

d 
3.

4a
 

(a
nd

 P
IC

08
 &

 
PI

C
09

) 
 

05
7/

01
81

R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
05

7/
02

88
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

 

45
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
es

 0
8 

an
d 

09
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
 

107



10
 

EP
7 

an
d 

Pa
ra

s 
3.

17
-3

.1
9 

07
5/

06
29

 E
TS

U
 fo

r t
he

 D
TI

 
11

4/
12

13
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 V

al
le

y)
 

Lt
d 

an
d 

Br
ya

nt
 L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

00
7/

00
44

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

46
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

fo
r P

ol
ic

y 
EP

7 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
- ‘

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
so

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
as

 to
 

m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l, 

to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 
th

at
 th

is
 is

 p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

, v
ia

bl
e 

an
d 

ca
us

es
 n

o 
un

du
e 

ha
rm

 to
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t o
r r

es
id

en
tia

l a
m

en
iti

es
, 

of
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

sc
he

m
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 
m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 s

ol
ar

 e
ne

rg
y,

 
ph

ot
ov

ol
ta

ic
s 

an
d 

na
tu

ra
l v

en
til

at
io

n.
”. 

C
on

se
qu

en
tia

l a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
 s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
ou

ld
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y.

  
 

EP
8 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 
3.

25
: E

ne
rg

y 
Su

pp
ly

 a
nd

 
G

en
er

at
io

n 
(a

nd
 

PI
C

10
 &

 P
IC

11
) 

07
5/

06
31

 E
TS

U
 fo

r t
he

 D
TI

 
05

3/
10

01
 W

at
lin

g 
C

ha
se

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

or
es

t 
00

7/
00

50
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
05

7/
01

82
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

 

47
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
EP

8 
an

d 
its

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
EP

7 
al

re
ad

y 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 re
ne

w
ab

le
s 

& 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
su

rp
lu

s 
to

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

EP
10

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
3.

31
: W

at
er

 
Q

ua
lit

y,
 S

up
pl

y 
an

d
D

is
po

sa
l (

an
d 

PI
C

12
) 

07
8/

10
83

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 F

oE
) 

00
7/

00
52

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

00
7/

00
53

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

05
7/

01
83

R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
13

2/
02

16
R

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
00

7/
02

36
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
 

48
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
n,

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
EP

10
, p

ar
a 

B,
 o

f t
he

 
w

or
ds

 “o
r e

co
lo

gi
ca

l” 
be

tw
ee

n 
“w

at
er

” 
an

d 
“q

ua
lit

y”
. 

 Pa
ra

 3
.3

1 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
-w

rit
te

n 
as

 
in

di
ca

te
d 

ab
ov

e.
 

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
R

ef
le

ct
s 

PI
C

12
. 

EP
11

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
3.

34
: S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

U
rb

an
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

(a
nd

 P
IC

13
) 

02
6/

04
38

  H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
11

4/
12

14
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 V

al
le

y)
 

Lt
d 

an
d 

Br
ya

nt
 L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

13
5/

14
41

 S
ai

ns
bu

ry
's

 S
up

er
m

ar
ke

ts
 L

td
 

00
7/

00
56

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
. C

on
. F

or
um

 
05

7/
01

84
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

11
4/

02
11

R
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 V

al
le

y)
 

Lt
d 

an
d 

Br
ya

nt
 L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

 

49
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 P
ol

ic
y 

EP
11

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n 

be
 m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ad

di
tio

n,
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

th
e 

Po
lic

y 
w

or
di

ng
, o

f “
w

he
re

 
pr

ac
tic

ab
le

” a
nd

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

re
-

In
qu

iry
 C

ha
ng

e 
13

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
R

ef
le

ct
s 

PI
C

13
. 

108



11
 

EP
12

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
42

 a
nd

 3
.4

4:
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ith
in

 F
lo

od
pl

ai
ns

 

00
6/

03
34

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

00
7/

00
58

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

00
7/

00
59

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

49
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
13

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
46

 a
nd

 3
.4

7:
 

C
on

tro
l o

f S
ur

fa
ce

 
W

at
er

 R
un

-O
ff 

(a
nd

 P
IC

14
) 

05
3/

10
02

 W
at

lin
g 

C
ha

se
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
re

st
 

11
4/

12
16

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 V
al

le
y)

 
Lt

d 
an

d 
Br

ya
nt

 L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
00

7/
00

60
R

-0
06

1R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

05
7/

01
85

R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
 

50
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

14
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

 3
.4

8:
 

C
ul

ve
rti

ng
 a

nd
 

D
ec

ul
ve

rti
ng

 

00
7/

00
63

R
–0

06
4R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
 

51
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
16

: W
at

er
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
13

5/
14

42
 S

ai
ns

bu
ry

's
 S

up
er

m
ar

ke
ts

 L
td

 
51

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Pa
ra

 3
.5

4:
 W

as
te

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
D

is
po

sa
l a

nd
 

R
ec

yc
lin

g 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(a
nd

 P
IC

15
) 

13
2/

14
01

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
13

2/
02

17
R

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
 

52
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

15
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
21

: U
se

 o
f 

Pr
ev

io
us

ly
-

D
ev

el
op

ed
 L

an
d 

02
6/

04
39

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
00

7/
07

29
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
. F

or
um

 
09

0/
11

20
 T

es
co

 S
to

re
s 

Lt
d 

11
4/

12
17

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 V
al

le
y)

 
Lt

d 
an

d 
Br

ya
nt

 L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
11

7/
12

79
 B

el
lw

ay
 H

om
es

 L
td

 
12

2/
13

07
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
00

7/
00

70
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
12

2/
02

14
R

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

14
5/

02
26

R
 L

ai
ng

 H
om

es
 

 

53
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
22

: V
ac

an
t a

nd
 

D
is

us
ed

 L
an

d 
an

d 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 

03
5/

07
97

 T
he

 E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 A

ge
nc

y 
11

4/
12

18
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 V

al
le

y)
 

Lt
d 

an
d 

Br
ya

nt
 L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

12
2/

13
08

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

 

53
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

109



12
 

EP
23

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
70

 a
nd

 3
.7

2b
: 

C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 

La
nd

 

11
4/

12
19

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 V
al

le
y)

 
Lt

d 
an

d 
Br

ya
nt

 L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
00

7/
00

72
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
 

54
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
24

: A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

00
6/

03
32

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

01
3/

03
58

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
 

54
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

 3
.7

9:
 N

oi
se

 
00

5/
06

89
 M

rs
 M

 S
ta

pl
et

on
 

00
5/

00
05

R
 M

rs
 M

 S
ta

pl
et

on
 

 

55
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

 3
.8

5:
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

05
7/

05
64

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

00
7/

00
77

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

 

55
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
26

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
87

-3
.8

9 
(a

nd
 

PI
C

16
) 

05
7/

05
65

-0
56

6 
M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
07

6/
06

35
 H

er
ts

 a
nd

 M
id

dl
es

ex
 W

ild
lif

e 
Tr

us
t 

05
3/

10
03

 W
at

lin
g 

C
ha

se
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
or

es
t 

00
7/

00
80

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

05
7/

01
86

R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
 

56
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

16
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
27

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
90

 a
nd

 3
.9

1:
 

Sp
ec

ie
s 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
(a

nd
 P

IC
 1

7,
PI

C
18

 
& 

PI
C

 1
9)

 

02
7/

04
88

 E
ng

lis
h 

N
at

ur
e 

(E
ss

ex
, 

H
er

tfo
rd

sh
ire

 a
nd

 L
on

do
n 

Te
am

) 
05

7/
05

67
-0

56
8 

M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

05
7/

05
70

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

06
2/

10
41

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r L

on
do

n,
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 D
iv

is
io

n 
00

7/
00

81
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
02

7/
01

64
R

 E
ng

lis
h 

N
at

ur
e 

(E
ss

ex
, 

H
er

tfo
rd

sh
ire

 a
nd

 L
on

do
n 

Te
am

) 
05

7/
01

87
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

 

57
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
es

 
17

,1
8 

an
d 

19
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

110



13
 

 EP
28

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
92

-3
.9

8:
 

C
on

se
rv

in
g 

an
d 

En
ha

nc
in

g 
Bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 (a

nd
 

PI
C

20
, P

IC
21

, 
PI

C
22

, P
IC

23
 a

nd
 

PI
C

24
) 

02
6/

04
40

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
02

7/
04

89
 E

ng
lis

h 
N

at
ur

e 
(E

ss
ex

, 
H

er
tfo

rd
sh

ire
 a

nd
 L

on
do

n 
Te

am
) 

05
7/

05
69

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

05
7/

05
71

-0
57

6 
M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
00

7/
07

30
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
s.

 F
or

um
 

11
4/

12
20

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 V
al

le
y)

 
Lt

d 
an

d 
Br

ya
nt

 L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
11

7/
12

80
 B

el
lw

ay
 H

om
es

 L
td

 
13

3/
14

30
 H

ar
ro

w
 &

 H
illi

ng
do

n 
G

eo
l. 

So
c.

 
00

7/
00

83
R

-0
08

4R
, 0

08
6R

-0
08

7R
 &

 0
09

1R
 

H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
05

7/
01

88
R

-0
19

2R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
 

59
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
es

 2
0,

 
21

, 2
2,

 2
3 

an
d 

24
,w

ith
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

n 
of

 
“la

nd
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o”
 b

ef
or

e 
“H

ar
ro

w
 W

ea
ld

 
C

om
m

on
” i

n 
PI

C
24

, a
nd

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

fo
r P

ol
ic

y 
EP

28
 p

ar
a 

F 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
- 

 
 “F

) E
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

ny
 lo

ss
 o

f h
ab

ita
t, 

e.
g.

 w
oo

dl
an

d,
 w

et
la

nd
 e

tc
., 

is
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
ed

 fo
r b

y 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

t 
le

as
t a

n 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 a
re

a 
of

 la
nd

 o
f 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 h

ab
ita

t q
ua

lit
y 

un
de

r t
he

 
te

rm
s 

of
 a

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ob

lig
at

io
n”

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
ch

an
ge

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 fo

r 
EP

28
 p

ar
a 

F 
w

ill 
gi

ve
 

cl
ar

ity
 to

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
en

su
re

 th
at

 ‘e
qu

iv
al

en
t 

ha
bi

ta
t q

ua
lit

y’
 is

 s
ou

gh
t i

f 
a 

ha
bi

ta
t i

s 
re

pl
ac

ed
. 

Pa
ra

 3
.9

9:
 T

re
es

 
 

01
3/

03
59

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
59

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Te
xt

 M
ap

 3
: G

re
en

 
C

or
rid

or
s 

08
2/

06
73

 P
in

ne
r S

ou
th

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

00
7/

07
31

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
 

60
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
29

: T
re

e 
M

as
se

s 
an

d 
Sp

in
es

 
 

07
8/

10
86

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 F

oE
) 

60
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
30

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
3.

10
7 

(a
nd

 P
IC

25
)

 

01
3/

03
60

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
05

7/
01

93
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

61
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

25
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
32

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
11

1 
an

d 
3.

11
2:

 
Ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 G
re

en
 

Be
lt 

La
nd

 U
se

s 
  

01
3/

03
61

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
08

0/
06

65
 H

ea
ds

to
ne

 R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

. 
00

7/
07

32
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

01
5/

07
39

 D
ef

en
ce

 E
st

at
es

, S
ou

th
 E

as
t a

nd
 

G
er

m
an

y 
12

2/
13

09
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
 

62
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

111



14
 

EP
32

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
11

1 
an

d 
3.

11
2:

 
G

re
en

 B
el

t l
an

d 
at

 
St

an
m

or
e 

H
ill 

 

06
6/

06
00

 L
au

ra
 D

ub
in

er
 

63
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
32

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
11

1 
-3

.1
12

:G
re

en
Be

lt 
la

nd
 a

t M
ag

pi
e 

H
al

l R
oa

d 
an

d 
H

ea
th

bo
ur

ne
 

R
oa

d,
 S

ta
nm

or
e 

 

07
3/

06
16

 M
s 

P 
G

ol
et

to
 

08
3/

06
74

-0
68

4 
M

rs
 W

al
do

rf 
11

9/
12

84
 M

s 
P 

G
ol

et
to

 
11

9/
13

55
-1

36
4 

M
s 

P 
G

ol
et

to
 

  

66
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
32

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
11

1 
& 

3.
11

2:
 

G
re

en
 B

el
t l

an
d 

W
. 

of
 H

ea
ds

to
ne

 L
an

e
 

09
1/

11
25

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

po
rts

 L
td

 
09

1/
11

26
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
po

rts
 L

td
 

 

67
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
33

: 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
G

re
en

 B
el

t 
 

12
2/

13
10

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

68
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
34

: E
xt

en
si

on
 to

 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 th
e 

G
re

en
 B

el
t 

 

07
4/

06
19

 C
PR

E 
Lo

nd
on

 
68

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

EP
35

: M
aj

or
 

D
ev

el
op

ed
 S

ite
s 

in
 

th
e 

G
re

en
 B

el
t -

 
G

en
er

al
 

 

05
3/

10
04

 W
at

lin
g 

C
ha

se
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
or

es
t 

07
8/

10
97

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 F

oE
) 

00
7/

02
41

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

69
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
35

 a
nd

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

M
ap

 
de

si
gn

at
io

n:
 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

, 
W

ea
ld

 C
am

pu
s 

 

06
1/

10
20

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

 
06

1/
10

21
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

ge
 

06
1/

02
01

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

ge
 

 

70
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 p

ar
a 

3.
11

7 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
- “

Th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t e

nv
el

op
e 

fo
r H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

ge
 (W

ea
ld

 C
am

pu
s)

, 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ex
te

nt
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 th

e 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

M
ap

” 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
A 

si
m

ila
r r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

 is
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 p

ar
a 

9.
29

 o
f 

th
e 

Pl
an

. 

112



15
 

EP
37

: R
e-

U
se

 o
f 

Ex
is

tin
g 

Bu
ild

in
gs

 
in

 th
e 

G
re

en
 B

el
t 

 

07
6/

06
34

 H
er

ts
 a

nd
 M

id
dl

es
ex

 W
ild

lif
e 

Tr
us

t 
 

71
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
38

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
3.

12
1:

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l
U

se
s 

in
 th

e 
G

re
en

 
Be

lt 
 

01
3/

03
62

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
71

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

EP
40

: B
ui

ld
in

gs
 fo

r 
In

do
or

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

U
se

 in
 th

e 
G

re
en

 
Be

lt 
 

01
3/

03
63

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
71

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

EP
41

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 

3.
12

5 
an

d 
3.

12
6:

 
G

re
en

 B
el

t M
an

. 
St

ra
te

gy
 

 

01
3/

03
64

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
00

7/
00

95
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
 

72
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
41

A:
 W

at
lin

g 
C

ha
se

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

Fo
re

st
 (a

nd
 P

IC
26

)
 

05
7/

01
94

R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
72

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 P
re

-In
qu

iry
 C

ha
ng

e 
26

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

fu
rth

er
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

EP
42

: G
re

en
 B

el
t 

an
d 

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
O

pe
n 

La
nd

 F
rin

ge
s

 

12
2/

13
11

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

73
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
43

: M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
O

pe
n 

La
nd

 –
 G

en
.

 

01
3/

03
65

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
12

2/
13

12
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
74

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

EP
43

: M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
O

pe
n 

La
nd

 - 
H

ar
ro

w
-o

n-
th

e-
H

ill 
co

ve
re

d 
re

se
rv

oi
r 

 

04
5/

05
31

 T
hr

ee
 V

al
le

ys
 W

at
er

 p
lc

 
75

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

EP
43

: M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 
O

pe
n 

La
nd

 - 
la

nd
 

al
on

gs
id

e 
R

. P
in

n 
 

00
4/

03
79

 J
ac

ki
e 

Li
nd

op
 

75
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

113



16
 

EP
44

: A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

on
 M

et
. 

O
pe

n 
La

nd
 

 

04
5/

05
32

 T
hr

ee
 V

al
le

ys
 W

at
er

 p
lc

 
12

2/
13

13
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
   

76
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
45

: G
re

en
 

C
ha

in
s 

 

00
6/

03
40

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

01
3/

03
66

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
07

9/
06

62
 P

at
ric

k 
M

ur
ph

y 
00

7/
07

33
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
s.

 F
or

um
 

07
8/

10
98

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 F

oE
) 

 

77
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
46

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
3.

13
9:

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e

 

00
6/

03
36

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

00
6/

03
37

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

01
3/

03
67

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
12

5/
13

53
 O

ld
 L

yo
ni

an
s 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

05
7/

01
95

R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
 

78
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
n,

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f P
ol

ic
y 

EP
46

, o
f 

th
e 

w
or

ds
 “u

nl
es

s 
th

e 
si

te
 is

 s
ur

pl
us

 to
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
r s

ui
ta

bl
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
is

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e”

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

  
in

 p
ar

t 
Th

e 
re

as
on

ed
 ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

vi
se

d 
w

or
di

ng
. I

t s
ho

ul
d 

al
so

 c
la

rif
y 

w
hy

 it
 is

 
im

po
rta

nt
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 s
uc

h 
ar

ea
s,

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
lc

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

un
de

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 p
er

m
it 

no
n-

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l u

se
s.

   
 

Te
xt

 M
ap

 4
: A

re
as

 
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 L
ac

ki
ng

 a
 

Lo
ca

l P
ar

k 
 

00
6/

03
43

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

78
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
47

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
3.

14
6:

 P
ub

lic
 O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e 
- G

en
er

al
 

 

00
7/

07
34

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
79

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

EP
47

 a
nd

  P
ar

a 
3.

14
6:

 P
O

S 
- P

ar
k 

Vi
ew

 la
nd

 
 

01
3/

03
78

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
04

2/
08

37
 T

he
 H

at
ch

 E
nd

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

80
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EP
49

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
3.

15
3:

 In
fo

rm
al

 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e 
(a

nd
 P

IC
27

)
 

00
7/

07
35

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
05

7/
01

96
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

 

80
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

27
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

114



17
 

 C
H

A
PT

ER
 4

 –
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 T
H

E 
B

U
IL

T 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
  

U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
. 

O
bj

ec
to

r R
ef

er
en

ce
 

N
o.

 &
 N

am
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

R
ep

or
t 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 

(P
ag

e 
N

o)
 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

  
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

G
en

er
al

 
 

00
4/

03
83

 J
ac

ki
e 

Li
nd

op
 

81
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
Pa

ra
 4

.1
0:

 D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Bu
ilt

  E
nv

. O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

(a
nd

 P
IC

28
) 

 

14
3/

02
22

R
 L

on
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 
H

illi
ng

do
n 

81
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

of
 ‘p

ro
te

ct
io

n’
 fo

r 
‘p

re
se

rv
at

io
n’

 in
 p

ar
a 

4.
10

(ii
i).

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
w

or
di

ng
 

m
or

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
ly

 re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 

PP
G

15
  

D
4 

an
d 

Pa
ra

s 
4.

16
, 

4.
17

, 4
.2

0,
 4

.2
7 

& 
4.

28
: S

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

La
yo

ut
 

00
4/

03
96

 J
ac

ki
e 

Li
nd

op
 

06
5/

05
89

 P
et

er
 D

 K
yt

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 
06

9/
06

03
 B

er
na

rd
 B

ur
ns

 
01

5/
07

41
 D

ef
en

ce
 E

st
at

es
, S

ou
th

 E
as

t 
an

d 
G

er
m

an
y 

03
5/

07
98

 T
he

 E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 A

ge
nc

y 
04

3/
08

62
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

(P
O

P)
, A

ge
 C

on
ce

rn
 H

ar
ro

w
 

06
2/

10
38

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
, P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 
11

4/
12

21
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
 a

nd
 B

ry
an

t L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
11

7/
12

81
 B

el
lw

ay
 H

om
es

 L
td

 
12

2/
13

14
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
14

5/
02

27
R

 L
ai

ng
 H

om
es

 
 

84
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
 to

 
Po

lic
y 

D
4 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f r
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 
tra

ns
po

rt 
lin

ks
 a

s 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 la

nd
 fo

r c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
re

as
on

ed
 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

in
 p

ar
a 

4.
20

 
re

co
gn

is
es

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
la

yo
ut

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
sp

ac
es

 d
oe

s 
no

t h
av

e 
an

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
no

n 
ca

r t
ra

ns
po

rt 
m

od
es

. T
he

 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

de
tra

ct
 fr

om
 th

is
 

ob
je

ct
iv

e.
 

115



18
 

D
5 

an
d 

Pa
ra

s 
4.

33
 

an
d 

4.
37

: N
ew

 
R

es
id

en
tia

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t -

–
Am

en
ity

 S
pa

ce
 a

nd
 

Pr
iv

ac
y 

00
6/

03
4 

M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

00
4/

03
82

 J
ac

ki
e 

Li
nd

op
 

02
6/

04
41

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n0
65

/0
59

0 
Pe

te
r D

 K
yt

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 
06

5/
05

91
 P

et
er

 D
 K

yt
e 

As
so

ci
at

es
 

12
2/

13
15

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

85
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

fro
m

 P
ol

ic
y 

D
5 

of
 “F

am
ily

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

at
 

gr
ou

nd
 fl

oo
r w

he
re

ve
r p

os
si

bl
e,

 w
ith

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 p

riv
at

e 
ga

rd
en

 s
pa

ce
;” 

an
d 

(in
 

pa
ra

 C
) “

ha
ve

 re
ar

 g
ar

de
ns

 th
at

 re
sp

ec
t 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r o
f t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 a

re
a 

an
d”

.  
C

on
se

qu
en

tia
l a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

ch
an

ge
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 le

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

dv
oc

at
ed

 in
 

PP
G

3 
an

d 
ad

vi
ce

 to
 

av
oi

d 
in

fle
xi

bl
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 T
he

 is
su

es
 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

tte
r 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 S
PG

.  
 

D
6 

an
d 

D
7:

 D
es

ig
n 

in
 

Em
p.

 A
re

as
, R

et
ai

l 
Ar

ea
s 

& 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
s 

05
4/

05
60

 M
rs

 E
 H

ill 
05

4/
05

61
 M

rs
 E

 H
ill 

86
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

D
8 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 4
.3

7:
 

St
or

ag
e 

of
 W

as
te

, 
R

ec
yc

la
bl

e 
an

d 
R

e-
U

sa
bl

e 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 in
 

N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

 

02
6/

04
42

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
86

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

D
9:

 S
tre

et
si

de
 

G
re

en
ne

ss
 a

nd
 

Fo
re

co
ur

t G
re

en
er

y 

02
8/

07
61

 G
 G

itt
er

 
03

2/
07

73
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
04

2/
08

40
 T

he
 H

at
ch

 E
nd

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

00
7/

01
06

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
. C

on
. F

or
um

  
 

87
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

D
10

: R
ea

r G
ar

de
n 

In
te

rfa
ce

 
02

8/
07

65
 G

 G
itt

er
 

12
2/

13
16

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

88
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
D

10
 a

nd
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Su

ch
 la

nd
 w

ou
ld

 s
til

l b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ot

he
r p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
Pl

an
  w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ce
rta

in
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
fo

r s
uc

h 
ar

ea
s.

 
D

11
: T

re
es

 a
nd

 N
ew

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

02
6/

04
43

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
04

3/
08

61
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

(P
O

P)
, A

ge
 C

on
ce

rn
 H

ar
ro

w
 

06
2/

10
39

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
, P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 
11

5/
12

43
 M

ar
tin

 G
ra

nt
 H

om
es

 (U
K)

 L
d 

 
 

88
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

116



19
 

D
13

 a
nd

 D
14

: L
oc

al
ly

 
Li

st
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

11
4/

12
22

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

11
4/

12
23

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

 

89
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 s
en

te
nc

e 
of

 
Po

lic
y 

D
13

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
tia

l 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 p

ar
a 

4.
52

, a
nd

 th
e 

re
m

ov
al

, i
n 

its
 e

nt
ire

ty
, o

f P
ol

ic
y 

D
14

 a
nd

 
its

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 te

xt
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
 

pa
rt 

Th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 p

ol
ic

y 
D

14
 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ch

an
ge

 to
 D

13
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

fa
ct

 th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 
st

at
ut

or
y 

po
w

er
s 

to
 

re
qu

ire
 th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 

lo
ca

lly
 li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
. I

t 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d,

 h
ow

ev
er

, 
th

at
 p

ar
a.

 4
.5

2 
is

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 P
PG

15
 

gu
id

an
ce

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 
th

ei
r r

et
en

tio
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

re
m

ai
n 

un
ch

an
ge

d.
 

 
D

15
: T

he
 U

se
 o

f 
St

at
ut

or
ily

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
ly

 
Li

st
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 (a

nd
 

PI
C

29
) 

 

11
4/

12
24

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

90
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n,

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
D

15
, o

f t
he

 w
or

ds
 

‘o
r l

oc
al

ly
’. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
am

en
dm

en
t m

or
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
 re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
fa

ct
 

th
at

 lo
ca

lly
 li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

do
 n

ot
 e

nj
oy

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

as
 th

os
e 

on
 th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

lis
t. 

 
 

D
16

: C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
s 

01
3/

03
68

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
04

5/
05

33
 T

hr
ee

 V
al

le
ys

 W
at

er
 p

lc
 

02
8/

07
66

 G
 G

itt
er

 
02

8/
07

67
 G

 G
itt

er
 

06
2/

10
40

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
, P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 
 

91
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

D
18

: C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 P

rio
rit

y 
11

4/
12

25
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
 a

nd
 B

ry
an

t L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
01

0/
01

55
R

-0
15

6R
 E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
 

(L
on

do
n 

R
eg

io
n)

 
 

91
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

D
20

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
4.

66
 

an
d 

Te
xt

 M
ap

 6
: 

H
is

to
ric

 P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 

G
ar

de
ns

 
 

07
4/

06
20

 C
PR

E 
Lo

nd
on

 
07

4/
06

24
 C

PR
E 

Lo
nd

on
 

07
8/

10
99

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 

Fo
E)

 

92
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

117



20
 

D
21

: A
nc

ie
nt

 
M

on
um

en
ts

 
 

07
8/

11
00

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 

Fo
E)

 
92

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

D
22

, D
23

 a
nd

 D
24

: 
Si

te
s 

of
 

Ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 

Im
po

rta
nc

e 
 

03
0/

04
91

 M
r R

 M
ille

r 
03

0/
04

92
 M

r R
 M

ille
r 

03
0/

04
93

 M
r R

 M
ille

r 

93
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

D
25

: L
ig

ht
in

g,
 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Fl

oo
dl

ig
ht

in
g 

01
3/

03
69

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
05

7/
01

98
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

93
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

an
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
 to

 P
ol

ic
y 

D
25

 in
di

ca
tin

g 
th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

in
 w

hi
ch

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

lig
ht

in
g.

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

is
 w

ill 
cl

ar
ify

 s
itu

at
io

ns
 

w
he

re
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

w
ill 

ap
pl

y.
 

D
26

 a
nd

 P
ar

as
 4

.8
1 

an
d 

4.
82

: 
Te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

01
3/

03
70

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
01

3/
03

71
 M

r P
 H

 P
oo

le
 

03
9/

05
29

 R
ai

ltr
ac

k 
06

7/
06

01
 V

od
af

on
e 

Lt
d 

12
1/

12
88

 B
T 

pl
c 

12
3/

12
91

 C
ro

w
n 

C
as

tle
 U

K 
Lt

d 
12

3/
12

92
 C

ro
w

n 
C

as
tle

 U
K 

Lt
d 

06
7/

14
72

 V
od

af
on

e 
Lt

d 
 

94
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

fo
r P

ol
ic

y 
D

26
, c

rit
er

io
n 

A 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
- “

A
) N

o 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e,
 a

nd
 le

ss
 h

ar
m

fu
l, 

m
ea

ns
 o

f 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
co

ve
ra

ge
 

de
fic

ie
nc

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
pr

os
pe

ct
iv

e 
op

er
at

or
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 h
im

:’ 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

, 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

m
in

or
 

al
te

ra
tio

n.
 

Th
e 

th
ru

st
 o

f t
he

 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

is
 a

cc
ep

te
d.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 fi

na
l t

w
o 

w
or

ds
 a

re
 re

du
nd

an
t a

nd
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

le
te

d.
 

D
31

: S
tre

et
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

 
 

02
6/

04
44

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
95

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

D
32

: P
ub

lic
 A

rt 
an

d 
D

es
ig

n 
11

5/
12

44
 M

ar
tin

 G
ra

nt
 H

om
es

 (U
K)

 
Lt

d 
95

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
su

bs
tit

ut
io

n 
fo

r P
ol

ic
y 

 D
32

 o
f t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
- 

 
“In

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r m

aj
or

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ub

lic
 

vi
si

bi
lit

y,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

, 
w

he
re

 th
e 

si
te

 lo
ca

tio
n 

is
 fa

vo
ur

ab
le

, 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 w

or
ks

 o
f a

rt
.” 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

ch
an

ge
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
cl

ea
re

r 
ba

si
s 

fo
r t

he
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
po

lic
y.

  

 

118



21
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 5

 - 
TR

A
N

SP
O

R
T 

  
U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
 

Pa
ra

. 
O

bj
ec

to
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
N

o.
 &

 N
am

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
R

ep
or

t 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 
(P

ag
e 

N
o)

 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

00
3/

03
22

 G
en

er
al

 A
vi

at
io

n 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

C
ou

nc
il 

 

96
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

O
m

is
si

on
 

00
4/

03
90

 J
ac

ki
e 

Li
nd

op
 

96
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

G
en

er
al

 
00

6/
03

44
 M

r P
 J

ef
fre

y 
 

97
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

01
3/

03
55

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
97

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

03
9/

05
30

 R
ai

ltr
ac

k 
97

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Tr
an

sp
or

t O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 -

pa
ra

 5
.1

2 
03

2/
07

82
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
98

 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
su

bs
tit

ut
io

n 
fo

r O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
(i)

 in
 p

ar
a 

5.
12

 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
-“T

o 
he

lp
 b

rin
g 

ab
ou

t a
 

la
nd

 u
se

 p
at

te
rn

 w
he

re
 tr

av
el

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 b

y 
ca

r, 
is

 m
in

im
is

ed
, a

nd
 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 re
al

is
tic

 c
ho

ic
e 

of
 m

od
e 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t.’

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
ill 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

cl
ea

re
r. 

 

T6
 a

nd
 P

ar
as

 5
.1

5a
 

an
d 

5.
16

: T
he

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t I

m
pa

ct
 o

f 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pr
op

os
al

s 

01
3/

03
73

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
04

3/
08

64
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

(P
O

P)
, A

ge
 C

on
ce

rn
 H

ar
ro

w
 

04
4/

08
97

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 
11

5/
12

49
 M

ar
tin

 G
ra

nt
 H

om
es

 (U
K)

 L
d 

12
2/

13
17

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

04
3/

01
74

R
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

(P
O

P)
, A

ge
 C

on
ce

rn
 H

ar
ro

w
 

99
 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
   

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
   

119



22
 

 T7
: D

es
ig

ni
ng

 N
ew

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ith
 

G
oo

d 
Ac

ce
ss

 in
 M

in
d 

 

07
2/

06
12

 W
m

. M
or

ris
on

 S
up

er
m

ar
ke

ts
 

11
5/

12
52

 M
ar

tin
 G

ra
nt

 H
om

es
 (U

K)
 

Lt
d 

99
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

- I
 re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

T7
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
m

at
te

rs
 w

ill 
be

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
co

ve
re

d 
in

 
Ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
D

es
ig

n 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

T8
 a

nd
 P

ar
a 

5.
20

: 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t F
ac

ilit
ie

s 

02
2/

04
28

 M
r J

 C
ob

b 
03

2/
07

81
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
06

2/
10

42
 G

O
L,

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

03
7/

01
70

R
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

R
ai

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
03

9/
01

72
R

 R
ai

ltr
ac

k 
 

10
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Te
xt

 M
ap

 9
: B

us
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

in
 H

ar
ro

w
 

00
6/

03
42

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

10
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Te
xt

 M
ap

 1
0:

 P
ub

lic
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
01

3/
03

72
 M

r P
 H

 P
oo

le
 

10
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

T8
A 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 5
.2

1b
: 

R
ai

l F
re

ig
ht

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
(a

nd
 P

IC
30

) 

03
9/

01
73

R
 R

ai
ltr

ac
k 

03
7/

29
98

R
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

R
ai

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
10

2 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 P
re

-In
qu

iry
 C

ha
ng

e 
30

, 
an

d 
fu

rth
er

 a
lte

ra
tio

n 
to

 re
ad

: 
 

“T
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 R

ai
l A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 R
ai

ltr
ac

k 
[n

ow
 N

et
w

or
k 

R
ai

l] 
an

d 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 

Tr
ai

n 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

C
om

pa
ni

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

on
 a

ny
 p

ro
po

sa
l.”

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
Pr

e-
In

qu
iry

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

th
e 

su
gg

es
te

d 
am

en
dm

en
t w

ill 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
po

lic
y.

 

 

T9
 a

nd
 P

ar
a 

5.
22

: 
W

al
ki

ng
  

04
3/

08
59

 P
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
(P

O
P)

, A
ge

 C
on

ce
rn

 H
ar

ro
w

 
12

2/
13

18
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
13

0/
13

81
 N

 W
at

er
ho

us
e 

05
7/

01
97

R
 M

r J
 D

ob
so

n 
03

9/
05

30
 R

ai
ltr

ac
k 

10
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

T1
0 

an
d 

5.
24

: C
yc

lin
g

00
2/

03
10

 R
ev

d 
T 

Br
ad

sh
aw

  
00

4/
03

92
 J

ac
ki

e 
Li

nd
op

 
03

2/
07

72
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
08

8/
11

11
-1

11
3 

R
ow

la
nd

s 
Av

e.
R

es
. 

11
6/

12
65

 T
he

 P
in

ne
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
12

2/
13

19
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
 

10
3 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

  

120



23
 

 T1
1:

 C
yc

le
 a

nd
 M

ot
or

 
C

yc
le

 P
ar

ki
ng

 in
 

Pu
bl

ic
 P

la
ce

s 

00
2/

03
11

 R
ev

d 
T 

Br
ad

sh
aw

 
07

2/
06

14
 W

m
 M

or
ris

on
 S

up
er

m
ar

ke
ts

 
10

4 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

T1
2:

 R
ea

llo
ca

tin
g 

Av
ai

la
bl

e 
R

oa
ds

pa
ce

 
an

d 
M

an
ag

in
g 

Tr
af

fic
 

                                

01
8/

04
17

 L
au

re
nc

e 
C

ox
 

02
0/

04
23

 R
us

se
ll 

Ka
ne

 
03

3/
05

19
 S

 E
 S

pe
lls

 
03

4/
05

23
 H

 J
 S

pe
lls

 
04

6/
05

37
 P

am
el

a 
Le

a 
04

7/
05

41
 D

eb
or

ah
 M

al
le

tt 
04

8/
05

45
 M

is
s 

D
 H

 H
ol

bu
rn

 
04

9/
05

49
 S

 P
ac

k 
07

0/
06

04
 B

 M
oo

rh
ou

se
 

05
2/

08
94

 C
J 

W
ay

m
an

 
09

2/
11

37
 R

os
 S

ha
w

 
09

3/
11

41
 M

rs
 R

am
ba

i K
am

i 
09

4/
11

45
 B

ar
ry

 G
ilb

er
t 

09
5/

11
49

 M
r J

 R
aw

al
 

09
6/

11
53

 C
hr

is
tin

e 
Al

la
in

 
09

7/
11

57
 M

r &
 M

rs
 M

en
ah

em
 

09
8/

11
61

 M
rs

 P
 R

os
en

be
rg

 
09

9/
11

65
 J

 F
er

na
nd

es
 

10
0/

11
69

 Z
 W

ad
oo

d 
10

1/
11

73
 G

uy
s 

N
ew

sa
ge

nt
s 

10
2/

11
77

 M
r T

 S
el

va
ra

ja
h 

10
3/

11
81

 M
r, 

M
rs

 &
 M

st
r M

ar
ca

m
pi

lla
i 

10
4/

11
85

 M
 C

 C
la

pi
ns

on
 

10
5/

11
89

 P
 P

in
do

ria
 

10
6/

11
93

 D
 V

 P
at

el
 

10
7/

11
97

 P
 S

im
m

on
ds

 
10

8/
12

01
 J

oh
n 

an
d 

Ka
th

le
en

 M
ur

ph
y 

10
9/

12
05

 A
 B

ar
re

tto
 

12
6/

13
65

 D
av

id
 L

eb
of

f 
12

8/
13

75
 E

 C
op

pi
n 

13
1/

13
84

 V
 &

 K
 H

ira
ni

 
13

7/
14

49
 M

an
su

kh
 V

ek
ar

ia
 

06
0/

14
68

 M
rs

 A
ss

an
i 

  

10
6                                   

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
                                  

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
                                  

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
                            

121



24
 

T1
2:

 R
ea

llo
ca

tin
g 

Av
ai

la
bl

e 
R

oa
ds

pa
ce

 
an

d 
M

an
ag

in
g 

Tr
af

fic
 

(C
on

t) 

(T
he

 a
bo

ve
 o

bj
ec

tio
ns

 a
re

 d
ea

lt 
w

ith
 in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 S
T3

: L
on

do
n-

W
id

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 

N
et

w
or

k)
 

 00
2/

03
12

 R
ev

d 
T.

 J
. B

ra
ds

ha
w

 
07

9/
06

61
 P

at
ric

k 
M

ur
ph

y 
03

2/
07

77
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
06

2/
10

43
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

, P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

07
8/

10
89

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 

Fo
E)

 
08

5/
11

08
 J

 M
 K

er
r 

 

10
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Te
xt

 M
ap

 1
3:

 T
ra

ffi
c 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

M
ea

su
re

s 
                       

01
8/

04
18

 L
au

re
nc

e 
C

ox
 

02
0/

04
25

 R
us

se
ll 

Ka
ne

 
03

3/
05

20
 S

 E
 S

pe
lls

 
03

4/
05

24
 H

 J
 S

pe
lls

 
04

6/
05

38
 P

am
el

a 
Le

a 
04

7/
05

42
 D

eb
or

ah
 M

al
le

tt 
04

8/
05

46
 M

is
s 

D
 H

 H
ol

bu
rn

 
04

9/
05

50
 S

 P
ac

k 
07

0/
06

07
 B

 M
oo

rh
ou

se
 

05
2/

09
85

 C
 J

 W
ay

m
an

 
09

2/
11

38
 R

os
 S

ha
w

 
09

3/
11

42
 M

rs
 R

am
ba

i K
am

i 
09

4/
11

46
 B

ar
ry

 G
ilb

er
t 

09
5/

11
50

 M
r J

 R
aw

al
 

09
6/

11
54

 C
hr

is
tin

e 
Al

la
in

 
09

7/
11

58
 M

r &
 M

rs
 M

en
ah

em
 

09
8/

11
62

 M
rs

 P
 R

os
en

be
rg

 
09

9/
11

66
 J

 F
er

na
nd

es
 

10
0/

11
70

 Z
 W

ad
oo

d 
10

1/
11

74
 G

uy
s 

N
ew

sa
ge

nt
s 

10
2/

11
78

 M
r T

 S
el

va
ra

ja
h 

10
3/

11
82

 M
r, 

M
rs

 &
 M

st
r M

ar
ca

m
pi

lla
i 

10
4/

11
86

 M
 C

 C
la

pi
ns

on
 

10
5/

11
90

 P
 P

in
do

ria
 

10
6/

11
94

 D
 V

 P
at

el
 

10
7/

11
98

 P
 S

im
m

on
ds

 

10
7                          

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
                         

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
                         

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
                     

122



25
 

Te
xt

 M
ap

 1
3:

 T
ra

ffi
c 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

(C
on

t) 

10
8/

12
02

 J
oh

n 
an

d 
Ka

th
le

en
 M

ur
ph

y 
10

9/
12

06
 A

 B
ar

re
tto

 
12

6/
13

68
 D

av
id

 L
eb

of
f 

12
8/

13
78

 E
 C

op
pi

n 
13

1/
13

87
 V

 &
 K

 H
ira

ni
 

13
7/

14
52

 M
an

us
h 

Ve
ka

ria
 

06
0/

14
69

 M
rs

 A
ss

an
i 

  

10
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
  

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

   

T1
3 

& 
Sc

he
du

le
 6

: 
Pa

rk
in

g 
St

an
da

rd
s 

07
2/

06
13

 W
m

. M
or

ris
on

 S
up

er
m

ar
ke

ts
 

07
2/

06
15

 W
m

. M
or

ris
on

 S
up

er
m

ar
ke

ts
 

08
0/

06
63

 H
ea

ds
to

ne
 R

es
id

en
ts

' 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
02

9/
07

69
 R

.C
. W

at
so

n 
09

0/
11

19
 T

es
co

 S
to

re
s 

Lt
d 

11
4/

12
26

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

11
6/

12
66

 T
he

 P
in

ne
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
11

7/
12

82
 B

el
lw

ay
 H

om
es

 L
td

 
12

2/
13

20
-1

32
1 

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

13
5/

14
45

 -1
44

6 
Sa

in
sb

ur
y'

s 
Su

pe
rm

ar
ke

ts
 L

td
 

07
2/

02
05

R
 W

m
. M

or
ris

on
 

Su
pe

rm
ar

ke
ts

 
00

7/
02

52
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
00

7/
02

69
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
 

11
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

of
 a

 re
dr

af
te

d 
Po

lic
y 

T1
3,

 
w

ith
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 te
xt

, a
nd

 
Sc

he
du

le
 6

, a
s 

in
di

ca
te

d.
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
in

 p
ar

t 
A 

re
dr

af
t w

ill 
pr

ov
id

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

br
in

g 
it 

m
or

e 
in

 
lin

e 
w

ith
 P

PG
13

 a
nd

 th
e 

M
ay

or
’s

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
St

ra
te

gy
, 

w
hi

ls
t p

ay
in

g 
du

e 
re

ga
rd

 to
 

PP
G

3.
 

It 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
at

 c
le

ar
er

 
gu

id
an

ce
 c

an
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

in
 a

 
re

-d
ra

fte
d 

po
lic

y 
 w

hi
ch

 
co

m
bi

ne
s 

T1
3 

an
d 

T1
4.

 

  

T1
4 

an
d 

pa
ra

 5
.3

2:
 

N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
O

n-
St

re
et

 P
ar

ki
ng

 00
4/

03
91

 J
ac

ki
e 

Li
nd

op
 

02
6/

04
45

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
02

6/
04

46
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

07
4/

06
17

 C
PR

E 
Lo

nd
on

 
03

2/
07

84
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
12

2/
13

22
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
00

7/
01

20
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
14

5/
02

28
R

 L
ai

ng
 H

om
es

 
 

11
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

fo
r P

ol
ic

y 
T1

4 
of

 a
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t, 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
, t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

 
in

di
ca

te
d.

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
In

 p
ar

t 
It 

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

at
 c

le
ar

er
 

gu
id

an
ce

 c
an

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
in

 a
 

re
-d

ra
fte

d 
po

lic
y 

w
hi

ch
 

co
m

bi
ne

s 
T1

3 
an

d 
T1

4.
 

(s
ee

 T
13

 a
bo

ve
) 

123



26
 

T1
5:

 M
ak

in
g 

Be
tte

r 
U

se
 o

f P
ar

ki
ng

 
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

 

11
5/

12
50

 M
ar

tin
 G

ra
nt

 H
om

es
 (U

K)
 

Lt
d 

11
3 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
T1

5 
an

d 
its

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
O

th
er

 p
la

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
w

ill 
en

su
re

 fu
ll 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

s.
 T

15
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f 
re

dr
af

tin
g 

of
 T

13
 a

nd
 T

14
 

T1
6:

 P
ub

lic
 C

ar
 

Pa
rk

in
g 

 

03
2/

07
80

 E
 D

 C
ha

m
be

rs
 

 
11

3 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

T1
7 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 5
.3

7:
 

St
at

io
n 

C
ar

 P
ar

ks
 

03
7/

05
27

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
R

ai
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

04
4/

09
37

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 
11

4 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

  P
ol

ic
y 

T1
7 

an
d 

its
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
D

el
et

io
n 

w
ill 

no
t d

et
ra

ct
 

fro
m

 th
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y 
of

 ra
il 

op
er

at
or

s.
 

T1
8 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 5
.3

9:
 

Se
rv

ic
in

g 
of

 N
ew

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 

01
3/

03
76

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
06

2/
10

44
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

, P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

11
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

fro
m

 P
ol

ic
y 

T1
8 

of
 “t

o 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 a

do
pt

ab
le

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 s

o 
as

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
sa

fe
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 e
na

bl
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 to
 le

av
e,

 a
nd

 re
jo

in
, t

he
 p

ub
lic

 
hi

gh
w

ay
 in

 fo
rw

ar
d 

ge
ar

”. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
ill 

no
t a

lte
r t

he
 in

te
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

po
lic

y.
 

T1
9:

 S
er

vi
ci

ng
 o

f N
ew

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
06

2/
10

45
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

, P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

11
3/

11
35

 R
oy

al
 M

ai
l G

ro
up

 p
lc

 
 

11
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

in
 P

ol
ic

y 
T1

9 
of

 “t
o 

cu
rre

nt
 

ad
op

ta
bl

e 
st

an
da

rd
s”

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
se

rti
on

 o
f 

“o
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t “

 a
fte

r “
pr

ov
is

io
n”

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
ill 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

cl
ar

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
po

lic
y.

 

T2
0:

 N
ew

 A
cc

es
s 

– 
 S

t A
nn

s 
R

oa
d 

 

07
8/

11
01

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 

Fo
E)

 
11

6 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

T2
1:

 N
ew

 L
in

k 
R

oa
d 

fro
m

 B
re

m
be

r R
oa

d 
to

 
N

or
th

ol
t R

oa
d 

 

07
8/

11
02

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 

Fo
E)

 
 

11
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

124



27
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 6

 - 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 

  
U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
 

Pa
ra

. 
O

bj
ec

to
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
N

o.
 &

 N
am

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
R

ep
or

t 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 
(P

ag
e 

N
o)

 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

08
2/

06
67

 P
in

ne
r S

ou
th

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

06
2/

10
60

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
, P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 

11
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 P

ol
ic

y 
se

tti
ng

 o
ut

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 h
ou

si
ng

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

ov
er

 te
n 

ye
ar

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
Pl

an
 

fo
re

ca
st

 a
do

pt
io

n 
da

te
, s

ho
w

in
g 

ho
w

 a
nd

 
to

 w
ha

t e
xt

en
t i

t i
s 

pr
op

os
ed

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 c

ap
ac

ity
 li

m
it 

of
 th

e 
19

99
 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
ap

ac
ity

 S
tu

dy
, s

o 
as

 to
 o

pt
im

is
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r a
ll 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
s.

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 

po
lic

y 
w

ill 
he

lp
 s

et
 o

ut
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

m
or

e 
cl

ea
rly

. 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

 
06

5?
05

99
 P

et
er

 D
 K

yt
e 

As
so

ci
at

es
 

11
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

G
en

er
al

 
08

9/
11

14
 S

ho
w

m
an

s 
G

ui
ld

 o
f G

B.
 

 
11

9 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

 6
.3

 - 
D

TL
R

/L
R

C
 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
  

Pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 

07
4/

06
21

 C
PR

E 
Lo

nd
on

  
11

9 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

  

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Pa
ra

 6
.1

7:
 N

at
io

na
l 

Po
lic

y 
C

on
te

xt
 

11
4/

12
34

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

/B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
  

12
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

fro
m

 p
ar

a 
6.

17
 o

f i
ts

 fi
na

l t
w

o 
se

nt
en

ce
s.

  

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

de
le

tio
n 

 
ac

hi
ev

es
 c

on
ci

se
ne

ss
 a

nd
 

ac
cu

ra
cy

. 
 

Po
lic

y 
6.

22
: H

ou
si

ng
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

 

12
2/

13
24

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
  

12
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Pa
ra

s 
6.

24
 a

nd
 6

.2
5:

 
N

ew
 H

ou
si

ng
 

Pr
ov

is
io

n-
La

nd
 

Id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r H
ou

si
ng

 

11
4/

12
32

-1
23

3 
Br

ya
nt

 H
om

es
 

(T
ha

m
es

 V
al

le
y)

 L
td

 / 
Br

ya
nt

 L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
12

2/
13

25
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
 

12
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

125



28
 

H
4 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 6
.2

7:
 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

n 
Pr

ev
io

us
ly

-D
ev

el
op

ed
 

La
nd

 

02
6/

04
50

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
11

7/
12

76
 B

el
lw

ay
 H

om
es

 L
td

 
12

2/
13

26
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
12

5/
13

50
 O

ld
 L

yo
ni

an
s 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

00
7/

01
23

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

14
5/

02
84

R
 L

ai
ng

 H
om

es
 

 

12
3 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
H

4 
an

d 
its

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t  
fo

r t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

an
d 

m
ax

im
is

e 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
on

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
la

nd
 w

ill 
st

ill 
be

 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 o
th

er
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 

th
e 

Pl
an

. 

H
5:

 R
es

id
en

tia
l 

D
en

si
ty

 
00

4/
03

81
 J

ac
ki

e 
Li

nd
op

 
02

6/
04

51
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

06
5/

05
92

 P
et

er
 D

 K
yt

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 
04

4/
09

40
 G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

06
2/

10
46

 G
O

L 
- P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 
11

4/
12

31
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
/ B

ry
an

t L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
11

5/
12

46
 M

ar
tin

 G
ra

nt
 H

om
es

 (U
K)

  
11

6/
12

68
 T

he
 P

in
ne

r A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

11
7/

12
77

 B
el

lw
ay

 H
om

es
 L

td
 

 

12
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

fo
r P

ol
ic

y 
H

5 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
- 

“T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 e
xp

ec
t t

ha
t 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

en
si

tie
s 

in
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 n
ot

 le
ss

 th
an

 
12

5 
ha

bi
ta

bl
e 

ro
om

s 
pe

r h
ec

ta
re

.”
 

Th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 re
w

rit
te

n,
 

as
 in

di
ca

te
d 

ab
ov

e.
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
   

pa
rt 

Th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

cr
ea

te
s 

a 
m

or
e 

co
nc

is
e 

po
lic

y.
  I

t i
s,

 
ho

w
ev

er
, c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

at
 

th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 m

in
im

um
 

fig
ur

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
ta

ke
n 

in
 th

e 
dr

af
t L

on
do

n 
Pl

an
. 

H
6:

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 H
7:

 
H

ou
si

ng
 fo

r K
ey

 
W

or
ke

rs
 

                

01
7/

03
98

-0
40

0 
Ta

yw
oo

d 
H

om
es

 L
td

, 
Ta

yw
oo

d 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 

01
7/

03
99

 T
ay

w
oo

d 
H

om
es

 L
td

, 
Ta

yw
oo

d 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 

01
7/

04
00

 T
ay

w
oo

d 
H

om
es

 L
td

, 
Ta

yw
oo

d 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 

01
7/

04
04

-0
41

5 
Ta

yw
oo

d 
H

om
es

 L
td

, 
Ta

yw
oo

d 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 

02
6/

04
47

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
02

6/
04

49
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

02
6/

04
52

-0
46

1 
H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

d.
  

04
5/

05
35

 T
hr

ee
 V

al
le

ys
 W

at
er

 p
lc

 
06

3/
05

83
-0

58
4 

BA
E 

Sy
st

em
s 

01
5/

07
42

 D
ef

en
ce

 E
st

at
es

, S
ou

th
 

Ea
st

 a
nd

 G
er

m
an

y 
02

9/
07

70
 R

.C
. W

at
so

n 
11

4/
12

30
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
 &

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

 H
om

es
 

11
5/

12
45

 M
ar

tin
 G

ra
nt

 H
om

es
(U

K)
Lt

d 
11

5/
12

51
 M

ar
tin

 G
ra

nt
 H

om
es

 (U
K)

 

13
1                    

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 
H

6 
an

d 
H

7,
 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
, b

e 
de

le
te

d,
 to

 b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
in

gl
e 

Po
lic

y 
se

tti
ng

 o
ut

 a
im

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
ba

se
d 

on
 u

til
is

in
g 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l o
f a

ll 
fo

rm
s 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
, t

o 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 a

 P
la

n 
ho

us
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

Pl
an

 li
fe

, a
nd

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ad

vi
ce

 o
f C

irc
ul

ar
 6

/9
8.

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
 

pa
rt                   

Th
e 

dr
af

tin
g 

of
 a

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
po

lic
y 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
po

lic
y 

gu
id

an
ce

 w
hi

ch
 

co
ns

id
er

s 
ch

an
ge

d 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

w
as

 fi
rs

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 
th

e 
fir

st
 d

ep
os

it 
dr

af
t. 

 
Th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

be
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 C
irc

ul
ar

 
6/

98
 d

oe
s 

no
t r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 s
itu

at
io

n,
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
dr

af
t P

PS
3 

ha
vi

ng
 b

ee
n 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
si

nc
e 

hi
s 

re
po

rt.
 

126



29
 

H
6:

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 H
7:

 
H

ou
si

ng
 fo

r K
ey

 
W

or
ke

rs
 (C

on
t) 

 

Lt
d 

11
7/

12
78

 B
el

lw
ay

 H
om

es
 L

td
 

11
8/

12
83

 M
cC

ar
th

y 
an

d 
St

on
e 

(D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
) L

td
 

12
0/

12
85

 F
ai

rv
ie

w
 N

ew
 H

om
es

 L
td

 
12

1/
12

87
 B

T 
pl

c 
12

2/
13

27
-1

32
8 

H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

12
5/

13
51

 O
ld

 L
yo

ni
an

s 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
13

6/
14

47
-1

44
8 

Ba
rto

n 
W

illm
or

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 
 

 
   

H
8 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 6
.4

8:
 

D
w

el
lin

g 
M

ix
 

 

00
4/

03
89

 J
ac

ki
e 

Li
nd

op
 

11
4/

12
29

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

06
2/

02
03

R
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

, P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

14
5/

02
29

R
 L

ai
ng

 H
om

es
 

 

13
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fin

al
 s

en
te

nc
e 

of
 p

ar
a 

6.
47

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
cl

ea
r i

nt
en

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 

po
lic

y 
re

m
ai

n 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 d
el

et
io

n.
  

H
9 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 6
.5

0:
 

Em
pt

y 
H

om
es

 a
nd

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

 

12
2/

13
30

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

 
13

3 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

H
10

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
6.

57
: 

C
on

ve
rs

io
ns

 o
f 

H
ou

se
s 

an
d 

O
th

er
 

Bu
ild

in
gs

 to
 F

la
ts

 

05
1/

05
58

  A
nn

e 
Fr

an
ci

s 
02

8/
07

62
 G

 G
itt

er
 

03
5/

07
99

 T
he

 E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 A

ge
nc

y 
04

4/
09

42
 G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

12
2/

13
31

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

11
6/

14
73

 T
he

 P
in

ne
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
 

13
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

fro
m

 P
ol

ic
y 

H
10

 o
f c

rit
er

io
n 

(A
). 

C
on

se
qu

en
tia

l a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 p

ar
a 

6.
53

, a
nd

 
Sc

he
du

le
 8

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
so

 b
e 

m
ad

e.
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Pr

ac
tic

al
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
ity

 ta
ki

ng
 

pl
ac

e 
in

di
ca

te
 d

el
et

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
pr

ob
le

m
at

ic
. 

 

H
11

: M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

Ex
is

t. 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

to
ck

 
 

02
8/

07
64

 G
 G

itt
er

 
13

4 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

H
13

: H
ou

se
s 

in
 

M
ul

tip
le

 O
cc

up
at

io
n 

 

02
8/

07
63

 G
 G

itt
er

 
13

5 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
fro

m
 P

ol
ic

y 
H

13
 o

f p
ro

vi
so

 
(D

). 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

ity
 ta

ki
ng

 
pl

ac
e 

in
di

ca
te

 d
el

et
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

pr
ob

le
m

at
ic

. 

127



30
 

Pa
ra

 6
.6

8:
 S

he
lte

re
d 

Ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

11
4/

12
28

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

 

13
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

H
16

: H
os

te
ls

 
04

4/
09

43
 G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

13
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

fro
m

 P
ol

ic
y 

H
16

 o
f p

ro
vi

so
 

(C
). 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
tra

ffi
c 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 w

ill 
ap

pl
y 

to
 th

is
 p

ol
ic

y 
as

 a
 

re
su

lt 
of

  t
he

 re
-w

rit
in

g 
of

 
Po

lic
y 

T1
3.

 
 

H
18

: A
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

Sp
ec

ia
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
w

ith
 P

ar
tic

ul
ar

 N
ee

ds
 

12
2/

13
37

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

13
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

H
19

: M
ob

ilit
y 

an
d 

Li
fe

tim
e 

H
om

es
 

 

02
6/

04
62

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
04

3/
08

65
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

(P
O

P)
, A

ge
 C

on
ce

rn
 H

ar
ro

w
 

06
2/

10
35

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
, P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 
11

4/
12

27
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
 a

nd
 B

ry
an

t L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
 

13
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
H

19
 a

nd
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

N
ot

 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 

Th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r c
ite

s 
in

 h
is

 
As

se
ss

m
en

t o
n 

Po
lic

y 
C

20
 

ad
vi

ce
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
Pa

rt 
1 

po
lic

y 
on

 in
cl

us
iv

e 
ac

ce
ss

, 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 

Pa
rt 

2 
po

lic
ie

s.
 It

 is
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 th

at
 w

hi
ls

t t
hi

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
se

en
 a

s 
th

e 
m

os
t 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 w

ay
 to

 
pr

oc
ee

d,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 v
ie

w
 

of
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 P
la

n,
 it

  i
s 

on
ly

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

  
a 

re
vi

se
d 

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 th

is
 

Pa
rt 

2 
po

lic
y.

 

 

 

128



31
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 7

 –
 E

M
PL

O
YM

EN
T,

 S
H

O
PP

IN
G

 A
N

D
 T

O
W

N
 C

EN
TR

ES
 

  
U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
 

Pa
ra

. 
O

bj
ec

to
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
N

o.
 &

 N
am

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
R

ep
or

t 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 
(P

ag
e 

N
o)

 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

03
5/

08
00

 T
he

 E
m

pt
y 

H
om

es
 

Ag
en

cy
  

13
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

G
en

er
al

  
06

5/
05

98
 P

et
er

 D
 K

yt
e 

As
so

ci
at

es
 

13
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

O
m

is
si

on
s 

- t
ex

t, 
Po

lic
y 

EM
5 

an
d 

pr
op

os
al

 s
ite

s 
22

, 2
6,

 3
6,

 3
8 

an
d 

39
 

 

06
2/

10
61

-1
06

6 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 

fo
r L

on
do

n,
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 
09

0/
11

15
 T

es
co

 S
to

re
s 

Lt
d 

 

13
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

In
tro

du
ct

io
n 

 - 
pa

ra
 7

.5
 

08
2/

06
68

 P
in

ne
r S

ou
th

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

 
 

13
9 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

s 
an

d 
Sh

op
pi

ng
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

 

09
0/

11
16

 T
es

co
 S

to
re

s 
Lt

d 
 

14
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

N
at

io
na

l P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 
- p

ar
a 

7.
18

 
09

0/
11

17
 T

es
co

 S
to

re
s 

Lt
d 

 
13

9 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 p

ar
a 

7.
18

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n 

be
 

m
od

ifi
ed

 to
 in

di
ca

te
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
PG

3,
 p

ar
a 

42
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
R

e-
w

or
di

ng
 w

ill 
he

lp
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 p

os
iti

on
 in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 P
PG

3.
 

EM
4 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 7
.2

6:
 

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
     

04
4/

09
44

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 
11

3/
11

31
 R

oy
al

 M
ai

l G
ro

up
 p

lc
 

12
2/

13
39

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
 

13
5/

14
43

 S
ai

ns
bu

ry
's

 S
up

er
m

. L
td

 
11

3/
02

07
R

 R
oy

al
 M

ai
l G

ro
up

 p
lc

 
11

3/
02

10
R

 R
oy

al
 M

ai
l G

ro
up

 p
lc

 
 

14
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fin

al
 tw

o 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

of
 

Po
lic

y 
EM

4,
 w

ith
 c

on
se

qu
en

tia
l 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ac

ce
pt

s 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
as

 it
 w

ou
ld

 re
m

ov
e 

un
ce

rta
in

ty
. 

129



32
 

 EM
5:

 N
ew

 L
ar

ge
 S

ca
le

 
R

et
ai

l a
nd

 L
ei

su
re

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

03
2/

07
86

 E
 D

 C
ha

m
be

rs
 

06
2/

10
47

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
, P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 
09

0/
11

18
 T

es
co

 S
to

re
s 

Lt
d 

12
4/

13
46

 S
af

ew
ay

 S
to

re
s 

pl
c 

13
4/

14
39

 B
&Q

 p
lc

 
12

4/
02

15
R

 S
af

ew
ay

 S
to

re
s 

pl
c 

13
5/

02
18

R
 S

ai
ns

bu
ry

's
 

Su
pe

rm
ar

ke
ts

 L
td

 
 

14
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

al
te

ra
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
 to

 P
ol

ic
y 

EM
5 

as
 in

di
ca

te
d 

ab
ov

e,
 n

am
el

y 
to

 
em

ph
as

is
e 

th
at

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

ro
le

s 
of

 d
is

tri
ct

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l c
en

tre
s,

 a
s 

su
ch

, 
w

ill 
be

 a
n 

im
po

rta
nt

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
in

 
as

se
ss

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 to
 d

ef
in

e 
m

or
e 

cl
ea

rly
 a

nd
 a

cc
ur

at
el

y 
th

at
 it

 is
 re

ta
il 

ne
ed

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 fo
rm

, w
hi

ch
 is

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

am
bi

t o
f t

he
 p

ol
ic

y.
 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

. 
Al

te
ra

tio
n 

w
ill 

br
in

g 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

m
or

e 
up

 to
 d

at
e.

 
 

EM
8:

 E
nh

an
ci

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
s 

 

08
0/

06
64

 H
ea

ds
to

ne
 R

es
id

en
ts

' 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
 

14
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EM
13

: N
ew

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

In
du

st
rie

s 
02

6/
04

63
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

 
14

4 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

EM
13

 a
nd

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
D

el
et

io
n 

w
ill 

no
t h

in
de

r t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

uc
h 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h.

 

EM
14

, E
M

15
 a

nd
 

EM
16

: B
us

in
es

s 
et

c 
U

se
 –

 D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Ar
ea

s 
an

d 
Be

yo
nd

. 
  

01
4/

03
97

 K
od

ak
 L

td
 

06
5/

05
93

-0
59

4 
Pe

te
r D

 K
yt

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 
02

9/
07

71
 R

.C
. W

at
so

n 
07

8/
10

90
 M

r J
 C

ar
pe

nt
er

 (H
ar

ro
w

 
Fo

E)
 

07
8/

10
96

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 

Fo
E)

 
11

4/
12

35
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
 a

nd
 B

ry
an

t L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
12

0/
12

86
 F

ai
rv

ie
w

 N
ew

 H
om

es
 L

td
 

12
2/

13
40

-1
34

1 
H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
13

4/
14

37
-1

43
8 

B&
Q

 p
lc

 
13

4/
14

40
 B

&Q
 p

lc
 

 

14
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

130



33
 

 EM
14

: B
us

in
es

s 
U

se
 - 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Ar
ea

: B
AE

 
Sy

st
em

s 
si

te
  

05
81

-0
58

2 
06

3/
BA

E 
Sy

st
em

s 
 

 
 

14
9 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

fro
m

 P
ol

ic
y 

EM
14

 o
f “

BA
E 

Sy
st

em
s,

 W
ar

re
n 

La
ne

, S
ta

nm
or

e”
.  

In
st

ea
d,

 th
e 

la
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

a 
Pr

op
os

al
 S

ite
, f

or
 h

ou
si

ng
, w

ith
 a

n 
in

di
ca

tio
n 

th
at

 G
re

en
 B

el
t, 

am
en

ity
 a

nd
 

na
tu

re
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 m

ig
ht

 
pr

ec
lu

de
 th

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f a

 d
en

si
ty

 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 

Po
lic

y 
H

5 
an

d 
PP

G
3.

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

es
 

th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

th
at

 th
is

 
si

te
 c

an
 m

ak
e 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
ov

er
al

l. 

EM
17

: C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 

of
 S

ho
ps

 –
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sh

op
pi

ng
 F

ro
nt

ag
es

 
  

01
6/

07
51

 N
H

S 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

(N
or

th
 

Th
am

es
 R

eg
io

na
l O

ffi
ce

) 
01

6/
01

60
R

 N
H

S 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

(N
TR

O
) 

15
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
  p

ro
vi

so
 D

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
EM

17
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 h

ig
hw

ay
 s

af
et

y 
w

ill 
no

t b
e 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

 b
y 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 c

rit
er

io
n 

D
). 

Te
xt

 M
ap

 1
5:

 P
at

te
rn

 
an

d 
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
of

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
s 

 

09
0/

11
23

 T
es

co
 S

to
re

s 
Lt

d 
 

15
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EM
18

 a
nd

 E
M

19
: 

C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 o

f 
Sh

op
s 

– 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

Sh
op

pi
ng

 F
ro

nt
ag

es
 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l C
en

tre
s 

 

02
6/

04
64

-0
46

5 
H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

 
 

15
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
  p

ro
vi

so
 E

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
EM

18
 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
o 

C
 in

 P
ol

ic
y 

EM
19

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 h

ig
hw

ay
 s

af
et

y 
w

ill 
no

t b
e 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

 b
y 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 th

es
e 

cr
ite

ria
. 

EM
19

: C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 

of
 S

ho
ps

-D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Sh
op

pi
ng

 F
ro

nt
ag

es
 o

f 
Lo

ca
l C

en
tre

s 

04
2/

08
46

 T
he

 H
at

ch
 E

nd
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

 

15
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

EM
20

: C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 

of
 S

ho
ps

 in
 N

on
-

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Pa
ra

de
s 

04
3/

08
58

 P
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
(P

O
P)

, A
ge

 C
on

ce
rn

 H
ar

ro
w

 
15

2 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

vi
so

 B
 in

 P
ol

ic
y 

EM
20

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

Th
e 

is
su

e 
of

 h
ig

hw
ay

 s
af

et
y 

w
ill 

no
t b

e 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
 b

y 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 c
rit

er
io

n.
 

EM
25

: T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
02

6/
04

66
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

d.
 

06
2/

10
48

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

Lo
nd

on
, P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n 

15
3 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

131



34
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 8

 –
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

, L
EI

SU
R

E 
A

N
D

 T
O

U
R

IS
M

 
  

U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
. 

O
bj

ec
to

r R
ef

er
en

ce
 

N
o.

 &
 N

am
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’
s 

R
ep

or
t 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 

(P
ag

e 
N

o)
 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

In
tro

du
ct

io
n 

08
2/

06
72

 P
in

ne
r S

ou
th

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

 

15
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

R
3:

 P
ub

lic
 O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e 
02

6/
04

67
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

 

15
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

R
5 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 8
.2

8:
 

O
ut

do
or

 S
po

rts
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

12
5/

13
52

 O
ld

 L
yo

ni
an

s 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
05

7/
01

99
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

14
2/

02
19

R
 C

AP
R

A 
 

15
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 
by

 th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
R

5 
an

d 
its

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
In

 p
ar

t 
A 

su
ita

bl
e 

cr
os

s-
re

fe
re

nc
e 

in
 

th
e 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
ha

pt
er

 to
 

EP
46

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f d
el

et
io

n 
of

 th
is

 
po

lic
y.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
ls

o 
a 

ne
ed

 to
 

st
at

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 s

ta
nc

e 
on

 
ne

gl
ec

te
d 

or
 u

nd
er

us
ed

 
ou

td
oo

r s
po

rts
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
Pl

an
.  

It 
is

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 th

is
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 p
ar

a 
2.

10
0 

un
de

r P
ol

ic
y 

SR
1.

 
 

R
7:

 In
fo

rm
al

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

02
6/

04
68

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
 

 

15
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Pa
ra

 8
.3

9:
 O

ut
do

or
 

W
at

er
-B

as
ed

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

 

00
6/

03
35

 M
r P

 J
ef

fre
y 

 
15

5 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

R
9 

an
d 

Pa
ra

 8
.4

0:
 P

la
y 

Ar
ea

s 
12

2/
13

42
 H

ou
si

ng
 c

on
so

rti
um

 
00

7/
01

39
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

  
  

15
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

132



35
 

 R
10

: I
nd

oo
r S

po
rts

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

02
6/

04
69

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
d.

 
07

4/
06

22
 C

PR
E 

Lo
nd

on
  

 

15
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

R
11

 a
nd

 P
ar

a 
8.

45
: 

Ar
ts

, C
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 
En

te
rta

in
m

en
t 

 

02
6/

04
70

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
d.

  
00

5/
06

86
 M

rs
 M

 S
ta

pl
et

on
 

11
6/

12
71

 T
he

 P
in

ne
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

15
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

R
12

: P
ro

te
ct

in
g 

Ar
ts

, 
C

ul
tu

re
, E

nt
er

ta
in

m
en

t 
an

d 
Le

is
ur

e 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

 

13
5/

14
44

 S
ai

ns
bu

ry
's

 
Su

pe
rm

ar
ke

ts
 L

td
  

15
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 
by

 th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
R

12
 a

nd
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
 

pa
rt 

D
el

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
w

ou
ld

 
m

ea
n 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

Pl
an

 u
nd

er
 

an
y 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
 fo

r s
uc

h 
us

es
.  

It 
is

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 a

 
le

ss
 re

st
ric

tiv
e 

cr
ite

ria
-b

as
ed

 
po

lic
y 

fo
r p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

or
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

 
R

14
 a

nd
 p

ar
as

 8
.4

9 
an

d 
8.

50
: L

ib
ra

rie
s 

01
3/

03
75

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
02

6/
04

71
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

05
1/

05
59

 A
nn

e 
Fr

an
ci

s 
00

5/
06

87
 M

rs
 M

 S
ta

pl
et

on
 

 

15
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 
by

 th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
R

14
 a

nd
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Po

lic
y 

R
15

  i
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 

lib
ra

ry
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

R
15

: L
ei

su
re

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s 
 

07
4/

06
23

 C
PR

E 
Lo

nd
on

  
15

8 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Po
lic

y 
R

16
 a

nd
 p

ar
a 

8.
55

: T
ou

ris
m

 
 

11
6/

12
72

 T
he

 P
in

ne
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
15

9 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

R
17

 a
nd

 p
ar

as
 8

.5
8 

an
d 

8.
60

: H
ot

el
s 

an
d 

G
ue

st
 

H
ou

se
s 

04
4/

09
59

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

Au
th

or
ity

  
15

9 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 

by
 th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

th
ird

 a
nd

 fo
ur

th
 

se
nt

en
ce

s 
in

 p
ar

a 
8.

60
, t

hu
s 

om
itt

in
g 

th
e 

w
or

ds
 “O

ut
si

de
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s…

…
…

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

po
rt”

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 

w
ill 

no
t a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
or

 a
lte

r i
ts

 m
ea

ni
ng

. 

 

133



36
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 9

 –
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 A
N

D
 A

C
C

ES
SI

B
IL

IT
Y 

  
U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
 

Pa
ra

. 
O

bj
ec

to
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
N

o.
 &

 N
am

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
R

ep
or

t 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 
(P

ag
e 

N
o)

 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

G
en

er
al

 
00

6/
03

33
 M

r P
 J

ef
fre

y 
 

16
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

05
5/

05
62

 T
he

 K
ee

pe
rs

 a
nd

 
G

ov
er

no
rs

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 S

ch
oo

l 
 

16
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

01
6/

07
50

 N
H

S 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

(N
or

th
 

Th
am

es
 R

eg
io

na
l O

ffi
ce

) 
 

16
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

11
1/

11
29

 H
 M

 P
ris

on
 S

er
vi

ce
 

16
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

C
2 

(C
18

 in
 F

D
D

): 
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 S

oc
ia

l a
nd

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s 

11
4/

12
36

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

16
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

fo
r P

ol
ic

y 
C

2 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 
“T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 a
re

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 b

e 
in

 
ne

ed
 o

f s
uc

h 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

or
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
.” 

C
on

se
qu

en
tia

l a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
 s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

, 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

m
in

or
 

ad
di

tio
n 

W
hi

ls
t a

cc
ep

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 
to

 m
od

ify
 th

e 
po

lic
y,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 e
xi

st
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h.
   

Th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 re

-w
or

de
d 

 
po

lic
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

rth
er

 
m

od
ifi

ed
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

is
. 

 

C
6 

(C
5 

in
 F

D
D

) a
nd

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pa
ra

s:
 F

irs
t 

an
d 

M
id

dl
e 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

00
2/

03
13

 R
ev

d 
T.

 J
. B

ra
ds

ha
w

 
05

2/
09

89
 C

 J
 W

ay
m

an
 

05
2/

09
90

 C
 J

 W
ay

m
an

 
 

16
3 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

134



37
 

 C
7 

(C
6 

in
 F

D
D

): 
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

Te
rti

ar
y 

C
ol

le
ge

s 
 

00
2/

03
14

 R
ev

d 
T.

 J
. B

ra
ds

ha
w

 
02

6/
04

72
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

03
2/

07
85

 E
 D

 C
ha

m
be

rs
 

 

16
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
C

7 
an

d 
its

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
C

ou
nc

il 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

Fu
rth

er
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

w
ill 

no
t 

be
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
 b

y 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 p
ol

ic
y.

 
N

ew
 P

ol
ic

y 
 

06
1/

10
27

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

 
16

4 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

C
8 

(C
7 

in
 F

D
D

): 
H

ar
ro

w
 

C
ol

le
ge

 
00

2/
03

15
 R

ev
d 

T.
 J

. B
ra

ds
ha

w
 

02
6/

04
73

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
06

1/
10

24
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

ge
 

06
1/

10
25

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

 
07

8/
11

03
 M

r J
 C

ar
pe

nt
er

 (H
ar

ro
w

 
Fo

E)
 

 

16
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
C

8 
an

d 
its

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
co

nt
en

t o
f t

he
 d

el
et

ed
 

po
lic

y 
is

 p
ar

tly
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
w

or
di

ng
 o

f 
PS

6.
 

C
9 

(C
8 

in
 F

D
D

): 
D

ua
l 

U
se

 o
f S

ch
oo

l F
ac

ilit
ie

s 
an

d 
Pl

ay
in

g 
Fi

el
ds

 
 

00
2/

03
16

 R
ev

d 
T.

 J
. B

ra
ds

ha
w

  
16

5 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

C
9 

an
d 

its
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Ef

fic
ie

nt
 u

se
 o

f p
re

m
is

es
 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
is

 a
lre

ad
y 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 o

th
er

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 

C
10

 (C
9 

in
 F

D
D

): 
Ex

te
ns

io
ns

 to
 S

ch
oo

l 
Pr

em
is

es
 

 

00
2/

03
17

 R
ev

d 
T.

 J
. B

ra
ds

ha
w

 
02

6/
04

74
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

06
2/

10
49

 G
O

L 
(P

la
nn

in
g 

D
iv

is
io

n)
 

16
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
C

10
 a

nd
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r g
oo

d 
de

si
gn

 
an

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t  
to

 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
w

ill 
no

t b
e 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

. 
 

C
11

 (C
10

 in
 F

D
D

): 
N

ew
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

00
2/

03
18

 R
ev

d 
T.

 J
. B

ra
ds

ha
w

 
04

4/
09

63
 G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

16
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 c

rit
er

io
n 

B 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

C
11

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

C
rit

er
ia

 C
 a

nd
 D

  c
ov

er
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
on

 
hi

gh
w

ay
 s

af
et

y/
 p

ar
ki

ng
. 

 
C

13
 (C

12
 in

 F
D

D
): 

D
oc

to
rs

’ S
ur

ge
rie

s 
01

6/
07

55
 N

H
S 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
(N

or
th

 
Th

am
es

 R
eg

io
na

l O
ffi

ce
) 

 

16
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

C
18

 (C
16

 in
 F

D
D

): 
Pu

bl
ic

 C
on

ve
ni

en
ce

s 
 

08
2/

06
70

 P
in

ne
r S

ou
th

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

03
2/

07
78

 E
 D

 C
ha

m
be

rs
 

  

16
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

  

135



38
 

C
20

 (C
19

 in
 F

D
D

): 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
pa

ce
s 

00
2/

03
19

 R
ev

d 
T.

 J
. B

ra
ds

ha
w

 
02

6/
04

75
 H

ou
se

 B
ui

ld
er

s 
Fe

de
ra

tio
n 

04
2/

08
51

 T
he

 H
at

ch
 E

nd
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
11

4/
12

37
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
 a

nd
 B

ry
an

t L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

  
04

4/
01

75
R

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 
 

16
9 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
C

20
 a

nd
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

N
ot

 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 

Th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r c
ite

s 
in

 h
is

 
As

se
ss

m
en

t a
dv

ic
e 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
Pa

rt 
1 

po
lic

y 
on

 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

ac
ce

ss
, 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 
Pa

rt 
2 

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 It

 is
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 th

at
 w

hi
ls

t t
hi

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
se

en
 a

s 
th

e 
m

os
t 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 w

ay
 to

 
pr

oc
ee

d,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 L
on

do
n 

Pl
an

, 
it 

 is
 o

nl
y 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
 a

 re
vi

se
d 

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 th

is
 P

ar
t 2

 p
ol

ic
y.

 

 

C
21

 (C
20

 in
 F

D
D

): 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 L

ei
su

re
, 

R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

an
d 

R
et

ai
l F

ac
ilit

ie
s 

 

00
2/

03
20

 R
ev

d 
T.

 J
. B

ra
ds

ha
w

  
17

0 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

C
15

 (C
22

 in
 F

D
D

): 
Et

hn
ic

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
00

2/
03

21
 R

ev
d 

T.
 J

. B
ra

ds
ha

w
 

02
6/

04
76

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
07

8/
10

91
 M

r J
 C

ar
pe

nt
er

 (H
ar

ro
w

 
Fo

E)
 

11
4/

12
38

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

 

17
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
C

15
 a

nd
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

te
xt

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
U

D
P 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f n
ee

ds
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

fro
m

 
et

hn
ic

 m
in

or
iti

es
. O

th
er

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
po

lic
ie

s 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 c
ov

er
 is

su
es

 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 
m

in
or

ity
 g

ro
up

s.
  T

he
 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
eq

ua
lit

y 
w

ill 
no

t b
e 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
po

lic
y.

 
 

  

136



39
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 1

0 
– 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

, R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 
  

U
D

P 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
. 

O
bj

ec
to

r R
ef

er
en

ce
 

N
o.

 &
 N

am
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 

R
ep

or
t 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 

(P
ag

e 
N

o)
 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

G
en

er
al

 
01

5/
07

38
 D

ef
en

ce
 E

st
at

es
, S

ou
th

 
Ea

st
 a

nd
 G

er
m

an
y 

 

17
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

G
en

er
al

 
07

8/
10

92
 M

r J
 C

ar
pe

nt
er

 (H
ar

ro
w

 
Fo

E)
 

17
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Te
xt

 O
m

is
si

on
 

07
1/

06
08

 H
 J

ef
fre

y 
Le

ve
r  

17
3 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

N
ew

 P
ol

ic
y 

07
8/

10
94

 M
r J

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
 (H

ar
ro

w
 

Fo
E)

 
 

17
3 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Pa
ra

 1
0.

11
 a

nd
 I3

: 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 

an
d 

Le
ga

l A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 

08
2/

06
69

 P
in

ne
r S

ou
th

 R
es

id
en

ts
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

01
6/

07
57

 N
H

S 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

(N
or

th
 

Th
am

es
 R

eg
io

na
l O

ffi
ce

) 
11

4/
12

39
 B

ry
an

t H
om

es
 (T

ha
m

es
 

Va
lle

y)
 L

td
 a

nd
 B

ry
an

t L
ife

st
yl

e 
H

om
es

 
 

17
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

I4
: P

la
nn

in
g 

O
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 
– 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
Sc

ho
ol

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

  

02
6/

04
77

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
06

5/
05

95
 P

et
er

 D
 K

yt
e 

As
so

ci
at

es
 

11
4/

12
40

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

12
2/

13
43

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
: 

 

17
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
I4

 a
nd

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
sc

ho
ol

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ca

n 
st

ill 
be

 
so

ug
ht

 u
nd

er
 P

ol
ic

y 
I3

. 

 

137



40
 

 I5
 a

nd
 P

ar
a 

10
.1

9:
 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t 

06
5/

05
96

 P
et

er
 D

 K
yt

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

 
03

2/
07

79
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
14

2/
02

21
R

 C
AP

R
A 

 

17
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

I7
: P

ub
lic

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

 
03

2/
07

87
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
06

2/
10

50
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

, P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

17
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

 

138



41
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 1

1 
– 

PR
O

PO
SA

L 
SI

TE
S 

  
U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
 

Pa
ra

. 
O

bj
ec

to
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
N

o.
 &

 N
am

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
R

ep
or

t 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

G
en

er
al

 
02

4/
04

33
 B

ill 
St

ep
he

ns
on

 
17

7 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Te
xt

 O
m

is
si

on
 

12
2/

13
45

 H
ou

si
ng

 c
on

so
rti

um
  

17
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

G
en

er
al

 
12

5/
13

54
 O

ld
 L

yo
ni

an
s 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

17
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

PS
 5

: G
ay

to
n 

R
oa

d 
ca

r 
pa

rk
, l

en
di

ng
 li

br
ar

y 
an

d 
So

ni
a 

C
ou

rt 

06
1/

10
29

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

 
17

9 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

PS
 6

: H
ar

ro
w

-o
n-

th
e-

H
ill 

St
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

la
nd

 (a
nd

 
PI

C
34

, P
IC

36
 &

 P
IC

37
) 

                  

06
1/

10
30

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

 
11

3/
11

32
-3

3 
R

oy
al

 M
ai

l G
ro

up
 p

lc
 

05
1/

01
76

R
 A

nn
e 

Fr
an

ci
s 

06
1/

02
02

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

ge
 

11
3/

02
08

R
-0

20
9R

 R
oy

al
 M

ai
l 

G
ro

up
 p

lc
 

05
1/

02
78

R
 A

nn
e 

Fr
an

ci
s 

21
3/

30
03

P 
Ke

nn
et

h 
W

 R
ee

d 
& 

As
so

ci
at

es
 

01
0/

30
04

P 
En

gl
is

h 
H

er
ita

ge
 

(L
on

do
n 

R
eg

io
n)

 
21

4/
30

05
P 

S 
& 

M
 P

ro
pe

rti
es

 L
td

 
21

6/
30

07
P 

M
r E

 A
th

er
to

n 
21

7/
30

08
P 

M
r P

 Z
at

z 
21

8/
30

09
P 

M
r D

 G
ra

y 
21

9/
30

10
P 

C
hi

ef
 A

dv
is

or
 to

 th
e 

M
ay

or
 o

n 
Ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e 
& 

U
rb

an
is

m
 

22
0/

30
11

P 
R

ox
bo

ro
ug

h 
R

es
id

en
ts

' 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
 0

77
/3

01
2P

 R
ox

bo
ro

ug
h 

R
oa

d 
R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

22
1/

30
13

P 
La

in
g 

H
om

es
 N

. L
on

do
n 

18
4                      

I m
ak

e 
no

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n.

 
                  

Am
en

d 
po

lic
y 

 in
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
PI

C
s,

 p
lu

s 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

co
m

m
en

t  
on

 H
ar

ro
w

 
Ba

pt
is

t 
C

hu
rc

h 
             

C
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
an

d 
C

on
st

ra
in

ts
 fo

r P
S6

, 
ag

re
ed

 a
t t

he
 In

qu
iry

 o
n 

15
th
 A

pr
il 

20
03

, r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

po
si

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

si
te

. I
n 

th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 a

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r, 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
is

 
no

 c
om

pe
llin

g 
re

as
on

 to
 

ch
an

ge
 th

is
 p

os
iti

on
, i

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

he
lp

fu
l t

o 
re

fle
ct

 
th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 c
om

m
en

ts
 

w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 H
ar

ro
w

 
Ba

pt
is

t C
hu

rc
h 

by
 w

ay
 o

f 
so

m
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
or

di
ng

. 

 

139



42
 

PS
 6

:H
ar

ro
w

-o
n-

th
e-

H
ill 

St
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 

la
nd

 (a
nd

 P
IC

34
, P

IC
36

 
& 

PI
C

37
) (

C
on

tin
ue

d)
 

22
2/

30
14

P 
G

re
en

hi
ll 

& 
M

ar
lb

or
ou

gh
 L

ab
ou

r P
ar

ty
 

06
1/

30
15

P 
H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

ge
 

11
3/

30
16

P 
R

oy
al

 M
ai

l G
ro

up
 p

lc
 

22
3/

30
17

P 
M

s 
C

 H
ar

ris
on

-R
ee

d 
22

4/
30

18
P 

H
ar

ro
w

 B
ap

tis
t C

hu
rc

h 
14

0/
30

19
P 

M
em

be
r o

f P
ar

lia
m

en
t 

fo
r H

ar
ro

w
 W

es
t 

22
5/

30
20

P 
Le

as
eh

ol
de

rs
 o

f 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

in
 S

ta
tio

n 
R

oa
d 

22
6/

30
21

P 
N

an
cy

 Y
at

es
 

22
8/

30
23

P 
H

ar
ro

w
 o

n 
th

e 
H

ill 
Fo

ru
m

 
22

9/
30

24
P 

Ia
n 

M
cA

le
es

e 
05

1/
30

25
P 

An
ne

 F
ra

nc
is

 
23

0/
30

26
P 

Sp
ro

ul
l &

 C
o 

 

18
4  

I m
ak

e 
no

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n.

 
  

    

PS
 7

: L
an

d 
no

rth
 o

f 
Ju

nc
tio

n 
R

oa
d 

07
7/

06
59

 R
ox

bo
ro

ug
h 

R
oa

d 
R

es
id

en
ts

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
18

4 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

la
st

 s
en

te
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

te
xt

, i
n 

th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

- “
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 C

on
st

ra
in

ts
”, 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

Pr
op

os
al

 S
ite

 7
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
fu

tu
re

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

on
 s

ite
 c

an
 b

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

ot
he

r p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

PS
15

: R
oc

h 
Av

en
ue

 
Al

lo
tm

en
ts

, T
en

by
 

R
oa

d,
 E

dg
w

ar
e 

(a
nd

 
PI

C
31

). 
  

01
2/

03
51

 R
oc

h 
Av

en
ue

 A
llo

tm
en

ts
 

Ac
tio

n 
G

ro
up

 
03

2/
07

83
 E

 D
 C

ha
m

be
rs

 
01

2/
01

58
R

 R
oc

h 
Av

en
ue

 
Al

lo
tm

en
ts

 A
ct

io
n 

G
ro

up
 

 

18
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 P

S1
5 

as
 a

 P
ro

po
sa

l S
ite

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

Li
m

iti
ng

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

cu
rti

la
ge

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

 re
du

ce
s 

th
e 

si
te

 
to

 a
 s

iz
e 

th
at

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ju

st
ify

 it
s 

in
cl

us
io

n 
as

 a
 

Pr
op

os
al

 S
ite

. F
ut

ur
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 c

an
 b

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 c
on

tro
lle

d 
by

 
ot

he
r p

la
n 

po
lic

y.
  

 

140



43
 

 PS
 1

7:
 F

or
m

er
 H

ar
ro

w
 

H
os

pi
ta

l, 
an

d 
nu

rs
es

 
ho

st
el

, R
ox

et
h 

H
ill 

11
7/

12
75

 B
el

lw
ay

 H
om

es
 L

td
  

18
7 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

, i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
te

xt
 fo

r P
ro

po
sa

l S
ite

 1
7,

 in
 

th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

- “
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
an

d 
C

on
st

ra
in

ts
”, 

by
 th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
of

 “o
r 

si
m

ila
r c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

s”
, a

nd
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

n 
of

 a
 s

en
te

nc
e 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
so

 a
m

en
de

d 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

-  “
Th

e 
ai

m
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 fo
r a

n 
im

ag
in

at
iv

e 
sc

he
m

e 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

hi
gh

 d
en

si
ty

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 w

hi
ls

t 
su

ita
bl

y 
re

co
gn

is
in

g 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f a
ll 

th
es

e 
fa

ct
or

s”
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

   
in

 p
ar

t 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

ch
an

ge
 

pr
ov

id
es

 g
re

at
er

 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 P

PG
3 

an
d 

th
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t B
rie

f 
en

do
rs

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

Th
e 

su
gg

es
te

d 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 

“d
es

ig
n 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

”, 
ho

w
ev

er
, c

ou
ld

 fa
il 

to
 

pr
op

er
ly

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

. T
he

 
in

cl
us

io
n,

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
, o

f 
“…

pr
ev

ai
lin

g 
co

ns
tra

in
ts

…
” 

w
ou

ld
 o

ve
rc

om
e 

th
is

 
om

is
si

on
, a

nd
 m

or
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r’s
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
 

PS
 1

8:
 F

or
m

er
 K

in
gs

 
H

ea
d 

H
ot

el
, H

ig
h 

St
re

et
, H

ar
ro

w
 o

n 
th

e 
H

ill 
              

05
9/

05
80

  F
ai

rb
ria

r/M
ac

le
od

 
04

4/
09

71
 G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

 

18
8                  

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

, i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
te

xt
 fo

r P
ro

po
sa

l S
ite

 1
8,

 in
 

th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

- “
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
an

d 
C

on
st

ra
in

ts
”, 

as
 fo

llo
w

s:
- 

 
Ad

d 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
fir

st
 p

ar
a 

- “
R

eg
ar

d 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 p

ai
d 

to
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t a
dv

ic
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 

br
ie

f i
n 

PP
G

 3
 a

nd
 P

PG
 1

3.
” 

R
ep

la
ce

 te
xt

 in
 s

ec
on

d 
pa

ra
 a

fte
r f

irs
t 

se
nt

en
ce

 w
ith

 - 
“S

ho
ul

d 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

n 
ho

te
l n

ot
 b

e 
vi

ab
le

, 
th

en
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r a

s 
an

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
a 

sc
he

m
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

: 
 

a)
 T

he
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t h
is

to
ric

 
pa

rt
s 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l a

nd
 

A
3 

us
e 

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

vi
ab

ili
ty

/s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 is

su
es

 b
ei

ng
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

  
in

 p
ar

t 
                

Th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ch

an
ge

 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 p
la

nn
in

g 
po

si
tio

n 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 
m

or
e 

pr
ec

is
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r t
he

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 fu

tu
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
.  

Am
en

di
ng

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
as

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, w
ou

ld
 c

re
at

e 
a 

po
te

nt
ia

l c
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t g

ui
de

lin
es

 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 in
 p

ar
a.

 1
 o

f t
he

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
an

d 
C

on
st

ra
in

ts
 c

ol
um

n.
 

Th
es

e 
se

rv
e 

no
 u

se
fu

l 
pu

rp
os

e 
ha

vi
ng

 b
ee

n 
su

pe
rs

ed
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 

ap
pe

al
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 a

llo
w

 

141



44
 

     

     

ad
dr

es
se

d)
. 

 
b)

 T
he

 d
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
R

oo
m

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

sc
he

m
e.

 
c)

 T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f p
ur

po
se

 b
ui

lt 
ne

w
 

ho
us

in
g 

on
 th

e 
si

te
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
an

d 
hi

st
or

ic
 in

te
re

st
 

of
 th

e 
lis

te
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

is
 p

re
se

rv
ed

; t
he

 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 a

dj
ac

en
t p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
is

 
no

t m
at

er
ia

lly
 h

ar
m

ed
; a

de
qu

at
e 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
se

t a
si

de
 fo

r a
m

en
ity

 p
ur

po
se

s 
an

d 
ac

co
un

t i
s 

ta
ke

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
tr

ee
s 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 T

PO
’s

.”
 

 
(T

hi
rd

 p
ar

a 
to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

). 
 

      

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
si

te
, a

nd
 c

an
 n

ow
 b

e 
de

le
te

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
pl

an
. T

he
 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r i
s 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 

PS
21

: H
ar

ro
w

 A
rts

 
C

en
tre

, U
xb

rid
ge

 R
oa

d,
 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 la

nd
 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

. 
 

01
3/

03
74

 M
r P

 H
 P

oo
le

 
 

18
9 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

PS
 2

3 
- R

ay
ne

rs
 L

an
e 

an
d 

PS
 2

7A
 - 

R
ox

et
h 

N
ur

se
ry

, T
he

 A
rc

he
s 

11
0/

11
27

-2
8 

W
ar

de
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
Lt

d 
12

9/
13

79
-8

0 
D

av
id

 F
en

tim
an

 
00

7/
02

68
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
 

18
9 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 fr
om

 th
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 M
ap

 o
f t

he
 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 d

es
ig

na
tio

ns
 fo

r l
an

d 
at

 
D

rin
kw

at
er

 R
oa

d/
Sw

ift
s 

C
lo

se
 a

nd
 a

t 
Th

ac
ke

ra
y 

C
lo

se
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
ch

an
ge

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 s
ch

em
e 

fo
r t

he
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 

R
ay

ne
rs

 L
an

e 
Es

ta
te

.  

PS
 2

9:
 L

an
d 

at
 

St
an

m
or

e 
St

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 la

nd
, L

on
do

n 
R

oa
d 

03
1/

04
95

 R
am

bl
er

s 
 L

on
do

n 
W

al
ki

ng
 F

or
um

 
04

4/
09

72
 G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

 

19
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

, i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
te

xt
 fo

r P
ro

po
sa

l S
ite

 2
9,

 in
 

th
e 

co
lu

m
n 

- “
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
an

d 
C

on
st

ra
in

ts
”, 

by
 th

e 
su

bs
tit

ut
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
fin

al
 s

en
te

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

- 
“A

 fo
ot

pa
th

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

si
te

 b
et

w
ee

n 
its

 fr
on

ta
ge

s 
to

 L
on

do
n 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
D

al
ke

ith
 G

ro
ve

, a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 li
nk

 to
 C

an
on

s 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 

St
an

m
or

e 
C

ou
nt

ry
 P

ar
k”

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

it 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

a 
su

ita
bl

y 
de

si
gn

ed
 fo

ot
pa

th
 li

nk
 

w
ith

ou
t c

au
si

ng
 u

nd
ue

 
ha

rm
 to

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

in
te

re
st

 o
f t

he
 

si
te

.  

142



45
 

PS
 3

0:
 F

or
m

er
 R

AF
 

St
an

m
or

e 
Pa

rk
, 

U
xb

rid
ge

 R
oa

d 
 

00
7/

07
23

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
19

1 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

PS
 3

1:
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
O

ffi
ce

s,
 B

ro
ck

le
y 

H
ill 

 

00
7/

07
24

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

  
19

1 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

PS
33

: F
or

m
er

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
s,

 
H

on
ey

po
t L

an
e.

 
 

01
8/

04
20

 L
au

re
nc

e 
C

ox
 

19
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

PS
 4

1:
 E

x 
BR

 S
ite

, 
C

ec
il 

R
oa

d 
 

04
4/

09
73

 G
re

at
er

 L
on

do
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 
19

2 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

143



46
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 1

2 
– 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
S 

  
U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
 

Pa
ra

. 
O

bj
ec

to
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
N

o.
 &

 N
am

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
R

ep
or

t 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

Sc
he

du
le

 1
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 
Te

rm
s 

(a
nd

 P
IC

35
) 

02
6/

04
78

 H
ou

se
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

Fe
de

ra
tio

n 
06

5/
05

97
 P

et
er

 D
 K

yt
e 

As
so

ci
at

es
 

05
2/

09
91

-2
 C

 J
 W

ay
m

an
 

 
 

 

19
3 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

35
, 

an
d 

by
 th

e 
de

le
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

of
 

th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 a

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

re
as

on
ed

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
  

a 
re

-d
ra

fte
d 

po
lic

y 
ob

vi
at

es
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r i

nc
lu

si
on

 in
 th

e 
G

lo
ss

ar
y.

  

Sc
he

du
le

 7
 –

 S
er

vi
ce

 
R

oa
d 

Pr
op

os
al

s 
01

3/
03

77
 M

r P
 H

 P
oo

le
 

04
2/

08
55

 T
he

 H
at

ch
 E

nd
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

 

19
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Sc
he

du
le

 9
 –

 M
et

ho
d 

fo
r 

Ap
pl

yi
ng

 C
ha

ng
es

 o
f U

se
 

of
 S

ho
ps

 P
ol

ic
y 

 

02
1/

04
26

 J
 E

 C
rip

ps
 

19
4 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Sc
he

du
le

 1
1 

– 
Ke

y 
D

oc
um

en
t R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
 

05
2/

01
77

R
 C

 J
 W

ay
m

an
 

19
5 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

144



47
 

C
H

A
PT

ER
 1

3 
– 

PR
O

PO
SA

LS
 M

A
P 

  
U

D
P 

Po
lic

y/
 

Pa
ra

. 
O

bj
ec

to
r R

ef
er

en
ce

 
N

o.
 &

 N
am

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 
R

ep
or

t 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 

 
In

sp
ec

to
r’s

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

LB
H

 
R

es
po

ns
e

 
R

ea
so

n 
fo

r R
es

po
ns

e 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

D
is

tri
bu

to
r 

R
oa

d:
 O

ld
 C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
, 

Ab
er

co
rn

 R
oa

d,
 S

t 
An

dr
ew

’s
 D

riv
e 

an
d 

C
ul

ve
r G

ro
ve

. 
                          

01
8/

04
19

 L
au

re
nc

e 
C

ox
 

02
0/

04
24

 R
us

se
ll 

Ka
ne

 
03

3/
05

21
 S

 E
 S

pe
lls

 
03

4/
05

25
 H

 J
 S

pe
lls

 
04

6/
05

39
 P

am
el

a 
Le

a 
04

7/
05

43
 D

eb
or

ah
 M

al
le

tt 
04

8/
05

47
 M

is
s 

D
 H

 H
ol

bu
rn

 
04

9/
05

51
 S

 P
ac

k 
07

0/
06

06
 B

 M
oo

rh
ou

se
 

05
2/

09
86

 C
 J

 W
ay

m
an

 
09

2/
11

39
 R

os
 S

ha
w

 
09

3/
11

43
 M

rs
 R

am
ba

i K
am

i 
09

4/
11

47
 B

ar
ry

 G
ilb

er
t 

09
5/

11
51

 M
r J

 R
aw

al
 

09
6/

11
55

 C
hr

is
tin

e 
Al

la
in

 
09

7/
11

59
 M

r &
 M

rs
 M

en
ah

em
 

09
8/

11
63

 M
rs

 P
 R

os
en

be
rg

 
09

9/
11

67
 J

 F
er

na
nd

es
 

10
0/

11
71

 Z
 W

ad
oo

d 
10

1/
11

75
 G

uy
s 

N
ew

sa
ge

nt
s 

10
2/

11
79

 M
r T

 S
el

va
ra

ja
h 

10
3/

11
83

 M
r, 

M
rs

 &
 M

st
r 

M
ar

ca
m

pi
lla

i 
10

4/
11

87
 M

 C
 C

la
pi

ns
on

 
10

5/
11

91
 P

 P
in

do
ria

 
10

6/
11

95
 D

 V
 P

at
el

 
10

7/
11

99
 P

 S
im

m
on

ds
 

10
8/

12
03

 J
oh

n 
an

d 
Ka

th
le

en
 

M
ur

ph
y 

10
9/

12
07

 A
 B

ar
re

tto
 

12
6/

13
67

 D
av

id
 L

eb
of

f 

19
6                               

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
                         

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
                              

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
                         

145



48
 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

D
is

tri
bu

to
r 

R
oa

d:
 O

ld
 C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
, 

Ab
er

co
rn

 R
oa

d,
 S

t 
An

dr
ew

’s
 D

riv
e 

an
d 

C
ul

ve
r G

ro
ve

. (
C

on
t) 

 

12
8/

13
77

 E
 C

op
pi

n 
13

1/
13

86
 V

 &
 K

 H
ira

ni
 

13
7/

14
51

 M
an

su
kh

 V
ek

ar
ia

 
06

0/
14

70
 M

rs
 A

ss
an

i 
 

19
6 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
   

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

Lo
nd

on
 O

ut
er

 O
rb

ita
l 

Pa
th

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ap

ita
l R

in
g 

 

03
1/

04
94

 R
am

bl
er

s 
 L

on
do

n 
W

al
ki

ng
 F

or
um

 
19

7 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

M
et

.. 
O

pe
n 

La
nd

: 
Lo

w
la

nd
s 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

G
ro

un
d 

 

06
1/

10
31

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ol

le
ge

 
19

8 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

M
aj

or
 D

ev
el

op
ed

 S
ite

s 
in

 
th

e 
G

re
en

 B
el

t 
06

2/
10

58
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

, P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n 

 

19
8 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e:

 H
ea

th
fie

ld
 

Sc
ho

ol
 (a

nd
 P

IC
32

) 
05

8/
05

79
 G

irl
s 

D
ay

 S
ch

oo
l T

ru
st

 
05

8/
02

00
R

 G
irl

s 
D

ay
 S

ch
oo

l 
Tr

us
t* 

 

19
9 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

32
. 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
fu

rth
er

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Si
te

s 
of

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Im

po
rta

nc
e 

05
7/

05
63

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

 
19

9 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
 b

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
io

n,
 a

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

ab
ov

e.
 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Id

en
tif

ie
d 

er
ro

rs
 a

nd
 

om
is

si
on

s 
w

ill 
be

 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

  

Si
te

 o
f N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Im
po

rta
nc

e:
 

W
ea

ld
 W

oo
d 

 

02
2/

04
29

 M
r J

 C
ob

b 
19

9 
I r

ec
om

m
en

d 
no

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

 
Ac

ce
pt

ed
 

N
o 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

146



49
 

 Si
te

 o
f N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Im
po

rta
nc

e:
 

W
oo

d 
Fa

rm
 (a

nd
 P

IC
33

) 
    

01
8/

01
61

R
 L

au
re

nc
e 

C
ox

 
00

7/
02

72
R

 H
ar

ro
w

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

ru
m

 
05

7/
02

79
R

 M
r J

 D
ob

so
n 

14
1/

02
82

R
 M

r S
im

on
 B

ra
id

m
an

 
14

4/
02

83
R

 J
 R

ob
er

ts
 

 

20
0 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

re
-In

qu
iry

 C
ha

ng
e 

33
, 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
la

nd
 a

t W
oo

d 
Fa

rm
, p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
r o

m
is

si
on

 b
y 

th
e 

R
D

D
, w

ith
in

 th
e 

Si
te

 o
f 

N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Im

po
rta

nc
e,

 a
nd

 
al

so
 th

e 
fro

nt
ag

e 
la

nd
 s

ho
w

n 
ed

ge
d 

re
d 

on
 P

la
n 

LB
H

/7
/3

-2
. 

 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 in
 

pa
rt 

It 
is

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
fro

nt
ag

e 
la

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 (r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
its

 lo
w

 
na

tu
re

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
va

lu
e,

 
as

 c
on

cl
ud

ed
 fr

om
 a

 G
LA

 
su

rv
ey

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 in

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
3)

.  
  

Si
te

 o
f N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Im
po

rta
nc

e:
 

Li
m

es
 H

ou
se

 
 

00
7/

02
73

R
 H

ar
ro

w
 N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Fo
ru

m
 

 

20
1 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 la
nd

 a
t L

im
es

 H
ou

se
 in

 
th

e 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

Si
te

 o
f N

at
ur

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Im
po

rta
nc

e.
 

 

N
ot

 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 

Th
e 

LE
U

 H
an

db
oo

k,
 

“N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
in

 
H

ar
ro

w
” c

le
ar

ly
 e

xc
lu

de
s 

la
nd

 a
t L

im
es

 H
ou

se
 fr

om
 

th
e 

ad
jo

in
in

g 
Si

te
 o

f N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
In

te
re

st
. I

n 
th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 a
ny

 c
on

tra
ry

 
ad

vi
ce

 fr
om

 th
e 

LE
U

’s
 

su
cc

es
so

r b
od

y 
at

 th
e 

G
LA

, 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
in

 
ac

ce
pt

in
g 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ch

an
ge

. 
 

Pi
nn

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 C

en
tre

 
 

11
6/

12
74

 T
he

 P
in

ne
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
20

1 
I m

ak
e 

no
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n.
 

Pr
op

os
al

s 
M

ap
 to

 b
e 

re
-

ex
am

in
ed

 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ag
re

ed
 to

 
re

vi
ew

 th
e 

cl
ar

ity
 o

f t
he

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

M
ap

 a
s 

it 
af

fe
ct

s 
Pi

nn
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 C
en

tre
.  

 
Fl

oo
dp

la
in

s 
 

11
4/

12
15

 B
ry

an
t H

om
es

 (T
ha

m
es

 
Va

lle
y)

 L
td

 a
nd

 B
ry

an
t L

ife
st

yl
e 

H
om

es
 

20
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
bs

tit
ut

io
n,

 o
n 

th
e 

Pr
op

os
al

s 
M

ap
, o

f 
th

e 
no

ta
tio

n 
“E

nv
iro

nm
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
Fl

oo
d 

Pl
ai

ns
” f

or
 “F

lo
od

 P
la

in
s 

[o
f M

ai
n 

R
iv

er
s]

”. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Th

is
 te

ch
ni

ca
l c

ha
ng

e 
cl

ar
ifi

es
 w

ha
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

is
 

be
in

g 
sh

ow
n.

 

Fu
tu

re
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
 

12
3/

12
90

 C
ro

w
n 

C
as

tle
 U

K 
Lt

d 
 

20
2 

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

no
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

Pl
an

. 
 

Ac
ce

pt
ed

 
N

o 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

  

147



148

This page is intentionally left blank



Development Control Committee  10th December 2003 
UDP Committee  5th January 2004 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 

Meeting: 
 

Development Control Committee  
Unitary Development Plan Advisory Panel  
 

Date: 
 

10th December 2003 
5th January 2004 
 

Subject: 
 

Planning Services Annual Monitoring Report 2002/03 
 

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Chief Planning Officer 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

 
Planning, Development , Housing and Best Value 

Status: 
 

Part I 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 – End of year statement 2001/2002 
Appendix 2 – End of year statement 2002/2003 
Appendix 3 – Planning Application Workload 1989-2003  

- Planning Application Performance 1989-2003 
 

1. Summary / Reason for Urgency (if applicable) 
 
1.1 The performance monitoring statement for the first six months of 2002/03 was 

circulated to Members in January this year.  The end of the year statement is 
attached.  A commentary on the statement is set out below, which in particular 
examines performance against key indicators and targets, implications for Planning 
Delivery Grant (PDG) for 2004/05 and the implications for the ‘naming and shaming’ 
of the Council as a ‘planning standards authority’.  The report also reviews workload 
trends and the implications in all service areas of increasing applications, legislative 
changes and regional/sub-regional working. 

 
To ensure members are aware of the workload/financial issues in advance of service 
planning decisions for 2004/05. 

 
2. Recommendation (for decision by the Development Control Committee) 
 
2.1 The Committee is recommended to note the report and the potential implications for 

meeting strategic targets and PDG. 
 
FOR DECISION 
 
REASON:  To ensure that members are aware of current workload and performance 
issues. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 149 to 176

149



Development Control Committee  10th December 2003 
UDP Committee  5th January 2004 
 

 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1 None 
 
4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
 
4.1 Previous Monitoring Reports and ODPM Best Value and Planning Delivery Grant 

Advice. 
 
5.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1 This report addresses the Council’s priorities of enhancing the environment and 

developing a prosperous and sustainable economy. 
 
6. Background Information and Options Considered  
 
6.1 Once again, the trend in numbers of planning and building control applications has 

been upwards, with a 12% increase in planning applications received and a 15% 
increase in building control.  This pattern has continued on into the current year.  The 
pressures to improve performance, to meet Government and local Best Value 
Performance Indicators and to accommodate increasing workload puts increasing 
strain on the services, at a time when recruiting and retaining staff is proving very 
difficult. 

 
During the year to March 2003, the primary objective in policy was to prepare for the 
UDP Inquiry, which took place in February-April.  The process was managed 
successfully, with pre-inquiry negotiations resulting in many objections being 
withdrawn and the matters to be determined by the Inspector reduced to manageable 
levels.  At the same time, there has been increased pressure to initiate, support and 
develop area and site specific work for regeneration and town centres, development 
of major sites and to support the New Harrow Project.  A number of major 
applications involving conservation areas and listed buildings placed demands on 
conservation resources limiting the time available for pro-active work on policy and 
site specific issues, and this has followed on into the current year with a series of 
high profile public inquiries. 

 
6.2 Development Control 
 
 As mentioned above, 2002/03 saw a 12% increase in the numbers of planning 

applications received, and the numbers of applications determined showed an 11.4% 
increase.  This clearly represents a significant increase in workload.  Two additional 
posts were created in development control as a result of the increased budget 
provision and these together with the restructuring into Delegated and Committee 
teams enabled the workload to be managed, but not to improve application-handling 
times significantly from 2001/02.  While the first three quarters of the year showed 
consistent improvement, unprecedented turnovers of staff in the last quarter (Jan-
March 2003) resulted in poor figures which dragged down the overall year’s 
performance.  Since that time, new permanent staff have been appointed, and with a 
more settled situation and reduced temporary cover, the first six months of the 
current year are showing much better figures.  However, the staffing situation in 

150



Development Control Committee  10th December 2003 
UDP Committee  5th January 2004 
 

London and the South East remains very volatile and the position can change very 
quickly. 

 
 The Government is expressing particular concern over performance on major 

applications (DC6).  The numbers of such applications increased during 2002/03 and 
have continued to increase in the current year.  New monitoring mechanisms have 
now been put in place to manage performance which are producing a quicker 
turnround, but there have been a number of large, complex and controversial 
schemes submitted which are very difficult to deal with within 13 week, particularly 
where they involve S106 agreements. These agreements can lead to protracted 
negotiations with developers over the terms of the agreement. In other cases the 
developer delays the point at which they enter in to the agreement for as long as 
possible. This puts much greater pressure on ensuring that the more straightforward 
major schemes are determined within the timescale. Revised working arrangements 
are being developed to deal with these issues as quickly as possible and in some 
cases before the matter goes to committee. 

 
 The ‘minor’ applications category continues to give cause for concern.  While the 

revised delegation arrangements have been fully operational since October and will 
assist to an extent in improving the performance, they will not put the Council in a 
position to meet the Government target of 60% in 8 weeks.  As long as significant 
numbers of such applications still fall to Committee for decision, this target will be 
difficult to achieve. 

 
 The number of responses to notifications (DC15) increased by over 20% during the 

year, indicating an increase both in public interest in planning issues and resultant 
workload.  

  
 Members should also appreciate that improvements in meeting targets for 

determining applications have been in part achieved through reducing scope for 
negotiating amendments.  While applicants are given the opportunity to amend 
schemes where straightforward changes would result in recommendation for 
approval, they are given deadlines for submission which if not met will result in 
refusal.  Obviously unacceptable schemes will result in early refusals. Wherever 
possible, informatives are attached to refusal decision notices explaining what can be 
done to achieve an acceptable scheme.  For householder applications, the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance approved earlier this year provides very clear and 
detailed guidance, and this is widely available. 

 
6.3 Forward Planning 
 
 The UDP Inquiry finished in mid-April 2003 and the Inspector’s Report was received 

in August.  The preparation for the Inquiry was the key priority task for Forward 
Planning staff for most of 2002/03.  As a result, many of the objections were resolved 
through discussion and negotiation prior to Inquiry, reducing Inquiry time.  This has 
subsequently resulted in relatively small number of issues to be dealt with through 
amendment and modification. 

 
Monitoring of key performance indicators showed a near 50% increase in 
permissions for new dwellings together with a doubling of the percentage of 
affordable units permitted from 22.4% to 45%.  This was mainly as a result of a 

151



Development Control Committee  10th December 2003 
UDP Committee  5th January 2004 
 

number of large high density affordable housing schemes being approved late in the 
year, including the Rayners Lane Estate development and sites in Wealdstone.  
100% of new development was approved on previously developed land. 

 
 During the course of 2002/03 six new conservation area policy guidelines were 

approved, bringing the total to 18 out of a possible 28.  Projects at Canons Park (now 
with a new post funded from Heritage Lottery Fund grant), the Harrow on the Hill 
Heritage Regeneration Scheme and Headstone Manor have all been progressed, 
although Headstone Manor has been the subject of delay.  Major applications (and 
subsequent appeals) at the Kings Head, East End Farm and Harrow Hospital have 
proved very resource intensive for the Conservation Section, particularly in the 
current year. 

 
 The Research and Information workload was intensive following the availability of the 

2001 Census results.  A start has been made in analysing results as they are 
released and this work will be continuing through 2003/04.  Contributions to the 
preparation of the ‘Vitality Profiles’ in support of the New Harrow Project enabled the 
South Harrow Pilot to be launched in April 2003, and again this work is continuing as 
NHP is rolled-out in further areas. 

 
 Town Centre Strategy and development has taken a much higher profile, with a draft 

Town Centre Strategy agreed for consultation in April 2003.  Support for the 
Wealdstone Regeneration inititiatives also continued through the year, in particular in 
respect of the Wealdstone Centre proposals and key housing sites. 

 
 2002/03 was also the year which saw Government proposals for the reform of the 

Planning System, which resulted in many consultation documents from ODPM to be 
considered.  The completion of the statutory processes for the new Town Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act in 2004 will bring with it a fundamental change in 
development planning, with a more intensive and shorter timescale for producing 
plans which will have resource implications. 

 
 The Mayor’s London Plan was the subject of an Examination in Public (EIP) in the 

latter part of 2002/03.  The response to consultation and preparing and presenting 
evidence to the EIP on behalf of both the Borough and the West London Alliance 
represented a significant additional workload.  This will continue with the preparation 
of Sub-Regional Development Frameworks. 

 
6.4 Planning Standards Performance 
 
 The Government identified Harrow as a ‘Planning Standards’ authority for 2002/03, 

based on our performance for dealing with applications in 2000/01.  The Government 
expected Harrow to deal with 50% of ‘minor’ applications within 8 weeks and 65% of 
‘other’ applications.  The actual performance was 37% and 61% accordingly.  The 
difficulties in meeting these figures are outlined in the above paragraphs.  As a result, 
consultants working for ODPM are scrutinising the Council’s performance for report 
back to Government on whether any further action should be taken.  They have had 
a comprehensive set of documents/statistics and an explanation of the difficulties of 
meeting performance levels at a time of consistently increasing workload and 
recruitment and retention difficulties.  The outcome of their study should be more 
available to the Council in the New Year. 

152



Development Control Committee  10th December 2003 
UDP Committee  5th January 2004 
 

 
 The Council has also been identified as a ‘Planning Standards’ authority for 2003/04, 

on the basis of the performance on ‘major’ applications.  The target set is 50% 
determined within 13 weeks.  On the basis of the first six months performance (42%), 
this may be achievable.  However, there have been a number of large, complex 
applications received recently which will impact on performance.  Any applications 
requiring a S106 agreement are extremely unlikely to be determined within the time 
limit. 

 
6.5 Planning Delivery Grant (PDG) 
 
 Members will be aware that in January 2003 the Council was awarded a total of 

£252,000 Planning Delivery Grant, based on the improvement in DC performance 
from September 2001 to September 2002.  A report outlining has this was to be 
spent was considered at DC Committee and Cabinet earlier this year. 

 
 For next year, the PDG allocations are being made again on the basis of DC 

performance, from September 2002 to September 2003, and also for Development 
Plan progress.  For DC performance, the award is likely to be minimal (if any) as it 
will be based on improvement over the period, which for reasons explained above, 
was not the case in Harrow.  The criteria and timing for the policy element is not yet 
known, but the latest information suggests that it will not be available until later in 
2004. 

 
 Much of the PDG award for this year has been directed towards DC staffing and the 

benefits of this are showing clearly in the improvement in performance in the first six 
months of 2003/04.  However, unless this funding is continued for 2004/05 there is a 
real danger that this progress will be lost. 

 
6.6 Building Control 
 
 The situation in Building Control reflected that in Development Control, with a near 

15% increase in Full Plans applications received.  Apart from a period early in the 
year when staffing was particularly difficult, performance has been maintained at a 
consistently high levels (Indicators BC1-BC3). 

 
 The increase in plans deposited was accompanied by a similar increase of 12% in 

the number of site inspections carried out during the year, and a slight increase in the 
numbers of inspections per job (BC17 and BC18).  The numbers of applications dealt 
with per officer and number of site visits per officer also increased slightly. 

 
 The number of applications lost to the private Approved Inspectors was down by over 

25% both in the domestic and commercial sectors (BC 26 & BC 29). Due to the 
overall number of applications being on the increase, the improvement in market 
share can been judged to be the result of an effective marketing strategy and the 
ability to sustain a high standard of service delivery. The improvement in market 
share increased income (BC 5) and therefore overall cost efficiency. 

 
 The difficulties of recruiting and retaining staff continued throughout 2002/03 and are 

currently showing no indications of improving within the London region. The 
introduction of a market supplement at the end of March 2003 of £2,000, as a 

153



Development Control Committee  10th December 2003 
UDP Committee  5th January 2004 
 

recruitment and retention initiative has failed to attract the required professionally 
qualified applicants to date and is currently being reviewed.  Other features such as 
working conditions when compared with neighbouring local authorities may also be a 
contributory factor in recruitment and retention problems. 

 
7. Finance Observations 
 
7.1 Contained within the report. 
 
8. Legal Observations 
 
8.1 Contained within the report. 
 
9. Conclusion 
 
9.1 Members are invited to note the performance of the Planning and Building Control 

services during 2002/03 and the implications of increasing workloads in all areas and 
the impact on Government and Council targets. 

 
10. Background Papers 
 
10.1 None 
 
11.  Author 
 
11.1 Graham Jones, Chief Planning Officer  

0208 414 1466 
 
 
 
 

154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164

This page is intentionally left blank



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176


